
llhIffihIllh/I///II/II///I//IIIIIih//I/I/IillhII/

09038685

II 11111 IfI II IHl HI Ill

09038686

122

PtflTPLfl flS

The energy of smart choices

Great Plains Energy 2008 Annual Report



From meeting the challenges of turbulent

marketplace to growing our generating

capabilities and customer base Great Plains

Energy is positioned to deliver low-cost

reliable service to our customers and

growth to our shareholders

Headquartered in Kansas City Mo Great Plains

Energy Incorporated NYSE GXP is the holding

company of Kansas City Power Light Company

and KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company

two of the leading regulated providers of electricity

in the Midwest Kansas City Power Light and

IKCPL Greater Missouri Operations use KCPL

Top Photo Wher the new stan generaorg

staton comes online in 2010 1w complete

the major poroor
of our Ove

year mpruhensve

Erergy Plan COP The COP was in tiated 2005

and is designed to he meet the growwg demand

for electricity ir our region wh Ic dehvering sig

nifica economic and environmental benefits

to the Kansas Cty area With over 2500 ski led

craftsmen working at the site the afar
project

is Inc argest non highway construction project

currently ir Missourias their brand name



Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December31

Dollars in millions except per share amounts 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Great Plains Energy

Operatingrevenues 1670 1293 1140 1131 1092

Income from continuing operations 120 121 137 135 132

Netincome 155 159 128 162 183

Basic earnings per common share

from continuing operations 1.16 1.41 1.74 1.79 1.81

Basic earnings per common share 1.51 1.86 1.62 2.15 2.51

Diluted earnings per common share

from continuing operations 1.16 1.40 1.73 1.79 1.81

Diluted earnings per common share 1.51 1.85 1.61 2.15 2.51

Total assets at year-end 7869 4832 4359 3842 3796

Total redeemable preferred stock mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities and

long-term debt including current maturities 2627 1103 1142 1143 1296

Cash dividends per common share 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66

SEC ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.26 2.53 3.50 3.09 2.77

Kansas City Power Light Company

Operating revenues 1343 1293 1140 1131 1092

Netincome 125 157 149 144 145

Total assets at year-end 5229 4292 3859 3340 3335

Total redeemable preferred stock mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities and

long-term debt including current maturities 1377 1003 977 976 1126

SEC ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2.87 3.53 4.11 3.87 3.37

Great Plains Energys results include GMO only from the July 14 2008 acquisition date

This amount is before income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes of $35.0 million $38.3 million

$9.1 million $27.2 million and $50.3 million in 2008 through 2004 respectively

Great Plains Energy Operating Revenues Stock Performance Graph

Dollars in Millions Dollars

Comparison of Cumulative Total Returnsof Great Plains Energy

SP 500 Indexand EEl Index
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Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends Asssmes

$100 invested on December 31 2003 in Company

common stock SP 500 Index and EEl Index



Year of Transformation

2008 was transformational year We took proactive

steps to improve our business nsk profile with the sale

of Strategic Energy competitive retail electric provider

Even more noteworthy we expanded our utility platform

and earnings potential by completing the acpuisition of

Aquila with its Missouroregulated utility business and

worked to compiete the first of two major projects at our

latan Generating Station

We are in the final two years of our Comprehensive Energy

Plan CEP Under the CEP we have added new wind

farm in western Kansas installed environmental equip

ment at our LaCygne and latan coal plants invested

in our transmission and distribution system ano launched

number of energy-efficiency and demand-response pro

yrams And finally construction is continuing on latan an

850-megawatt coaUfired power plant featuring state-oC

the-art emission-control equipment Our ownership share

of latan is 73 percent With planned completion date in

the summer of 2010 latan is expected to provide clean

reliable energy for our region for years to come

We are proud of these accomplishments It is tribute and

testamerlt to our dedicated hard-working employees

Stock PHce Performance

While we accomplished much in 2008 our achievements

were not reflected in our stock price performance last year

For the year our price fell 341 percent which was greater

than the Philadelphia Stock Exchange Utility
Indexs decline

of 299 percent but less than the SP 500s drop of 38.5

percent We believe the reasons our stock price underper

formed in 2008 include the long construction period for our

CEP the uncertainty in the first half of 2008 that surrounded

the sale of Strategic Energy and the acquisition of Aquila

and the impact of the volatile economy and financial markets

on our actual and projected results and financing plans

DMdend

To provide the Company additional tinancial flexibility in

February 2009 we announced 50 percent reduction in

our common stock aividend Our previous level of dividend

and st.ock price had resulted in dividend yield that was

the highest in the utility industry Also the payout ratio with

the previous dividend level would have resulted in us pay

ing out well over 100 percent of projected 2019 earnings

Reducing the dividend by half will save our Company about

$100 million per year in cash that can be reinvested in our

business arid reduce our reliance on expensive external

capit.al while still maintaining yield and payout ratios that

are competitive with other utilties

We know that our dividend is an important part of the

value proposition for owning our stock However during

these extremely challenging times we believe our

shareholders long-term interests are best served

by rnaintainingthe Companys financial strength and

flexibility to ensure continued progress toward our

long-term objectives

The dividend reduction is just uric of several proactive

steps we are taking to meet the economic and market

challenges head-on We continue to work to capture the

promised synergies of the Aquila transaction Additional

steps we Pave irktiated inclLide

eliminating or deferring $450 million of capital spending

over the next two years and

suspending external hiring for all hut essential skills

We believe that these actions will allow us to continue witf

our strategic growth plan and emerge from these difficult

times strong company



2008 Strategic Accomplishments

June 2008 Sod Strategic Energy and received

about $300 million in cash which was reinvested

in our utility operations The sale value looked very

attractive then and looks even more so now given

developments in the competitive supply market over

the past several months

Juy 2008 Acquired Aquia now named KCPL
Greater Missouri Operations Company or GMO
following 17-month approval process and immediately

began integrating the operations to begin capturing

the benefits for shareholders and customers In todays

rising-cost environ

ment the synergies

we expect to

achieve from this

transaction are

an important part

of our plan to

maintain affordable

energy prices for

the customers

and communities

we serve

ila

September 2008 Fed rate cases with the

Missouri Public Service Commission MPSC and the

Kansas Corporation Commission KCC to increase

base rates in all of our utility service areas The

requests which are subject to regulatory approval

are expected to be decided in late summer of 2009

The rate requests vary in each of our service areas

and include recovery for investments in environmental

upgrades at our latan and Sibley power plants

Crossroads generation and transmission resources

and energy-efficiency programs as well as overall

increased costs of service

October 2008 ntated the atan outage to

perform major unit overhaul as well as the tie-in of

the Air Quality Control System AQCS environmental

project that is
part of the CEP The AQCS project was

completed in February 2009 latan is expected to

return to normal operation early in the second quarter

of 2009

December 2008

SuccessfuVy competed the envftonmenta

Selective Catalytic Reduction SCR upgrade at

Sibley coal plant

JD Power confirmed customer satsfacflon

remained strong Despite recent rate increases

our overall prices remain approximately 25 percent

below the national average

Postoning for the Future

The global energy arena is facing time of uncertainty

that will undoubtedly bring much change It is difficult to

predict the industry consequences of the shift in global and

national energy and environmental policy the advancements

in enabling technologies and the broad-based energy

efficiency initiatives that are underway But it is clear that

the electric energy industry must explore variety of

supply resources including nuclear power clean coal

renewable resources such as wind and solar and the

storage of electric energy We must also provide greater

transparency and control to our customers over their

ertergy usage Each of these initiatives requires investment

in infrastructure and enabling technologies

In 2009 as we work on our remaining CEP projects arid

capture the synergies we have promised from the Aquila

transaction we also will develop the next phase of our stra

tegic planning the Sustainable Resource Strategy SRS
As we did in the past with the CEP the SRS initiative will

engage the regulators community and other key stake-

holders in process to help guide our long-term plans for

generation environmental spending energy efficiency and

renewable energy

flnancia flexibHFty

We cannot know with any certainty what impact the

continued difficulties in the global capital markets and the

slowdown in the economy will have on our ability to tackle

these significant infrastructure and environmental invest

ments But we do know that our proactive planning has

better positioned us to complete the investments outlined

in our CEP and respond to the changing energy and envi

ronmental policies and the marketplace Were committed

to manage our business and access the capital markets

in way that maintains our credit ratings and protects

financial flexibility

Were taking important steps to seize opportunities created

by new directions in energy policy and to weather the current

financial market turmoil Guided by our strategic intent to

provide long-term shareholder value and to improve the total

living environment of our communities we strive to be the

place to work the neighbor to have and the company to own

Thank you for your support

Mike Ohesser Bill Doweey

Great Plains Energy



2008 Focus on Our Utihty Roots

The sale of Strategic Energy has enabled us to fully concen

trate our energies on our regulated public utilities With the

completion of the Aquila transaction in July the Company

expanded its utility foundation and broadened its regional

presence Weve renamed Aquila as KCPL Greater Missouri

Operations Company GMO

On the day the GMO acquisition was completed July 14

2008 we rebranded all utility locations with new logo

that represents todays KCPL strong regional utility

Since Day One employees have worked tirelessly to provide

customers with seamless service as single operationally

integrated organization

Our integration efforts focused on bringing together more

than 820000 customers across 47 counties coordinat

ing the operations of nearly 3200 employees 30 percent

of which came from GMO and ensuring reliable service

across our expanded network

Highlights include

Consolidating the two GMO unions into our three existing

unions under common work rules

Combining two separate company platforms for account

ing HR systems and telecom and network infrastructure

into single platform for each function

Service Territory

Nebraska

KCPL

0MG

Managing the integration process to deliver immediate

and sustainable synergy benefits In our ongoing rate

cases in Missouri we included operating synergies that

will begin accruing to Missouri customers when new rates

are effective in the third quarter this year

Were also already seeing the impact of extending our opera

tional and reliability best practices to the GMO operations

The results from the fourth quarter JO Power Residential

Customer Satisfaction survey showed continued improve

ment in the GMO territory and the combined utilities placed

in Tier for the calendar year of 2008 Customer service

outage duration statistics also continued to be good for the

fourth quarter and we anticipate our utilities will be top tier

for the full yea

Utihty Stats

combined generation capacity of more than 6137

MW 3177 MW of coal 545 MW of nuclear 101 MW
of wind and 2314 MW of gas and oil

42 facilities including the company headquarters

15 generating facilities one wind generation facility

one nuclear facility data center customer-care

center training center an operations center and

20 service centers

Over 820000 customers including approximately

722000 residences 96000 commercial firms

and 2800 industrials municipalities and other

electric utilities

Network of over 3000 miles of transmission lines

over 24000 miles of distribution lines and 320

substations

Benefits of the GMO Acquisition

Signflcant customer and sharehoder vaue
More than $750 million in gross estimated savings

from operational synergies expected from 2008-2017

Tier operations The adjacent utility service

territories are helping create significant savings that

support our goals of providing Tier service and

operational excellence

ncreased community presence The acquisition

expands the scope of our volunteerism which helps

build strong communities for our customers

Iowa

Great PIana Energy



Diverse Generation Mix

Net MWhs Generated by Fuel Type

Stable Regulated

Customer Base

Serve Approximately 820000 Customers

Residences 722000

Commercial Firms 96000

Industrial Municipahdeu

and Other 2800

Reliability Key Focus

Expansive Disthhution System

Overhead One MUes 71%

Underground One Miles 9%

Providing Great Value

Missouri and Kansas have some of the lowest reta rates in the nation
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U.S Average 1028
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Coin Week July 24 2008

Coal 76%

Nuclear .7%

Coal and Natural Gas 3%

Natural Gas and Oil 2%

2%

2008 Retail Price per K9omatt Hour Cents

Electricity Prices Percent Change 20OO-2008

LlS Average 241%

Great PlairEs Energy



Smart Choices Position Us for the Future

The industry is changing at rapid pace and it is important to stay abreast

and be involved in shaping the future energy landscape We have consis

tently been at the forefront of environmental initiatives advancements in

enabling technologies and broad-based energy efficiency efforts

Mike Chesser our Chairman and CEO has taken national role in energy

technologies through his chairmanship of the Electric Power Research

Institutes EPRI Board of Directors Mike is also member of the execu

tive committee of the Edison Electric Institute EEl and chair of the Energy

Efficiency Task Force which is looking for ways to make energy efficiency

viable alternative for utilities around the country

The evolution toward smart grid is expected to he an iportartt pa of our

Sustainable Resource Strategy SRS for 2010-2020 Kansas City Power

Light was an early adopter of an automated meter-reading system and we

are actively planning for investments in twmway interactive system Such

system will allow us to better communicate with our customers and manage

the flow of electricity on the grid smart grid will enable and optimize the

integration of distributed gerteration provide better grid reliability and offer

consumers more transparency and control of their energy usage

We remairt committed to delivering lower-cost energy in volable economy

while addressing important environmental issues As part of our CEP we

added 1005 MW of wind generation in 2006 And as pledged we are explor

ng additional wind-generation development and have introduced number of

initiatives focused on energy efficiency demand response and affordability

We have also invested in environmental upgrades and retrofits at four of our

existing facilities With these environmental enhancements we will materially

reduce total emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide particulates and mer

cury across our entire fleet and even with the addition of latan we expect

to see substantial reductions of these emissions from pre-CEP levels

We continue to be national leader in energy efficierrcy and are supporbng

proposed legislation to better enable consumers to lower their utility bills

through increased energy efficiency while also allowing return on invest

ment to our shareholders This proposed legislation offers opportunities to

replace capital expenditures on new plants with customer-oriented service

incentives to use electricity more efficiently

It was KCPLs leadership

in creating program to

assist in offsetting some

of the additional costs

buHders incur when

constructing more energy

efficient home that has

paved the way for better

practices among builders

And it also serves as

template for other utility

companies and munici

palities as they create

their own programs

Kevin Enyeart charrnan

Build creen council Home Builders Association of

Greater Kansas city

Mike Poling Manager Government Affairs

Washington oc

Great Plains Energy



Were Proactivey Meeting the industrys lop Chaflenges
Electricity will remain the backbone of the nations economy There are many challenges and opportunities

facing the electricity sector that we will need to address in collaboration with all stakeholders

The ability to access capital in

order to continue investments

in energy infrastructure and

technology

Costs are increasing and near-

term demand is decreasing

Aging workforce

Transmission and distribution

system is becoming more

congested

The
ability

for companies to

make long-term investments to

better serve customers and in

the process allow investors to

earn reasonable return on their

investment

Great Paera
Erergy



The Power of Partnering

We are committed to buildi ig Winning Cufture that values

nspiied leadership disciplined performance management

engaged employees accountability and loyalty We believe the

right
team will produce trerformance that wIl drive long term

shareholder and customer value

Partnering is Win
iing

Culture fundamental It is reflected in

almost everything we do from our relationships with custom

ers suppliers and the communities we serve to the handling

of the GMO integration Winning Culture is an inclusive

program designed to help employees develop professionally

and feel kinship as we work together to build topMier

organization It very much includes our relationship with

the leadership of the International Brotherhood of Electrical

Workers IBEW who worked with us to consolidate GMOs

two unions into our three existing unions Bargaining unit

employees are valued members of our Company and are

actve on our Winning Cu ture Partner teams which are

volunteer groups focused on identifying and implementing

process improvements across the Company

We remain frmly committed to our community legislative

and regulatory approach because we have lea ned that each

constituency supports and influences the others Through this

app oach we have built numerous collaborative relationships

that help us accomplish our business objectives and also

serve as good corporate citizen

Our targeted volunteer and charitable support programs focus

on artrisk youth the environment and economic and civic

efforts We are building strong long term relationships with

customers community leaders legislators and regulators

which ultimately impact shareholder value

Our Winning Culture provides our greatest

long rm sustoinabie advantage Its what

dfferentiates us fron many other utilities

Mike Chesser cro

2008 Community Strategy Highlights

Employee volunteerism reached 20 percent ove

the target of 18 perceril

Expansion of Comm inlty St ategy ito new om ur

ties thror 5f giving oluntc iism arid leadership

lop leadership met with mo ia 60 Ii cr mr ty

leaders and customers at fl eve sin icw territ ries

to discuss integration and mportar sw as

United Way Campaign record break
rig $1027173

itli 55 pc nt Coripar paic gang 17 GMO

locatio is held rrrrpaigns to the fast time Leadership

givers ircrcased to 133 140 pc cci ncreas

Company leadership grew wrtf op esentation or

100 boards ircluding 14 in the GMO servico rca

18/ percent of our key partners hays represr ti ioi

Community involvement and leadership awards

KC Sprr Awaid KC Busiress Journal Char rpions

of Busrness Award Harsester sHall of Faiie Award

Habitit for Hurran Co npany lb Yea ban

League Difference Make Awa

KCPL Fnergizers Program

We adopted DM0 best actice for the ent ro

Companywien we irtroducod tie KCPL Energizers

peer nom ed errrployee rocognitic progrsrr

first outstandrrrg enp oyee to be reoogniied

Materials Operator Rob Hull 18kW 1464 wh

2008 rrtroduced and me crier ted rn dea rhat saved

more than $25OCO contractor fees Hc aCe reco

rrrnded safety procedure to redo accidents try

sip Teto ist s.D pole rjni

2008 we ser more

than 1000 nployccs

to assist utilities St

iuis Mo Houstor

Texas and Greerrville

arrd touiswlle Ky with

Hurrcare Ike danage

repairs The dedication

was widely recognized

by the ru utrlit

rearParst ry
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED

1201 WALNUT STREET

KANSAS CITY MISSOURI 64106

March 25 2009

Dear Shareholder

We are pleased to invite you to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Great Plains Energy
Incorporated The meeting will be held at 1000 a.m Central Daylight Time on Tuesday May 2009
at the Kansas City Public Library Plaza Branch Truman Forum Auditorium 4801 Main Street Kansas

City Missouri 64112 The Truman Forum Auditorium is accessible to all shareholders Shareholders

with special assistance needs should contact the Corporate Secretar Great Plains Energy

Incorporated 1201 Walnut Street Kansas City Missouri 64106 no later than Friday April 24 2009

At this meeting you will be asked to

Elect the Companys nine nominees as directors

Ratify the appointment of independent auditors for 2009

Approve an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized

shares of common stock from 150 million to 250 million shares and

Transact any other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments or

postponements thereof

The attached Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the business to be

transacted at the meeting Your vote is important Please review these materials and vote your shares

We hope you and your guest will be able to attend the meeting Registration and refreshments will

be available starting at 900 a.m

Sincerely

Michael Chesser

Chairman of the Board

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials

for the Shareholder Meeting to Be Held on May 2009

This proxy statement and our 2008 Annual Report are available at

http//materials.proxyvote.com/391164
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Kansas City Public Library

Maza Branch

The Plaza Branch of the Library is located just south of the Country Club Plaza near the

intersection of Main and 48th streets Complimentary parking is available in the parking

garage located off Main St

Ward Parkway is onoway eastbound from Main St to Brookaide Blvd

11
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED
1201 Wlnut Street

Kansas City Missouri 64106

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Date Tuesday May 2009

Time 1000 am Central Daylight Time
Place Kansas City Public Library Plaza Branch

ituman Forum Auditorium

4811 Main Street

Kansas City Missouri 64112

PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement and accompanying proxy card are being mailed beginning March 25 2009 to

owneis of our common stork for the solicitation of pioxics by out Board of Dirr etois Board for the

2000 Annual Mecting of Sb neholders Annual N4ceting he Boaid encourages you to read this

document carefully and take this opportunity to vote on the matters to he decided at the Annual

Meeting

In this proxy st tement wc iefei to Grcat Plains Lnergy lncoipoiated as we us company

01 Gre it P1 ims Energy unless the context clcaily indicates otherwise

rA

hp r8n It
Ipi ia ote



ABOUT THE MEETING

Why did you provide me this proxy statement

We provided you this proxy statement because you are holder of our common stock and our

Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the Annual Meeting As permitted by Securities

and Exchange Commission SEC rules we have mailed notice regarding the availability of proxy

materials the Notice and elected to provide access to this proxy statement and our 2008 annual

report to shareholders to our beneficial shareholders and certain of our registered shareholders

electronically via the internet If you received Notice by mail you will not receive printed copy of

the proxy materials in the mail unless you request printed copy The Notice explains how to access

and review the proxy statement and 2008 annual report to shareholders and how to vote over the

internet If you received Notice and would like to receive printed copy of our proxy materials you

should follow the instructions for requesting such materials included in the Notice In the future we

may elect to expand electronic delivery and provide all shareholders Notice rather than incurring the

expense of printing and delivering copies of the materials to everyone

For information on how to receive electronic delivery of annual shareholder reports proxy

statements and proxy cards please see Can elect electronic delivery of annual shareholder reports

proxy statements and proxy cards below

What will be voted on

At the Annual Meeting you will be voting on

The election of nine directors to our Board

The ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche LLP Deloitte Touche to be our

independent registered public accounting firm in 2009 and

An amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of

common stock from 150 million to 250 million

How do you recommend that vote on these matters

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the people nominated to be

directors FOR the ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche and FOR the amendment to

our Articles of Incorporation

Who is entitled to vote on these matters

You are entitled to vote if you owned our common stock as of the close of business on

February 24 2009 also referred to as the Record Date On that day approximately 119243329 shares

of our common stock were outstanding and eligible to be voted Shares of stock held by the Company

in its treasury account are not considered to be outstanding and will not be voted or considered

present at the Annual Meeting At the Annual Meeting you are entitled to one vote for each share of

common stock owned by you at the close of business on the Record Date

was an Aquila shareholder and havent delivered my Aquila stock certificates for exchange Am entitled to

vote

Yes You are entitled to vote the number of whole shares of Great Plains Energy stock that you

have the right to receive in the exchange



Is cumulative voting allowed

Cumulative voting is allowed with respect to the election of our directors This means that you

have total vote equal to the number of shares you own multiplied by the number of directors to be

elected Your votes for directors may be divided equally among all of the director nominees or you

may vote for one or more of the nominees in equal or unequal amounts You may also withhold your

votes for one or more of the nominees If you withhold your votes these withheld votes will be

distributed equally among the remaining director nominees

How many votes are needed to elect directors

The nine director nominees receiving the highest number of FOR votes will be elected This is

called plurality voting Withholding authority to vote for some or all of the director nominees or not

returning your proxy card will have no effect on the election of directors

How many votes are needed to ratify the appointment of Deloitte Touche

Ratification requires the affirmative vote of the majority of shares present in person or by proxy at

the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote Your broker is entitled to vote your shares on this matter if

no instructions are received from you Abstentions will have the effect of negative votes Shareholder

ratification of the appointment is not required but your views are important to the Audit Committee

and the Board If shareholders do not ratifr the appointment our Audit Committee will reconsider the

appointment

How many votes are needed to approve the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation

Missouri law requires the amendment to be approved by the affirmative vote of the majority of the

outstanding shares of our common stock Your broker is entitled to vote your shares on this matter if

no instructions are received from you Abstentions will have the effect of negative votes

How can submit proposal to be included in next years proxy statement

To be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting the Company

must receive notice on or before November 25 2009 All proposals must comply with the SEC rules

regarding eligibility and type of shareholder proposal Shareholder proposals should be addressed to

Great Plains Energy P0 Box 418679 Kansas City MO 64141-9679 Attention Corporate Secretary

Can bring up matters at the Annual Meeting or other shareholder meeting other than through the proxy

statement

If you intend to bring up matter at shareholder meeting other than by submitting proposal

for inclusion in our proxy statement for that meeting our By-laws require you to give us notice at least

60 days but no more than 90 days prior to the date of the shareholder meeting If we give

shareholders less than 70 days notice of shareholder meeting date the shareholders notice must be

received by the Corporate Secretary no later than the close of business on the tenth ioth day

following the earlier of the date of the mailing of the notice of the meeting or the date on which public

disclosure of the meeting date was made The notice must contain the information required by our

By-laws

May ask questions at the Annual Meeting

Yes We expect that all of our directors senior management and representatives of Deloitte

Touche will be present at the Annual Meeting We will answer your questions of general interest at the



end of the Annual Meeting We may impose certain procedural requirements such as limiting

repetitive or follow-up questions so that more shareholders will have an opportunity to ask questions

How can propose someone to be nominee for election to the Board

The Governance Committee of the Board will consider candidates for director suggested by

shareholders using the
process

described in the section titled Director Nominating Process on

page

Our By-laws require shareholders wishing to make director nomination to give notice not less

than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the date of the shareholder meeting If we give

shareholders less than 70 days notice of shareholder meeting date your notice must be received by

the Corporate Secretary no later than the close of business on the tenth loth day following the earlier

of the date of mailing of the notice of the meeting or the date on which public disclosure of the

meeting date was made Your notice must comply with the information requirements in our By-laws

relating to shareholder nominations

Who is allowed to attend the Annual Meeting

If you own our shares you and guest are welcome to attend our Annual Meeting You will need

to register when you arrive at the meeting We may also verify your name against our shareholder list

If you own shares in brokerage account in the name of your broker or bank Street name you

should bring your most recent brokerage account Statement or other evidence of your share ownership

If we cannot verify that you own our shares it is possible that you may not be admitted to the meeting

ABOUT PROXIES

How can vote at the Annual Meeting

You can vote your shares either by casting ballot during the Annual Meeting or by proxy

Is Great Plains Energy soliciting proxies for the Annual Meeting

Yes our Board is soliciting proxies We will pay the costs of this solicitation In addition to the use

of the mails proxies may be solicited in person by telephone facsimile e-mail or other electronic

means by our directors officers and employees without additional compensation

Morrow Co Inc 470 West Avenue Stamford CT 06902 has been retained by us to assist in

the solicitation by phone of votes for fee of $8000 plus charge of $5.00 per holder for telephone

solicitations and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses We will also reimburse brokers nominees
and fiduciaries for their costs in sending proxy materials to holders of our shares

How do vote by proxy before the Annual Meeting

We have furnished registered shareholders holding more than 500 shares the proxy materials

including the proxy card These shareholders may also view the proxy materials online at the

wwwproxyvote.com website They may vote their shares by mail telephone or internet To vote by mail

simply mark sign and date the proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope provided To vote

by telephone or internet 24 hours day days week refer to your proxy card for voting

instructions

We have mailed Notice regarding the availability of proxy materials to our other shareholders

These shareholders may choose to view the proxy materials online at the wwwproxyvote.com website or

receive paper or e-mail copy There is no charge for requesting copy These shareholders may vote



their shares by internet through the www.proxyvote.com website or by phone after accessing this

website or by mail if they request paper copy of the proxy materials

In addition this Proxy Statement and our 2008 Annual Report are publicly available at

http//materials.proxyvote.com/391164

If your shares are registered in the name of your broker or other nominee you should vote your

shares using the method directed by that broker or other nominee large number of banks and

brokerage firms are participating in the Broadridge Financial Solutions Inc online program This

program provides eligible street name shareholders the opportunity to vote via the internet or by

telephone Voting forms will provide instructions for shareholders whose banks or brokerage firms are

participating in Broadridges program

Properly executed proxies received by the Corporate Secretary before the close of voting at the

Annual Meeting will be voted according to the directions provided If proxy is returned without

shareholder directions the shares will be voted as recommended by the Board

What shares are included on the proxy card

The proxy card represents all the shares registered to you including all shares held in your Great

Plains Energy Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan DRIP Great Plains Energy

401k Plan and KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company formerly Aquila Retirement

Investment Plan accounts as of the close of business on February 24 2009

Can change my mind after submit proxy

You may revoke your proxy at any time before the close of voting by

written notice to the Corporate Secretary

submission of proxy bearing later date or

casting ballot at the Annual Meeting

If your shares are held in street name you must contact your broker or nominee to revoke your

proxy If you would like to vote in person and your shares are held in street name you should contact

your broker or nominee to obtain brokers proxy card and bring it together with proper identification

and your account statement or other evidence of your share ownership with you to the Annual

Meeting

have Company shares registered in my name and also have shares in brokerage account How do vote

these shares

Any shares that you own in street name are not included in the total number of shares that are

listed on your proxy card Your bank or broker will send you directions on how to vote those shares

Will my shares held in street name be voted if dont provide proxy

These shares might be voted even if you do not provide voting instructions to the broker The

current New York Stock Exchange NYSE rules allow brokers to vote shares on certain routine

matters for which their customers do not provide voting instructions The election of our directors the

ratification of the appointment of Deloitte Touche and the proposed amendment to our Articles of

Incorporation are considered routine matters assuming that no contest arises on these matters



Is my vote confidential

We have policy of voting confidentiality Your vote will not be disclosed to the Board or our

management except as may be required by law and in other limited circumstances

ABOUT HOUSEHOLDING

Are you householding for your shareholders with the same address

Yes Shareholders that share the same last name and household mailing address with multiple

accounts will receive single copy of shareholder documents annual report proxy statement

prospectus or other information statement unless we are instructed otherwise Each registered

shareholder will continue to receive separate proxy card Any shareholder who would like to receive

separate shareholder documents may call or write us at the address below and we will promptly deliver

them If you received multiple copies of the shareholder documents and would like to receive combined

mailings in the future please call or write us at the address below Shareholders who hold their shares

in street name should contact their bank or broker regarding combined mailings

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Shareholder Relations

P.O Box 418679

Kansas City MO 64141-9679

1-800-245-5275

Can elect electronic delivery of annual shareholder reports proxy statements and proxy cards

Yes You can elect to receive future annual shareholder reports proxy statements and proxy cards

electronically via e-mail or the internet To sign up for electronic delivery please either check the box

in the Materials Election section of the proxy card or follow the instructions on the proxy card to

vote using the internet and when prompted indicate that you agree to receive or access shareholder

communications electronically in future years



ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Item on the Proxy Card

The nine nominees presented have been recommended to the independent directors of the Board

by the Governance Committee to serve as directors until the next Annual Meeting and until their

successors are elected and qualified Mr Mark Ernst who was elected director at our last Annual

Meeting resigned in January 2009 due to accepting position as Deputy Commissioner of the Internal

Revenue Service Mr Luis Jimenez who was also elected director at our last Annual Meeting has

notified the Board that he will not stand for re-election No director nominee for either of these two

positions is being proposed at this meeting All of the other directors elected at the 2008 Annual

Meeting with the addition of Gary Forsee who was appointed to the Board on December 2008

are listed below as nominees Each nominee has consented to stand for election and the Board does

not anticipate any nominee will be unavailable to serve In the event that one or more of the director

nominees should become unavailable to serve at the time of the Annual Meeting shares represented by

proxy may be voted for the election of nominee to be designated by the Board Proxies cannot be

voted for more than nine nominees

Nominees for Directors

The following persons are nominees for election to our Board

David Bodde James Mitchell

Michael Chesser William Nelson

William Downey Linda Talbott

Randall Ferguson Jr Robert West

Gary Forsee

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR each of the nine listed nominees

Director Nominee Information

David Bodde Director since 1994

Dr Bodde 66 is the Senior Fellow and Professor Arthur Spiro Institute for Entrepreneurial

Leadership at Clemson University since 2004 He previously held the Charles Kimball Chair in

Technology and Innovation 1996-2004 at the University of Missouri-Kansas City He also serves on

the boards of The Commerce Funds and our two public utility subsidiaries Kansas City Power Light

Company KCPL and KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company GMO Dr Bodde served as

member of the Executive Audit Compensation and Development and Governance Committees

during 2008

Michael Chesser Director since 2003

Mr Chesser 60 is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Great Plains Energy since

October 2003 Chairman of the Board since October 2003 and Chief Executive Officer since August

2008 of KCPL and Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since August 2008 of

GMO Mr Chesser served as member of the Executive Committee in 2008

William Downey Director since 2003

Mr Downey 64 is President and Chief Operating Officer of Great Plains Energy since October 2003

President since October 2003 and Chief Operating Officer since August 2008 of KCPL and

President and Chief Operating Officer since August 2008 of GMO He served as Chief Executive

Officer of KCPL 2003-2008 Mr Downey also serves on the boards of Enterprise Financial Services

Corp KCPL and GMO



Randall Ferguson Jr Director since 2002

Mr Ferguson 57 was the Senior Partner for Business Development for Tshibanda Associates LLC

2005-2007 consulting and project management services firm committed to assisting clients to

improve operations and achieve long-lasting measurable results He previously served as Senior Vice

President Business Growth Member Connections with the Greater Kansas City Chamber of

Commerce 2003-2005 and is the retired Senior Location Executive 1998-2003 for the IBM Kansas

City Region Mr Ferguson served on the Audit and Governance Committees during 2008

Mr Ferguson is also director of KCPL and GMO

Gary Forsee Director since 2008

Mr Forsee 58 is President of the four-campus University of Missouri System since February 2008
the states premier public institution of higher learning He previously served as Chairman of the Board

2006-2007 and Chief Executive Officer 2005-2007 of Sprint Nextel Corporation and Chairman of

the Board and Chief Executive Officer 2003-2005 of Sprint Corporation He also serves on the Board

of Ingersoll-Rand Company Limited Mr Forsee serves as member of the Audit and Compensation

and Development Committees

James Mitchell Director since 2002

Mr Mitchell 67 is the Executive Fellow-Leadership Center for Ethical Business Cultures since 1999
not-for-profit organization assisting business leaders in creating ethical and profitable cultures He

also serves on the Board of Capella Education Company Mr Mitchell served on the Compensation

and Development and Governance Committees during 2008 Mr Mitchell is also director of KCPL
and GMO

William Nelson Director since 2000

Mr Nelson 71 is Chairman since 2001 of George Baum Asset Management provider of

investment management services to individuals foundations and institutions He also serves on the

Board of DST Systems Mr Nelson served on the Executive Audit and Compensation and

Development Committees during 2008 Mr Nelson is also director of KCPL and GMO
Linda Talbott Director since 1983

Dr Talbott 68 is President and CEO of Talbott Associates since 1975 consultants in strategic

planning philanthropic management and development to foundations corporations and nonprofit

organizations She is also Chairman of the Center for Philanthropic Leadership Dr Talbott served as

the Advising Director for Corporate Social Responsibility and on the Governance and Compensation

and Development Committees during 2008 Dr Talbott is also director of KCPL and GMO
Robert West Director since 1980

Mr West 70 retired in July 1999 as Chairman of the Board of Butler Manufacturing Company

supplier of non-residential building systems specialty components and construction services He also

serves on the boards of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation and Commerce Bancshares Inc

Mr West served as the Lead Independent Director of the Board and as member of the Audit

Executive Compensation and Development and Governance Committees during 2008

Director Nominating Process

The Governance Committee identifies and recommends director nominees to the independent

directors of the Board At its discretion the Governance Committee may pay fee to third
party

consultants and experts to help identify and evaluate potential nominees

The Governance Committee takes into account number of factors when considering director

nominees as described in our Corporate Governance Guidelines Director nominees are selected based

on their practical wisdom mature judgment and the diversity of their backgrounds and business

experience Nominees should possess the highest levels of personal and professional ethics integrity



and values and be committed to representing the interests of shareholders The Governance Committee

may also consider in its assessment the Boards diversity in its broadest sense reflecting geography age

gender and ethnicity as well as other appropriate factors

In December 2008 our By-laws were amended to expand the information that must be provided by

shareholder who submits director nomination The required information now includes among other

things certain details about all ownership interests in the Company by the shareholder the

beneficial owner of the shares if different on whose behalf the nomination is made and any affiliate

associate or other persons acting in concert collectively referred to as the Proposing Person

including any hedging derivative short or other economic interests and any rights to vote the

Companys shares ii all material relationships between and among the Proposing Person and each

proposed director nominee and iii all arrangements or agreements between the Proposing Person in

connection with the nomination and/or proposal The By-laws as amended also require the proposed

nominee to include with the notice questionnaire providing information about the proposed

nominees background and qualifications and the background of any other person or entity on whose

behalf the nomination is being made The proposed nominee must also provide written

representation and agreement regarding voting commitments compensation reimbursement or

indemnification agreements and compliance with corporate governance and other policies and

guidelines of the Company The By-laws also require updating and supplementing the information as

necessary so that the information is true and correct as of the record date for the meeting and as of

the date of the shareholders meeting or any adjournment or postponement of that meeting

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Item on the Proxy Card

Deloitte Touche has acted as our independent registered public accounting firm since 2002 and

has been appointed by the Audit Committee to audit our financial statements for 2009 subject to

ratification by the shareholders of the Company

Representatives from Deloitte Touche are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting with

the opportunity to make statements if they wish to do so and are expected to be available to respond

to appropriate questions

The affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the shares of our common stock present and

entitled to vote at the meeting is required for ratification of this appointment If the appointment of

Deloitte Touche is not ratified the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm

will be reconsidered by the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firms

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the

independent registered public accounting firms to the Company and its subsidiaries These services may

include audit services audit-related services tax services and other services The Audit Committee has

adopted for the Company and its subsidiaries policies and procedures for the pre-approval of services

provided by the independent registered public accounting firms Under these policies and procedures

the Audit Committee may pre-approve certain types of services up to aggregate fee levels established

by the Audit Committee Any proposed service within pre-approved type
of service that would cause

the applicable fee level to be exceeded cannot be provided unless the Audit Committee either amends

the applicable fee level or specifically approves the proposed service The Audit Committee as well

may specifically approve audit and permissible non-audit services on case-by-case basis Pre-approval

is generally provided for up to one year unless the Audit Committee specifically provides for

different period The Audit Committee receives reports at each regular meeting regarding the



pre-approved services performed by the independent registered public accounting firms The Chairman

of the Audit Committee may between meetings pre-approve audit and non-audit services provided by

the independent registered public accounting firms and report such pre-approval at the next Audit

Committee meeting

Fees paid to Deloitte Touche

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by Deloitte Touche for audit services

rendered in connection with the consolidated financial statements and
reports for 2008 and 2007 and

for other services rendered during 2008 and 2007 on behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries all of

which were pre-approved by the Audit Committee as well as all out-of-pocket costs incurred in

connection with these services

Fee Category 2008 2007

Audit Fees $2828707 $2294695

Tax Fees 47871 43349

Total Fees $3008750 $2442757

Audit Fees Consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audits of the annual

consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and reviews of the interim

condensed consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports Audit fees also include

services provided by Deloitte Touche in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or

engagements audit of and reports on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and

on managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and other

attest services except those not required by statute or regulation services related to filings with the

SEC including comfort letters consents and assistance with and review of documents filed with the

SEC and accounting research in support of the audit The increase in audit fees in 2008 was driven

primarily by the sale of Strategic Energy and the acquisition of Aquila in 2008

Audit-Related Fees Consist of fees billed to the Company for benefit plan audits and for

assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of

consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and are not reported under

Audit Fees These services include consultation concerning financial accounting and reporting

standards and in 2008 and 2007 the acquisition of Aquila

Tax Fees Consist of fees billed to the Company for benefit plan tax services and for tax

compliance and related support of tax returns and other tax services including assistance with tax

audits and tax research and planning

All Other Fees Consist of fees for all other services other than those reported above Those

services in 2008 and 2007 included accounting research tool subscriptions

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR ratification
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee is currently comprised of five independent directors In connection with its

function to oversee and monitor the financial reporting process of Great Plains Energy the Audit

Committees activities in 2008 included the following

reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements and the report on internal control over

financial reporting with management and Deloitte Touche

discussed with Deloitte Touche the matters required to be discussed by SEC regulations and

by Statement on Auditing Standards No 61 as amended as adopted in Rule 3200T of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board the PCAOB and

received the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte Touche required by applicable

requirements of the PCAOB regarding Deloitte Touches communications with the Audit

Committee concerning independence and discussed with Deloitte Touche its independence

from management and the Company and its subsidiaries

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee recommended to the

Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Companys annual report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 for filing with the SEC

Audit Committee

Robert West Chair

David Bodde

Randall Ferguson Jr

Gary Forsee

William Nelson

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Item on the Proxy Card

Description of the Proposed Amendment

The Board has adopted subject to shareholder approval resolution to amend our Articles of

Incorporation in order to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 150 million

to 250 million shares The proposed amendment does not change the number of Cumulative Preferred

Stock Cumulative No Par Preferred Stock or Preference Stock that the Company is authorized to

issue

The text of the first paragraph of Article Three of our Articles of Incorporation as it is proposed

to be amended reads as follows

The amount of authorized capital stock of the Company is Two Hundred Sixty Two Million

Nine Hundred Sixty Two Thousand 262962000 shares divided into classes as follows

Three Hundred Ninety Thousand 390000 shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock of

the par value of One Hundred Dollars $100 each

One Million Five Hundred Seventy Two Thousand 1572000 shares of Cumulative

No Par Preferred Stock without par value

Eleven Million 11000000 shares of Preference Stock without par value

Two Hundred Fifty Million 250000000 shares of Common Stock without par value

The Board has directed that this amendment be submitted to our common shareholders for their

consideration and approval
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Reasons for the Proposed Amendment

The Company has not increased the number of authorized shares of common stock since it

became publicly traded company in October 2001 At that time the Company assumed the capital

structure of KCPL which had 150 million shares of common stock authorized and approximately

62 million shares of common stock outstanding As of February 24 2009 the Company had

approximately 119480212 shares of common stock issued and outstanding out of the currently

authorized 150 million shares and after taking into account shares reserved for issuance under our

401k plans equity compensation plans and periodic offering program approximately 16155600

shares of common stock were available for issuance The increase in the number of outstanding shares

since 2001 is primarily due to the shares issued to the former Aquila shareholders in exchange for their

Aquila shares and shares sold in public offerings

The Board believes that it is prudent especially in the current volatile economic and financial

environment to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock to provide flexibility with

respect to matters such as offerings to raise capital to contribute to our public utility subsidiaries in

connection with their ongoing construction programs and for their other general corporate purposes

acquisitions of businesses or property equity compensation plans possible stock splits or stock

dividends and for other general corporate purposes The Companys currently announced financing

plans project the issuance of about $200 million in equity through 2010 and about $200 million in

2011 to provide capital for our public utility subsidiaries Given the current state of the capital

markets there can be no assurances that the Company will be successful in issuing equity the prices at

which equity may be issued or whether any such financing plans would include the issuance of these

additional shares of common stock There are currently no definitive plans agreements or

arrangements in place requiring the utilization of these additional shares for any of the foregoing

Having such additional authorized common shares available for issuance in the future would however

allow the Board of Directors to issue shares of common stock without the delay and expense associated

with seeking shareholder approval at special shareholders meeting or waiting until the next annual

meeting Elimination of such delays and expense will better enable the Company among other things

to take advantage of changing market and financial conditions

Possible Adverse Effects of the Amendment on Common Shareholders

The additional common stock to be authorized by adoption of this amendment would have rights

identical to the currently outstanding common stock of the Company If our shareholders approve the

amendment our Board may cause the issuance of additional shares of common stock without further

vote of the shareholders except as may be required by applicable laws or the rules of the NYSE and

any other national securities exchanges on which our common stock is then listed The proposed

amendment will not have any immediate effect on the rights of existing common shareholders

However to the extent that the additional authorized shares of common stock are issued in the future

they will decrease the existing common shareholders percentage equity ownership and voting power

and depending on the price at which they are issued could be dilutive to existing common

shareholders Current holders of our common stock have no preemptive or similar rights which means

that they do not have prior right to purchase any new issuance of common stock to maintain their

proportionate ownership interests Issuance of additional common stock authorized by this amendment

may also reduce the portion of dividends and liquidation proceeds available to the holders of currently

outstanding common stock Although the Board has no present intention of doing so the additional

shares of common stock could be used to make it more difficult to effect change in control of the

Company Presently the Board knows of no attempt to obtain control of the Company
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Vote required for Approval

The proposed amendment must be approved by the affirmative vote of majority of the

outstanding common stock shares entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting If the amendment is

approved by the common shareholders the amendment will become effective upon filing of

certificate of amendment with the Missouri Secretary of State which the Company anticipates filing

promptly following the Annual Meeting or as soon as practicable thereafter

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the proposed amendment

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Our business property and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board in accordance

with Missouri General and Business Corporation Law and our Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

Although directors are not involved in the day-to-day operating details they are kept informed of our

business through written reports and documents regularly provided to them In addition directors

receive operating financial and other reports by the Chairman and other officers at Board and

Committee meetings

Board Attendance at Annual Meeting All directors are expected to attend the 2009 Annual

Meeting All directors with the exception of Dr William Hall who did not stand for reelection
were present at the 2008 Annual Meeting

Meetings of the Board The Board held ten meetings in 2008 Each of our directors attended at

least 80% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and committees to which he or she was

assigned Mr Forsee was appointed to the Board on December 2008 and no Board committee

meetings were held between his appointment and the end of 2008 The independent members of the

Board annually elect Lead Independent Director Mr West was the Lead Independent Director in

2008 and continues in that role in 2009 Mr West as Lead Independent Director presides over

regularly scheduled executive sessions of the non-management members of the Board among other

duties set out in our Corporate Governance Guidelines

Committees of the Board The Boards four standing committees are described below Directors

committee memberships are included in their biographical information beginning on page

Executive Committeeexercises the full power and authority of the Board to the extent

permitted by Missouri law The Committee generally meets when action is
necessary between

scheduled Board meetings The Committees current members are Messrs Chesser Chairman
Nelson and West and Dr Bodde

The Committee did not meet in 2008

Audit Committeeoversees the auditing accounting and financial
reporting of the Company

including

monitoring the integrity of the Companys financial reporting process and systems of

internal controls regarding finance accounting legal and
regulatory compliance

maintaining procedures for the receipt retention and treatment of complaints regarding

accounting internal accounting control or auditing matters and the confidential anonymous
submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting and auditing

matters

monitoring the Companys controls regarding fraud prevention detection and reporting of

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the Companys internal control over financial reporting
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having direct responsibility for the appointment compensation retention termination terms

of engagement evaluation and oversight of the work of the Companys independent

auditors

reviewing and discussing significant audit services department findings and recommendations

and managements responses and

providing an avenue of communication among the independent auditors management audit

services department and the Board

The Committees current members are Messrs West Chairman Ferguson Forsee and

Nelson and Dr Bodde Mr Ernst served as Chairman of the Committee through 2008 and until

his resignation in January 2009 Dr Hall also served on the Committee until the 2008 Annual

Meeting All members of the Audit Committee are independent as defined for audit committee

members by the NYSE listing standards The Board identified Messrs Forsee Nelson and West as

independent audit committee financial experts as that term is defined by the SEC pursuant to

Section 407 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Committee held eight meetings in 2008

Compensation and Development Committeereviews and assists the Board in overseeing

compensation and development matters including

aligning the interests of directors and executives with the interests of shareholders

motivating performance to achieve the Companys business objectives

developing existing and emerging executive talent within the Company

engaging third-party consultants to assist the Committee in the development and evaluation

of compensation programs and compensation recommendations

administering Great Plains Energys incentive plans for senior officers and

recommending compensation to be paid to Board members and Company officers

The Committees current members are Messrs Nelson Chairman Forsee Jimenez Mitchell

and Drs Bodde and Talbott Mr Ernst was member of the Committee through 2008 and until

his resignation in January 2009 The Committee held five meetings in 2008

The processes
and procedures for considering and determining executive compensation

including the Committees authority and role in the process its delegation of authority to others

and the roles of our executive officers and third-party executive compensation consultants in

making the decisions or recommendations are described in the Compensation Discussion and

Analysis section below

Governance Committeereviews and assists the Board with all corporate governance matters

including

identifying and recommending nominees qualified to become Board members

monitoring the effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries in meeting overall

objectives and goals of the organization

developing recommending and monitoring set of appropriate corporate governance

principles applicable to Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries and

monitoring the effectiveness of the Companys social responsibility program
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The Committees current members are Messrs Jimenez Chairman Ferguson Mitchell West

and Dr Talbott Dr Hall also served on the Committee until the Annual Meeting in 2008 The

Committee held four meetings in 2008

Corporate Governance Guidelines Committee Charters and Code of Ethical Business Conduct

The Board has adopted written corporate governance guidelines charters for the Audit Compensation

and Development and Governance Committees and Code of Ethical Business Conduct These

documents are available on the Companys website at wwwgreatplainsenergy.com These documents are

also available in print to any shareholder upon request Requests should be directed to Corporate

Secretary Great Plains Energy Incorporated P.O Box 418679 Kansas City MO 64141-9679

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Our stock is listed on the NYSE and our Board uses the NYSE director and Board committee

independence definitions in determining whether our directors and committee members are

independent In addition there are SEC independence requirements for the members of our Audit

Committee

The NYSE director independence definitions provide that directors cannot be independent if they

do not meet certain objective standards or if the Board determines that the director has material

relationship with the Company The Board determined at its February 2009 meeting that the following

current directors who with the exception of Mr Jimenez are also nominees for directors at our

Annual Meeting are independent under the NYSE definitions

David Bodde Luis Jimenez Linda Talbott

Randall Ferguson Jr James Mitchell Robert West

Gary Forsee William Nelson

The Board also determined in 2008 that Dr Hall who did not stand for reelection in 2008 and

Mr Ernst who resigned in January 2009 were independent under the NYSE definitions

Only these independent directors are members of our Audit Compensation and Development and

Governance Committees All members of our Audit Committee also meet the additional NYSE and

SEC independence requirements Messrs Chesser and Downey are not independent under the

NYSE definitions because they are also officers of the Company
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In making its independence determinations the Board considered all commercial charitable and

other transactions and relationships between the Company and its subsidiaries on the one hand and

the directors and their immediate family members on the other hand that were disclosed in the annual

questionnaires that our directors completed in January 2009 None of the identified transactions is

related party transaction that is required to be disclosed in this proxy statement The Board

concluded that the transactions and
relationships did not impair the independence of the current

non-officer directors The categories or types of these transactions and relationships are identified for

each non-officer director in the following table

Name Relationships

In addition to those matters the Board considered the fact that our regulated electric utility

subsidiaries provide retail electric service to the directors their immediate family members and

employers who are in our utility subsidiaries service territories

David Bodde Trustee of mutual fund family associated with bank that

participates in revolving credit agreements with the

Company and provides other financial services to Company

omnnvGary Forsee

William Nelson

Director of supplier to the President of the

University of Missouri System to which the Company

contributes makes tuition reimbursements to its employees

and has certain officers and directors serving in trustee or

advisory positions director of charitable or civic

organizations to which the Company contributes and

related to an employee of supplier to the Company

Director of service provider to Company employee health

and welfare plans director or spouse of director of

charitable civic and educational organizations to which the

Company contributes pays dues or fees or has directors or

officers serving as directors or officers director of

supplier to the

Robert West Director of suppliers to the Company director of bank

that participates in revolving credit agreements with the

Company and provides other financial services to the

Company director of an educational organization to which

the Company contributes
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Governance Committee has established written policies and procedures for review and

approval of transactions between the Company and related parties If related party transaction subject

to review directly or indirectly involves member of the Governance Committee or an immediate

family member of such member the remaining Governance Committee members will conduct the

review In evaluating related party transaction involving director executive officer holder of more

than 5% of our voting stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons

the Governance Committee considers among other factors

The benefits to the Company associated with the transaction and whether comparable or

alternative goods or services are available to the Company from unrelated parties

The nature of the transaction and the costs to be incurred by the Company or payment to be

made to the Company

The terms of the transaction including the goods or services provided by or to the related party

The significance of the transaction to the Company and to the related party and

Whether the related party transaction is in the best interest of the Company

Each year each director and officer completes questionnaire that requires disclosure of any

transaction with the Company in which they or any member of their immediate family has direct or

indirect material interest The questionnaire also requires disclosure of relationships that the director or

officer and the members of his or her immediate family have with other entities Directors and

officers are also required to notify the Corporate Secretary when there are any changes to the

previously reported information

The Companys legal staff is primarily responsible for the development and implementation of

procedures and controls to obtain information from the Companys directors and officers relating to

related party transactions and relationships and determining based upon the facts and circumstances

including review of Company records whether the Company or related party has direct or

indirect material interest in transaction The Companys legal staff then provides the results of its

evaluation to the Governance Committee and Board for their use in determining director independence

and related party disclosure obligations Please see the section titled Director Independence on

page 15 for discussion of how director independence is determined

The Governance Committees policies provide that certain types of related party transactions are

permitted without prior approval of the Governance Committee even if the aggregate amount involved

will exceed $120000 although all such transactions are reported annually to the Governance

Committee and the Board including but not limited to

where the transaction is one where the rates or charges are determined by competitive bids and

the transaction was the lowest bid

tariffed retail electric services provided by the Company

transactions where the partys interest arises only from his or her position as director of the

other party

transactions with another entity at which the partys only relationship is as an employee other

than an executive officer

if the aggregate amount involved does not exceed the greater of $1 million or 2% of that entitys

consolidated gross revenues
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any charitable contribution grant or endowment by the Company to charitable organization

foundation or university at which partys only relationship is as an employee other than an

executive officer director or trustee if the aggregate amount involved is less than the greater of

$1 million or 2% of the organizations total annual charitable receipts

transactions involving common or contract carrier services at rates fixed in conformity with law

or governmental authority and

transactions other than loans by the Company available to all employees generally

To receive Governance Committee approval related party transactions must have Company

business purpose and be on terms that are fair and reasonable to the Company or as favorable to the

Company as would be available from non-related entities in comparable transactions The Governance

Committee also requires that the transaction meets the same Company standards that apply to

comparable transactions with unaffiliated entities

The following transaction involved subsidiary of the Company as party in which the amount

involved exceeded $120000 and in which holder of more than 5% of our common stock may have

had material direct or indirect interest

On February 2009 Schedule 13G was filed by Barclays Global Investors NA and affiliated

reporting persons This was the first Schedule 13G filed by Barclays Global Investors or any of their

affiliates regarding Great Plains Energy stock The Schedule 13G stated that the reporting persons

collectively held 5.07% of Great Plains Energy common stock as of December 31 2008 Please see the

section titled Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Directors and Officers on page 20

for additional information

Following the policies and procedures described above we determined that in 2001 subsidiary of

GMO which we acquired in July 2008 entered into natural gas financial swap agreement with

Barclays Bank This swap agreement expired on December 31 2008 Pursuant to the terms of the swap

agreement the GMO subsidiary paid Barclays Bank $8010870 during the period it was subsidiary of

Great Plains Energy

The Governance Committee ratified this completed transaction In making this decision the

Governance Committee considered relevant facts and circumstances including the transaction was

entered into more than six years before GMO was acquired by the Company in 2008 and the

Schedule 13G was filed in 2009 from available evidence the transaction was entered into on an

arms-length basis between the GMO subsidiary and Barclays Bank GMO did not report this

transaction in its proxy statements indicating that the transaction was not related party transaction

between GMO and Barclays Bank there was no other transaction between the Company and Barclays

Bank or its affiliates in 2008 and no director or officer of the Company reported any relationship with

Barclays Bank or its affiliates

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of our Compensation and Development Committee is or was an officer or

employee of Great Plains Energy or its subsidiaries None of our executive officers served as director

or was member of the compensation committee or equivalent body of any entity where member

of our Board or Compensation and Development Committee was also an executive officer
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BOARD POLICY REGARDING COMMUNICATIONS

The Company has process
for communicating with the Board Communications from interested

parties to the non-management members of the Board can be directed to

Chairman Governance Committee

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

P.O Box 418679

Kansas City MO 64141-9679

Attn Barbara Curry Corporate Secretary

Communications are forwarded to the Governance Committee to be handled on behalf of the

Board
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The following tables show as of February 27 2009 beneficial ownership of Company common
stock by each director ii the named executive officers NEOs iii all directors and executive

officers as group and each shareholder who the Company knows is beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Companys common stock based on SEC filings The total

of all shares owned by directors and executive officers represents less than 1% of our outstanding

shares Our management has no knowledge of any person as defined by the SEC who owns

beneficially more than 5% of our common stock except as described below Except as noted below the

Company believes that the persons listed in the tables below have sole voting and investment power
with respect to the securities listed

Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

Vested Stock

Options and Share

Options that Equivalents to

Beneficially Vest Within be Settled in Total Share
Name Owned Shares 60 Days Stock Interest

Named Executive Officers

Michael Chesser 132299 132299

1dJL
Terry Bassham 36582 36582i_I INIk
Shahid Malik 20000 20000Ig_k_t IUU UAt IIS

NonManagement Directors

David Bodde 15001 4455 19456tYi
Gary Forsee 2558 2558

MgrIm1IfIIWIS I1ISTiI igawwau
James Mitchell 12948 1294811UIUI1 1UI1WI UJI1 1I$II
Linda Talbott 14165 4455 18620

ivaiwJvwia urai.iiau imiiiiiirr
All Great Plains Energy Directors and Executive Officers as Group 19 persons 633786

The shares listed are director deferred share units through our Long-Term Incentive Plan which will be settled in stock on
1-for-i basis upon the first January 31st following the last day of service on the Board

The amount shown includes 67141 restricted stock shares and 1407 shares held in the 401k plan
The amount shown includes 38403 restricted stock shares and 2260 shares held in the 401k plan
The amount shown includes 19852 restricted stock shares

The amount shown includes 2002 shares held in the 401k plan

The amount shown includes 20245 restricted stock shares and 1743 shares held in the 401k plan
The amount shown includes 13510 shares held in joint tenancy with Dr Boddes spouse and 1000 shares held in trust

accounts for Dr Boddes mother in which Dr Bodde is trustee Dr Bodde disclaims beneficial ownership of the 1000
shares in such trust accounts
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The amount shown includes 62 shares reported and held by Mr Nelsons spouse Mr Nelson disclaims beneficial ownership

of such shares

The amount shown includes 2400 shares held in joint tenancy with Dr Talbotts spouse

10 The amount shown includes 492 shares held in joint tenancy with Mr Wests wife and 1000 shares reported and held by

Mr Wests spouse Mr West disclaims beneficial ownership of the 1000 shares reported and held by his spouse

Beneficial Ownership of 5% or More

Beneficial Ownership of

Name and Address of Common Stock Percentage of Common Shares

Beneficial Owner Based on Schedule 13G Filing Outstanding

Barclays Global Investors NA
400 Howard Street 6029834 5.06%

San Francisco CA 94105

The information in the preceding table and in this paragraph is taken entirely from the

Schedule 13G filed by Barclays Global Investors NA and affiliated reporting persons on February

2009 The Schedule 13G states that the reporting persons collectively hold 6029834 shares as to which

such persons have sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of such shares and 4616325

shares as to which such persons have sole power to vote or to direct the vote of such shares The

percentage is based on approximately 119243329 shares of the Companys common stock outstanding

as of February 27 2009

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended requires our directors executive

officers and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock to file reports of holdings and

transactions in our common stock with the SEC Based upon our records we believe that all required

reports for 2008 have been timely filed except for the matters discussed in the following paragraph

The number of shares surrendered by Mr Malik in connection with the vesting of restricted stock

and performance share awards in June 2008 was inadvertently under-reported The number of

Company shares acquired by Mr Michael Deggendorf an executive officer of the Company in

exchange for Aquila shares he acquired as an Aquila officer prior to 2003 was not timely reported

Reports filed by Dr Bodde and Mr Nelson inadvertently included indirectly held shares in the

amounts shown as directly held All of these errors have been corrected

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

We compensate our non-employee directors as summarized below Messers Chesser and Downey

are officers of the Company and do not receive compensation for their service on the Board We paid

non-employee directors an annual retainer of $85000 in 2008 Of this amount $35000 was in cash and

$50000 was in common stock valued on the grant
date and rounded to the next highest whole share

through our Long-Term Incentive Plan the LTIP Our Lead Independent Director received an

additional annual retainer of $20000 and the chairs of the Boards Audit Compensation and

Development and Governance Committees received an additional annual retainer of $10000 $5000

and $5000 respectively Attendance fees of $1000 for each Board meeting and $1000 for each

committee and other meeting attended were also paid in 2008 Directors may defer the receipt of all or

part of the cash retainers and meeting fees through our non-qualified deferred compensation plan and

may also defer the receipt of all or part of the common stock through Director Deferred Share Units

DSUs under the LTIP Directors must make their deferral elections prior to the year
in which the

common stock would be paid The number of DSUs granted is equal to the number of shares of

common stock that otherwise would have been payable to the director As of the date any dividend is
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paid to common stock shareholders each DSU account is credited with additional DSUs equal to the

number of shares of common stock that could have been purchased at the closing price of our
common stock on that date with the amount which would have been paid as dividends on the number
of shares equal to the number of DSUs held on that date DSUs will be converted into an equal
amount of shares of common stock on the January 31St next following the date the directors service on
the Board terminates The number of whole shares will be distributed to the director with any
fractional share paid in cash using the closing price of our common stock as of the preceding business

day

We offer life and medical insurance coverage for the current non-employee directors serving as of

January 2008 and their families We do not offer this coverage to non-employee directors who were
first elected after 2007 The aggregate premium paid by us for this coverage in 2008 was $45621 We
pay or reimburse directors for travel lodging and related expenses they incur in attending Board and

committee meetings We paid in certain years prior to 2008 and we may pay in future years the

expenses incurred by directors spouses in accompanying the directors to one Board meeting per year
We did not pay any such expenses in 2008 We also match on two-for-one basis up to $5000 per year
which would result in up to $10000 Company match of charitable donations made by director to

501c3 organizations that meet our strategic giving priorities and are located in our generation and
service communities

The
following table outlines all compensation paid to our non-employee directors in 2008 We have

omitted the columns titled Option awards and Non-equity incentive plan compensation because
our non-employee directors did not receive any in 2008

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Change in Pension Value

and Nonqualified
Fees Earned or Stock Deferred Compensation All other

Paid in Cash Awards Earnings Compensation Total
Name

Dr Bodde 58000 50006 33553 3108 144667

Mr Ferguson 57000 50006 40987 147993

Dr Hall 21231 50006 101 71338

Mr Mitchell 53000 50006 101 103107

Dr Talbott 54000 50006 3296 21465 128767

The amounts shown include retainers of $35000 attendance fees of $1000 for each Board and Committee meeting
attended and additional retainers for Mr West $20000 as lead director and Messrs Ernst $10000 Nelson $5000
and Jimenez $5000 as committee chairs

The amounts shown in this column are the compensation expense as recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard No 123 revised 2004 Share-Based Payment FAS 123R for Director Shares and DSUs
Compensation expense is calculated by multiplying the number of Director Shares and DSUs by the $28.30 closing price of

Company stock on the February 2008 grant date and thus the compensation expense recognized is the same as the fair

market value The value of shares credited on DSUs on account of dividends paid on common stock is not included in the

FAS 123R calculation and instead is reflected in the All Other Compensation column The DSUs are not subject to any
service-based vesting conditions As of December 31 2008 Dr Bodde Messrs Ferguson and West and Dr Talbott each

held an aggregate of 1897 DSUs including shares credited on account of dividends paid on common stock
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The amounts shown represent the above-market earnings during 2008 on nonqualified deferred compensation

The amounts shown consist of as applicable for each director matched charitable contributions premiums for life

insurance and health insurance and the value of shares credited on Director Deferred Share Units on account of dividends

paid on common stock The matched charitable contributions reported in this column are Mr Ernst $10000

Mr Ferguson $10000 Mr Nelson $10000 Dr Talbott $9940 and Mr West $8000 As permitted by SEC rules we

excluded from the table perquisites and personal benefits for any director where the total value was less than $10000 No

item that was not perquisite or personal benefit exceeded $10000 except for Mr Ferguson The Company paid $27980

during 2008 for life and health insurance for Mr Ferguson

Mr Forsee was elected in December 2008 and did not receive any compensation during the year

Dr Halls term expired on May 2008

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section provides information and comprehensive analysis of the compensation awarded to

earned by or paid to our NEOs

Michael Chesser Chainnan of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Great Plains Energy

Kansas City Power Light Company KCPL and KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company

GMO
William Downey President and Chief Operating Officer of Great Plains Energy KCPL and

GMO

Terry Bassham Executive Vice PresidentFinance and Strategic Development and Chief Financial

Officer of Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO

John Marshall Executive Vice PresidentUtility Operations of KCPL and GMO

Stephen Easley former Senior Vice PresidentSupply KCPL and GMO and

Shahid Malik former Executive Vice President of Great Plains Energy and former President and

Chief Executive Officer of Strategic Energy

Mr Easley resigned his positions effective as of January 2009 Mr Maliks employment was

terminated in conjunction with the sale of Strategic Energy L.L.C on June 2008

Great Plains Energy currently has single core utility business comprised of two subsidiaries

KCPL an integrated regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers primarily in the

states of Missouri and Kansas and GMO an integrated regulated electric utility that provides

electricity to customers in the state of Missouri These utilities are referred to collectively as KCPL
Until mid-December 2008 small services organization provided common support functions across

both subsidiaries Employees in that organization were subsequently transferred to KCPL Given the

significant differences in the scope and nature of responsibilities amongst the NEOs as well as

differences in market levels of compensation there are generally significant differences in

compensation

Governance of the Companyc Compensation Program

The Committee currently is made up of seven non-employee directors each of whom is

independent under the applicable standards of the NYSE The Lead Director is considered an ex officio

member They are

William Nelson Chairman James Mitchell

David Bodde Linda Talbott

Gary Forsee Robert West ex officio

Luis Jimenez
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Mr Forsee became director and member of the Committee in December 2008 Mr Ernst

resigned from the Board in January 2009

The Committee sets the executive compensation structure and administers the policies and plans

that govern compensation for the NEOs and other executive officers The Committees charter has

been approved by our Board and decisions by the Committee are reviewed with and approved by the

independent members of the full Board copy of the charter can be found on the Companys website

at wwwgreatplainsenergy corn

Role of Executive Officers

Each year Mr Chesser submits to the Committee performance evaluation and compensation

recommendation for each of the NEOs other than himself The performance evaluation is based on

factors such as achievement of individual departmental and Company results as well as an assessment

of leadership accomplishments The Committee reviews these recommendations and makes final

recommendations for Board approval Annual performance metrics and goals for incentive plans are

also developed through process
in which management including the CEO develops preliminary

recommendations that the Committee considers in the development of final recommendations for

Board approval

While Mr Chesser routinely attends meetings of the Committee he is not member and does not

vote on Committee matters Only members of the Committee may call Committee meetings In

addition there are certain portions of Committee meetings when he is not present such as when the

Committee is in closed executive session or discusses his performance or individual compensation

Mr Chessers compensation levels and performance goals are recommended by the Committee for

approval by the Board The Senior Vice PresidentHuman Resources and Corporate Secretary and the

external executive compensation consultant were consulted in this process in 2008 as described in the

next section

As established by the Committee Messrs Chesser and Downey may grant awards of restricted

stock under the Companys LTIP to non-executive employees Actions taken by those individuals are

reported back to the Board and Committee

Role of Compensation Consultant

The Committee retains Mercer as its third-party compensation consultant Mercer was selected by

the Committee several years ago following presentations from other consulting firms and based on their

overall capabilities in the area of executive compensation Mr Michael Halloran is the Companys lead

consultant who works with the Committee Mr Halloran is Worldwide Partner at Mercer and has

more than 25 years of experience in executive compensation

On periodic basis Mercer provides the Committee with comprehensive review of the

Companys executive compensation programs including plan design all executive benefit programs and

review of pay positioning versus performance to evaluate the magnitude of pay versus performance

On an annual basis Mercer performs competitive review and analysis of base salary and variable

components of pay relative to survey market data and the Companys identified peer group Mercer

recommends to the Committee the peer group which might be used the structure of plans the market

data which should be used as the basis of comparison for base salaries and incentive targets and

conducts comparisons and analyses of base and variable components Mercer provides detailed

information on base salaries annual incentives long-term incentives and other specific aspects of

executive compensation for each NEO as well as Mercers overall findings and recommendations

Comparisons of executive compensation are made to energy industry data general industry data and

peer proxy data as appropriate The compensation consultant neither determines nor recommends the
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amount of an executives compensation since it is not in position to evaluate individual executive

performance

While Mercer is engaged by and takes direction from the Committee the Senior Vice President

Human Resources and Corporate Secretary who is not NEO works directly with Mercers

consultants to provide information coordination and support To assure independence the Committee

also pre-approves all other work unrelated to executive compensation proposed to be provided by

Mercer if the fees would be expected to exceed $10000 The fees were below this threshold in 2008

Role of Peer Group

The proxy peer group as recommended by Mercer and approved by the Committee consists of 12

organizations of similar character industry revenue size and market capitalization as compared to the

Company The peer group companies relied upon to assist in formulating the executive compensation

for 2008 include

Allegheny Energy NSTAR Sierra Pacific Resources

Alliant Energy Pinnacle West Capital
TECO Energy Inc

Cleco PNM Resources Unisource Energy

DPL Portland General Electric Westar Energy

When other surveys are relied on Mercer conducts where possible regression analyses to adjust

the compensation data for differences in the companies revenues allowing the Company to compare

compensation levels to similarly-sized companies Other surveys used by Mercer to assist in formulating

its recommendations to the Company include the Mercer Energy Survey Watson Wyatt Top

Management Survey Utilities Sector Watson Wyatt Top Management Compensation Survey Towers

Perrin Energy Executive Survey and the Mercer Executive Compensation Survey The actual number

of participants vary by survey
and are too numerous to list Survey details are generally viewed as

proprietary by the survey sponsors

Philosophy and Objectives of the Companys Compensation Program

Great Plains Energys shareholders and customers will be best served when the Company is able to

attract and retain key talent Recognizing the strategic imperatives before the Company Great Plains

Energy is committed to providing
total remuneration levels which are competitive with jobs of similar

scope within the utility market This will be accomplished through combination of base salary

benefits and performance-based annual and long-term incentives In general the Companys goal is to

provide base salaries around the median of comparable companies with opportunities for higher levels

of compensation through performance-based incentives Incentive program targets and structure will be

consistent with those offered in the utility sector and incentive measures will be appropriately tied to

both shareholder and customer interests

The three main objectives of the Companys Executive Compensation Program are

To Attract and Retain Highly Qualified and Experienced Executives

All of the NEOs held senior positions at other companies and each brought considerable industry

and business expertise to the Company While the Companys goal is to provide base salaries at the

median of comparable companies with opportunities for variable compensation at higher levels based

on performance on occasion the Company pays above-market base salaries in order to attract and

retain specific talent
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To Motivate Executives to Achieve Strong Short-Term and Long-Term Financial and Operational Results

The Committee believes that pay and performance should be linked with objectives for which

employees can have clear line of sight and this is principally accomplished through variable

compensation opportunities While the Committee has not elected to adopt policies for allocating

between long-term and currently-paid-out compensation or between cash and non-cash compensation
it does believe in putting more pay at risk as employees move to higher levels of responsibility with

more direct influence over the Companys performance Variable compensation targets for the NEOs

except Mr Malik represent between 57% and 71% of total direct compensation constituting

significant levels of pay at risk The Committee uses balanced scorecard approach in setting the

NEOs annual incentive plan goals which includes financial operational and individual components
along with key operational and/or financial measures for the long-term plan which place much

greater emphasis on increasing long-term shareholder value

During the sale process of Strategic Energy in 2008 the Committee recommended and the

independent members of the Board approved the cash payment of incentive compensation that would

have been payable at target performance had customary grants been made in 2008 pursuant to

Strategic Energys annual and long-term incentive compensation plans prorated for the period of time

between the beginning of the year and the sale closing date This was done to provide incentives for

Strategic Energy executives to remain with the company and focus on preserving the value of the

business through the sale process

To Ensure the Alignment of Management Interests with Those of Shareholders

The Committee believes that substantial portion of total compensation for its NEOs should be

delivered in the form of equity-based incentives In 2008 for Messrs Chesser Downey Bassham

Marshall and Easley 75% of long-term incentive grants were in the form of performance shares which
if earned after three years based on total return to shareholders would be paid out in Company stock

As noted Mr Malik received pro-rata long-term incentive amount in 2008 paid in cash In order to

provide some degree of retention protection the remaining 25% of the long-term grant was in the

form of time-based restricted shares In addition the Committee has also implemented share ownership

guidelines for executives to further align their compensation with shareholder interests The guidelines

include the value of Company shares executives are expected to acquire and hold and reflect level of

five times base salary for Mr Chesser four times base salary for Mr Downey and three times base

salary for Messrs Bassham Marshall and Easley In addition in 2007 the Committee and Board also

implemented hold til requirements which require the executive to refrain from disposing of shares

received under the Companys LTH except to satisfy obligations for payment of taxes relating to those

shares until the share ownership guidelines are met and maintained

Analysis of Executive Compensation

The elements of compensation are

Cash compensation in the form of base salaries annual incentives and in certain instances

discretionary bonuses

Equity compensation under the Companys LTIP

Perquisites and generally available employee benefits

Deferred compensation

Post-termination compensation

Pension plan and supplemental pension plan and

401k plan
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Cash Compensation

Cash compensation to our NEOs includes market-competitive and performance-driven base

salary and ii annual short-term incentive plans The Committee has not chosen to target specific

percentage of total compensation for NEOs to be delivered in cash or cash opportunities as it believes

this will
vary

based on the NEOs position and individual performance and circumstance However it

does believe that in general the level of cash opportunity should decrease in proportion to equity

compensation as individuals move to higher levels of responsibility

Base Salary

Base salaries are reviewed at the February Committee meeting approved by the Board and if

adjusted made retroactive to the first of the year The Committee considers performance evaluations

and base salary recommendations submitted by Mr Chesser for the NEOs other than himself

Mr Chessers performance evaluation is conducted and salary recommendation is prepared by the

Committee Salary recommendations are not determined by formula but instead take into

consideration job responsibilities level of experience individual performance internal comparisons

comparisons of the salaries of executives in similar positions at similar companies obtained from market

surveys and other competitive data and input provided by Mercer Individual performance evaluations

are based on qualitative factors The factors considered in the evaluations include among others the

following personal leadership engagement of employees disciplined performance management

accountability for results community involvement and major accomplishments during the performance

period For 2008 the base salary of each NEO was benchmarked against comparable positions reported

in peer group proxies utility surveys and general industry surveys Our general goal is to set base

salaries to approximate the median salaries of individuals in comparable positions in companies of

similar size within the relevant industry or function Differences in base salaries between the NEOs are

primarily due to differences in job responsibilities and base compensation market levels The

responsibilities of Mr Chesser as CEO span all aspects of the Company and his base salary reflects

this responsibility In contrast the responsibilities of the other NEOs are narrower in scope

Messrs Chesser Downey Bassham Easley and Malik received base salary increases effective

January 2008 of 10.3% 4.3% 15.4% 1.5% and 4.1% respectively Larger percentage increases were

given when the salaries were significantly less than market medians and the NEOs demonstrated high

level of performance Mr Marshall received an increase of 6.0% effective January 2008 and an

increase of 9% effective August 2008 the latter to reflect the
greater responsibilities associated with

his promotion to Executive Vice PresidentUtility Operations

Annual Incentives

The Companys annual incentive plans are based upon Company-wide and business unit financial

and operational metrics as well as individual performance Metric levels are established so that the

target level reflects the business plan and has 50% probability of achievement The threshold and

maximum levels are established to have approximately 80% and 20% probabilities of achievement

respectively The Committee reviews managements recommendations of goals and metrics makes any

revisions and recommends the final goals and metrics to the Board for its approval In establishing

final goals the Committee assures that

Incentives are aligned with the strategic goals set by the Board

Goals are sufficiently ambitious so as to provide meaningful incentive and

Bonus payments assuming target levels are met will be consistent with the overall compensation

program established by the Committee
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The Committee developed with input from Mercer structure for the annual incentive plan for

all executives including NEOs which provides financial objective of Company core earnings which is

explained on page 29 weighted at 40% 40% reflecting key Great Plains Energy or KCPL business

objectives and 20% as discretionary individual performance component The 20% individual

component includes but is not limited to subjective review of the individuals personal leadership

engagement of employees disciplined performance management accountability for results and

community involvement Target incentives for each NEO were established as percentage of base pay

using survey data provided by Mercer for comparable positions and markets as well as comparisons for

internal equity For 2008 annual incentive plan targets as percentage of base salaries for

Messrs Chesser Downey Bassham and Easley were 100% 70% 50% and 50% respectively

Mr Marshalls annual incentive target was increased from 50% to 60% in August 2008 prorated over

the year to reflect his increased responsibilities as Executive Vice PresidentUtility Operations As

noted Mr Malik was eligible for pro-rata amount based on target of 60%

The basic structure of the annual incentive plan provides for 100% payout for target performance

for each goal with 50% payable at the threshold level of goal performance and 200% payable at the

maximum level of goal performance Goal performance is extrapolated between the threshold and

target levels and between target and maximum levels Performance results for any goal which is less

than threshold will result in zero payment for that goal Failure to achieve at least the threshold level

of the core earnings objective results in no payouts under the annual incentive plan regardless of the

level of achievement of the other objectives

After considering the performance criteria and results the Committee approves and occasionally

uses its discretion in determining the final amount of the individual award Under the terms of the

annual incentive plan the Committee retains discretion to modify all components of the annual

incentive plan at any time and to determine the final amount of awards notwithstanding the

achievement or lack thereof of goals Discretion has been exercised in the past regarding the 20%

individual performance component The Committee did not use any discretion with respect to any

component of the plan in 2008
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There were no payouts including for the 20% discretionary component under the 2008 annual

incentive plan because the threshold core earnings level was not achieved This is the same result as for

the 2007 annual incentive plans failure to achieve the threshold level of the core earnings objective

resulted in no payouts including for the 20% discretionary component The following table summarizes

the 2008 annual incentive plan year-end results and payout levels

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY/KCPL 2008 ANNUAL INCENTiVE PROGRAM

50% 100% 200% Actual

Payout Payout Payout Performance Payout
Measure Weighting Level Level Level Result Percentage

Core earnings per share 40% $1.60 $1.67 $1.77 $1.44 0%

equivalent

availabilitycoal and

nuclear 10% 77.25% 80.0% 82.0% 77.8% 0%

Powers Customer Bottom Top

Satisfaction Index Half of Half of

residential Tier II Tier II

Individual performance

Total 100%

0% payout percentage is shown for all objectives due to the failure to achieve the threshold level of performance of the

core earnings per share objective

Core earnings and core earnings per share are financial measures that differ from earnings and

earnings per share calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP
Core earnings as used for the 2008 annual incentive compensation plan excluded mark-to-market

impacts of certain contracts changes in composite tax rates certain Aquila acquisition transition costs

and the release of legal reserves and included the operational results of Strategic Energy for the

period it was owned by Great Plains Energy

From time to time the Committee and Board may grant discretionary bonus to NEO or other

executive for extraordinary contributions or achievements There were no discretionary bonuses granted
to NEOs in 2008

The Committee has not yet established an annual incentive program for 2009 The Committee is

undertaking comprehensive review of the design of the Companys annual and long-term incentive

compensation programs in light of various factors including past payouts or lack thereof potential

future economic and financial market conditions and the Companys current operating and financial

plans

Cash Portion of Strategic Energys Long-Term Incentives

Mr Malik and other officers of Strategic Energy participated under long-term incentive programs

designed specifically for Strategic Energy Strategic Energys long-term incentives were designed
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principally to reward sustained value creation through the achievement of long-term financial and

operating performance goals Strategic Energys long-term incentives were largely cash-based because

the Committee and Board believed companies with which Strategic Energy competed for executive

talent were more likely to offer cash-based long-term incentives rather than equity-based long-term

incentives As result Mr Malik is the only NEO that received cash-based long-term incentives

Mr Maliks long-term target was 150% of base pay

However based on the Companys overall compensation philosophy an equity component was

utilized in Strategic Energys long-term incentives Mr Maliks 2006-2008 long-term grants consisted of

25% time-based restricted stock with the remaining cash-based component based 80% on Strategic

Energy performance goals and 20% on Great Plains Energy performance goals Components based on

Strategic Energys performance included payout opportunities ranging from 0% to 300% The structure

of Strategic Energys long-term incentive program changed for grants in 2007 so that the target award

included 50% performance shares and 50% cash with total payouts ranging from 0% to 275% of

target plus accrued dividends on the paid-out performance shares if any The change in 2007 resulted

in the equity portion of this program more directly reflecting Strategic Energys performance

The Committee chose to provide significant long-term award opportunities to Strategic Energy

executives to motivate the highest levels of performance within its highly competitive unregulated

environment Strategic Energys executives did not have defined benefit pension plan as do other

Great Plains Energy and KCPL executives

Great Plains Energy announced in 2007 that it was reviewing strategic and structural alternatives

for Strategic Energy Strategic Energys long-term incentive programs did not explicitly provide for

payment of outstanding grants in the event of change in control of Strategic Energy in contrast to

the provisions of Great Plains Energys LTIP regarding change in control of Great Plains Energy In

order to provide incentives for Strategic Energy executives to remain with the company and focus on

preserving the value of the business through the review and subsequent sale process and consistency

with the LTIP change in control provisions related to Great Plains Energy Strategic Energys long-term

incentive programs were clarified to provide for the payment of outstanding equity and cash awards at

target in the event of change in control of Strategic Energy Strategic Energy was sold in June 2008

and Mr Malik received $802500 in cash reflecting the target amount of the cash portions of his

2006-2008 and 2007-2009 long-term awards as well as cash payment of $96531 which was the

pro-rata amount at target had customary long-term incentive grant been made for the 2008-2010

period His outstanding restricted stock vested at that time and he also received payment of his

outstanding performance shares at target plus accrued cash dividends These payments and vestings

were not conditioned on the achievement of any performance metrics

Equity Compensation

As previously explained the Committee believes that substantial portion of compensation for

NEOs should be in the form of equity in order to best align executive compensation with shareholder

interests The Committee does not believe any of the NEOs have accumulated equity amounts or

previously been given the opportunity for significant amounts of equity ownership that warrant special

consideration in granting future equity awards

The Great Plains Energy LTIP was last approved by shareholders in May 2007 and allows for

grants by the Committee of stock options restricted stock performance shares and other stock-based

awards The Committee discontinued making any new stock option grants in late 2003 because it

believed motivating executives based solely on stock price appreciation was not entirely consistent with

the best interests of its shareholder base Since that time the Committee has used mix of time-based

restricted shares and performance shares that vest solely on the basis of the attainment of performance

goals While the Committee believes that performance shares should generally account for the majority
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of annual long-term grants this could change in any year
based on the needs of the Company and the

characteristics of its executive team

While directors officers and employees of the Company are eligible for equity awards under the

LTIi none of them have any right to be granted awards The Committee in its discretion may approve

an equity award or awards for officers and employees including NEOs When the Committee approved

awards in 2008 for officers it calculated the awards using cash value determined by multiplying the

officers base salary by target percentage chosen by the Committee The target percentage is based on

both internal comparisons and
survey

data provided by Mercer which provides long-term incentive

information on comparable positions at comparable companies and/or markets in which the Company

competes for talent Generally the Committee has established targets at the percentile in 2008

long-term incentive target percentages for Messrs Chesser Downey Bassham Marshall and Easley

were 150% 115% 85% 85% and 85% These target percentages are consistent with the Companys
incentive compensation practices in recent years and resulted in the following long-term incentive

grants of restricted stock and performance shares in 2008

Name Restricted Stock Performance Shares at target

Mr Chesser 11442 34325

Mr Bassham 3040 9118

Mr Marshall 2878 8632

Performance share grants are for the three-year performance period of January 2008 through

December 31 2010 and vest as of the end of the period The restricted stock
grants referenced in the

above table vest on February 2011 Restricted stock is typically but not always granted at the

February Board meeting effective on the meeting date When restricted shares are granted in

conjunction with the employment of new executive or for other reasons the effective dates are the

date of hire the date of Committee or Board action or date following the Committee/Board

meeting We do not have any program plan or practice of timing grants in coordination with the

release of material non-public information As of May 2007 when our shareholders approved

amendments to our LTIP the Fair Market Value calculation for issuance of equity grants is based on

the closing market price for the Companys common stock as reported on the NYSE for the applicable

date

Performance shares can pay out at the end of the performance period from 0% to 200% of the

target amount based on performance The sole performance metric has been total shareholder return

TSR compared to the Edison Electric Institute EEl index of electric companies The EEl index

is recognized publicly-available index which the company uses as prepared by EEl and with no

additions or deletions The Committee believes TSR is strong indicator of shareholder value and is

influenced both by successful execution by executives as well as market perceptions of the strength and

future prospects of the Company Great Plains Energys TSR percentile ranking in the EEl index

determines the percentage payout our executives will receive as follows

Percentile Rank Percentage Payout

81 and above 200%

50th to 64th 100%

34th and below 0%
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There is no payout of performance shares regardless of the TSR percentile ranking if the Great

Plains Energy TSR is negative for the applicable three-year period Awards are paid out in shares of

Great Plains Energy common stock unless otherwise determined by the Board Dividends which accrue

on the performance shares will be paid in cash at the end of the performance period based on the

number of performance shares earned if any

The
following table summarizes the performance share component of the 2006-2008 Long-Term

Incentive Plan for Great Plains Energy/KCPL including year-end results and payout levels

20O6.2008 GPE/KCPL LONGTERM INCENTIVE PLAN RESULTS

Percentage of

Scorecard Goal Total Goal Three-Year Target Three-Year Results Percentage Payout

Three-Year Total

Shareholder Return 100% 50th Percentile l5t Percentile 0.00%

Total Payout up to 200% of target amount 000%

In February 2008 Messrs Downey Easley and Marshall received payouts of 5507 3810 and

4482 shares respectively plus associated accrued cash dividends from the 2005-2007 performance

share grants and Mr Easley became vested in 10000 shares resulting from special one-time

restricted stock grant in February 2005 In March of 2008 Mr Bassham became vested in 9083 shares

plus 1672 shares through reinvested dividends resulting from
grant of restricted stock at the time of

his employment in March 2005 and Mr Marshall became vested in 20275 shares pIus 3732 shares

through reinvested dividends resulting from grant of restricted stock at the time of his employment

in May 2005

As discussed above the equity portion of Strategic Energys long-term incentive programs was

payable at target in the event of change in control of Strategic Energy The change in control

occurred in June 2008 and Mr Malik was paid 10325 shares in
respect of the target amount of his

performance shares and became vested in 6350 shares of restricted stock and reinvested dividends

The Committee has not established long-term incentive program for 2009 The Committee is

undertaking comprehensive review of the Companys annual and long-term incentive compensation

programs in light of various factors including past payouts or lack thereof potential future economic

and financial market conditions and the Companys current operating and financial plans

Perquisites

NEOs are eligible to receive various perquisites provided by or paid for by the Company These

perquisites are generally consistent with those offered to executives at comparable organizations with

which we compete for executive talent and are important for retention and recruitment The NEOs are

also eligible for employment benefits that are generally available to all employees such as vacation and

medical and life insurance

As shown in the Summary Compensation Table on page 36 all NEOs are eligible for participation

in comprehensive financial planning services provided by national financial counseling firm executive

health physicals car allowance memberships in social clubs and in limited situations country clubs

use of certain equipment for personal use such as home computer equipment and access to sporting

events and other entertainment which may be used for personal use on limited basis On occasion

the Company may also provide for spousal travel and accommodations when accompanying the

executive on out-of-town trips As required by current tax laws the executive is assessed imputed

income taxes on the subsidized or reimbursed amounts
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Deferred Compensation Plan

The Companys Deferred Compensation Plan DCP allows selected employees including NEOs
to defer the receipt of up to 50% of base salary and 100% of awards under the Annual Incentive Plan

An earnings rate is applied to the deferral amounts which is annually determined by the Committee

and based on the Companys weighted average cost of capital For 2008 the rate was 9% In addition

the Plan provides for matching contribution in an amount equal to 50% of the first 6% of base salary

deferred or 100% of the first 6% of base salary bonus and incentive pay deferred depending on the

retirement option selected by the individual and reduced by the matching contribution made for the

year to the individuals 401k plan account The DCP is nonqualified and unfunded plan and is

shown in external market comparisons to be common element of an executive rewards strategy

Post-Termination Compensation

The Company has entered into severance agreements and other compensation and benefit

agreements with its executive officers including NEOs to help in securing their continued employment

and dedication particularly in situations such as change in control when an executive may have

concerns about his or her own continued employment The Company believes these agreements and

benefits are important recruitment and retention devices as virtually all of the companies with which

we compete for executive talent have similar agreements in place for their senior executives

Change in Control Severance Agreements

The Company has change in control agreements updated in 2006 with all its executive officers

including the NEOs to ensure their continued service dedication and objectivity in the event of

transaction that would change the control of the Company These agreements provide for payments

and other benefits if the officers employment terminates for qualifying event or circumstance such as

being terminated without Cause or leaving employment for Good Reason as these terms are

defined in the agreements All the agreements require double trigger so that both change in control

and termination actual or constructive of the executives employment must occur with
very

limited

exceptions Generally the Committee and Board determined the eligibility for potential payments upon

change-in-control based on comparable practices in the market The Committee believes it is not

uncommon for the chief executive officer and chief operating officer to be covered under three

times change-in-control agreement nor is it uncommon for other senior level officers to be covered

under two times change-in-control agreement Messrs Chesser and Downey are eligible for three

times base salary and incentive in the event of change-in-control and Messrs Bassham Marshall and

Easley are eligible for two times base salary and incentive Mr Malik was eligible for three times base

salary and incentive in the event of change in control of Strategic Energy which occurred with the

sale of Strategic Energy We believe the terms and protection afforded are in line with current market

practice

Change in control agreements were not triggered for any Great Plains Energy or KCPL
employee as result of the acquisition of Aquila Inc in July of 2008

Additional information including quantification of benefits that would have been received by

NEOs had termination occurred on December 31 2008 is found under the heading Potential

Payments upon Termination or Change-in-Control beginning on page 49

Other Agreements

The Committee has historically wished to minimize the use of employment agreements to the

extent possible Mr Malik is the only NEO who had full written employment agreement providing

for three times annual salary and bonus in the event he was terminated without cause or terminated for

good reason Because Mr Maliks employment with Strategic Energy was terminated in connection with
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the sale of Strategic Energy benefits were paid under his change in control agreement and not his

employment agreement

As discussed on page 53 under the terms of Mr Chessers employment offer letters Mr Chesser

is entitled to receive three times annual salary and bonus if he is terminated without cause prior to

reaching age 63 After age 63 any benefit for termination without cause would be one times annual

salary and bonus until age 65 Similarly under the terms of his employment offer letter Mr Marshall

is entitled to receive two times annual salary and bonus in the event he is terminated other than for

cause Messrs Chesser and Marshall orally accepted the offers and commenced employment The terms

described above are enforceable against the Company through the judicial process

As discussed in the section titled Pension Benefits starting on page 46 pursuant to the terms of

the employment offer letters Messrs Chesser and Marshall receive credit for two years of service for

every one year of service earned under the Pension Plan Mr Downey who started service with the

Company several years before either Mr Chesser or Mr Marshall did not have similar pension

benefit In 2008 the Committee determined to provide pension enhancement to Mr Downey In

making this determination the Committee considered the key role that Mr Downey as President and

Chief Operating Officer has in the Companys operations and power plant construction program as

well as the pension benefit equity between him and Mr Marshall who reports to Mr Downey The

Committee concluded that it was in the best interest of the Company to provide an enhanced

retirement benefit to Mr Downey structured in manner to incentivize him to remain with the

Company through the completion of the current power plant construction project As result in

August of 2008 the Company entered into an enhanced retirement benefit agreement with

Mr Downey which provides $700000 lump sum payment upon his separation from service provided

that he remains until his 65th birthday and ii he remains in good standing with the restricted

covenants set forth in his change in control severance agreement

In December of 2008 the Company entered into an agreement with Mr Easley that provided for

lump sum payment of $1225000 in connection with his resignation as of January 2009 and certain

releases and undertakings to assist the Company after resignation The agreement was the result of

negotiation between the Company and Mr Easley In evaluating the reasonableness of the agreement

the Committee considered Mr Easleys contributions to the Company the fact that the resignation

would cause the forfeiture of outstanding restricted stock and performance share grants past practice

of the Company the benefit of resolving all potential claims and the benefits of smooth transition of

duties to Mr Easleys successor

Pension Plan and Supplemental Pension Plan

The Company maintains funded tax-qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan the
Pension Plan that covers employees of Great Plains Energy and KCPL including all NEOs except

Mr Malik Benefits under the Pension Plan are based on the employees years of service and the

average annual base salary over specified period

The Company also has Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP for its executives

including all NEOs except Mr Malik This unfunded plan essentially provides the difference between

the amount that would have been payable under the Pension Plan in the absence of Internal Revenue

Service tax code limitations and the amount actually payable under the Plan It also adds slightly

higher benefit accrual rate than the Pension Plan

Based on provisions in their employment offer letters as previously described both Mr Chesser

and Mr Marshall receive credit for two years of service for every one year of service earned under the

Pension Plan payable under the SERP

In 2007 management employees of Great Plains Energy and KCPL were given one-time

election to remain in their existing Pension Plan and 401k Plan Old Retirement Plan or choose
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new retirement program that includes slightly reduced benefit accrual formula under the Pension Plan

paired with an enhanced benefit under the 401k Plan New Retirement Plan Elections were

effective January 2008 Messrs Bassham and Marshall elected to participate in the New Retirement

Plan

401k Plan

The Great Plains Energy 401k Plan is offered to all employees as tax-qualified retirement

savings plan

Employees in the Old Retirement Plan can contribute up to 40% of base pay After one year of

employment the Company matches 50% of the first 6% of pay that is contributed Employees

are fully vested in the entire match and associated earnings after years

Employees in the New Retirement Plan can contribute up to 75% of base pay bonus incentive

and overtime pay The Company matches 100% of the first 6% of total pay that is contributed

All contributions vest immediately

The Company match is made with Great Plains Energy stock although participant may

diversify or transfer out of Company stock and reinvest his or her plan account in different

investments

Contributions are limited by the tax code

Tax and Accounting Implications

With respect to Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code the Committee believes that while

it is the Companys goal to be as tax efficient as possible the Companys shareholders are best served

by not restricting the Committees and the Companys discretion and flexibility in developing

compensation programs The unrealized tax benefit by the Company in 2008 as result of lost

deductions was $700909

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation and Development Committee of the Board reviewed and discussed with

management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis CDA contained in this proxy statement

and based on such reviews and discussions recommended to the Board that the CDA be included in

the Companys proxy statement and Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2008 for filing with the SEC

Compensation and Development Committee

William Nelson Chair

David Bodde

Gary Forsee

Luis Jimenez

James Mitchell

Linda Talbott

Robert West ex officio
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EXECUTiVE COMPENSATiON

Executive Compensation is more fully explained in the CDA section starting on page 23 The

following table shows the total salary and other compensation awarded to and earned for services

rendered in all capacities to Great Plains Lnergy and its subsidiaries by Mr Chesser our hid

Executive Officer Mr Basshani our Chief Financial Officer and Messrs Downey Easley and

Marshall who were our three othet most highly compensated executive officers as of the end of the

year and Mr Malik who was an executive officet until the sale of Strategic Energy in June 2008 We

have omitted from the table the column titled Bonus because compensation earned under our

annual incentive plans is reported in the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

39.620

44656

775t

amounts shown in these columns are the compensation expense as recognized for financial statement repoi ting puiposes with

respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Financial Accounting Stindards Board Statement of Financial Accounting

Standard No 121 resised 2004 Share Based Payment FAS 123R for restricted stock pert orinanee shares and options

granted under oui liii Sec note 11 to the consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Repoit on Foim 10 for

the ear ended Deceniher 31 2t1X for drscussinn of the relevant assumptions used in calculating these amounts The amounts

shown air exclusive of the estimate of forfeitures related to sersice based vesting conditions as required by SLC rules For further

information on these awards please see the Grants of PlanBised Awards and Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal YearFnd

tables later in this proxy statement
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President Finance
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2008 375000
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2006 300000

632 398
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2008 7532 96804 01 11678 S9 39 30

President aol Chief
007 440 000 14 49 000 21111 874 34
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at ie Enci 006 420000 218 58 1006 91 996 85 847 17409
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The Company is iequircd by accounting rules to recognize compensation expense for performance share awards whether or not

common stock is actually paid at the end of the performance periods Company is not permitted under the accounting rules

to reveise this expense in the event there is reduced or no payout of performance share awards at the end of the performance

periods As result we are required to show in the Stock Awards column the amount of compensation expense recognized each

year for peiformance share awards regardless of the actual payout of perfoimance shares There were no payouts of performance

shares for the 20u16-2OulR performance period for any
of our named executive officis other than Mr Malild In addition the

amount shown for Mr Easley also reflected compensation expense recognized for his performance shaie grants for the 2007 2009

and 2008 2010 performance periods and restricted stock grants outstanding as of December 31 2008 Mr Easley forfeited such

awards as of his January 2009 resignation date

The amounts shown in this column constitute cash payments made under our annual and long-term incentive plans Mr Malik is

the only NFO who received cash payments under long-term incentive plans The amounts shown for Mr Malik include $592744

$495000 and $802St0 paid in cash in 2006 2007 and 2008 respectively under long-term incentive plan giants made prior to 2008

the amount shown for Mi Malik for 2008 also includes $212t57 reflecting cash payment of the amount of annual and

long-term incentive compensation that would have been payable at target performance had customary giants been made in 2008

pursuant to Strategic Energys annual and long-term incentive compensation plans prorated for the period of time between the

beginning of 2008 and the closing date of the Strategic Energy sale

The amounts shown in this column include the aggregate of the increase in actuarial values of each of the officers benefits under

our pension plan SERP and other supplemental retirement plans and the above-market earnings on compensation that is

deferred on non-tax qualified basis Following are the amounts of these items attributable to each NEO

Change in SERP and Other

Supplemental Retirement Above-Market Earnings on

Name Change in Pension Value Plan Value Deferred Compensation

Mr Chesser 54722 466748 43560

Mr Bassham 18727 15675 5218

Mr Malik 11 678

LIIII
Mi Bassham 13810 4350 19065 7200 1840 11440 780

Mr Malik 6900 4605 3600 4767 1760 -- 17615

1111Wi IItI III II

14120

the amount shown for Mr Downey in the Change in SERP and Other Supplemental Retirement Plan Value column includes

$84239 for the change in actuarial present value of his SERP benefit and $656508 for the actuarial present value of the

supplement il retirement and severance benefit granted to him in 2008 No other NFO has such benefit

hese amounts include the value of perquisites and personal benefits that are not generally available to all employees Ihese

perquisites and personal benefits are of the following types employer match of contributions to our 401k plans which are

contributed to the maximum extent permitted by law to the 401k with any excess contributed to the officers accounts in our

non-qualified deferred compensation plan flexible benefits and other health and welfare plan benefits car allowances

club memberships executive financial planning services parking spouse travel personal use of company

tickets matched charitable donations executive health physicals and vacation days sold back to the Company as

detailed below All amounts shown are in dollars

Name LL
Mr Chesser 6.900 17100 7200 1840 11440 780 369 4000

Mr Fasley severance payment of $1225001 paid in Januaiy 2009 is included with the amounts shown in the above table in the

total amount shown for him in column of the Summary Compensation Table

The amount show in column of the Summary Compensation Table for Mr Malik includes the amounts shown in the above

table plus Mr Maliks change in control seseranee payment of $2 136.312
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ame

hange in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Deferred

Compensation

Earnings

565030

381284

1he amounts shown in column fot the year 2007 were overstated due to an inadvertent duplication of the amount of the

change in actuarial value of the SERP amounts shown column for the year 2007 were overstated by the amount of

dividends paid on restricted stock awards the dividends were factoied into the grant date fair value The table below provides the

coriected amounts for the year 2007

Non quity

Stock Option Incentive Plan

ensationSala Awards Awards Comp

Year

2008 O000 209914

2007 725000 r1553694

All Other

Compensation Fotal

63749 3524693

978

Mr Marshall
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NARRATWE ANALYSIS OF SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

AND PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE

Employment Agreements

Mr Malik had written employment agreement with Strategic Energy Mr Maliks employment

was terminated by Strategic Energy in June 2008 in connection with the sale of the company The

agreement provided for additional compensation if Mr Maliks employment was terminated without

Cause by the Company or if Mr Malik terminated his employment for Good Reason This

additional compensation would have been three times Mr Maliks annual base salary the current years

annual incentive prorated through the termination date and three times the average annual incentive

compensation paid during the three most recent fiscal years or such shorter period as Mr Malik would

have been employed Because Mr Maliks employment with Strategic Energy was terminated in

connection with the sale of Strategic Energy benefits were paid under his Change-in-Control

agreement and not his employment agreement

We agreed to certain compensation terms with Messrs Chesser and Marshall at the time of their

employment These terms are contained in their employment offer letters If Mr Chesser is terminated

without cause prior to age 63 he will be paid severance amount equal to three times his annual

salary and bonus if terminated without cause between the age of 63 and 65 he will be paid

severance amount equal to the aggregate of his annual salary and bonus In addition Mr Chesser is

credited with two years
of service for every one year of service earned under our pension plan with

such amount payable under our SERP

If Mr Marshall is terminated without cause he will be paid severance amount equal to the

target payment under the annual incentive plan plus two times his annual base salary Mr Marshall is

also credited with two years
of service for every one year of service earned under our pension plan

with such amount payable under our SERP

In August of 2008 the Company entered into an enhanced retirement and severance benefit

agreement with Mr Downey which provides $700000 lump sum payment upon his separation from

service provided that he remains until his 65th birthday and ii he remains in good standing with the

restricted covenants set forth in his Change-in-Control Agreement This agreement also provides for

the payment of this lump sum if the Company terminates Mr Downeys employment before age 65

other than for Cause or if Mr Downey terminates employment before age 65 for Good Reason

Please see Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control beginning on page 49 for

more detailed description of this agreement

In December of 2008 the Company entered into an agreement with Mr Easley that provided for

lump sum payment of $1225000 in connection with his resignation as of January 2009 and certain

releases and undertakings to assist the Company after resignation This payment is included in the

amount shown for Mr Easley in column of the Summary Compensation Table

Our NEOs have also entered into Change in Control Severance Agreements Please see Potential

Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control beginning on page 49 for description of these

agreements and the other agreements described above

Base salaries for our NEOs are set by the independent members of our Board upon the

recommendations of our Compensation and Development Committee For 2008 the base salaries were

Mr Chesser $800000 Mr Downey $490000 Mr Bassham $375000 Mr Easley $281000 and

Mr Malik $458000 Mr Marshalls 2008 base salary was initially set at $355000 and was increased to

$390000 in August 2008 when he was promoted to Executive Vice PresidentUtility Operations Our

NEOs also participate in our health welfare and benefit plans our annual and long-term incentive

plans our pension and SERP plans except for Mr Malik our non-qualified deferred compensation

plan and receive certain other perquisites and personal benefits such as car allowances club
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memberships executive financial planning services parking spouse travel personal use of company
tickets vacation buy-back annual physicals and matched charitable donations

Awards

Restricted Stock

During 2008 our Board made one award of restricted stock to each of the NEOs except

Mr Malik The award of restricted stock is consistent with the Companys equity incentive

compensation practices in 2008 and will vest on February 2011 These awards were Mr Chesser

11442 shares Mr Downey 5373 shares Mr Bassham 3040 shares Mr Easley 2278 shares and

Mr Marshall 2878 shares Dividends paid on the restricted stock are reinvested in stock through our

DRIP and carry the same restrictions as the underlying awards

Mr Maliks outstanding restricted stock grants vested due to the sale of Strategic Energy As of

the sale date 6350 shares of restricted stock including reinvested dividends vested Mr Easleys

outstanding restricted stock grants were forfeited on January 2009 due to his resignation from the

Company

Performance Shares

The Board also granted performance shares for the period 2008-2010 to the NEOs except

Mr Malik Performance shares are payable in stock at the end of the performance period depending

on the achievement of specified measures The performance share measure is our total shareholder

return TSR for the period compared against the EEl index of electric utilities The number of

shares awarded can range from 0% to 200% of the target amount as adjusted for the change in fair

market value of our shares between the time of grant and the payment date Dividends will be paid in

cash at the end of the period on the number of shares earned There is no payout of performance

shares regardless of the TSR percentile ranking if the Great Plains Energy TSR is negative for the

applicable three-year period The following table describes the potential payout percentages for the

total shareholder return measure

Total Shareholder

Return Percentile Rank Percentage Payout

81St and Above 200%
5t5 t\

tt

50th to 64th 100%

and Belo 0%

Performance shares were awarded to our NEOs except Mr Malik for the performance period of

2006-2008 As discussed in our CDA threshold performance was not achieved for the performance

shares granted thus no shares were paid

Mr Malik was awarded performance shares for the period 2007-2009 These performance shares

vested on June 2008 at the target level due to the sale of Strategic Energy Mr Malik received

10325 shares of common stock and accrued cash dividends of $25709

Mr Easleys outstanding performance share grants for the 2007-2009 and 2008-20 10 performance

periods were forfeited on January 2009 due to his resignation from the Company
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Cash-Based Long-Term Incentives

As discussed in our CDA Strategic Energys long-term incentives had cash component For the

2006-2008 long-term incentive grants the cash component was 80% for the 2007-2009 long-term

incentive grants the cash component was 50%

Due to the sale of Strategic Energy in June 2008 Mr Maliks 2006-2008 and 2007-2009 long-term

cash incentives vested at target Mr Malik received $472500 in cash under the 2006-2008 grants and

$330000 in cash under the 2007-2009 grants

In addition Mr Malik received $96531 reflecting the cash amount of incentive compensation that

would have been payable at target performance had customary grants been made in 2008 pursuant to

Strategic Energys long-term incentive compensation plan prorated for the period of time between the

beginning of 2008 and the closing date of the Strategic Energy sale

Annual Incentives

Under the annual incentive plans for 2008 our NEOs except for Mr Malik were eligible to

receive up to 200% of target amount set as percentage of their respective base salaries as follows

Mr Chesser 100% Mr Downey 70% Mr Bassham 50% Mr Easley 50% and Mr Marshall 54%

Mr Marshalls target amount was increased from 50% to 60% in August 2008 when he was promoted

to Executive Vice PresidentUtility Operations This increase was prorated for the 2008 period There

were no payouts under the 2008 annual incentive program because the threshold core earnings level

was not achieved The table on page 29 summarizes the 2008 annual incentive plan year-end results

and payout levels for Great Plains Energy and KCPL

Mr Malik received $115626 in cash reflecting the amount of annual incentive compensation that

would have been payable at target performance had customary grants been made in 2008 pursuant to

Strategic Energys annual incentive compensation plan prorated for the period of time between the

beginning of 2008 and the June 2008 closing date of the Strategic Energy sale

Salary and Bonus in Proportion to Total Compensation

As we discuss in our CDA one objective of our compensation program is to align management

interests with those of our shareholders The Compensation and Development Committee believes that

substantial portion of total compensation for its officers should be delivered in the form of equity-

based incentives In 2008 75% of the long-term incentive grants to Messrs Chesser Downey Bassham

Easley and Marshall were in the form of performance shares which if earned after three years
based

on total return to shareholders will be paid in Company stock To mitigate potential volatility in

payouts and provide
retention device the remaining 25% of the long-term grant was in time-based

restricted shares
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In 2008 we determined cash and equity incentive grants using the following proportions of base

Mr Chesser 10Oo 150%

Mr Bassham 50% 85%

Mr Malik 60% 150% 0%

TI he percentages shown for Mr Malik are talget levels Mr Malik actually received payments reflecting the cash amount of

incentive compensation that would have been payable at target performance had customary grants been made in 2008

pursuant to Strategic Energys annual and long4crm incentise compensation plans prorated for the period of time between

the beginning of 2008 and June 2008 the closing date of the Strategic Energy sale

Mr Marshalls target amount was increased fiom SO% to 60 in August 2008 when he was promoted to Executive Vice

President Utility operations This incicase was prorated for the 2008 penod resulting in 54U annual target amount

The following table provides information regarding the outstanding equity awards held by each of

the NEOs as of December 31 2008 We have omitted from the table the columns titled Number of

securtties underlying unexercised options unexercisable and Equity incentive plan awards Number of

securities underlying unexercised unearned options because there are no unexercisable options

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAREND

Option Awards
______

Stock Awards

Equ
Incentive Plan

Market Equity Awards

Number of Number of Value of Incentive Plan Market or

Securities Shaics of Shares of Awards Payout Value

Underlying Stock That Stock fhat Numbet of of Unearned

Unexercised Option Option have Not Have Not Shares That Shares That

Option Exercise Expiration Vested Vested Have Not Have Not

Name Fxercisahle Price Date i4 Vested Vested

Mr Chesser 122918 2376005 29923 578412

Mr Bassham 36752 710416 780t 150774

Mr Malik .-

._
Includes ieinvcsted dividends on restricted stock that carry the same iestrictions

The value of the shares is calculated by multiplying the number of shares by the closing market price $19.33 as of

Dccenibei 2008

The payment of performance shares is contingent upon oui total shareholder return for the applicable performance periods

compared against the EEl index of electric utilities The threshold level numbeis of shares are shown

salary

Annual Cash Longterm Cash Long4erm Equity

Name Incentive at .hrget Incentive at 1hrget Incentive at Target
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olumns and rr fleet the time based resti ieted stuck giants that were not vested as of Decernhei 31 7008 he

following table provides the giant and vesting dates and numhr of unvested shares including reinvested dividend shares

for each of the outstanding grants as of December 31 7008

All of Mr Easleys outstanding restiicted stock grants were foiteited as 01 January 2009 due to his resignation from the

ompany

Name tji ant 1ite

May 2108

February 2007

Mr hessei February 2007

February 2007

Fehrua 2006

Number of Shares of

Restricted Stock That

Have Not \sted

12080

9.656

45404

Vesting Due

Febtuary 2011

ebruary 2010

February 2010

ebruary 2009

February 2009

Mr Marshall

May 2008

February 2007

February 2007

kehruai 200

Febiuary 2006

Fehruaiv 2011

February 62010

February 2010

Fehiuary 2109

Iebruary 2ft09

14.188

14189

939
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Columns and reflect the performance share awards at threshold lesel that were outstanding d5 of Deeemher 31

2008 The following table provides the performance period and number of performance shares at threshold for each of the

outstanding grants as of December 31 2008

Name Performance Period

The threshold performance level for the 2006-2008 performance share grants was not achieved and no payouts were made

under these grants As result the grants were deemed to not he outstanding as of the end of the year Mr Easlcy

performance share grants for the 2007-2009 and 2008-2010 performance periods were forfeited as of Januai 2009 due

to his resignation from the Company

All of Mr Maliks outstanding awards vested as of June 2008 due to the sale of Strategic Energy

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

We have omitted the Option award columns from the following table because none of our

NEOs exercised options in 2008

Number of Shares Acquired
on Vesting

_____

Value Realized

on Vesting

Mr Chesser

Mit Dowriey

Mr Bassham 10755 262a30

__________ i8O2 331872

Mr Malik 22.524 597690

Mr Marsha114 24001 620464

Restricted stock of 9083 shares plus 1672 DRIP shares vested on March 28 2008 value realized on vesting is the

number of shares vested multiplied by the $24.41 closing price on March 28 2008

Restricted stock of 10000 shares plus 1802 DRIP shares vested on February 2008 The value realized on vesting is the

number of shares vested multiplied by the $28.12 closing price on February 2008

Restricted stock of 4956 shares plus 893 DRIP shares vested on February 2008 The value realized on this sesting is the

number of shares vested multiplied by the $28.12 closing price on February 2008 Restricted stock of 5585 shares plus

765 DRIP shares vested on June 2008 On that same date 10.325 shares of common stock were paid pursuant to

performance share grant for the performance period 2007-2009 The value realized on this vesting and payment is the

number of shares vested and paid multiplied by the $25.98 closing price on June 2008

Restricted stock of 20275 shares plus 3.732 DRiP shares vested on May 25 2008 The value realized on vesting is the

number of shares sested multiplied by the $26.22 closing price on the last business day before May 25 2008

Mr Chesser
20082010

2007-2009

Number of Shares at

Ihreshold

17163

12.760

Mr Marshall
21662011

2007-2009

4316

3341

Name
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The following discussion of the pension benefits for the NEOs reflects the terms of the Companys

Management Pension Plan the Pension Plan SERP and Mr Downeys supplemental retirement

benefit agreement and the present value of accumulated benefits as of December 31 2008 We have

omitted the column titled Payments during the last fiscal year because no payments were made in

2008

PENSION BENEFITS

Number of Years Present Value of

Name Plan Name Credited Service Accumulated Benefit

Management Pen ion Plan 206 427
Mr Chesser

Supplemental xecutive Retirement Plan 11 437 913

P1 490

t9fl Supp al cc Retire htt 8. 389

up ment n/a 6508

Manaemenl Pension Plan 60 390
Mi Bassham

Supplemental xeeutive Retirement Plan 42 852

SPRu an
12 __

Mr Malik
Supplemental_Executive

Re irement Phn

______________
plemental Executive Retirement Plan

tEaR me ion Pta 11 80

upplem tital Ii em P1 07 989

Messis hessei and Marshall aie credited with two years of service foi eserv one seal of service earned under our pension

plan with uch amount payable undci our SLRP Without this augmentation Messrs Eh sser and Maishill would have

accrued $615 743 and 584 197 respectivels undci the SERF

Mr Malik did not participate in either the Management Pension Plan or SERF

Our NEOs excluding Malik participate in the Pension Plan and the SERP In 2007 our

management employees were given one-time election to remain under the existing terms of the

Pension Plan the Old Retirement Plan or to elect new retirement program the New
Retirement Plan that included slightly reduced benefit accrual formula under the Pension Plan as

well as correspondingly reduced benefit accrual formula under the SERP for employees who

participate in the SERP Messrs Chesser Downey and Easley elected to remain under the Old

Retirement Plan Messrs Bassham and Marshall elected the New Retirement Plan We note the

differences between the Old Retirement Plan and the New Retirement Plan below

In the table above the present value of the current accrued benefits under the Pension Plan and

SERP with respect to each listed officer is based on the following assumptions retirement at the earlier

of age 62 or when the sum of age and years of service equal 85 full vesting of accumulated benefits

discount rate of 6.1% and use of the Pension Protection Act mortality and lump sum interest rate

tables

Pension Plan

The Pension Plan is funded tax-qualified noncontrihutory defined benefit pension plan Benefits

under the Pension Plan are based on the employees years
of service and the average annual base

salary over specified period Employees who elected to remain in the Old Retirement Plan and retire

after they reach 65 or whose age and years of service add up to 85 the Rule of 85 are entitled
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under the Pension Plan to total monthly annuity for the rest of their life single life annuity

equal to 50% of their average base monthly salary for the period of 36 consecutive months in which

their earnings were highest This reflects an accrual rate of 1.67% per year capped at 30
years

of

service The 50% annuity will be proportionately reduced if
years

of credited service are less than 30

Employees may also elect to retire and receive an unreduced benefit at age 62 with at least years of

credited service in which case the benefit is based on their average base monthly salary for the period

of 48 consecutive months in which their earnings were highest If the benefit commences prior to age

62 it is reduced by 3% for each year that commencement precedes age 62 Employees may elect other

annuity options such as joint and survivor annuities or annuities with payments guaranteed for period

of time The present value of each annuity option is the same however the monthly amounts payable

under these options are less than the amount payable under the single life annuity option Employees

also may elect to receive their retirement benefits in lump sum equal to the actuarial equivalent of

single life pension under the Pension Plan Of our NEOs only Mr Downey and Mr Chesser are

eligible for early retirement benefits under the Pension Plan Mr Downeys early retirement benefit

would be monthly annuity equal to 14.2% of average base monthly salary during the period of 48

consecutive months in which earnings were highest Mr Chessers early retirement benefit would be

monthly annuity equal to 8.7% of average base monthly salary during the period of 60 consecutive

months in which earnings were highest The compensation covered by the Pension Plan excludes any

bonuses or other compensation The amount of annual earnings that may be considered in calculating

benefits under the Pension Plan is limited by law For 2008 the annual limitation is $230000

Employees such as Messrs Bassham and Marshall who elected the New Retirement Plan retain

the benefit they accrued as of December 31 2007 under the old formula with the old early retirement

reductions Participants in the New Retirement Plan also earn benefit equal to 1.25% of their final

average base earnings averaged over 48 consecutive months multiplied by the
years

of credited

service earned after 2007 There is no cap on the years of credited service that can be earned

Employees under the New Retirement Plan may begin receiving their retirement benefit at age 55 but

with 5% per year reduction for each year before age 62 There is no Rule of 85 for post-2007

accrued benefits however participants may receive post-2007 accrued benefits subject to the 5% per

year reduction if they retire before age 62 when they start receiving pre-2008 accrued benefits

Participants in the New Retirement Plan may receive only their pre-2008 accrued benefits in lump

sum post-2007 benefits must be taken in the form of one of the annuities described in the preceding

paragraph

SERP

The SERP is unfunded and provides out of general assets an amount substantially equal to the

difference between the amount that would have been payable under the Pension Plan in the absence of

tax laws limiting pension benefits and earnings that may be considered in calculating pension benefits

and the amount actually payable under the Plan For participants under the Old Retirement Plan it

adds an additional of highest average annual base salary for each
year

of credited service when the

executive was eligible for supplemental benefits up to maximum of 30 years and also makes up the

difference if any between using 36-month earnings averaging period and the averaging period used

for the participants benefits under the Pension Plan Participants under the New Retirement Plan

receive this same benefit however there is no cap on the years of credited service for benefits accrued

after 2007 As mentioned Messrs Chesser and Marshall are credited with two years of service for

every one year
of service earned under our Pension Plan with such amount payable under the SERP
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Supplemental Retirement Benefit

As discussed Mr Downey has an agreement with the Company providing
for supplemental lump

sum retirement benefit of $700000 if he ietires after he reaches the age of 65 For the present
value of

this supplemental retirement benefit we used the same assumptions as for the Pension Plan and SERP

piesent values eAcept that we assumLd retirement at age 65 because the agreement provides no

retirement benefits if he retires before age 65

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
Contribution in Contributions in Earnings in withdrawals Balance at

Last FY Last FY ast FY distributions Last FYE
Name

Mr Chesser 120000 17100 113306 1397100

Mr Basshani 12000 4350 13573 166750

Mr Malik 48900 30377 844488

The entire amount shown in this column foi cach NEO is included in the amount shown for each NFO in the Salary

column in the Summary Compensation Table

The entire amount shown in this column foi each NEO is included in the amount shown for each NFO in the ill Other

Compensation column in the Summary Compensation lable

Only the abovemarket earnings are reported in the Summary Compensation lahic the above markei earnings were

Chesser $43560 Downe $56243 Bassham $5 218 Easley $13 806 Malik $11678 and Marshall $35054

Ihe following amounts icported in this column were reported as compensation to the NEOs in the Summary Compensation

Fables for previous years Chesser $155 092 2007 and $558841 2006 Downey $145 361 2007 and $341 914 2006

Bassham- $18619 2007 and $111 825 2006 and Marshall $196358 2007 and $378838 2006 Mr Lasley was not

NEO in either 2006 or 2007

amounts shown foi Mr Malik are for the period ended June 2008 On that date Strategic Energy was sold and

Strategic Energy assumed the Companys obligations to Mr Malik with respect to his defeued compensation amounts

Our deferred compensation plan the DCP is nonqualified and unfunded plan It allows

selected employees including our NEOs to defer the receipt of compensation There are different

defertal provisions for those participants such as Messra Chesscr Downey and Easley who elected the

Old Retirement Plan and those for participants such as Messrs Bassham and Marshall who elected

the New Retirement Plan Old Retirement Plan participants may defer up to 50% of base salary and

100% of awards under annual incentive plans The DCP provides for niatching contribution in an

amount equal to 50% of the first 6% of the base salary deferred by Old Retirement Plan participants

reduced by the amount of the matching contribution made for the year to the participants account

under our Employee Savings Plus Plan as described in our CDA For New Retirement Plan

participants the DCP provides for matching contribution in an amount equal to 100% of the first 6%

of the base salar bonus and incentive pay deferred reduced by the amount of the matching

contribution made for the year to the participants account under the 401k Plan An earnings rate is

applied to the deferral amounts fhis rate is determined annually by the Compensation and

Development Committee and is generally based on the Companys weighted aseragc cost of capital

The tate was set at 9.0% for 2008 Interest is compounded monthly on deferred amounts Participants

may elect prior to rendering services for which the compensation relates when deferred amounts are

paid to them either at specified date or upon separation from service For participants who are

specified employees under Internal Revenue Code Section 409A and who elect payment on
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separation of service amounts will be paid the first business day of the seventh calendar month

following their separation from service

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE-IN-CONTROL

Our NEOs are eligible to receive payments in connection with termination of their employment in

certain situations as explained in this section The Company believes that severance protections

particularly in the context of change in control transaction can play valuable role in attracting and

retaining key executive officers Accordingly we provide such protections for our NEOs The

Compensation and Development Committee evaluates the level of severance benefits to provide NEO
on case-by-case basis and in general considers these severance protections an important part of an

executives overall compensation and consistent with competitive practices Payments made will vary

depending on the circumstances of termination as we discuss below

Payments under Change in Control Severance Agreements

We have Change in Control Severance Agreements Change in Control Agreements with our

NEOs specifying the benefits payable in the event their employment is terminated within two years
of

Change in Control or within protected period Generally Change in Control occurs if

Any person as defined by SEC regulations becomes the beneficial owner of at least 35% of

our outstanding voting securities

change occurs in the majority of our Board or

merger consolidation reorganization or similar transaction is consummated unless our

shareholders continue to hold at least 60% of the voting power of the surviving entity or

liquidation dissolution or sale of substantially all of our assets occurs or is approved by our

shareholders

protected period starts when

We enter into an agreement that if consummated would result in Change in Control

We or another person publicly announces an intention to take or to consider taking actions

which if consummated would constitute Change in Control

Any person as defined by SEC regulations becomes the beneficial owner of 10% or more of

our outstanding voting securities or

Our Board or our shareholders adopt resolution approving any of the foregoing matters or

approving Change in Control

The protected period ends when the Change in Control transaction is consummated abandoned or

terminated

Mr Maliks Change in Control Agreement also defined Change in Control to include the

occurrence of these events at Strategic Energy Change in Control occurred for purposes of

Mr Maliks agreement on June 2008 when Strategic Energy was sold GMOs acquisition in July

2008 did not constitute Change in Control under our Change in Control Agreements

The Company also believes that the occurrence or potential occurrence of change in control

transaction will create uncertainty regarding the continued employment of our executive officers This

uncertainty results from the fact that many change in control transactions result in significant

organizational changes particularly at the senior executive level We believe these change of control

arrangements effectively create incentives for our executive team to build stockholder value and to

obtain the highest value possible should we be acquired in the future despite the risk of losing
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employment and potentially not having the opportunity to otherwise vest in equity awards which are

significant component of each executives compensation These agreements are designed to encourage

our NEOs to remain employed with the Company during an important time when their prospects for

continued employment following the transaction could be uncertain Because we believe that

termination by the executive for good reason may be conceptually the same as termination by the

Company without cause and because we believe that in the context of change in control potential

acquirors would otherwise have an incentive to constructively terminate the executives employment to

avoid paying severance we believe it is appropriate to provide severance benefits in these

circumstances

Our change of control arrangements are double trigger meaning that acceleration of vesting is

not awarded upon change of control unless the NEOs employment is terminated involuntarily other

than for cause within years of Change in Control or protected period We believe this structure

strikes balance between the incentives and the executive hiring and retention considerations described

above without providing these benefits to executives who continue to enjoy employment with an

acquiring company in the event of change of control transaction We also believe this structure is

more attractive to potential acquiring companies who may place significant value on retaining members

of our executive team and who may perceive this goal to be undermined if executives receive significant

acceleration payments in connection with such transaction and are no longer required to continue

employment to earn the remainder of their equity awards

The benefits under the Change in Control Agreements depend on the circumstances of

termination Generally benefits are greater if the employee is not terminated for Cause or if the

employee terminates employment for Good Reason Cause includes

material misappropriation of any funds confidential information or property

The conviction of or the entering of guilty plea or plea of no contest with respect to felony

or equivalent

Willful damage willful misrepresentation willful dishonesty or other willful conduct that can

reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on the Company or

Gross negligence or willful misconduct in performance of the employees duties after written

notice and reasonable period to remedy the occurrence

An employee has Good Reason to terminate employment if

There is any material and adverse reduction or diminution in position authority duties or

responsibilities below the level provided at any time during the 90-day period before the

protected period

There is any reduction in annual base salary after the start of the protected period

There is any reduction in benefits below the level provided at any time during the 90-day period

prior to the protected period or

The employee is required to be based at any office or location that is more than 70 miles from

where the employee was based immediately before the start of the protected period

Our Change in Control Agreements also have covenants prohibiting the disclosure of confidential

information and preventing the employee from participating or engaging in any business that during

the employees employment is in direct competition with the business of the Company within the

United States without prior written consent which in the case of termination will not be unreasonably

withheld
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Change in Control with Termination of Employment

fhe following table sets forth our payment obligations under the Change in Control Agreements

and as applicable existing awards of restricted stock and performance shares under the circumstances

specified upon termination of employment for our NEOs except for Mr Easley Mr Easley resigned

from the Company as of January 2009 and rhe payments actually made to Mr Easley are discussed

in the section titled Retirement Resignation Death or Disabili he amounts shown in the table

for each NEO except
Mr Malik is based on the assumptions that the termination took place on

December 31 2008 that all xacation was taken or paid during the year and the NEO was paid for all

salary earned through the date of termination he table does not reflect amounts that would he

payable to the NEOs for benefits or awards that already vested The amounts shown in the table for

Mr Malik are the actual amounts paid funded or guaranteed by Great Plains Energ under

Mr Maliks Change in Control Agreement and applicable awards

Messrs Chesser Downey and Malik receive three times their highest annual base salary and Messrs Bassham and

Marshall receive two times their highest annual base salarv during the elvemonth period prior to the date of

termination

Messrs Chesser Downey and Malik receive three times their highest average
annualized annual incentive compensation

awards duiing ihe five fiscal years or if less the years they were employed by the company immediately preceding the

fiscal year in which the Change in ontiol occurs Messrs Bassham and Marshall receive avo times their highest average

annualized annual incentive compensation awards

he annualized pro raia bonu amouni is at least equal to the avei age annualized incentive awards paid to the NED during

the last live fiscal yeais of the Company or the number of years the NLO worked for the Company immediately hefoie

the fiscal year in which the hangcon Control occurs pro rated for the number of lays employed in that year The aniount

shown for Mr Malik is the difterenee between the pro rat1 bonus amount and the actual pro rara auuual inLelitivc

compensation amount paid to him

amounts reflect the present value of the benefit arising from additional years
of service credited upon Change in

ontrol Mr Chesser is credited with two years for every one year ot credited service under the Pension Plan plus six

additional years ot credited service Mr Downey is credited for three additional years of service Mr Marshall is credited

mr two years for every one \eai of credited service under ihe Pcnsion Plan plus four additional years
of credited seivice

Mr Bassham is ciedited foi avo additional years of service these benefits are paid through our SLRP

Mr Mr
as ha arshall

Benefit

Two Times or Three fimes Salaryt 400 000 000 780000

Two Times or Three Times Bonus 66 984 24 76 67404

Annualized Pro Rata Bonus 12188 702

Additional Retirement Benefits 00 177320 30 607

Supplemental Retirement and

Severance

and Welfare 16096 995 2684

Performance Share Awards Vesting 6804 30167 96.0

Performance Share Dividends Vesting 46 87 2931

Restricted Stock Vesting 2099083 7471 629269

Restricted Stock and Option Dividen

Vesting
10 276 964 699

401k Employer Match Vesting

Deferred Compensation Plan Employer

Match Vesting
417 4806 14541

lax GrossUp ii 2974 6978

Total 1210 028 074 474 3463094
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Mr Downeys supplemental retirement and severance benefit agreement provides for $700000 payment it the ompany

terminates his employment without Cause prior to age 65

She amounts include medical accident disability and life insurance and are estimated based on our current COBRA

premiums for medical covciage and indicative premiums for private insurance coverage or the individuals She amount

shown foi Mr Malik is the amount the Company contributed to Strategic Energy to reimburse that company for the cost of

pros iding cn cragc te Mr Malik

In the event of change in contiol which is generally consistent with the definition of Change in ontrol in the

Change in Control Agreements except that the beneficial ownership threshold percentage is lower our LTIP provides that

all pre-May 2007 pciformancc share grants unless awarded less than six months prioi to the change in control are deemed

to have been fully
earned Grants after April 2007 have an additional condition that the grantees employment must have

been terminated without Cause or tor Good Reason The amounts shown for each person except for Mr Malik reflect

the aggregate target number of performance shares tom performanec periods ending aftei 2008 valued at the $1933 closing

price of our stock on December 31 2008 fhe threshold performance level for the 2006 2008 perfoimance share grants was

not achieved and no payouts were made under these grants As result the grants were deemed to not he outstanding as

of the end of 2008 Mr Malik amount reflects $899031 in cash paid undei the Stiategie Energy long term incentive plans

plus 10325 shares paid at target on his outstanding performance share awards valued at the $25.98 closing puce on the

June 2008 payment date

Peiformance Share Dividends are the dividends accrued on the performance shares and payable in cash on the numbei of

shares actually paid out

In the event of change in control which is generally consistent with the definition of Change in Control in the

hange in Control Agreements except that the beneficial ownership threshold percentage is lower our LTIP provides that

all restmictions on pre-May 2007 restricted stock grants are remosed Grants alter April 2007 have an additional condition

that the grantees employment must have been terminated without Cause or for Good Reason The amounts shown for

each peison except for Mr Malik reflect the aggregate number of restricted stock grants outstanding as of December 31

2008 valued at the $19.33 closing price of our stock on that date Mr Maliks amount reflects the number of restiicted

stock grants outstanding as ol June 2008 the date of sale of Strategic Energy valued at the $25.98 closing puce on that

date

10 Dividends on restricted stock awards arc reinvested in ompany stock and carry the same restrictions The amounts shown

for each person reflects the number of shares of reinvested dividends valued at the same closing price as the peisons

iestrictcd stock grants described in footnote The amount shown for Mr Downey also reflects the payment of $47923 of

accrued dividends on certain of his stock option grants that are payable en Change in Control

11 The Change in Control Agreements generally provide for an additional payment to cover excise taxes imposed by

Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code Section 2801 gross-up payments We have calculated these payments based

on the estimated payments discussed above as well as the acceleration of equity awards that arc discussed in more detail

below In calculating these payments we did not make any reductions for the value of reasonable compensation for

pre-Change in ontrol peiiod and post-Change in ontrol peiiod service such as the value attributed to non-compete

provisions In the event that payments are due under Change in Control Agreements we would peiform esaluations to

detcimine the reductions attributable to these services No Section 2800 gross-up payment was required in Mr Maliks

case

hange in Control without Termination qf Employment

Upon Change in Control all restrictions on outstanding unvested restricted stock and unvested

restricted stock options granted prior to the May 2007 amendments to our LTIP held by our NEOs

would vest and all outstanding performance share grants that were granted prior to May 2007 would

be deemed to have been fully earned even if the NEO continues employment throughout the

protected period The following table sets forth the value of the restricted stock and performance

shares using the December 31 2008 closing price of our stock plus accrued dividends payable under

these pre-May 2007 grants to the indicated NEOs assuming Change in Control as of December 31

2108

Mr Chesser Mr Bassham

$2720507 $795207

Mr Malik ts not included in this table because all of his outstanding restricted stock and

performance share grants vested as of June 2008 Mr Easley is not included tn this table because he

resigned as of January 2009 from the Company



Mr Downey holds stock options that are currently exercisable He has limited stock appreciation

rights on 45249 option shares which entitle him in the event of Change in Control to receive cash

in an amount equal to the difference between the fair market value as of the date of the event of the

shares underlying the stock appreciation rights and the aggregate
base or exercise price of these

options Of those option shares 5249 option shares also
carry rights to accrued dividends upon option

exercise or in the event of Change in Control No amount would have been paid on the limited stock

appreciation rights if Change in Control occurred on December 31 2008 because the fair market

value on that date was less than the exercise prices of these options Mr Downey would have been

entitled to receive $47923 less applicable withholding taxes respecting the accrued dividends on the

5249 option shares

Retirement Resignation Termination Death or Disability

Upon retirement or resignation the NEO would receive all accrued and unpaid salary and

benefits including the retirement benefits discussed above In the event of death or disability the NEO

or his beneficiary would receive group life insurance proceeds or group disability policy proceeds as

applicable In addition these events would have the following effects on outstanding LTIP awards if

employment is terminated by either the Company or the NEO all restricted stock and performance

share awards would be forfeited ii if the NEO retires becomes disabled or dies restricted stock and

performance share awards granted before May 2007 would be prorated for service during the

applicable periods and all restricted stock and performance share awards granted after May 2007

would be forfeited unless the Compensation and Development Committee takes other action in its sole

discretion iii if the NEO retires outstanding options expire three months from the retirement date

iv if the NEO resigns or is discharged outstanding options terminate and if the NEO becomes

disabled or dies outstanding options terminate twelve months after disability or death

Mr Malik had an employment agreement with Strategic Energy As discussed above no payments

were made under that agreement in connection with the change in control of Strategic Energy or

Mr Maliks termination of employment

Mr Chessers employment offer letters provide that if he is terminated without cause he will

receive three times annual salary and bonus if terminated prior to age 63 or one-time salary and

bonus if terminated between age 63 and before age 65 If Mr Chesser were terminated without cause

as of December 31 2008 and assuming that the Change in Control Agreement was not applicable he

would have received $4800000 under this arrangement

Mr Marshalls employment offer letter provides that if he is terminated without cause he will

receive severance amount equal to the target payment under the annual incentive plan plus two times

his annual base salary If Mr Marshall were terminated without cause as of December 31 2008 and

assuming that the Change in Control Agreement was not applicable he would have received $990600

under this arrangement

Mr Downeys supplemental retirement and severance benefit agreement provides for $700000

lump sum payment if Mr Downey retires after reaching age 65 or if the Company terminates

Mr Downeys employment before age 65 other than for Cause or if Mr Downey terminates

employment before age 65 for Good Reason If Mr Downey dies or becomes disabled prior to age 65

the lump sum will be payable proportionately reduced based upon the amount of time he was actively

employed by the Company during the period of time between August 2008 the date of the

agreement and Mr Downeys 65th birthday If Mr Downey had died or become disabled as of

December 31 2008 lump sum payment of $192435.42 would have been payable under the

agreement

Mr Easleys agreement with the Company in connection with his resignation provided for lump

sum cash payment of $1225000 which was made in January 2009 All of Mr Easleys outstanding

restricted stock and performance share grants were forfeited as of his January 2009 resignation date
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OTHER BUSINESS

Great Plains Energy is not aware of any other matters that will be presented for shareholder

action at the Annual Meeting If other matters are properly introduced the persons named in the

accompanying proxy will vote the shares they represent according to their judgment

By Order of the Board of Directors

Barbara Curry

Senior Vice PresidentHuman Resources and

Corporate Secretaiy

Kansas City Missouri

March 25 2009
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This combined annual report on Form 10-K is being filed by Great Plains Energy Incorporated Great Plains

Energy and Kansas City Power Light Company KCPL KCPL is wholly owned subsidiary of Great

Plains Energy and represents significant portion of its assets liabilities revenues expenses and operations

Thus all information contained in this report relates to and is filed by Great Plains Energy Information that is

specifically identified in this report as relating solely to Great Plains Energy such as its financial statements and

all information relating to Great Plains Energys other operations businesses and subsidiaries including KCPL
Greater Missouri Operations Company GMO does not relate to and is not filed by KCPL KCPL makes

no representation as to that information Neither Great Plains Energy nor its other subsidiaries have any

obligation in respect of KCPLs debt securities and holders of such securities should not consider Great Plains

Energys or its other subsidiaries financial resources or results of operations in making decision with respect to

KCPLs debt securities Similarly KCPL has no obligation in respect of securities of Great Plains Energy or

its other subsidiaries

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING CERTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION
Statements made in this report that are not based on historical facts are forward-looking may involve risks and

uncertainties and are intended to be as of the date when made Forward-looking statements include but are not

limited to the outcome of regulatory proceedings cost estimates of the Comprehensive Energy Plan and other

matters affecting future operations In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the registrants are providing number of important factors that could cause actual

results to differ materially from the provided forward-looking information These important factors include

future economic conditions in regional national and international markets and their effects on sales prices and

costs including but not limited to possible further deterioration in economic conditions and the timing and extent

of any economic recovery prices and availability of electricity in regional and national wholesale markets market

perception of the energy industry Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO changes in business strategy

operations or development plans effects of current or proposed state and federal legislative and regulatory actions

or developments including but not limited to deregulation re-regulation and restructuring of the electric utility

industry decisions of regulators regarding rates KCPL and GMO can charge for electricity adverse changes in

applicable laws regulations rules principles or practices governing tax accounting and environmental matters

including but not limited to air and water quality financial market conditions and performance including but not

limited to changes in interest rates and credit spreads and in availability and cost of capital and the effects on

nuclear decommissioning trust and pension plan assets and costs credit ratings inflation rates effectiveness of

risk management policies and procedures and the ability of counterparties to satisfy their contractual

commitments impact of terrorist acts increased competition including but not limited to retail choice in the

electric utility industry and the entry of new competitors ability to carry out marketing and sales plans weather

conditions including but not limited to weather-related damage and their effects on sales prices and costs cost

availability quality and deliverability of fuel ability to achieve generation planning goals and the occurrence and

duration of planned and unplanned generation outages delays in the anticipated in-service dates and cost

increases of additional generating capacity and environmental projects nuclear operations workforce risks

including but not limited to retirement compensation and benefits costs the ability to successfully integrate

KCPL and GMO operations and the timing and amount of resulting synergy savings and other risks and

uncertainties

This list of factors is not all-inclusive because it is not possible to predict all factors Part Item 1A Risk Factors

included in this report should be carefully read for further understanding of potential risks for each of Great Plains

Energy and KCPL Other sections of this report and other periodic reports filed by each of Great Plains Energy

and KCPL with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC should also be read for more information

regarding risk factors Great Plains Energy and KCPL undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any

forward-looking statement whether as result of new information future events or otherwise



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The following is glossary of frequently used abbreviations or acronyms that are found throughout this report

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

Aquila or GMO Aquila Inc wholly owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy as of July 14

2008 which changed its name to KCPL Greater Missouri Operations

Company GMO
ARO Asset Retirement Obligation

BART Best available retrofit technology

Black Hills Black Hills Corporation

CAIR Clean Air Interstate Rule

CAMR Clean Air Mercury Rule

Clean Air Act Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990

CO2 Carbon Dioxide

Collaboration Agreement Agreement among KCPL the Sierra Club and the Concerned

Citizens of Platte County

Company Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its subsidiaries

DOE Department of Energy

EBITDA Earnings before interest income taxes depreciation and amortization

ECA Energy Cost Adjustment

EEl Edison Electric Institute

EIRR Environmental Improvement Revenue Refunding

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

EPS Earnings per common share

ERISA Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as amended

FAC Fuel Adjustment Clause

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

FELINE PRIDESSM Flexible Equity Linked Preferred Increased Dividend Equity Securities

service mark of Merrill Lynch Co Inc

FERC The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FGIC Financial Guaranty Insurance Company
FIN Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation

FSP Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position

FSS Forward Starting Swaps

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Great Plains Energy Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its subsidiaries

Holdings DTI Holdings Inc

HSS Home Service Solutions Inc wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc

IEC Innovative Energy Consultants Inc former wholly owned subsidiary

of Great Plains Energy

ISO Independent System Operator

KCC The State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas

KCPL Kansas City Power Light Company wholly owned subsidiary

of Great Plains Energy



Abbreviation or Acronym Definition

KDHE Kansas Department of Health and Environment

KLT Gas KLT Gas Inc wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc

KLT Inc KLT Inc wholly owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy

KLT Investments KLT Investments Inc wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc

KLT Telecom KLT Telecom mc former wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc

KW Kilowatt

kWh Kilowatt hour

MAC Material Adverse Change

MDA Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations

MDNR Missouri Department of Natural Resources

MGP Manufactured gas plant

MISO Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator Inc

MPS Merchant MPS Merchant Services Inc wholly owned subsidiary of GMO
MPSC Public Service Commission of the State of Missouri

MW Megawatt

MWh Megawatt hour

NERC North American Electric Reliability Corporation

NEIL Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited

NO Nitrogen Oxide

NPNS Normal Purchases and Normal Sales

NRC Nuclear Regulatory Commission

NYMEX New York Mercantile Exchange

OCI Other Comprehensive Income

PCB Polychlorinated biphenyls

PPA Pension Protection Act of 2006

PRB Powder River Basin

PURPA Public Utility Regulatory Policy Act

QCA Quarterly Cost Adjustment

Receivables Company Kansas City Power Light Receivables Company wholly owned

subsidiary of KCPL
RTO Regional Transmission Organization

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

Services Great Plains Energy Services Incorporated wholly owned subsidiary of

Great Plains Energy

SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SIP State Implementation Plan

SO2 Sulfur Dioxide

SPP Southwest Power Pool Inc

STB Surface Transportation Board

Strategic Energy Strategic Energy L.L.C former subsidiary of KLT Energy Services

Syncora Syncora Guarantee Inc formerly XL Capital Assurance Inc

Lock Treasury Lock

Union Pacific Union Pacific Railroad Company

WCNOC Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation

Westar Westar Energy Inc Kansas utility company

Wolf Creek Wolf Creek Generating Station



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Kansas City Power Light Company are separate registrants filing this

combined annual report The terms Great Plains Energy Company and KCPL are used throughout this

report Great Plains Energy and the Company refer to Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its consolidated

subsidiaries unless otherwise indicated KCPL refers to Kansas City Power Light Company and its

consolidated subsidiaries

Information in other Items of this report as to which reference is made in this Item is hereby incorporated by

reference in this Item The use of terms such as see or refer to shall be deemed to incorporate into this Item

the information to which such reference is made

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED

Great Plains Energy Missouri corporation incorporated in 2001 and headquartered in Kansas City Missouri is

public utility holding company and does not own or operate any significant assets other than the stock of its

subsidiaries Great Plains Energys wholly owned direct subsidiaries with operations or active subsidiaries are as

follows

KCPL is an integrated regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers primarily in the

states of Missouri and Kansas KCPL has one wholly owned subsidiary Kansas City Power Light

Receivables Company Receivables Company

KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company GMO is an integrated regulated electric utility that

primarily provides electricity to customers in the state of Missouri GMO also provides regulated steam

service to certain customers in the St Joseph Missouri area GMO wholly owns MPS Merchant

Services Inc MPS Merchant which has certain long-term natural gas contracts remaining from its

former non-regulated trading operations Great Plains Energy acquired GMO on July 14 2008 See Note

to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Great Plains Energy Services Incorporated Services provides services at cost to Great Plains Energy and

its subsidiaries Effective December 16 2008 Services employees were transferred to KCPL Services

continues to obtain certain goods and third-party services for its affiliated companies

KLT Inc is an intermediate holding company that primarily holds investments in affordable housing

limited partnerships KLT Inc also wholly owns KLT Gas Inc and Home Service Solutions Inc which

have no active operations KLT Telecom Inc wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc was dissolved in

December 2008

On June 2008 Great Plains Energy completed the sale of Strategic Energy L.L.C Strategic Energy

Strategic Energy is accounted for as discontinued operations for all periods presented See Note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements for additional information Great Plains Energy indirectly owned 100% of

Strategic Energy through its wholly owned subsidiaries KLT Inc and Innovative Energy Consultants Inc IEC
JEC did not own or operate any assets other than its indirect interest in Strategic Energy IEC was merged into

KLT Inc in July 2008

Great Plains Energys sole reportable business segment is electric utility As presented herein for periods prior to

2008 Great Plains Energys electric utility segment is the same as the previously reported KCPL segment For

information regarding the revenues income and assets attributable to the electric utility business segment see

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements Comparative financial information and discussion regarding the



electric utility business segment can be found in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations MDA
ELECTRIC UTILITY

The electric utility segment consists of KCPL regulated utility and since the July 14 2008 acquisition date

GMOs regulated utility operations which include its Missouri Public Service and St Joseph Light Power

divisions Electric utility serves over 820000 customers located in western Missouri and eastern Kansas

Customers include approximately 722000 residences 96000 commercial firms and 2800 industrials

municipalities and other electric utilities Electric utilitys retail revenues averaged approximately 83% of its total

operating revenues over the last three years Since the July 14 2008 acquisition of GMO electric utilitys retail

revenues averaged 85% of its total operating revenues Wholesale firm power bulk power sales and

miscellaneous electric revenues accounted for the remainder of electric utilitys revenues Electric utility is

significantly impacted by seasonality with approximately one-third of its retail revenues recorded in the third

quarter Electric utilitys total electric revenues were 100% of Great Plains Energys revenues over the last three

years Electric utilitys net income accounted for approximately 120% 130% and 109% of Great Plains Energys

income from continuing operations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Regulation

KCPL and GMO are regulated by the Public Service Commission of the State of Missouri MPSC and

KCPL is also regulated by The State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas KCC with respect to

retail rates certain accounting matters standards of service and in certain cases the issuance of securities

certification of facilities and service territories KCPL and GMO are also subject to regulation by the Federal

Energy Regulatory Commission FERC Southwest Power Pool Inc SPP and North American Electric

Reliability Corporation NERC KCPL has 47% ownership interest in the Wolf Creek Generating Station

Wolf Creek which is subject to regulation by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission NRC with respect to

licensing operations and safety-related requirements

Missouri and Kansas jurisdictional retail revenues averaged approximately 70% and 30% respectively of electric

utilitys total retail revenues since the July 14 2008 acquisition of GMO See Item MDA Critical

Accounting Policies section and Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

concerning regulatory matters

In September 2008 KCPL filed requests for annual rate increases with the MPSC and KCC and GMO filed

requests for annual rate increases with the MPSC with new rates expected to be effective in the third quarter of

2009 See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Competition

Missouri and Kansas continue on the fully integrated utility model and no legislation authorizing retail choice has

been introduced in Missouri or Kansas for several years As result electric utility does not compete with others

to supply and deliver electricity in its franchised service territory although other sources of energy can provide

alternatives to electric utility customers If Missouri or Kansas were to pass and implement legislation

authorizing or mandating retail choice electric utility may no longer be able to apply regulated utility accounting

principles to deregulated portions of its operations and may be required to write off certain regulatory assets and

liabilities

Electric utility competes in the wholesale market to sell power in circumstances when the power it generates is

not required for customers in its service territory In this regard electric utility competes with owners of other

generating stations and other power suppliers principally utilities in its region on the basis of availability and

price Electric utilitys wholesale revenues averaged approximately 16% of its total revenues over the last three

years



Power Supply

Electric utility has over 6000 MWs of generating capacity The projected peak summer demand for 2009 is

5511 MW Electric utility expects to meet its projected capacity requirements for the years 2009 and 2010 with

its generation assets capacity purchases and demand-side management and efficiency programs As part of

KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan electric utility expects to have latan No coal-fired plant in service in

2010 which will add approximately 620 MW electric utilitys share to electric utilitys generating capacity

KCPL is member of the SPP SPP is Regional Transmission Organization RTO mandated by FERC to

ensure reliable supply of power adequate transmission infrastructure and competitive wholesale prices of

electricity As member of the SPP KCPL is required to maintain capacity margin of at least 12% of its

projected peak summer demand This net positive supply of capacity and energy is maintained through its

generation assets and capacity power purchase agreements and peak demand reduction programs The capacity

margin is designed to ensure the reliability of electric
energy

in the SPP region in the event of operational failure

of power generating units utilized by the members of the SPP

Fuel

The principal fuel sources for electric utilitys electric generation are coal and nuclear fuel It is expected with

normal weather that approximately 93% of 2009 generation will come from these sources with the remainder

provided by wind natural gas and oil The actual 2008 and estimated 2009 fuel mix and delivered cost in cents

per net kWh generated are in the following table

Fuel cost in cents per

Fuel Mix net kWh generated

Estimated Actual Estimated Actual

Fuel 2009 2008 2009 2008

Coal 76 76 1.61 1.43

Nuclear 17 18 0.48 0.46

Coal and natural gas 7.29 4.72

Natural gas and oil 9.14 7.85

Wind

Total Generation 100 100 1.83 1.44

Fuel mix based on percent of total MWbs generated

GMOs retail rates and KCPLs retail rates in Kansas contain certain fuel recovery mechanisms KCPLs
Missouri retail rates do not contain fuel

recovery mechanism To the extent the price of fuel or purchased power

increases significantly or if electric utilitys lower cost units do not meet anticipated availability levels Great

Plains Energys net income may be adversely affected unless and until the increased cost could be reflected in

KCPLs Missouri retail rates Additionally GMOs retail rates and KCPLs retail rates in Missouri reflect

set level of non-firm wholesale electric sales margin KCPL and GMO will not recover any shortfall in non-

firm wholesale electric sales margin and for KCPL any amount of margin above the level reflected in Missouri

retail rates will be returned to KCPL Missouri retail customers in future rate case

Coal

During 2009 electric utilitys generating units including jointly owned units are projected to burn approximately

15 million tons of coal KCPL and GMO have entered into coal-purchase contracts with various suppliers in

Wyomings Powder River Basin PRB the nations principal supply region of low-sulfur coal and with local

suppliers The coal to be provided under these contracts will satisfy almost all of the projected coal requirements

for 2009 and approximately 60% for 2010 40% for 2011 and 25% for each of 2012 and 2013 The remainder of

the coal requirements will be fulfilled through additional contracts or spot market purchases KCPL and GMO
have entered into coal contracts over time at higher average prices affecting coal costs for 2009 and beyond



KCPL and GMO have also entered into rail transportation contracts with various railroads to transport coal from

the PRB to their generating units The transportation services to be provided under these contracts will satisfy

approximately 75% of the projected requirements for 2009 and approximately 65% for 2010 The majority of

KCPL and GMO rail transportation contracts expire in 2010 KCPL and GMO will pay tariff rates after

2010 which are typically higher Coal transportation costs are expected to increase in 2009 and beyond

Nuclear Fuel

KCPL owns 47% of Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation WCNOC the operating company for Wolf

Creek which is electric utilitys only nuclear generating unit Wolf Creek purchases uranium and has it processed

for use as fuel in its reactor This process involves conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium hexafluoride

enrichment of uranium hexafluoride and fabrication of nuclear fuel assemblies The owners of Wolf Creek have

on hand or under contract all of the uranium and conversion services needed to operate Wolf Creek through

March 2011 and approximately 87% after that date through September 2018 The owners also have under

contract 100% of the uranium enrichment and fabrication required to operate Wolf Creek through March 2025

Management expects its cost of nuclear fuel to remain relatively stable through 2009 because of contracts in

place Management anticipates the cost of nuclear fuel to increase significantly in 2010 after which increases are

expected to be moderate Even with this anticipated increase management expects nuclear fuel cost per
MWh

generated to remain less than the cost of generation from other fuel sources See Note to the consolidated

financial statements for additional information regarding nuclear plant

Natural Gas

At December 31 2008 KCPL had hedged approximately 31% and 3% of its 2009 and 2010 respectively

projected natural gas usage for generation requirements to serve retail load and firm MWh sales At December

31 2008 GMO had hedged approximately 65% and 4% of its 2009 and 2010 respectively expected on-peak

natural
gas usage

and natural gas equivalent purchased power

Purchased Capacity and Power

KCPL and GMO have distinct rate and dispatching areas As result KCPL and GMO do not joint-dispatch

their respective generation resulting in GMO purchasing capacity and power to meet its customers needs GMO
has long-term purchased capacity and power agreements for approximately 235 MW At times KCPL
purchases power to meet its customers needs when it does not have sufficient available generation or when the

cost of purchased power is less than KCPLs cost of generation or to satisf firm power commitments

Management believes electric utility will be able to obtain enough power to meet its future demands due to the

coordination of planning and operations in the SPP region however price and availability of power purchases

may be impacted during periods of high demand Electric utilitys purchased power as percent of MWh
requirements averaged approximately 15% 7% and 2% for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Since the July

14 2008 acquisition of GMO electric utilitys purchased power as percentage of MWh requirements averaged

approximately 19%

Environmental Matters

See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding environmental matters

KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY

KCPL headquartered in Kansas City Missouri is an integrated regulated electric utility that engages in the

generation transmission distribution and sale of electricity KCPL serves approximately 509000 customers

located in western Missouri and eastern Kansas Customers include approximately 449000 residences 58000

commercial firms and 2000 industrials municipalities and other electric utilities KCPLs retail revenues

averaged approximately 82% of its total operating revenues over the last three years Wholesale firm power bulk

power sales and miscellaneous electric revenues accounted for the remainder of KCPLs revenues KCPL is

significantly impacted by seasonality with approximately one-third of its retail revenues recorded in the third

quarter



GREAT PLAINS ENERGY AND KCPL EMPLOYEES
At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy and KCPL had 3259 employees including 1935 represented by

three local unions of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers IBEW KCPL has labor agreements

with Local 1613 representing clerical employees expires March 31 2013 with Local 1464 representing

transmission and distribution workers expires January 31 2012 and with Local 412 representing power plant

workers expires February 28 2010

Executive Officers

All of the individuals in the following table have been officers or employees in responsible position with the

Company for the past five years except as noted in the footnotes The term of office of each officer commences

with his or her appointment by the Board of Directors and ends on January 2010 unless otherwise determined

by the Board of Directors There are no family relationships between any of the executive officers nor any

arrangement or understanding between any executive officer and any other person involved in officer selection

Each executive officer holds the same position with GMO as he or she does with KCPL

Year First

Assumed

an Officer

Name Age Current Positions Position

Michael Chesser 60 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Great 2003

Plains Energy and KCPL
William Downey 64 President and Chief Operating Officer Great Plains Energy 2000

and KCPL

Terry Bassham 48 Executive Vice President Finance and Strategic 2005

Development and Chief Financial Officer Great Plains

Energy and KCPL
Barbara Curry 54 Senior Vice President Human Resources and Corporate 2005

Secretary Great Plains Energy and KCPL
Michael Deggendorf 47 Senior Vice President Delivery KCPL 2005

Scott Heidtbrink 47 Senior Vice President Supply KCPL 2008

John Marshall 59 Executive Vice President Utility Operations KCPL 2005

William Riggins 50 General Counsel and Chief Legal Officer Great Plains 2000

Energy and KCPL
Lori Wright 46 Vice President and Controller Great Plains Energy and 2002

KCPL

Mr Chesser was appointed Chief Executive Officer of KCPL in 2008 Previously he was Chairman of the Board

2003-2008 of KCPL
Mr Downey was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of KCPL in 2008 Previously he was President and

Chief Executive Officer 2003-2008 of KCPL
Mr Bassham was appointed Executive Vice President Finance and Strategic Development and Chief Financial Officer

of KCPL in 2009 Previously Mr Bassham was Chief Financial Officer 2005-2008 of KCPL Prior to that he was

Executive Vice President Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 2001-2005 of El Paso Electric Company
Ms Curry was appointed Senior Vice President Human Resources and Corporate Secretary in 2008 Previously she

was Senior Vice President Corporate Services and Corporate Secretary of Great Plains Energy and Corporate Secretary

2005-2008 of KCPL Prior to that she was Senior Vice President Retail Operations 2003-2004 of TXU
Corporation
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Mr Deggendorf was previously Vice President Public Affairs of Great Plains Energy 2005-2008 and Senior Director

Energy Solutions 2002-2005 of KCPL
Mr Heidtbrink was previously Vice President Power Generation Energy Resources 2006-2008 and Vice President

Kansas/Colorado Gas 2002-2004 of GMO In 2004 and 2005 he led GMOs Six Sigma deployment into its utility

operations

Mr Marshall was previously Senior Vice President Delivery 2005-200 of KCPL Prior to that he was President

of Coastal Partners Inc strategy consulting company 2001-2005 and Senior Vice President Customer Service

2002-2004 of Tennessee Valley Authority

Mr Riggins was previously Vice President Legal and Environmental Affairs and General Counsel 2005-2008 of

KCPL and General Counsel 000-2005 of Great Plains Energy

Ms Wright was previously Controller 2002-2008 of Great Plains Energy and KCPL

Available Information

Great Plains Energys website is www.greatplainsenergy.com and KCPLs website is www.kcpl.com

Information contained on the companies websites is not incorporated herein Both companies make available

free of charge on or through their websites their annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form l0-Q

current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d
of the Securities Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after the companies electronically file such

material with or furnish it to the SEC In addition the companies make available on or through their websites all

other reports notifications and certifications filed electronically with the SEC

The public may read and copy any materials that the companies file with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference

Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 For information on the operation of the Public Reference

Room please call the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330 The SEC also maintains an Internet site at http//www.sec.gov

that contains reports proxy statements and other information regarding the companies

ITEM RISK FACTORS

Actual results in future periods for Great Plains Energy and KCPL could differ materially from historical results

and the forward-looking statements contained in this report The companies business is influenced by many
factors that are difficult to predict involve uncertainties that may materially affect actual results and are often

beyond the companies control Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known or that the companies

management currently believes to be immaterial may also adversely affect the companies This information as

well as the other information included in this report and in the other documents filed with the SEC should be

carefully considered before making an investment in the securities of Great Plains Energy and KCPL Risk

factors of KCPL and GMO are also risk factors of Great Plains Energy

Regulatory and Environmental Risks

Complex utility and environmental regulation could adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs
results of operations financial position and cash flows

KCPL and GMO are subject to or affected by extensive federal and state utility regulation including by the

MPSC KCC FERC NRC SPP and NERC They must also comply with environmental legislation and

associated regulations In the Companys business planning and management of operations it must address the

effects of existing and proposed regulation on its businesses and changes in the regulatory framework including

initiatives by federal and state legislatures regional transmission organizations utility regulators and taxing

authorities Failure of KCPL or GMO to obtain adequate rates or regulatory approvals in timely manner

adoption of new regulations by federal or state agencies or changes to current regulations and interpretations of

such regulations may materially affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows
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The outcome of retail rate proceedings could have material impact on the business and is largely

outside the Companys control

The rates that KCPL and GMO are allowed to charge their customers are the single most important item

influencing their results of operations financial position and cash flows These rates are subject to the

determination in large part of governmental entities outside of KCPLs and GMOs control including

the MPSC KCC for KCPL and FERC KCPL and GMO are also exposed to cost-recovery

shortfalls due to the inherent lag in the rate-setting process especially during periods of significant cost

inflation as utility rates in Missouri and Kansas are set on the basis of historical costs and are not subject

to adjustment other than for fuel and purchased power for KCPL in Kansas and GMO between rate

cases

As part of the Missouri and Kansas stipulations approved by the MPSC and KCC in 2005 KCPL
began implementation of its Comprehensive Energy Plan Under the Comprehensive Energy Plan

KCPL agreed to undertake certain projects including latan No installing new wind-powered

generating facility installing environmental upgrades to certain existing plants infrastructure

improvements and demand management distributed generation and customer efficiency and affordability

programs In March 2007 KCPL entered into Collaboration Agreement with the Sierra Club and

Concerned Citizens of Platte County that provides for increases in KCPLs wind generation capacity

and energy efficiency initiatives reductions in certain emission permit levels at its latan and LaCygne

generating stations and projects to offset certain carbon dioxide emissions The wind generation energy

efficiency and emission permit reductions are conditioned on regulatory approval

reduction or rejection by the MPSC or KCC of rate increase requests reflecting the costs of projects

under the Comprehensive Energy Plan or Collaboration Agreement or other costs and expenses could

lead to lowered credit ratings reduced access to capital markets increased financing costs lower

flexibility due to constrained financial resources and increased collateral security requirements which

could materially and adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows In response to competitive economic political legislative and regulatory

pressures KCPL and GMO may be subject to rate moratoriums rate refunds and limits on rate

increases or rate reductions including phase-in plans designed to spread the impact of rate increases over

an extended period of time for the benefit of customers Any or all of these could have significant

adverse effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash

flows

Regulatory requirements regarding utility operations may increase costs and may expose KCPL and

GMO to compliance penalties

The MPSC and KCC have the authority to implement utility operational standards and requirements such

as vegetation management standards facilities inspection requirements and quality of service

standards KCPL agreed to quality of service standards in Kansas in connection with the GMO
acquisition The costs of new or modified operational standards and requirements could have an adverse

effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows as

result of increased operations or maintenance and capital expenditures for new facilities or to repair or

improve existing facilities Failure to meet quality of service operational or other standards and

requirements could expose KCPL or GMO to penalties or other adverse rate consequences
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The Company is subject to current and potential environmental laws and the incurrence of environmental

liabilities any or all of which may adversely affect the Companys business and financial results

The Company is subject to regulation by federal state and local authorities with regard to air quality and other

environmental matters through KCPLs and GMOs operations The generation transmission and distribution

of electricity produces and requires proper management and disposal of certain hazardous products and wastes

which are subject to these laws and regulations In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations these

laws and regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance including fines

injunctive relief and other sanctions Failure to comply with these laws and regulations could have material

adverse effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

There is also risk that new environmental laws and regulations and new judicial interpretations of

environmental laws and regulations could adversely affect KCPLs and GMOs operations In particular

various stakeholders including legislators regulators shareholders and non-governmental organizations as well

as utilities and other companies in many business sectors are considering ways to address climate change

including through the regulation of CO2 and other greenhouse gas emissions and efforts to encourage or mandate

the use of renewable resources energy efficiency and demand response management In November 2008

Missouri voters approved an initiative that requires at least 2% of electricity to come from renewable resources by

2011 increasing to 15% by 2021 The governor of Kansas supports mandatory renewable energy portfolio

standards and bills that would establish such standards have been introduced in the 2009 Kansas Legislature

The Kansas Department of Health and Environment KDHE has indicated that it intends to engage industries and

stakeholders to establish goals and strategies for reducing CO2 emissions Additional federal and/or state

legislation or regulation to release greenhouse gas emissions may be enacted in the near future Further pursuant

to the Collaboration Agreement KCPL agreed to pursue set of initiatives including energy efficiency

additional wind generation lower emission permit levels at its latan and LaCygne stations and other initiatives

designed to offset CO2 emissions KCPLs current generation capacity is primarily coal-fired and is estimated

to produce about one ton of CO2 per MWh or approximately 17 million tons per year GMOs current generation

capacity also is primarily coal-fired and is estimated to produce approximately million tons of CO2 per year

Requirements to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions may cause KCPL and GMO to incur significant costs relating

to their ongoing operations through additional environmental control equipment retiring and replacing existing

generation or selecting more costly generation alternatives to procure emission allowance credits or due to the

imposition of taxes fees or other governmental charges as result of such emissions Rules issued by the

Environmental Protection Agency EPA regarding emissions of mercury nitrogen oxides and sulfur dioxides are

also in state of flux Such rules have been overturned by the courts and remanded to the EPA to be revised

consistent with the court orders It is unclear what standards will be imposed in the future when KCPL and

GMO may have to comply with any new standards or what costs may ultimately be required to comply with such

standards

New facilities or modifications of existing facilities may require new environmental permits or amendments to

existing permits Delays in the environmental permitting process denials of permit applications conditions

imposed in permits and the associated uncertainty may materially affect the cost and timing of the environmental

retrofit projects included in the Comprehensive Energy Plan among other projects and thus materially affect

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

Under current law KCPL and GMO are also generally responsible for any liabilities associated with the

environmental condition of their properties including properties that they have previously owned or operated

such as manufactured gas plants MGP regardless of whether they were responsible for the contamination or

whether the liabilities arose before during or after the time they owned or operated the properties KCPL and

GMO may not be allowed by the MPSC or KCC to recover all of their costs for environmental expenditures

through rates in the future The incurrence of material environmental costs or liabilities without related rate

recovery could have material adverse effect on Great Plains Energys or KCPLs results of operations

financial position and cash flows See the notes to the consolidated financial statements for additional

information regarding environmental matters
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The Federal Clean Air Act requires companies to obtain permits and if necessary install control equipment to

reduce emissions when making major modification or change in operation of an existing facility if either is

expected to cause significant net increase in regulated emissions In 2004 the EPA notified Westar Energy Inc

Westar that certain projects completed at the Jeffrey Energy Center violated certain New Source Review

permitting requirements GMO is an 8% owner of the facility which is operated by Westar and is generally

responsible for its 8% share of the facilitys operating costs and capital expenditures On February 2009 the

Attorney General of the United States filed complaint against Westar alleging that it violated the Clean Air Act

and related federal and state regulations by making major modifications to the Jeffrey Energy Center beginning in

1994 without first obtaining appropriate permits authorizing this construction and without installing and operating

best available control technology to control emissions Resolution of this matter potentially could involve the

installation and operation of new emission control systems at Jeffrey Energy Center surrender of emission

allowances interruptions or shut-down of operations at the Jeffrey Energy Center applications for new or

modified permits audits of Jeffrey Energy Center operations actions to otherwise mitigate any resulting harm to

public health and the environment and assessment of civil penalty of up to $37500 per day for each violation

GMOs 8% portion of such costs could be significant The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be

determined nor can the liability that could potentially result from negative outcome presently be reasonably

estimated There is no assurance these costs if any could be recovered in rates and any failure to recover such

costs could have significant effect on Great Plains Energys results of operations financial position and cash

flows

In 2008 KCPL received subpoena from federal grand jury seeking documents relating to capital projects at

latan No KCPL expects to complete the delivery of responsive documents by early March 2009 KCPL
believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with all relevant laws and regulations however the

ultimate outcome of these grand jury activities or possible civil or administrative proceedings regarding capital

projects at latan No and other coal units cannot presently be determined nor can the liability that could

potentially result from negative outcome presently be reasonably estimated There is no assurance these costs if

any could be recovered in rates and any failure to recover such costs could have significant effect on Great

Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

Due to all of the above KCPLs and GMOs projected capital and other expenditures for environmental

compliance are subject to significant uncertainties including the timing of implementation of any new or

modified environmental requirements the emissions limits imposed by such requirements and the types and costs

of the compliance alternatives selected by KCPL and GMO As result costs to comply with environmental

requirements cannot be estimated with certainty and actual costs could be significantly higher than projections

Other new environmental laws and regulations affecting the operations of KCPL and GMO may be adopted

and new interpretations of existing laws and regulations could be adopted or become applicable to KCPL and

GMO or their facilities any of which may adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs business and

substantially increase their environmental expenditures or liabilities in the future

Financial Risks

Financial market disruptions and declines in the credit ratings of Great Plains Energy KCPL or GMO
may increase financing costs and/or limit access to the credit markets which may adversely affect liquidity

and results

KCPLs capital requirements are expected to be substantial over the next several years The acquisition of

GMO has further increased the Companys overall capital requirements and the capital requirements of GMO
over the next several

years are expected to be substantial as it implements generation and environmental projects

The Company relies on access to short-term money markets revolving credit facilities provided by financial

institutions and long-term capital markets as significant sources of liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied

by cash flows from operations The Company also relies on bank-provided credit facilities for credit support
such as letters of credit to support operations The amount of credit support required for KCPL and GMO
operations varies with number of factors including the amount and price of wholesale power purchased or

sold
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Great Plains Energy KCPL GMO and certain of their securities are rated by Moodys Investors Service and

Standard Poors These ratings impact the companies cost of funds and Great Plains Energys ability to

provide credit support for its subsidiaries The interest rates on borrowings under KCPLs revolving credit

agreement and on substantial portion of Great Plains Energys and GMOs debt are subject to increase as their

respective credit ratings decrease The Company has agreed to not seek rate recovery of GMO interest costs in

excess of equivalent investment-grade debt and the MPSC approval of the GMO acquisition is conditioned on the

requirement that any post-acquisition financial effects of credit downgrade of Great Plains Energy KCPL or

GMO occurring as result of the acquisition would be borne by shareholders and not utility customers The

amount of collateral or other credit support required under power supply agreements is also dependent on credit

ratings

The capital and credit markets have been experiencing unprecedented levels of volatility and disruption If

current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen or if there is decrease in Great Plains

Energys KCPLs or GMOs credit ratings there can be no assurance that the companies would not experience

an adverse effect on their access to capital and cost of funds dilution resulting from equity issuances at reduced

prices increases in the amount of collateral or other credit support obligations required to be posted with

contractual counterparties increased nuclear decommissioning trust and pension and other post-retirement benefit

plan funding requirements issuance of secured rather than unsecured debt rate case disallowance of KCPLs or

GMOs costs of capital or reductions in Great Plains Energys ability to provide credit support for its

subsidiaries Any of these results could adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of

operations financial position and cash flows In addition market disruption and volatility could have an adverse

impact on Great Plains Energys KCPLs or GMOs lenders suppliers and other counterparties or on

KCPLs GMOs including MPS Merchant customers causing them to fail to meet their obligations

sustained decline in Great Plains Energys stock price below book value may result in goodwill

impairments that could adversely affect Great Plains Energys results of operations and financial position

as well as credit facility covenants

The GMO acquisition resulted in Great Plains Energy recording approximately $156 million in goodwill

Accounting rules require goodwill to be tested for impairment annually and when an event occurs indicating that

it is possible that an impairment exists The Companys annual impairment testing is conducted in September

Subsequent to September 2008 financial market disruptions and volatility have resulted in Great Plains Energys

stock trading at price below canying value If the stock price continues to be below carrying value the

accounting rules may require Great Plains Energy to conduct another goodwill impairment test There is no

assurance that the results of this additional test will not require Great Plains Energy to recognize an impairment of

goodwill An impairment of GMO acquisition goodwill would reduce net income and may adversely affect Great

Plains Energys results of operations and financial position and could result in breach of the debt to total

capitalization covenants in Great Plains Energys and GMOs revolving credit agreements

Great Plains Energy has guaranteed substantially all of the outstanding debt of GMO and payments under

these guarantees may adversely affect Great Plains Energys liquidity

In connection with the GMO acquisition Great Plains Energy issued guarantees covering substantially all of the

outstanding debt of GMO and has guaranteed $400 million revolving credit facility that was entered into by

GMO subsequent to the acquisition The guarantees were factor in GMO receiving investment-grade ratings

and the guarantees obligate Great Plains Energy directly to pay amounts owed by GMO to the holders of the

guaranteed debt in the event GMO defaults on its payment obligations Any guarantee payments could adversely

affect Great Plains Energys liquidity

The inability of Great Plains Energys subsidiaries to provide sufficient dividends to allow Great Plains

Energy to pay dividends to its shareholders and meet its financial obligations would have an adverse effect

Great Plains Energy is holding company with no significant operations of its own The primary source of funds

for payment of dividends to its shareholders and its financial obligations is dividends paid to it by its subsidiaries

particularly KCPL and GMO KCPL has committed to state regulatory commissions to maintain 35%
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equity to total capitalization ratio and Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO have similar covenants in their

revolving credit facilities In addition under federal law KCPL and GMO may pay dividends generally only

out of retained earnings The ability of Great Plains Energys subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other

distributions and accordingly Great Plains Energys ability to pay dividends on its common stock and meet its

financial obligations principally depends on the actual and projected earnings and cash flow capital requirements

and general financial position of its subsidiaries as well as on regulatory factors financial covenants general

business conditions and other matters

Market performance increased retirements and changes in retirement plan regulations could significantly

impact retirement plan funding requirements and associated cash needs and expenses

Substantially all of KCPLs employees participate in defined benefit and post-retirement plans GMOs former

employees in its Missouri utility operations and certain other operations have accrued benefits in GMOs defined

benefit and post-retirement plans If KCPL employees retire when they become eligible for retirement through

2011 or if these plans experience adverse market returns on investments as has been the case during the 2008

period or if interest rates materially fall KCPL and GMO contributions to the plans could rise substantially

over historical levels In addition assumptions related to future costs returns on investments interest rates and

other actuarial assumptions including projected retirements have significant impact on Great Plains Energys

and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 PPA alters the manner in which pension plan assets and liabilities are

valued for
purposes

of calculating required pension contributions and changes the timing of required contributions

to underfunded plans The funding rules which became effective in 2008 could significantly affect the

Companys funding requirements In addition the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB has project to

reconsider the accounting for expense recognition related to pensions and other post-retirement benefits which

may result in accelerated expense

The use of derivative contracts in the normal course of business could result in losses that could negatively

impact Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

Great Plains Energy KCPL GMO including MPS Merchant use derivative instruments such as swaps
options futures and forwards to manage commodity and financial risks Losses could be recognized as result

of volatility in the market values of these contracts if counterparty fails to perform or if the underlying

transactions which the derivative instruments are intended to hedge fail to materialize In the absence of actively

quoted market prices and pricing information from external sources the valuation of these financial instruments

can involve managements judgment or use of estimates As result changes in the underlying assumptions or

use of alternative valuation methods could affect the reported fair value of these contracts

As service provider to GMO KCPL may have exposure to GMOs financial performance and

operations

GMO has no employees of its own KCPL employees operate and manage GMOs properties and KCPL
charges GMO for the cost of these services These arrangements may pose risks to KCPL including possible

claims arising from actions of KCPL employees in operating GMOs properties and providing other services to

GMO KCPLs claims for reimbursement for services provided to GMO are unsecured and rank equally with

other unsecured obligations of GMO KCPLs ability to be reimbursed for the costs incurred for the benefit of

GMO depends on the financial ability of GMO to make such payments

Customer and Weather-Related Risks

Severe weather and changes in customer demand due to sustained financial market disruptions downturns

or sluggishness in the economy weather conditions or otherwise may adversely affect Great Plains

Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

The results of operations financial position and cash flows of Great Plains Energy and KCPL can be materially

affected by changes in weather and customer demand KCPL and GMO estimate customer demand based on

historical trends to procure fuel and purchased power Sustained downturns or sluggishness in the economy
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generally affect the markets in which KCPL and GMO operate KCPLs electricity sales volume declined in

2008 compared to 2007 and retail demand for KCPL and GMO is expected to be lower in 2009 than it was in

2008 assuming normal weather conditions If the current financial market disruptions or economic downturn

continue or worsen overall electricity sales volumes may further decline and/or bad debt expense may increase

which could materially affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and

cash flows

Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas
and affect the price of energy

commodities KCPL and GMO are significantly impacted by seasonality with approximately one-third of their

retail electric revenues recorded in the third quarter Unusually mild winter or summer weather can adversely

affect sales In addition severe weather including but not limited to tornados snow rain and ice storms can be

destructive causing outages and property damage that can potentially result in additional expenses
and lower

revenues Some of KCPLs and GMOs stations use water from the Missouri River for cooling purposes Low

water and flow levels which have been experienced in recent years can increase maintenance costs at these

stations and if these levels were to get low enough could cause modifications to plant operations

Integration and Operational Risks

Only portion of the costs associated with the GMO acquisition will be recovered through utility rates and

the expected cost benefits of the GMO transaction may not be realized which could adversely affect Great

Plains Energys results of operations financial position and cash flows

The MPSC order approving the GMO transaction provides that the transaction costs will not be recovered through

utility rates and that the Missouri jurisdictional portion of transition costs estimated to be $33.1 million at

December 31 2008 will be eligible for recovery through utility rates only to the extent the costs are offset by

benefits resulting from the acquisition The KCC order approving the GMO transaction limited KCPLs
recovery of transition costs through Kansas rates to $10.0 million At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy

had $43.1 million of regulatory assets related to transition costs which included $25.5 million at KCPL and

$17.6 million at GMO

Great Plains Energy and KCPL expect to achieve various benefits including cost savings and operating

efficiencies in connection with the acquisition Approximately half of the total estimated cost savings over the

first five years following the GMO acquisition are expected to come from reductions in GMOs corporate

overhead and other costs that are not being recovered and are not expected to be recovered through utility

rates If these costs are not able to be eliminated as anticipated Great Plains Energys results of operations

financial position and cash flows could be negatively impacted

The benefits of integrating KCPLs and GMOs utility businesses may be less than expected which could

adversely affect the Companys regulatory treatment and results of operations financial position and cash

flows

Great Plains Energy and KCPL expect to achieve synergies through the ongoing integration of KCPL and

GMO utility operations This integration poses significant challenges due to the size and complexity of each

organization The Company has dedicated substantial efforts and resources since the GMO acquisition was

announced to plan for and implement an efficient and successful integration of utility operations Great Plains

Energy and KCPL believe that the anticipated benefits will be achieved However there is no assurance that the

utility operations integration will be completed successfully or in timely manner or result in the anticipated

benefits Failure to achieve the anticipated cost reductions or customer service levels could result in adverse

regulatory actions and could negatively affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows
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Operations risks may adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows

The operation of KCPLs and GMOs electric generation transmission and distribution systems involves many
risks including breakdown or failure of equipment processes and personnel performance problems that delay or

increase the cost of returning facilities to service after outages operating limitations that may be imposed by

equipment conditions environmental safety or other regulatory requirements fuel supply or fuel transportation

reductions or interruptions transmission scheduling constraints and catastrophic events such as fires explosions

severe weather or other similar occurrences An equipment outage or constraint can

in the case of generation equipment directly affect operating costs increase capital needs and costs

increase purchased power needs and costs and reduce wholesale sales opportunities

in the case of transmission equipment affect operating costs increase capital needs and costs require

changes in the source of generation and affect wholesale sales opportunities and

in the case of distribution systems affect revenues and operating costs increase capital needs and costs

and affect the ability to meet regulatory service metrics and customer expectations

With the exception of I-lawthorn No which was substantially rebuilt in 2001 all of KCPLs coal-fired

generating units and its nuclear generating unit were constructed prior to 1986 All of GMOs coal-fired

generating units were constructed prior to 1984 The
age

of these generating units increases the risk of unplanned

outages and higher maintenance expense Training preventive maintenance and other programs have been

implemented but there is no assurance that these programs will prevent or minimize future breakdowns or

failures of KCPLs or GMOs generation facilities

KCPL and GMO currently have general liability and property insurance in place to cover their facilities in

amounts that management considers appropriate These policies however do not cover KCPLs or GMOs
transmission or distribution systems and the cost of repairing damage to these systems may adversely affect Great

Plains Energys or KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows Such policies are subject to

certain limits and deductibles and generally do not include business interruption coverage Insurance coverage

may not be available in the future at current costs or on commercially reasonable terms and the insurance

proceeds received for any loss of or any damage to any of KCPLs or GMOs facilities may not be sufficient to

restore the loss or damage

These and other operating events may reduce Great Plains Energys and KCPLs revenues increase their costs

or both and may materially affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position

and cash flows

The cost and schedule of construction projects may materially change and expected performance may not

be achieved

KCPLs and GMOs businesses are capital intensive and require significant capital investments to maintain

existing facilities for projected environmental projects and to add new facilities including Jatan No an

estimated 850 MW of which electric utilitys share is 620 MW coal-fired generating plant The acquisition of

GMO by Great Plains Energy increases Great Plains Energys exposure to the risks associated with the ongoing

latan construction project The risks of any construction project include the possibilities that actual costs may
exceed current estimates delays may occur in obtaining permits and materials suppliers and contractors may not

perform as required under their contracts there may be inadequate availability or increased cost of qualified craft

labor the scope and timing of projects may change and that other events beyond KCPLs or GMOs control

may occur that may materially affect the schedule cost and performance of these projects

The demand for additional environmental control equipment has increased substantially with many utilities in the

United States starting similar projects to address changing environmental regulations This demand has

constrained labor and material resources for such projects and there is risk that such constraints may increase if

new laws or regulations including limitations on greenhouse gas emissions are imposed



These and other risks could materially increase the estimated costs of construction projects delay the in-service

dates of projects adversely affect the performance of the projects and/or require KCPL or GMO to purchase

additional electricity to supply their respective retail customers until the projects are completed KCPL and

GMO are not permitted to start recovering the costs of these projects until they are completed and put into

service Thus these risks may significantly affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations

financial position and cash flows

Failure of one or more generation plant co-owners to pay their share of construction operations and

maintenance costs could increase Great Plains Energys and KCPLs costs and capital requirements

KCPL owns 47% of Wolf Creek 50% of LaCygne Station 70% of latan No and 55% of latan No GMO
owns 18% of both latan units and 8% of Jeffrey Energy Center The remaining portions of these facilities are

owned by other utilities that are contractually obligated to pay their proportionate share of capital and other costs

and in the case of latan No construction costs

While the ownership agreements provide that defaulting co-owners share of the electricity generated can be

sold by the non-defaulting co-owners there is no assurance that the revenues received will recover the increased

costs borne by the non-defaulting co-owners The latan No co-owners have provided financial assurances

related to their respective construction cost obligations but there is risk that such assurances may not be

sufficient in the event of co-owner default During the construction period the latan No agreements provide

for re-allocations of part or all of defaulting co-owners share of the facility to the non-defaulting owners which

would increase the capital requirements operations and maintenance costs of the non-defaulting

owners Occurrence of these or other events could materially increase Great Plains Energys and KCPL costs

and capital requirements

An aging workforce and increasing demand for skilled craft labor poses operational and planning

challenges

Through 2012 approximately 22% of KCPL employees who manage both KCPL and GMO operations will

be eligible to retire with full pension benefits This is general industry issue which has increased the demand

for and cost of skilled craft labor for both companies and contractors KCPL and GMO use contractors for

substantial portion of their construction and maintenance work Failure to hire and adequately train replacement

employees including the transfer of significant internal historical knowledge and expertise to the new employees

or the future availability and cost of contract labor may adversely affect the ability to manage and operate Great

Plains Energys and KCPLs businesses

Commodity Price Risks

Changes in commodity prices could have an adverse effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results

of operations financial position and cash flows

KCPL and GMO engage in the wholesale and retail marketing of electricity and are exposed to risks associated

with the price of electricity KCPL and GMO generate purchase and sell electricity in the retail and wholesale

markets To the extent that exposure to the price of electricity is not successfully hedged Great Plains Energy

and KCPL could experience losses associated with the changing market price for electricity

Increases infuelfuel transportation and purchased power prices could have an adverse impact on

Great Plains Energys and KCPL costs

KCPLs Kansas retail rates contain an energy cost adjustment ECA mechanism KCPLs Missouri

retail rates do not contain similar provision GMOs retail electric rates contain fuel adjustment clause

mechanism under which 95% of the difference between actual fuel and purchased power costs and the

amount of fuel and purchased power costs provided in base rates is passed along to GMOs customers

GMOs steam rates contain quarterly cost adjustment under which 80% of the difference between actual

fuel costs and base fuel costs is passed along to GMOs steam customers As result KCPL and GMO
are exposed to varying degrees of risk from changes in the market prices of coal natural gas nuclear fuel
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and purchased power Changes in KCPLs or GMOs fuel mix due to electricity demand plant

availability transportation issues fuel prices fuel availability and other factors can also adversely affect

KCPLs or GMOs fuel and purchased power costs

KCPL and GMO do not hedge their respective entire exposure from fuel and transportation price

volatility Forward prices for coal have increased principally due to international demand and

management expects prices will continue to increase The majority of KCPLs and GMOs rail

transportation contracts expire in 2010 KCPL and GMO will pay tariff rates after 2010 which are

typically higher Management also expects the cost of nuclear fuel to increase significantly in

2010 Consequently Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and

cash flows may be materially impacted by changes in these prices until increased costs are recovered in

Missouri retail rates

Wholesale electricity sales affect revenues creating earnings volatility

The levels of KCPL and GMO wholesale sales depend on the wholesale market price transmission

availability and the availability of generation for wholesale sales among other factors substantial

portion of wholesale sales are made in the spot market and thus KCPL and GMO have immediate

exposure to wholesale price changes Wholesale power prices can be volatile and generally increase in

times of high regional demand and high natural
gas prices While an allocated portion of wholesale sales

are reflected in KCPLs Kansas ECA GMOs and KCPLs Missouri rates are set on an estimated

amount of wholesale sales KCPL and GMO will not recover any shortfall in non-firm wholesale

electric sales margin and for KCPL any amount above the level reflected in Missouri retail rates will be

returned to Missouri retail customers in future rate case Declines in wholesale market price or

availability of generation or transmission constraints in the wholesale markets could reduce KCPLs
and GMOs wholesale sales These events could adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs
results of operations financial position and cash flows

KCPL is exposed to risks associated with the ownership and operation of nuclear generating unit

which could result in an adverse effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs business and financial

results

KCPL owns 47% of Wolf Creek The NRC has broad authority under federal law to impose licensing and

safety-related requirements for the operation of nuclear generation facilities including Wolf Creek In the event

of non-compliance the NRC has the authority to impose fines shut down the facilities or both depending upon

its assessment of the severity of the situation until compliance is achieved Any revised safety requirements

promulgated by the NRC could result in substantial capital expenditures at Wolf Creek

Wolf Creek has the lowest fuel cost per MWh of any of KCPLs generating units An extended outage of Wolf

Creek whether resulting from NRC action an incident at the plant or otherwise could have substantial adverse

effect on KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows in the event KCPL incurs higher

replacement power and other costs that are not recovered through rates If long-term outage occurred the state

regulatory commissions could reduce rates by excluding the Wolf Creek investment from rate base

Ownership and operation of nuclear generating unit exposes KCPL to risks regarding decommissioning costs

at the end of the units life KCPL contributes annually to tax-qualified trust fund to be used to decommission

Wolf Creek The funding level assumes projected level of return on trust assets If the actual return on trust

assets is below the projected level KCPL could be responsible for the balance of funds required however
should this happen management believes rate increase would be allowed ensuring full recovery of

decommissioning costs over the remaining life of the unit
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KCPL is also exposed to other risks associated with the ownership and operation of nuclear generating unit

including but not limited to potential liability associated with the potential harmful effects on the environment

and human health resulting from the operation of nuclear generating unit and the storage handling and disposal

of radioactive materials and to potential retrospective assessments and losses in excess of insurance coverage

Any such risks could adversely affect Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows

Litigation Risks

The outcome of legal proceedings cannot be predicted An adverse finding could have material adverse

effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs financial condition

Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO are party to various material litigation and regulatory matters arising out

of their business operations The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined nor in many
cases can the liability that could potentially result from negative outcome in each case presently be reasonably

estimated The liability that Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO may ultimately incur with respect to any of

these cases in the event of negative outcome may be in excess of amounts currently reserved and insured against

with respect to such matters and as result these matters may have material adverse effect on Great Plains

Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

21



ITEM PROPERTIES

Electric Utility Generation Resources

Year Fstimated 2009 Primary

Unit Com1eted MW Capacity Fuel

Base Load WolfCreek 1985 545 Nuclear

latan No 1980 494 Coal

LaCygne No 1977 341 Coal

LaCygne No 1973 368 Coal

Hawthorn No 1969 563 Coal

Montrose No 1964 176 Coal

MontroseNo.2 1960 164 Coal

MontroseNo.1 1958 170 Coal

PeakLoad West lardnerNos l23and4 2003 308 NaturalGas

Osawatomie 2003 76 Natural Gas

Hawthorn No.9 2000 130 NaturalGas

Hawthorn No 2000 76 Natural Gas

Hawthorn No 2000 75 Natural Gas

Hawthorn No 1997 136 Natural Gas

Northeast Black Start Unit 1985 Oil

Northeast Nos 17 and 18 1977 109 Oil

Northeast Nos 13 and 14 1976 106 Oil

Northeast Nos 15 and 16 1975 99 Oil

Northeast Nos 11 and 12 1972 100 Oil

Wind Spearville Wind Energy Facility 2006 15 Wind

Total KCPL 4053

Base Load latan No 1980 127 Coal

Jeffiey Energy CenterNos l2and3 1978 1980 1983 174 Coal

Sibley Nos 12 and 1960 1962 1969 474 Coal

Lake Road Nos and 1957 1967 126 Coal and Natural Gas

PeakLoad South HarperNos l2and3 2005 315 NaturalGas

Crossroads Energy Center 2002 300 Natural Gas

Ralph Green No 1981 71 Natural Gas

Greenwood Nos and 1975-1979 253 Natural Gas/Oil

Lake Road No 1974 61 Natural Gas/Oil

Lake Road Nos and 1951 1962 33 Natural Gas/Oil

Lake Road Nos and 1989 1990 43 Oil

Nevada 1974 21 Oil

Total GMO 1998

Total Great Plains Energy 6051

Share of ajointly owned unit

The Hawthorn Generating Station returned to commercial operation in 2001 with new boiler air quality

control equipment and an uprated turbine following 1999 explosion

The 100.5 MW Spearville Wind Energy Facilitys accredited capacity is 15 MW pursuant to SPP reliability standards
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KCPL owns 50% of LaCygne Nos and 70% of latan No and 47% of Wolf Creek GMO owns 18% of

latan No and 8% of Jeffrey Energy Center Nos and See Note to the consolidated financial statements

for information regarding KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan and the construction of new generation

capacity

Electric Utility Transmission and Distribution Resources

Electric utilitys electric transmission system interconnects with systems of other utilities for reliability and to

permit wholesale transactions with other electricity suppliers Electric utility has over 3000 miles of transmission

lines approximately 17000 miles of overhead distribution lines and over 7000 miles of underground distribution

lines in Missouri and Kansas Electric utility has all the franchises necessary to sell electricity within its retail

service territory Electric utilitys transmission and distribution systems are continuously monitored for adequacy

to meet customer needs Management believes the current systems are adequate to serve customers

Electric Utility General

Electric utilitys principal plants and properties insofar as they constitute real estate are owned in fee simple

except for the Spearville Wind Energy Facility which is on land held under easements and the Crossroads Energy

Center which is contractually controlled Certain other facilities are located on premises held under leases

permits or easements Electric utilitys electric transmission and distribution systems are for the most part located

over or under highways streets other public places or property owned by others for which permits grants

easements or licenses deemed satisfactory but without examination of underlying land titles have been obtained

Substantially all of the fixed property and franchises of KCPL which consist principally of electric generating

stations electric transmission and distribution lines and systems and buildings subject to exceptions

reservations and releases are subject to General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated as of December

1986 Mortgage bonds totaling $158.8 million securing Environmental Improvement Revenue Refunding

EIRR bonds were outstanding at December 31 2008

Substantially all of the fixed property and franchises of GMOs St Joseph Light Power division is subject to

General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated as of April 1946 Mortgage bonds totaling $14.6 million

were outstanding at December 31 2008

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Other Proceedings

The companies are parties to various lawsuits and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of their respective

businesses For information regarding material lawsuits and proceedings see Notes 16 and 17 to the

consolidated financial statements Such descriptions are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Great Plains Energy common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol GXP At

February 23 2009 Great Plains Energys common stock was held by 30151 shareholders of record Information

relating to market prices and cash dividends on Great Plains Energys common stock is set forth in the following

table

Common Stock Price Range Common Stock

2008 2007 Dividends Declared

Quarter High Low High Low 2009 2008 2007

First 28.85 24.35 32.67 30.42 0.2075 0.415 0.415

Second 26.76 24.67 33.18 28.82 0.415 0.415

Third 26.20 21.92 29.94 26.99 0.415 0.415

Fourth 22.43 17.09 30.45 28.32 0.415 0.415

Based on closing stock prices

Declared February 10 2009 and payable March 20 2009 to shareholders of record as of February 27 2009

Regulatory Restrictions

Under stipulations with the MPSC and KCC Great Plains Energy has committed to maintain consolidated

common equity of not less than 30% of total capitalization

Dividend Restrictions

Great Plains Energys Articles of Incorporation contain certain restrictions on the payment of dividends on Great

Plains Energys common stock in the event common equity falls to 25% of total capitalization If preferred stock

dividends are not declared and paid when scheduled Great Plains Energy could not declare or pay common stock

dividends or purchase any common shares If the unpaid preferred stock dividends equal four or more full

quarterly dividends the preferred shareholders voting as single class could elect members to the Board of

Directors

Equity Compensation Plans

Great Plains Energys Long-Term Incentive Plan is an equity compensation plan approved by its shareholders

The Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the grant of restricted stock stock options limited stock appreciation

rights director shares director deferred share units and performance shares to directors officers and other

employees of the Company and KCPL

Effective with the July 14 2008 acquisition of GMO Great Plains Energy assumed GMOs equity compensation

plans Stock options outstanding under those plans at the time of acquisition were converted into Great Plains

Energy stock options Great Plains Energy does not intend to issue any new grants or awards under the assumed

plans
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The following table provides information as of December 31 2008 regarding the number of common shares to

be issued upon exercise of outstanding options warrants and rights their weighted average exercise price and the

number of shares of common stock remaining available for future issuance The table excludes shares issued or

issuable under Great Plains Energys defined contribution savings plans

Number of securities

remaining available

Number ofsecurities for future issuance

to be issued upon Weighted-awrage under equity

exercise of exercise price of compensation plans

outstanding options outstanding options excluding securities

varrants and rights varrants and rights reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders

Great Plains Energy Long-Term Incentive Plan 423983 25.52 3284689

GMO incentive plans stock options 411357 89.55 416146

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total 835340 76.10 3700835

Includes 314511 performance shares at target performance levels and options for 109472 shares of Great Plains Energy common

stock outstanding at December 31 2008

The 314511 performance shares have no exercise price and therefore are not reflected in the weighted average exercise price

Purchases of equity securities

There were no purchases by Great Plains Energy of its equity securities during the fourth quarter of 2008

KCPL
KCPL is wholly owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy which holds the one share of issued and

outstanding KCPL common stock

Regulatory Restrictions

Under the Federal Power Act KCPL can pay dividends only out of retained or current earnings Under

stipulations with the MPSC and KCC KCPL has committed to maintain consolidated common equity of not

less than 35% of total capitalization

Equity Compensation Plan

KCPL does not have an equity compensation plan however KCPL officers and certain employees participate

in Great Plains Energys Long-Term Incentive Plan The GMO incentive plans that were assumed by Great

Plains Energy upon the acquisition include stock options held by certain KCPL employees

25



ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31

Great Plains Energy

Operating revenues

Income from continuing operations

Net income

Basic earnings per common

share from continuing operations

Basic earnings per common share

Diluted earnings per common

share from continuing operations

Diluted earnings per common share

Total assets at year end

Total redeemable preferred stock mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities and long-

term debt including current maturities

Cash dividends per common share

SEC ratio ofeamines to fixed charees

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

1670 1293 1140 1131 1092

120 121 137 135 132

155 159 128 162 183

1.16 1.41 1.74 1.79 1.81

1.51 1.86 1.62 2.15 2.51

1.16 1.40 1.73 1.79 1.81

1.51 1.85 1.61 2.15 2.51

7869 4832 4359 3842 3796

2627 1103 1142 1143 1296

1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66 1.66

2.26 2.53 3.50 3.09 2.77

Great Plains Energys results include GMO only from the July 14 2008 acquisition date

This amount is before income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes of $35.0 million $38.3 million $9 million

$27.2 million and $50.3 million in 2008 through 2004 respectively

dollars in millions except per share amounts

KCPL
Operating revenues 1343 1293 1140 1131 1092

Net income 125 157 149 144 145

Total assets at year end 5229 4292 3859 3340 3335

Total redeemable preferred stock mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities and long-

term debt including current maturities 1377 1003 977 976 1126

SEC ratio ofearnings to fixed charges 2.87 3.53 4.11 3.87 3.37

26



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Description of Business

Great Plains Energy is public utility holding company and does not own or operate any significant assets other

than the stock of its subsidiaries Great Plains Energys direct subsidiaries are KCPL GMO KLT Inc and

Services Great Plains Energy acquired GMO on July 14 2008 Great Plains Energys sole reportable business

segment is electric utility for the periods presented As presented herein for periods prior to 2008 Great Plains

Energys electric utility segment is the same as the previously reported KCPL segment

Electric utility consists of KCPL regulated utility and GMO regulated utility operations which include its

Missouri Public Service and St Joseph Light Power divisions Electric utility has over 6000 MWs of

generating capacity and engages in the generation transmission distribution and sale of electricity to over

820000 customers in the states of Missouri and Kansas Electric utilitys retail electricity rates are below the

national average of investor-owned utilities KCPLs nuclear unit Wolf Creek accounts for approximately

15% of electric utilitys base load capacity In November 2008 the NRC approved WCNOCs application for

new operating license for Wolf Creek extending its operating period from 2025 to 2045

2008 Earnings Overview

Great Plains Energys 2008 earnings were $152.9 million or $1.51 per share including income of $35.0 million

from the discontinued operations of Strategic Energy and income of $12.5 million from GMO after its acquisition

For 2007 earnings were $157.6 million or $1.85 per diluted share including income of $38.3 million from the

discontinued operations of Strategic Energy Earnings in 2008 were favorably impacted by the acquisition of

GMO new retail rates at KCPL and an increase in Allowance for Funds Used During Construction AFUDC
These favorable impacts were more than offset by mild summer weather decrease in wholesale sales and

increased fuel purchased power and operating expenses at KCPL

Strategic Focus

In 2008 Great Plains Energy refocused the company on its core regulated utility business Great Plains Energy
sold Strategic Energy its major non-regulated business acquired GMO continued to make progress on the

Comprehensive Energy Plan and filed requests for retail rate increases These items are described in more detail

as follows

Sale of Strategic Energy Discontinued Operations

In April 2008 the Board of Directors approved managements recommendation to sell Strategic Energy
and Great Plains Energy entered into an agreement with Direct Energy Services LLC Direct Energy

subsidiary of Centrica plc under which Direct Energy acquired all of Great Plains Energys interest in

Strategic Energy On June 2008 Great Plains Energy completed the sale of Strategic Energy

Strategic Energy is reported as discontinued operations for the periods presented See Note 24 to the

consolidated financial statements for additional information

GMO Acquisition

On July 14 2008 Great Plains Energy closed its acquisition of GMO On October 17 2008 GMO
changed its name from Aquila Inc to KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company Prior GMO
shareholders received $1.80 in cash plus 0.085 of share of Great Plains Energy common stock for each

share of GMO common stock The total purchase price of the acquisition was approximately $1.7 billion

Immediately prior to Great Plains Energys acquisition of GMO Black Hills Corporation Black Hills

acquired GMOs electric utility assets in Colorado and its gas utility assets in Colorado Kansas Nebraska

and Iowa See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information
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Comprehensive Energy Plan latan No environmental and latan No

In the first quarter of 2009 KCPL completed construction of the latan No environmental project

and latan common facilities KCPLs share of the total projected cost excluding AFUDC is in the

table below and includes KCPLs 70% share of costs directly associated with latan No and

KCPLs 61% share of estimated costs of latan common facilities that will be used by both latan

No and latan No The vast majority of the common facilities costs were previously included in

the latan No cost estimates disclosed in the Companys quarterly reports on Form l0-Q during

2008 Great Plains Energys total share of latan No is 88% which consists of KCPLs 70%

share and GMOs 18% share Great Plains Energys total share of latan common facilities is 79%
which consists of KCPLs 61% share and GMOs 18% share Great Plains Energys share of the

total projected cost excluding AFUDC of the latan No environmental project and latan common

facilities is in the table below

Jatan No has been off-line for scheduled outage since mid-October 2008 for unit overhaul and

to tie in the environmental equipment latan No was originally scheduled to be back on-line in

February 2009 but during start-up high level of vibration was experienced Repairs to the turbine

could delay the in-service date of latari No by up to two months Management believes that

delay of that duration could still be accommodated in the current KCPL and GMO rate cases

however there could be corresponding delay in the effective date of the MPSC rate orders from the

current August 2009 date Management is unable to predict the length of such delay if any

KCPLs approximate 55% share of the total projected cost of latan No excluding AFUDC is in

the table below The reduction in the range from the previously disclosed latan No cost estimates

reflects removal of costs for common facilities discussed above These costs were previously

included in the latan No cost estimates disclosed in the Companys quarterly reports on Form 10-

during 2008 Great Plains Energys total share of latan No is 73% which consists of KCPLs
55% share and GMOs 18% share Great Plains Energys 73% share of the total projected cost

excluding AFUDC of latan No is in the table below The anticipated in-service date for latan No
is the summer of 2010

KCPL
Current Estimate Previous Estimate

Range Range Change

millions

Iatan No 70% share 242 262 330 350 88 88
latan No 255% share 847 904 994 1051 147 147

latan Common 61% share 235 235 235 235

Total 1324 1401 1324 1401

Great Plains Energy

Current Estimate Previous Estimate

Range Range Change

millions

latan No 88% share 307 332 415 440 108 108

latan No 273% share 1125 1201 1321 1397 196 196

latan Common 79% share 304 304 304 304

Total 1736 1837 1736 1837
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Regulatory Proceedings

KCPL filed requests for annual retail rate increases with the MPSC and KCC in the third quarter of

2008 to include its interest in the latan No environmental project in rate base and to recover overall

increased costs of service GMO filed requests for annual retail rate increases with the MPSC in the third

quarter of 2008 to include its interest in the latan No environmental project and other capital additions

in rate base and to recover overall increased costs of service Any authorized changes to retail rates are

expected to be effective in the third quarter of 2009 The following table details the rate increases

requested by both KCPL and GMO by jurisdiction

Annual Rewnue Increase

Additional Return Rate-making

Rate Jurisdiction flIe Date Traditional Amortization Total on Ratio

millions

GMO MPS 9/5/2008 66.0 66.0 10.75% 53.82%

GMOLP 9/5/2008 17.1 17.1 10.75% 53.82%

GMO Steam 9/5/2008 1.3 1.3 10.75% 53.82%

KCPLMO 9/5/2008 86.4 15.1 101.5 10.75% 53.82%

KCPLKS 9/5/2008 60.4 11.2 71.6 10.75% 55.39%

Total 231.2 26.3 257.5

Rate Jurisdiction Areas

GMO MPS Represents the area served by GMOs Missouri Public Service division

GtvIO LP Represents the area served by GMOs St Joseph Light Power division

GMO Steam GMO steam customers in the St Joseph Missouri area

KCPL MO KCPL Missouri customers not in former Aquila service territory

KCPLKS KCPLKansas customers

The anunts in this column reflect the revenue requirements calculated using the traditional rate case

methodologies which exclude additional amortization amounts to help maintain cash flow levels

Excludes amounts recovered through KCPLs Kansas ECA and most of CIMOs FAC and QCA

In February 2009 the MPSC and KCC staffs filed their respective testimony regarding the requests for annual

rate increases filed by KCPL and GMO The following table details the rate increases recommended by the

MPSC and KCC staffs by KCPL and GMO jurisdiction

Annual Rewnue Increase

Additional Return Rate-making

Rate Jurisdiction Traditional Amortization Total on Equity Equity Ratio

millions

CIMO MPS 46.0 46.0 9.75% 1.03%

OMO LP 22.8 22.8 9.75% 1.03%

OMO Steam 1.0 1.0 9.75% 51.03%

KCPL MO 45.2 45.2 9.75% 50.65%

KCPLKS 42.6 11.2 53.8 11.40% 50.76%

Total 157.6 11.2 168.8

Annual revenue increase and return on equity based on the mid-point of MPSC staffs return on

equity range

Amount not included in the MPSC staffs February 2009 testimony but will be included in the

second quarter 2009 true up
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2009 Outlook

In 2009 electric utility is expected to have lower retail demand than in 2008 as result of the slowing economy

assuming normal weather conditions If the current economic downturn continues or worsens overall electricity

MWh sales may continue to decline and/or bad debt expense may increase which could materially affect Great

Plains Energys results of operations financial position and cash flows Electric utilitys retail rates for GMO and

in Kansas for KCPL are covered by fuel recovery mechanisms which are described under the heading Electric

Utility Results of Operations KCPL Missouri retail rates do not include fuel recovery mechanism

meaning changes in costs will not be reflected in rates until new rates are authorized by regulators This

regulatory lag between the time costs change and when they are reflected in rates applies to all costs other than

those included in fuel recovery
mechanisms In the current rising cost environment regulatory lag can be

expected to have an adverse impact on Great Plains Energys results of operations Additionally continuing

instability in the capital and credit markets have adversely affected and could continue to adversely affect Great

Plains Energys access to and cost of capital

In response to these trends management has taken the following measures

eliminated or deferred capital spending in 2009 and 2010

tightly managing operations and maintenance expense

freezing external hiring for all but essential skills and

reduced the common stock dividend by 50% from an annual level of $1.66 per
share to $0.83 per share

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding related party transactions

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding environmental matters

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures

Management considers an accounting estimate to be critical if it requires assumptions to be made that were

uncertain at the time the estimate was made and changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have

been used could have material impact on Great Plains Energys results of operations and financial position

Management has identified the following accounting policies as critical to the understanding of Great Plains

Energys results of operations and financial position Management has discussed the development and selection

of these critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Pensions

Great Plains Energy and KCPL incur significant costs in providing non-contributory defined pension benefits

The costs are measured using actuarial valuations that are dependent upon numerous factors derived from actual

plan experience and assumptions of future plan experience

Pension costs are impacted by actual employee demographics including age life expectancies compensation

levels and employment periods earnings on plan assets the level of contributions made to the plan and plan

amendments In addition pension costs are also affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions including

anticipated rates of return on plan assets and the discount rates used in determining the projected benefit

obligation and pension costs
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The assumed rate of return on plan assets was developed based on the weighted average of long-term returns

forecast for the expected portfolio mix of investments held by the plan The assumed discount rate was selected

based on the prevailing market rate of fixed income debt instruments with maturities matching the expected

timing of the benefit obligation These assumptions updated annually at the measurement date are based on

managements best estimates and judgment however material changes may occur if these assumptions differ

from actual events See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for infonnation regarding the

assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net costs

The following table reflects the sensitivities associated with 0.5% increase or 0.5% decrease in key actuarial

assumptions Each sensitivity reflects the impact of the change based on change in that assumption only

Impact on Impact on

Projected 2008

Change in Benefit Pension

Actuarial assumption Assumption Obligation Expense

millions

Discount rate 0.5% increase 49.0 4.3
Rate of return on plan assets 0.5% increase 2.0
Discount rate 0.5% decrease 52.3 4.4

Rate of return on plan assets 0.5% decrease 2.0

Pension expense for KCPL is recorded in accordance with rate orders from the MPSC and KCC The orders

allow the difference between pension costs under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 87
Employers Accounting for Pensions and SFAS No 88 Employers Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits and pension costs for ratemaking to

be recorded as regulatory asset or liability with future ratemaking recovery or refunds as appropriate KCPL
recorded 2008 pension expense of $33 million after allocations to the other joint owners of generating facilities

and capitalized amounts in accordance with the 2007 MPSC and KCC rate orders

GMO records pension expense in accordance with rate orders from the MPSC The difference between this

expense and SFAS No 87 expense is recorded as regulatory asset or liability See Note 10 to the consolidated

financial statements for additional discussion of the accounting for pensions

Market conditions and interest rates significantly affect the future assets and liabilities of the plan It is difficult to

predict future pension costs changes in pension liability and cash funding requirements due to volatile market

conditions

Regulatory Matters

Electric utility is subject to the provisions of SFAS No 71 Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of

Regulation Accordingly Great Plains Energy and KCPL have recorded assets and liabilities on their

consolidated balance sheets resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process which would not otherwise be

recorded under GAAP Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that are probable of
recovery from future

revenues Regulatory liabilities represent amounts imposed by rate actions of electric utilitys regulators that

may require refunds to customers amounts provided in current rates that are intended to recover costs that are

expected to be incurred in the future for which electric utility remains accountable or gain or other reduction of

allowable costs to be given to customers over future periods Future recovery of regulatory assets is not assured
but is generally subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for matters such as prudence and

reasonableness Future reductions in revenue or refunds for regulatory liabilities generally are not mandated

pending future rate proceedings or actions by the regulators
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Management regularly assesses whether regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future recovery or refund

by considering factors such as decisions by the MPSC KCC or FERC on electric utilitys rate case filings

decisions in other regulatory proceedings including decisions related to other companies that establish precedent

on matters applicable to electric utility and changes in laws and regulations If recovery or refund of regulatory

assets or liabilities is not approved by regulators or is no longer deemed probable these regulatory assets or

liabilities are recognized in the current period results of operations Electric utilitys continued ability to meet the

criteria for application of SFAS No 71 may be affected in the future by restructuring and deregulation in the

electric industry In the event that SFAS No 71 no longer applied to deregulated portion of electric utilitys

operations the related regulatory assets and liabilities would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory

recovery
mechanism is provided Additionally these factors could result in an impairment on utility plant assets

as determined pursuant to SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Impairments of Assets Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Long-lived assets and intangible assets subject to amortization are periodically reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable as

prescribed under SFAS No 144

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently when indicators of impairment exist as

prescribed under SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets SFAS No 142 requires that if the fair

value of reporting unit is less than its carrying value including goodwill the implied fair value of the reporting

unit goodwill must be compared with its carrying value to determine the amount of impairment Great Plains

Energy allocates goodwill from the GMO acquisition to KCPL and GMO reporting units for impairment testing

based upon the percentage of synergies expected from each reporting unit

Impairment analyses require management to make assumptions about future sales operating costs and discount

rates over the life of the related asset or in some cases over an indefinite life Potential impairment indicators

include such factors as current period losses combined with history of losses or projection of continuing

losses or significant decrease in the market price of the asset under review Managements assumptions about

these factors require significant judgment and under different assumptions the fair value of an asset could be

materially different

Accounting standards require company to recognize an impairment in the current period results of operations if

the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from the companys asset is less than the carrying value

of the asset The impairment recognized is the difference between the fair value and canying value of the asset

During the fourth quarter of 2008 extraordinary levels of volatility and disruption in the stock market resulted in

Great Plains Energys equity securities trading at stock price below carrying value Management concluded that

the fair value of the Company supported the GMO acquisition goodwill However there can be no assurance that

continued market volatility with declines of extended duration and severity will not trigger impairment testing in

the future which could result in an impairment of goodwill prospectively

Derivative Accounting

MPS Merchants long-term natural gas contracts that qualify as derivatives under SFAS No 133 Accounting

for Derivative and Hedging Activities are recorded under the mark-to-market method of accounting MPS

Merchants portfolio consists of natural gas contracts that are settled by the delivery of the commodity or cash

The market prices or fair values used in determining the value of MPS Merchants portfolio are managements

best estimates utilizing information such as closing exchange rates over-the-counter quotes historical volatility

and the potential impact on market prices of liquidating positions in an orderly manner over reasonable amount

of time under current market conditions As additional information becomes available or actual amounts are

determinable the recorded estimates are revised As result operating results can be affected by revisions to

prior accounting estimates
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The fair value of these derivative contracts are recorded as current or long-term derivative assets or liabilities

Changes in market prices will affect the recorded fair value of contracts Natural gas market prices vary
based

upon number of factors Changes in the fair value of contracts will affect earnings in the period of the change
for contracts under fair value accounting while changes in forward market prices related to contracts under

accrual accounting will affect earnings in future periods to the extent those prices are realized

Derivative liabilities are discounted using the Companys credit standing versus the receivable side of these

transactions which are discounted based on the counterparties credit standings As these spreads narrow non-

cash mark-to-market losses are recorded as they widen non-cash mark-to-market gains are recorded These

gains and losses can fluctuate if the Companys credit or the credit of group of counterparties deteriorates or

improves significantly

Management cannot predict whether or to what extent the factors affecting market prices may change but those

changes could be material and could be either favorable or unfavorable

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset/liability approach in accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting
for Income Taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the temporary differences between

the financial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities applying enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the

year in which the differences are expected to reverse Deferred investment tax credits are amortized ratably over

the life of the related property Deferred tax assets are also recorded for net operating loss capital loss and tax

credit carryforwards The Company is required to estimate the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the

current year and the deferred tax liabilities and assets for future tax consequences of events reflected in the

Companys consolidated financial statements or tax returns This process requires management to make
assessments regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact The Company records valuation

allowances on deferred tax assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the asset will not be

realized

Additionally the Company establishes reserves for uncertain tax positions based upon managements judgment

regarding potential future challenges to those positions in accordance with FASB Interpretation FIN No 48

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income

Taxes Interest related to unrecognized tax benefits is recognized in interest expense and penalties are

recognized as non-operating expense The accounting estimates related to the liability for uncertain tax

positions require management to make judgments regarding the sustainability of each uncertain tax position based

on its technical merits If it is determined that it is more likely than not tax position will be sustained based on

its technical merits the impact of the position is recorded in the Companys consolidated financial statements at

the largest amount that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement These

estimates are updated at each reporting date based on the facts circumstances and information available

Management is also required to assess at each reporting date whether it is reasonably possible that any significant

increases or decreases to the unrecognized tax benefits will occur during the next twelve months See Note 22 to

the consolidated financial statements for additional information
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes Great Plains Energys comparative results of operations GMO results of

operations are only included from the date of the acquisition July 14 2008 through December 31 2008

2008 2007 2006

millions

Operating revenues 1670.1 1292.7 1140.4

Fuel 311.4 245.5 229.5

Purchased power 208.9 101.0 26.4

Other operating expenses 639.8 523.0 462.7

Skill set realignment deferral costs 8.9 9.4

Depreciation and amortization 235.0 175.6 152.7

Operating income 275.0 256.5 259.7

Non-operating income and expenses 21.1 3.2 9.3

Interest charges 111.3 91.9 70.1

Income tax expense 63.8 44.9 60.3

Minority interest in subsidiaries 0.2

Loss from equity investments 1.3 2.0 1.9

hicome fromcontinuing operations 119.5 120.9 136.7

Income loss from discontinued operations 35.0 38.3 9.1

Net income 154.5 159.2 127.6

Preferred dividends 1.6 1.6 1.6

Earnings available for common shareholders 152.9 157.6 126.0

2008 compared to 2007

Great Plains Energys 2008 earnings available for common shareholders decreased to $152.9 million or $1.51 per

share from $157.6 million or $1.85 per diluted share in 2007 higher number of common shares primarily due

to the issuance of 32.2 million shares for the acquisition of GMO diluted 2008 earnings per
share by $0.28

Electric utilitys net income decreased $13.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007 This decrease was primarily due

to mild summer weather decrease in wholesale sales higher fuel costs higher purchased power prices and

planned and unplanned plant outages which led to increased operating expenses at KCPL Also in 2007

KCPL received authorization from the MPSC and KCC to defer $8.9 million of skill set realignment costs

incurred in 2006 resulting in lower
expenses

in 2007 Partially offsetting these decreases were increased retail

revenues primarily due to new retail rates at KCPL effective January 2008 and an increase in AFUDC at

KCPL The acquisition of GMO increased electric utilitys net income $17.9 million

Great Plains Energys corporate and other activities loss from continuing operations decreased $12.3 million in

2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to $3.4 million of after-tax income related to the release of legal reserve

described in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements the reversal of $3.6 million of after-tax interest

expense related to unrecognized tax benefits $3.8 million after-tax favorable impact from the deferral in 2008

of merger transition costs incurred in 2007 to regulatory asset and $4.6 million after-tax change in the fair

value of Forward Starting Swaps FSS The acquisition of GMO increased Great Plains Energys corporate and

other activities loss $5.4 million

2007 compared to 2006

Great Plains Energys 2007 earnings available for common shareholders increased to $157.6 million or $1.85 per

diluted share from $126.0 million or $1.61 per
diluted share in 2006 higher number of common shares

primarily due to the issuance of 5.2 million shares to the holders of FELINE PRIDESSM in February 2007 and 5.2

million shares in May 2006 diluted 2007 earnings per share by $0.17
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Electric utilitys net income increased $7.2 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due to increased retail and

wholesale revenues which more than offset the impact of planned and unplanned outages during the first half of

the year that lead to increased fuel purchased power and operating expenses Additionally in 2006 KCPL
recorded $9.3 million of skill set realignment costs and in 2007 received authorization from the MPSC and KCC
to defer $8.9 million of these costs to be amortized in future years

Great Plains Energys corporate and other activities recognized an additional $23.0 million net loss in 2007

compared to 2006 which was primarily attributable to decline in available tax credits from affordable housing
investments and overall higher expenses at the holding company including $11.7 million of transition costs

related to the anticipated acquisition of GMO and $10.3 million after-tax loss for the fair value of FSS entered

into by Great Plains Energy during 2007

ELECTRIC UTILITY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the electric utility segment results of operations

2008 2007 2006

millions

Operating revenues 1670.1 1292.7 $1140.4

Fuel 311.4 245.5 229.5

Purchased power 209.9 101.0 26.4
Other operating expenses 624.2 500.4 451.5

Skill set realignment deferral costs 8.9 9.3
Depreciation and amortization 235.0 175.6 152.7

Operating income 289.6 279.1 271.0

Non-operating income and expenses 21.3 4.2 11.1

Interest charges 96.9 67.2 60.9
Income tax expense 70.9 59.3 71.6

Net income 143.1 156.8 149.6

Electric utilitys residential customers usage is significantly affected by weather Bulk power sales the major

component of wholesale sales vary
with system requirements generating unit and purchased power availability

fuel costs and requirements of other electric systems Electric utilitys revenues contain certain fuel
recovery

mechanisms as follows

KCPLs Kansas retail rates effective January 2008 contain an ECA tariff The ECA tariff reflects

the projected annual amount of fuel purchased power emission allowances transmission costs and asset-

based off-system sales margin These projected amounts are subject to quarterly re-forecasts Any
difference between the ECA revenue collected and the actual ECA amounts for given year which may
be positive or negative is recorded as an increase to or reduction of retail revenues and deferred as

regulatory asset or liability to be recovered from or refunded to Kansas retail customers over twelve

months beginning April of the succeeding year

GMOs electric retail rates contain FAC under which 95% of the difference between actual fuel and

purchased power costs and the amount of fuel and purchased power costs provided in base rates is passed

along to GMOs customers The FAC cycle consists of an accumulation period of six months beginning

in June and December FAC rate approval is requested every six months for twelve month recovery

period The FAC is recorded as an increase to or reduction of retail revenues and deferred as regulatory

asset or liability to be recovered from or refunded to GMOs electric retail customers

GMOs steam rates contain Quarterly Cost Adjustment QCA under which 80% of the difference

between actual fuel costs and base fuel costs is passed along to GMOs steam customers The QCA is
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recorded as an increase to or reduction of other revenues and deferred as regulatory asset or liability to

be recovered from or refunded to GMOs steam customers

KCPLs Missouri retail rates do not contain similar adjustment mechanism meaning that changes in costs will

not be reflected in rates until new rates are authorized by the MPSC This regulatory lag between the time costs

change and when they are reflected in rates applies to all costs not included in fuel recovery
mechanisms as

described above In the current rising cost environment regulatory lag can be expected to have an adverse impact

on Great Plains Energys results of operations

Generation fuel mix can substantially change the fuel cost per
MWh generated Generation fuel mix can be

significantly impacted by planned and unplanned plant outages Nuclear fuel cost per
MWh generated is

substantially less than the cost of coal per
MWh generated which is significantly lower than the cost of natural

gas
and oil per MWh generated The cost per

MWh for purchased power is generally significantly higher than the

cost per MWh of coal and nuclear generation Electric utility continually evaluates its system requirements the

availability of generating units its demand-side management and efficiency programs availability and cost of

fuel supply and purchased power and the requirements of other electric systems to provide reliable power

economically

Electric Utility Revenues and MWh Sales

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

Retail revenues millions

Residential 605.5 NM 433.8 13 384.3

Commercial 620.7 NM 492.1 11 442.6

Industrial 142.2 NM 106.8 99.8

Other retail revenues 13.3 NM 9.9 12 8.8

Provision for rate refund excess Missouri

wholesale margin 2.9 NM 1.1 NA

Fuel recovery mechanismunder recovery 30.7 NM NA

Total retail 1409.5 NM 1041.5 11 935.5

Wholesale revenues 230.1 NM 234.0 23 190.4

Other revenues 30.5 NM 17.2 19 14.5

Total revenues 1670.1 NM 1292.7 13 1140.4

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

RetailMWh sales thousands

Residential 7047 NM 5597 5413

Commercial 9227 NM 7737 7403

Industrial 2721 NM 2161 2148

Other retailMWh sales 94 NM 92 86

Total retail 19089 NM 15587 15050

Wholesale MWh sales 5237 NM 5635 21 4676

TotalMWh sales 24326 NM 21222 19726

Not meaningful due to the acquisition ofGMO on July 14 2008

Retail revenues increased $368.0 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The acquisition of GMO increased retail

revenue $306.2 million New retail rates effective January 2008 at KCPL also increased retail revenue

These increases were partially offset by mild summer weather in 2008 with 27% decrease in cooling degree

days
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Retail revenues increased $106.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to new retail rates effective

January 2007 growth in the number of customers and higher usage per customer In addition favorable

weather in 2007 with 22% increase in heating degree days partially offset by 5% decrease in cooling degree

days contributed to the increase in retail revenue

The following table provides cooling degree days CDD and heating degree days HDD for the last three years

at the Kansas City International Airport CDD and HDD are used to reflect the demand for energy to cool or heat

homes and buildings

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

CDD 1196 27 1637 1724

HDD 5590 14 4925 22 4052

Wholesale revenues decreased $3.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to an 11% decrease in wholesale MWh
sales resulting from less generation at KCPL due to plant outages This decrease was partially offset by 9%
increase in the average market price power per MWh to $46.34 primarily due to higher natural

gas prices The

acquisition of GMO increased wholesale revenues $8.6 million

Wholesale revenues increased $43.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due to 21% increase in wholesale MWh
sales resulting from increased generation due to greater plant availability in the second half of the year

Electric Utility Fuel and Purchased Power

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

Net MWhs Generated by Fuel Type thousands

Coal 16793 NM 14894 15056

Nuclear 3994 18 4873 11 4395

Natural gas and oil 486 NMa 544 5M
Wind 419 38 305 NM 106

Total Generation 21692 NM 20616 20121

Not meaningful due to the acquisition of GMO on July 14 2008

KCPLs coal base load equivalent availability factor for 2008 decreased to 78% from 80% in 2007 and from

83% in 2006 GMOs coal base load equivalent availability factor since the July 14 2008 acquisition was 66%
which was negatively impacted by scheduled plant outages in the last half of 2008

KCPLs nuclear unit Wolf Creek accounts for approximately 15% of electric utilitys base load capacity Wolf

Creeks latest refueling outage began on March 20 2008 and there were several increases in work scope during

the outage that extended the restart until May 14 2008 primary driver of the work scope increases was

modifications to piping systems associated with the emergency core cooling systems As result of the outage
the capacity and equivalent availability factor for Wolf Creek decreased to 83% in 2008 compared to 100% for

2007

Fuel expense increased $65.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The acquisition of GMO increased fuel expense
$58.1 million The remaining increase was at KCPL primarily due to higher coal and coal transportation costs

and less nuclear in the fuel mix which has lower cost compared to other fuel types These increases were

partially offset by decreased MWhs generated by KCPL primarily due to lower system requirements
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Fuel expense increased $16.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to higher coal and coal

transportation costs and 2% increase in MWhs generated excluding wind generation which has no fuel cost

This increase was partially offset by changes in the fuel mix with more nuclear and less coal and natural gas in the

fuel mix

Purchased power expense increased $108.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The acquisition of GMO
increased purchased power expense $90.9 million The remaining increase at KCPL was primarily due to

26% increase in the average price per MWh as result of higher natural gas prices Additionally an 8% increase

in MWh purchases primarily due to the impact of the Wolf Creek refueling outage increased purchased power

expense These increases were partially offset by $6.9 million in recoveries from litigation settlement regarding

2005 transformer failure

Purchased power expense increased $74.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to 240% increase in

MWh purchases to support increased retail load the impact of planned and unplanned outages in the first half of

2007 and increased purchases for resale to satisfy firm wholesale MWh sales commitments when it was more

economical to purchase power rather than delivering MWhs generated at KCPLs plants This increase was

slightly offset by 10% decrease in the average price per
MWh

Electric Utility Other Operating Expenses including utility operating expenses maintenance general taxes

and other

Electric utilitys other operating expenses increased $123.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to the

following

the acquisition of GMO increased operating expenses $95.9 million

increased plant operations and maintenance expenses
of $12.2 million due to plant outages

increased employee-related costs of $5.5 million

increased property taxes of $3.0 million due to higher assessments and higher mill levies and

increased gross receipts tax expense of $2.1 million due to the increase in revenues

Electric utilitys other operating expenses increased $48.9 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to the

following

increased pension expenses of $18.4 million due to the increased level of pension costs in KCPLs rates

effective January 2007

increased plant operations and maintenance
expenses

of $9.7 million primarily due to planned and

unplanned outages in the first half of 2007 and the addition of the Spearville Wind Energy Facility in the

third quarter of 2006

increased transmission expenses
of $7.7 million primarily due to increased transmission

usage charges as

result of the increased wholesale MWh sales and higher SPP fees

increased gross receipts tax expense of $3.6 million due to the increase in revenues

increased labor expense of $2.8 million primarily due to filling open positions

increased equity compensation expense of $1.9 million and

increased property taxes of $1.6 million primarily due to increases in mill levies

Partially offsetting the increases in other operating expenses was decreased incentive compensation expense of

$5.7 million
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Electric Utility Skill Set Realignment

In 2005 and early 2006 management undertook
process to assess improve and reposition the skill sets of

employees for implementation of KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan KCPL recorded $9.3 million in 2006

related to this workforce realignment process reflecting severance benefits and related payroll taxes provided byKCPL to employees In 2007 KCPL received authorization from the MPSC and KCC to establish $8.9

million in regulatory assets for these costs and amortize them over five years for the Missouri jurisdictional

portion and ten years for the Kansas jurisdictional portion effective with new rates on January 2008

Electric Utility Depreciation and Amortization

Electric utilitys depreciation and amortization costs increased $59.4 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The

acquisition of GMO increased depreciation and amortization $30.7 million The remaining increase at KCPL
was primarily due to additional amortization pursuant to rate case orders of $21.7 million combined with normal

depreciation activity for capital additions

Electric utilitys depreciation and amortization costs increased $22.9 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily
due to additional amortization pursuant to 2006 rate case orders of $11.9 million and $4.5 million increase due
to wind generation assets placed in service in the third quarter of 2006

Electric Utility Non-Operating Income and Expenses
Electric utilitys non-operating income and

expenses increased $17.1 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The

acquisition of GMO increased non-operating income and expenses $2.1 million The remaining increase at

KCPL was primarily due to an increase in the equity component of AFUDC resulting from higher

construction work in progress balance due to Comprehensive Energy Plan projects

Electric Utility Interest Charges

Electric utilitys interest charges increased $29.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The acquisition of GMO
increased interest charges $24.6 million The remaining increase at KCPL was primarily due to interest on
$350.0 million of 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes issued in March 2008 partially offset by an increase in the debt

component of AFUDC resulting from higher construction work in progress balance due to Comprehensive

Energy Plan projects

Electric utilitys interest charges increased $6.3 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due to an increase in short-term

borrowings to support expenditures related to KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan

Electric Utility Income Tax Expense

Electric utilitys income tax expense increased $11.6 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The acquisition of GMO
increased income taxes $11.1 million The remaining increase was primarily due to an increase of $20.3 million

as result of an increase in the composite tax rate reflecting the sale of Strategic Energy mostly offset by
decreased pre-tax income and increased wind credits See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for

reconciliation of effective income tax rates for the periods

Electric utilitys income tax expense decreased $12.3 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to $4.1

million of wind credits and $7.3 million increase in the allocation of tax benefits from holding company losses

pursuant to Great Plains Energys intercompany tax allocation agreement
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY SIGNIFICANT BALANCE SHEET CHANGES December 31 2008

compared to December 31 2007

The following table summarizes significant balance sheet changes due to the acquisition of GMO

Total December 312008 Remaining

Change GMO Change

Assets millions

Cash and cash equivalents
37.1 31.5 5.6

Funds on deposit 10.8 10.8

Receivables net 76.3 109.2 32.9

Fuel inventories at average cost 51.1 35.3 15.8

Materials and supplies at average cost 35.3 31.0 4.3

Refundable income taxes 10.0 3.4 6.6

Deferred income taxes 25.0 23.2 1.8

Assets held for sale 16.3 16.3

Derivative instruments current 4.1 4.2 0.1

Other nonutility property and investments 33.6 35.9 2.3

Net utility plant in service 1504.6 1425.7 78.9

Construction work in progress 1128.9 510.6 618.3

Regulatory assets 424.7 215.7 209.0

Goodwill 156.0 156.0

Derivative instruments long-term 13.0 13.0

Liabilities

Notes payable
162.0 174.0 12.0

Current maturities of long-term debt 70.4 70.7 0.3

Accounts payable
176.6 121.7 54.9

Accrued taxes 8.2 7.1 1.1

Accrued interest 55.8 52.2 3.6

Pension and post-retirement liability
current 3.4 3.1 0.3

Derivative instruments current 41.8 5.9 35.9

Other current liabilities 33.6 32.1 1.5

Deferred income taxes 220.9 194.8 26.1

Deferred tax credits 78.5 5.6 72.9

Asset retirement obligations 29.8 12.4 17.4

Pension and post-retirement liability long-term 288.4 35.0 253.4

Regulatory liabilities 65.3 93.6 28.3

Other deferred credits and other liabilities 39.3 54.1 14.8

Long-term debt 1453.7 1080.1 373.6

The following are significant balance sheet changes in addition to the impacts due to the acquisition of GMO

Great Plains Energys receivables net decreased $32.9 million due to $29.2 million decrease in

receivables from joint owners primarily related to Comprehensive Energy Plan projects and $22.7

million decrease in receivables from wholesale power sales Partially offsetting these decreases was

$10.0 million receivable related to KCPLs Series 2008 EIRR bonds issued in May 2008 and $12.0

million increase in customer receivables due to new retail rates and higher usage due to colder weather in

December 2008

Great Plains Energys fuel inventories increased $15.8 million at KCPL primarily due to decreased

generation resulting from planned and unplanned plant outages and increased coal and coal transportation

prices
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Great Plains Energys construction work in progress increased $618.3 million at KCPL primarily due to

$536.1 million increase related to KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan including $369.8 million

related to the construction of latan No and $166.3 million for environmental upgrades

Great Plains Energys regulatory assets increased $209.0 million at KCPL due to reduction of plan

assets in the pension and post-retirement plans as result of unprecedented levels of volatility and

disruption in the stock and credit markets As regulated utility KCPL expects to recover any pension

and post-retirement liabilities from ratepayers and as result recorded regulatory asset to offset losses

in plan assets

Great Plains Energys accounts payable increased $54.9 million due to increased payables related to

Comprehensive Energy Plan projects higher purchased power prices and the timing of cash payments

Great Plains Energys derivative instruments current liabilities increased $35.9 million primarily due to

$63.7 million decline in the fair value of FSS that were assigned from Great Plains Energy to KCPL
partially offset by decrease of $28.0 million at KCPL related to the settlement of Treasury Lock

Lock simultaneously with the issuance of $350.0 million of 6.375% Senior Notes in March 2008

Great Plains Energys deferred tax credits increased $72.9 million due to recognition of $74.2 million of

advanced coal credits See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on

the advanced coal credits

Great Plains Energys asset retirement obligations increased $17.4 million primarily due to KCPL
recording $14.2 million of changes in cost estimates and timing used in computing the present value of

certain asbestos Asset Retirement Obligations AROs See Note to the consolidated financial

statements for additional information

Great Plains Energys pension and post-retirement liability long-term increased $253.4 million due to

unprecedented levels of volatility and disruption in the stock and credit markets which resulted in large

reductions in the value of plan assets

Great Plains Energys regulatory liabilities decreased $28.3 million at KCPL primarily due to

reclassification to accumulated depreciation consistent with ratemaking treatment of the regulatory

liability for additional Wolf Creek amortization Missouri of $14.6 million

Great Plains Energys other deferred credits and other liabilities decreased $14.8 million due to the

payment against and release of legal reserve

Great Plains Energys long-term debt increased $373.6 million due to KCPLs issuance of $350.0

million of 6.3 75% Senior Notes in March 2008 and $23.4 million of Series 2008 EIRR bonds in May
2008

CAPITAL REOUIREMENTS AND LIQUIDITY

Great Plains Energy operates through its subsidiaries and has no material assets other than the stock of its

subsidiaries Great Plains Energys ability to make payments on its debt securities and its ability to pay dividends

is dependent on its receipt of dividends or other distributions from its subsidiaries proceeds from the issuance of

its securities and borrowing under its revolving credit facility

Great Plains Energys capital requirements are principally comprised of debt maturities and electric utilitys

utility construction and other capital expenditures These items as well as additional cash and capital

requirements are discussed below
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Great Plains Energys liquid resources at December 31 2008 consisted of $61.1 million of cash and cash

equivalents on hand and $832.2 million of unused bank lines of credit The unused lines consisted of $207.9

million from KCPLs revolving credit facility $289.2 million from GMOs credit facilities and $335.1 million

from Great Plains Energys revolving credit facility At February 20 2009 Great Plains Energys unused bank

lines of credit decreased $202.9 million from the amount at December 31 2008 primarily to support expenditures

for Comprehensive Energy Plan projects See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for more

information on these agreements

Great Plains Energy intends to meet day-to-day cash flow requirements including interest payments retirement of

maturing debt construction requirements excluding KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan dividends and

pension benefit plan funding requirements discussed below with combination of internally generated funds and

proceeds from the issuance of short-term and long-term debt equity securities or equity-linked securities Great

Plains Energys intention to meet portion of these requirements with internally generated funds may however

be impacted by the effect of inflation on operating expenses the level of MWh sales regulatory actions

compliance with environmental regulations and the availability of generating units In addition Great Plains

Energy may issue debt equity and/or equity-linked securities to finance growth or take advantage of new

opportunities

KCPL currently expects to fund its Comprehensive Energy Plan from combination of internal and external

sources including but not limited to contributions from rate increases capital contributions to KCPL from

Great Plains Energys security issuances and new short and long-term debt financing

KCPL primary means of short-term financing is the issuance of commercial paper Commercial paper market

conditions were extremely difficult in the late third quarter and early fourth quarter of 2008 Despite this

KCPL maintained uninterrupted access to the commercial paper market although at higher rates and shorter

terms than historically As the fourth quarter progressed conditions in the commercial paper
market improved

and KCPL benefited in terms of both longer available terms and lower rates

In February 2009 Great Plains Energy reduced its annual common dividend from $1.66 per common share to

$0.83 per common share which will reduce annual cash requirements for dividend payments by approximately

$100 million from the level required if the prior dividend had been maintained

Great Plains Energy presently believes it has the necessary liquidity to effectively conduct business operations for

much of 2009 if capital markets were to become inaccessible Instability in the capital and credit markets such as

which occurred in the fourth quarter
of 2008 could adversely affect Great Plains Energys access and cost of

needed capital

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Great Plains Energy generated positive cash flows from operating activities for the periods presented The

increase in cash flows from operating activities for Great Plains Energy in 2008 compared to 2007 reflects an

increase in KCPLs cash flows due to decrease in accounts receivable from wholesale sales and joint owners

and tax refunds received in 2008 partially offset by payment of $41.2 million for the settlement of three T-Locks

Other changes in working capital are detailed in Note to the consolidated financial statements

The increase in cash flows from operating activities for Great Plains Energy in 2007 compared to 2006 reflects an

increase in KCPLs cash flows due to higher retail and wholesale revenues more than offsetting higher

operating expenses
combined with $24.0 million in proceeds from sales of SO2 emission allowances in 2007

This increase was partially offset by $15.5 million increase in deferred acquisition costs at Great Plains Energy

and lower retail margin per MWh without the impact of unrealized fair value gains and losses at Strategic

Energy Other changes in working capital detailed in Note to the consolidated financial statements also

impacted operating cash flows
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Great Plains Energys cash used for investing activities varies with the timing of utility capital expenditures and

purchases of investments and nonutility property Investing activities are offset by the proceeds from the sale of

properties and insurance recoveries

Great Plains Energys utility capital expenditures increased $512.2 million in 2008 compared to 2007 The

acquisition of GMO increased cash utility capital expenditures $213.2 million and KCPLs cash utility capital

expenditures increased $299.0 million due to $285.7 million increase related to KCPLs Comprehensive

Energy Plan

In 2008 Great Plains Energy completed the sale of Strategic Energy and received gross cash proceeds of $307.7

million At the time of the sale Strategic Energy had $88.9 million of cash resulting in proceeds from the sale of

Strategic Energy net of cash sold of $218.8 million

On July 14 2008 Great Plains Energy closed its acquisition of GMO Great Plains Energy paid cash

consideration of $0.7 billion At the time of the acquisition GMO had approximately $1.0 billion of cash from
the sale of its electric utility assets in Colorado Kansas Nebraska and Iowa to Black Hills

Great Plains Energys utility capital expenditures increased $35.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due to

KCPLs cash utility expenditures including $27.0 million related to KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Great Plains Energys cash flows from financing activities in 2008 reflect KCPLs issuance of $350.0 million of

6.375% unsecured Senior Notes that mature in 2018 The proceeds were used to repay short-term borrowings
GMO repaid $169.0 million on credit agreement that was terminated in the third quarter of 2008 and

subsequently borrowed $110.0 million under its new revolving credit facility Additionally GMO terminated

various other credit agreements and paid $12.5 million of termination fees

Great Plains Energys cash flows from financing activities in 2007 reflect KCPLs repayment and issuance of

Senior Notes Great Plains Energys issuance at discount of $100.0 million of 6.875% Senior Notes that mature

in 2017 an increase in short-term borrowings and the $12.3 million settlement of an equity forward contract at

Great Plains Energy KCPLs cash flows from financing activities in 2007 reflect KCPLs repayment of its

$225.0 million of 6.00% Senior Notes at maturity issuance at discount of $250.0 million of 5.85% Senior

Notes that mature in 2017 and an increase in short-term borrowings KCPL short-term borrowings have

increased primarily to support expenditures related to its Comprehensive Energy Plan

Great Plains Energys cash flows from financing activities in 2006 reflect Great Plains Energys proceeds of

$144.3 million from the issuance of 5.2 million shares of common stock at $27.50
per share in May 2006 Fees

related to this issuance were $5.2 million Great Plains Energy used the proceeds to make $134.6 million equity

contribution to KCPL to support expenditures related to KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan

Financing Authorization

Under stipulations with the MPSC and KCC Great Plains Energy and KCPL maintain common equity at not

less than 30% and 35% respectively of total capitalization KCPLs long-term financing activities are subject

to the authorization of the MPSC In 2008 the MPSC increased KCPLs authorization to issue long-term debt

and to enter into interest rate hedging instruments in connection with such debt to $1.4 billion through December

31 2009 KCPL has utilized $850.0 million of this amount with the issuance of its 6.05% unsecured senior

notes maturing in 2035 its 5.85% unsecured senior notes maturing in 2017 and it 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes

maturing in 2018 leaving $550.0 million of authorization remaining In addition in February 2009 KCPL
received authorization to issue $196.5 million in mortgage bonds to insurers of KCPLs $196.5 million

aggregate principal amount of EIRR Bonds Series 2005 and Series 2007 if and as required under the terms of the

insurance agreements due to the issuance of other mortgage bonds by KCPL See Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements for more information on these insurance agreements
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In December 2008 FERC authorized KCPL to have outstanding at any time up to total of $1.1 billion in

short-term debt instruments through December 2010 The authorization is subject to four restrictions proceeds

of debt backed by utility assets must be used for utility purposes ii if any utility assets that secure authorized

debt are divested or spun off the debt must follow the assets and also be divested or spun off iii if any proceeds

of the authorized debt are used for non-utility purposes the debt must follow the non-utility assets specifically if

the non-utility assets are divested or spun off then proportionate share of the debt must follow the divested or

spun off non-utility assets and iv if utility assets financed by the authorized short-term debt are divested or

spun off to another entity proportionate share of the debt must also be divested or spun off At December 31

2008 there was $719.8 million available under this authorization KCPL is also authorized to participate in the

Great Plains Energy money pool The money pool is an internal financing arrangement in which funds deposited

into the money pooi could be lent on short-term basis to KCPL and GMO At December 31 2008 there were

no borrowings under the money pooi

GMO has $500.0 million of FERC short-term debt authorization At December 31 2008 there was $326.0

million available under this authorization

Significant Financing Activities

Great Plains Energy

Great Plains Energy has an effective shelf registration statement for the sale of unspecified amounts of securities

that was filed and became effective in May 2006

On August 14 2008 Great Plains Energy entered into Sales Agency Financing Agreement with BNY Mellon

Capital Markets LLC BNYMCM Under the terms of the agreement Great Plains Energy may offer and sell up

to 8000000 shares of its common stock from time to time through BNYMCM as agent for period of no more

than three years The Company will pay BNYMCM commission equal to 1% of the sales price of all shares

sold under the agreement As of December 31 2008 189300 shares had been sold for $3.5 million in net

proceeds through BNYMCM

During 2007 Great Plains Energy issued $100.0 million of 6.875% unsecured Senior Notes Great Plains Energy

used the proceeds to make $94.0 million equity contribution to KCPL

In February 2007 Great Plains Energy exercised its rights to redeem its $163.6 million FELINE PRIDES senior

notes in full satisfaction of each holders obligation to purchase the Companys common stock under the purchase

contracts and issued 5.2 million shares of common stock to the holders of the FELINE PRIDES purchase

contracts

In April 2007 Great Plains Energy elected to terminate forward sale agreement with Merrill Lynch Financial

Markets Inc for 1.8 million shares of Great Plains Energy common stock and settle it in cash Based on the

difference between Great Plains Energys average
stock price of $32.60 over the period used to determine the

settlement and the then-applicable forward price of $25.58 Great Plains Energy paid $12.3 million to Merrill

Lynch Financial Markets Inc

In 2007 Great Plains Energy entered into three FSS with total notional amount of $250.0 million to hedge

against interest rate fluctuations on future issuances of long-term debt The three FSS were designed to

effectively remove most of the interest rate uncertainty and to the extent that swap spreads correlate with credit

spreads some degree of credit spread uncertainty with respect to the debt to be issued thereby enabling Great

Plains Energy to predict with greater assurance its future interest costs on that debt Following change in

financing plans Great Plains Energy assigned the three FSS to KCPL
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KCPL
KCPL has an effective shelf registration statement providing for the sale of up to $900.0 million of investment

grade notes and general mortgage bonds that became effective in January 2008 There is currently $550.0 million

of capacity under this registration statement

In March 2008 KCPL issued $350.0 million of 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes maturing in 2018 KCPL
settled three T-Locks simultaneously with the issuance of its $350.0 million 10-year long-term debt and paid

$41.2 million in cash for the settlement

In 2008 KCPL remarketed several series of EIRR bonds that were auction rate securities i.e the interest rates

were periodically reset through an auction process as follows

secured Series 1992 EIRR bonds maturing in 2017 totaling $31.0 million at fixed rate of 5.25% through

March 31 2013

secured Series 1993A EIRR bonds maturing in 2023 totaling $40.0 million at fixed rate of 5.25%

through March 31 2013

unsecured Series 2007B EIRR bonds maturing in 2035 totaling $73.2 million at fixed rate of 5.375%

through March 31 2013

secured Series l993B EIRR bonds maturing in 2023 totaling $39.5 million at fixed rate of 5.00%

through March 31 2011 and

unsecured Series 2007A EIRR bonds maturing in 2035 into two series Series 2007A-1 totaling $63.3

million at fixed rate of 5.125% through March 31 2011 and Series 2007A-2 totaling $10.0 million at

fixed rate of 5.00% through March 31 2010

After these remarketing activities none of KCPLs EIRR bonds are in auction rate mode

In May 2008 KCPLs Series 2008 EIRR bonds totaling $23.4 million maturing in 2038 were issued Proceeds

of the bonds will be used to pay for portion of the costs at the latan Nos and projects included in KCPLs
Comprehensive Energy Plan The proceeds were deposited with trustee and will be used to reimburse KCPL
for qualifying expenditures At December 31 2008 KCPL had received $13.4 million in cash proceeds and had

$10.0 million short-term receivable for the proceeds that were deposited with the trustee The bonds have an

initial long-term interest rate of 4.90% until June 30 2013 At the end of the initial long-term interest rate period
the bonds are subject to mandatory tender however KCPL is not obligated to pay the purchase price of the

bonds on the mandatory tender date If the bonds are not successfully remarketed the bonds will bear interest at

daily rate equal to 10% per annum until all of the bonds are successfully remarketed

In 2007 KCPLs Series 2007A and 2007B unsecured EIRR Bonds totaling $146.5 million maturing in 2035

were issued The EIRR Bonds Series 2007A and 2007B are covered by municipal bond insurance policy issued

by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company FGIC The insurance agreement between KCPL and FGIC
provides for reimbursement by KCPL for any amounts that FGIC pays under the municipal bond insurance

policy The insurance policy is in effect for the term of the bonds The policy also restricts the amount of secured

debt KCPL may issue In the event KCPL issues debt secured by liens not permitted by the agreement
KCPL is required to issue and deliver to FGIC first mortgage bonds or similar securities equal in principal

amount to the principal amount of the EIRR Bonds Series 2007A and 2007B then outstanding The proceeds
from the issuance of$146.5 million EIRR Bonds Series 2007A and 2007B were used for the repayment of$146.5

million of Series 998 and EIRR bonds

In 2007 KCPL issued $250.0 million of 5.85% unsecured Senior Notes The proceeds from this issuance were

used to repay short-term intercompany loan from Great Plains Energy KCPL used the proceeds from the

intercompany loan to repay its $225.0 million unsecured 6.00% Senior Notes at maturity
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Debt Agreements

See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for discussion of revolving credit facilities

Projected Utility Capital Expenditures

Great Plains Energys cash utility capital expenditures excluding AFUDC to finance construction were $1023.7

million $511.5 million and $475.9 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Utility capital expenditures

projected for the next three years excluding AFUDC are detailed in the following table

2011

Base utility construction expenditures

Generating facilities

Distribution and transmission facilities

General facilities

Total base utility construction expenditures

Comprehensive Energy Plan capital expenditures

latan No KCPLShare

Environmental

Customer programs asset management

Total Comprehensive Energy Plan capital expenditures

Nuclear fuel

latan No GMO Share

Other environmental

Customer programs asset management

Total utility capital expenditures

52.6

318.6

276.8 113.4

43.1

6.3 3.7

798.6 625.5

This utility capital expenditure plan is subject to continual review and change

Pensions

The Company maintains defined benefit plans for substantially all active and inactive employees including

officers of KCPL GMO and WCNOC and incurs significant costs in providing the plans Funding of the plans

equals or exceeds the minimum requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as

amended ERISA In 2008 the Company contributed $29.3 million to the plans to satisfy the ERJSA funding

requirements and the 2007 MPSC and KCC rate orders and in 2007 contributed $32.7 million to the plans all paid

by KCPL

The Company expects to contribute $45.2 million to the plans in 2009 to satisfy the funding requirements of

ERJSA and the MPSC and KCC rate orders of which the majority will be paid by KCPL This doesnt include

additional voluntary contributions that may be made to address funding levels affected by recent market declines

Due to the economic downturn The Worker Retiree and Employer Recovery Act WRERA was signed into law

on December 23 2008 to provide some funding relief from the requirements of the PPA which was generally

effective for plan years beginning in 2008 Among other things WRERA relaxes the PPA transition rules for

phasing in liability targets

With the GMO acquisition on July 14 2008 Black Hills assumed the pension obligation and portion of the plan

assets related to the current and former employees of GMOs electric and
gas utility operations acquired by Black

Hills under the terms of the purchase agreement The final transfer of plan assets is expected to be completed in

the first quarter of 2009 at which time the Company expects to make voluntary contribution of approximately

$12 million to sustain the funded status of the plans

Management believes the Company has adequate access to capital resources through combination of cash flows

from operations and existing lines of credit to support the funding requirements

2009 2010

millions

104.3 129.5

161.7 219.3

47.1

395.9

247.0

301.1

68.8

616.9

11.1

331.0

20.6

90.7

31.4

5.1

118.5

28.7

37.3

41.4

22.9

216.3

4.3

860.4
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Credit Ratings

At December 31 2008 the major credit rating agencies rated Great Plains Energys and KCPLs securities as

detailed in the following table

Moodys Standard

Inwstors Service Poors

Great Plains Fnergy

Outlook Negative Stable

Corporate Credit Rating BBB
Preferred Stock Bal BB
Senior Unsecured Debt Baa2 BBB

KCPL
Outlook Negative Stable

Senior Secured Debt A2 BBB

SeniorUnsecured Debt A3 BBB

Commercial Paper P-2 A-2

GMO
Outlook Negative Stable

Senior Secured Debt Baa2 BBB
Senior Unsecured Debt Baa2 BBB

In February 2009 Standard Poors upgraded to BBB
reflects Great Plains Energy guarantee

securities rating is not recommendation to buy sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or

withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency Great Plains Energy and KCPL view maintenance of

strong credit ratings as extremely important and to that end an active and ongoing dialogue is maintained with the

agencies with respect to results of operations financial position and future prospects While decrease in these

credit ratings would not cause any acceleration of Great Plains Energys KCPLs or GMO debt it could

increase interest charges under Great Plains Energys 6.875% Senior Notes due 2017 GMOs 11.875% Senior

Notes due 2012 GMOs 7.95% Senior Notes due 2011 and Great Plains Energys KCPLs and GMOs
revolving credit agreements decrease in credit ratings could also have an adverse impact on Great Plains

Energys KCPLs and GMOs access to capital the cost of funds the amounts of collateral required under

power supply agreements and Great Plains Energys ability to provide credit support for its subsidiaries

Additionally in KCPLs bond insurance policies on its secured 1992 series EIRR bonds totaling $31.0 million

its Series 1993A and l993B EIRR bonds totaling $79.5 million its secured and unsecured EIRR Bonds Series

2005 totaling $35.9 million and $50.0 million respectively and its EIRR Bonds Series 2007A and 2007B totaling

$146.5 million KCPL has agreed to limits on its ability to issue additional mortgage bonds based on the

mortgage bonds credit ratings See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements

The MPSC approval of the GMO acquisition is conditioned on the requirement that any post-acquisition financial

effects of credit downgrade of Great Plains Energy KCPL or GMO occurring as result of the acquisition

would be borne by shareholders and not utility customers The Company also has agreed not to seek rate

recovery of GMO interest costs in excess of equivalent investment-grade debt
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Supplemental Capital Requirements and Liquidity Information

The information in the following table is provided to summarize Great Plains Energys cash obligations and

commercial commitments

Paymentduebyperiod 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 After2Ol3 Total

Long-term debt millions

Principal
70.7 1.1 485.4 513.5 12.7 1428.6 2512.0

Interest 187.5 182.7 163.1 116.5 86.3 878.9 1615.0

Lease commitments

Operating lease 18.3 16.7 15.9 15.6 14.2 167.3 248.0

Capital lease 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 5.4 6.8

Pension plans
45.2 45.2

Purchase commitments

Fuel 186.2 170.8 90.6 74.6 84.9 147.7 754.8

Purchased capacity 33.5 29.6 19.9 14.1 13.1 11.7 121.9

Comprehensive Energy Plan 376.2 74.3 450.5

Non-regulated natural gas

transportation 5.5 5.5 5.0 2.6 2.6 8.2 29.4

Other 70.3 27.4 13.4 7.5 7.3 37.1 163.0

Total contractual commitments 993.6 508.4 793.6 744.7 221.4 2684.9 5946.6

The Company expects to make contributions to the pension plans beyond 2009 but the amounts are not yet determined

Total contractual commitments for 2010 2011 2012 2013 after 2013 and Total do not reflect expected pension plan

contributions for periods beyond 2009

Long-term debt includes current maturities Great Plains Energys long-term debt principal excludes $2.2 million

of discounts on senior notes Variable rate interest obligations are based on rates as of December 31 2008 See

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Lease commitments end in 2032 and include capital and operating lease obligations Lease obligations also

include railcars to serve jointly-owned generating units where KCPL is the managing partner KCPL will be

reimbursed by the other owners for approximately $2.0 million per year $18.2 million total of the amounts

included in the table above

The Company expects to contribute $45.2 million to the pension plans in 2009 of which the majority will be paid

by KCPL Additional contributions to the plans are expected beyond 2009 in amounts at least sufficient to meet

ERISA funding requirements however these amounts have not yet been determined

Fuel commitments consist of commitments for nuclear fuel coal coal transportation costs and natural gas

KCPL and GMO purchase capacity from other utilities and nonutility suppliers Purchasing capacity provides

the option to purchase energy if needed or when market prices are favorable KCPL has capacity sales

agreements not included above that total $11.2 million per year for 2009 through 2011 $6.9 million in 2012 and

$1 .6 million in 2013 Comprehensive Energy Plan represents contractual commitments for projects included in

KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan including jointly owned units KCPL expects to be reimbursed by other

owners including GMO for their respective share of latan No and environmental retrofit costs included in the

Comprehensive Energy Plan contractual commitments Non-regulated natural gas transportation consists of MPS

Merchants commitments Other represents individual commitments entered into in the ordinary course of

business

Great Plains Energy adopted the provisions of FTh1 No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an

interpretation of SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes on January 2007 At December 31 2008 the

total liability for unrecognized tax benefits for Great Plains Energy was $97.3 million Great Plains Energy is
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unable to determine reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement with the respective taxing
authorities See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding the recognition of tax

benefits in the next twelve months which is not expected to have cash impact

Great Plains Energy has long-term liabilities recorded on its consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2008
that do not have definitive cash payout date and are not included in the table above

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business Great Plains Energy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various agreements

providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries Such agreements

include for example guarantees stand-by letters of credit and surety bonds These agreements are entered into

primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to subsidiary on stand-alone basis

thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries intended business purposes

The majority of these agreements guarantee the Companys own future performance so liability for the fair

value of the obligation is not recorded At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy has provided $1144.6
million of credit support for certain subsidiaries as follows

Great Plains Energy letters of credit totaling $4.0 million to KCPL counterparties which expire in

2009

Great Plains Energy direct guarantees to GMO counterparties totaling $88.9 million which expire in

2009

Great Plains Energy letters of credit totaling $30.9 million to GMO counterparties which expire in 2009
and

Great Plains Energy guarantees of GMO long-term debt totaling $1020.8 million which includes debt

with maturity dates ranging from 2009-2023

The following GMO credit facilities also are guaranteed by Great Plains Energy

$65 million revolving line of credit dated April 22 2005 with Union Bank of California expiring April

22 2009 This facility is also secured by the accounts receivable from GMOs Missouri regulated utility

operations At December 31 2008 there was $64.0 million outstanding under this facility

$400 million revolving line of credit dated September 23 2008 with group of banks expiring

September 23 2011 At December 31 2008 there was $110.0 million outstanding under this facility

None of the guaranteed obligations are subject to default or prepayment as result of downgrading of GMO
securities although such downgrading has in the past and could in the future increase interest charges under

GMOs revolving lines of credit and GMOs 11.875% Senior Notes due 2012 and 7.95% Senior Notes due 2011

At December 31 2008 GMO had issued letters of credit totaling $14.4 million as credit support to certain

counterparties

KCPL is contingently liable for guaranteed energy savings under an agreement with customer guaranteeing

an aggregate value of approximately $1.9 million over the next two years subcontractor would indemnify
KCPL for any payments made by KCPL under this guarantee

KCPL has guarantees related to bond insurance policies for its secured 1992 series EIRR bonds totaling $31.0

million its Series 1993A and 1993B EIRR bonds totaling $79.5 million its EIRR Bond Series 2005 totaling

$85.9 million and its EIRR Bonds Series 2007A and 2007B totaling $146.5 million The insurance agreement
between KCPL and the issuer of the bond insurance policies provides for reimbursement by KCPL for any
amounts the insurer pays under the bond insurance policies As the insurers credit ratings are below KCPLs
credit ratings the bonds are rated at KCPLs credit ratings
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New Accounting Standards

See Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding new accounting standards

KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY

MANAGEMENTS NARRATIVE ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of KCPL results of operations includes KCPL an integrated regulated electric

utility and for 2007 and 2006 includes HSS formerly an unregulated subsidiary of KCPL which was

transferred from KCPL to KLT Inc on January
2008

The following table summarizes KCPLs consolidated comparative results of operations

2008 2007 2006

millions

Operating revenues 1343.0 1292.7 1140.4

Fuel 253.3 245.5 229.5

Purchased power 119.0 101.0 26.4

Other operating expenses 528.3 500.6 451.5

Skill set realignment deferral costs 8.9 9.3

Depreciation and amortization 204.3 175.6 152.7

Operating income 238.1 278.9 271.0

Non-operating income and expenses
19.2 4.3 9.6

Interest charges 72.3 67.2 61.0

Income tax expense 59.8 59.3 70.3

Net income 125.2 156.7 149.3

KCPL Revenues and MWh Sales

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

Retail revenues millions

Residential 463.0 433.8 13 384.3

Commercial 521.1 492.1 11 442.6

Industrial 109.9 106.8 99.8

Otherretailrevenues 10.6 9.9 12 8.8

Provision for rate refund excess

Missouriwholesale margin 2.9 NM 1.1 NA

Kansas ECA under recoveiy 1.6 NA NA

Totalretail 1103.3 1041.5 11 935.5

Wholesale revenues 221.5 234.0 23 190.4

Other revenues 18.2 17.2 19 14.5

KCPL revenues 1343.0 1292.7 13 1140.4
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2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

Retail MWh sales thousands

Residential 5413 5597 5413

Commercial 7704 7737 7403

Industrial 2061 2161 2148

Other retail MWh sales 80 14 92 86

Total retail 15258 15587 15050

Wholesale MWh sales 5030 11 5635 21 4676

KCPLMWh sales 20288 21222 19726

Retail revenues increased $61.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to new retail rates effective

January 2008 partially offset by mild summer weather in 2008 with 27% decrease in cooling degree days

Retail revenues increased $106.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to new retail rates effective

January 2007 growth in the number of customers and higher usage per customer In addition favorable

weather in 2007 with 22% increase in heating degree days partially offset by 5% decrease in cooling degree

days contributed to the increase in retail revenue

Wholesale revenues decreased $12.5 million in 2008 compared to 2007 due to an 11% decrease in wholesale

MWh sales resulting from less generation due to plant outages partially offset by 9% increase in the average

market price power per MWh to $46.34 primarily due to higher natural
gas prices

Wholesale revenues increased $43.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 due to 21% increase in wholesale MWh
sales resulting from increased generation due to greater plant availability in the second half of the year

KCPL Fuel and Purchased Power

2008 Change 2007 Change 2006

Net MWhs Generated by Fuel Type thousands

Coal 14646 14894 15056

Nuclear 3994 18 4873 11 4395

Natural gas and oil 378 31 544 564

Wind 419 38 305 NM 106

Total Generation 19437 20616 20121

KCPLs coal base load equivalent availability factor for 2008 decreased to 78% from 80% in 2007 and was

83% in 2006

KCPLs nuclear unit Wolf Creek accounts for approximately 19% of its base load capacity Wolf Creeks

latest reffieling outage began on March 20 2008 and there were several increases in work scope during the

outage that extended the restart until May 14 2008 primary driver of the work
scope increases was

modifications to piping systems associated with the emergency core cooling systems As result of the outage

the capacity and equivalent availability factor for Wolf Creek decreased to 83% in 2008 compared to 100% for

2007

Fuel expense increased $7.8 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to higher coal and coal

transportation costs and less nuclear in the fuel mix which has lower cost compared to other fuel types These

increases were partially offset by decreased MWhs generated primarily due to lower system requirements
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Fuel expense increased $16.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to higher coal and coal

transportation costs and 2% increase in MWhs generated excluding wind generation which has no fuel cost

This increase was partially offset by changes in the fuel mix with more nuclear and less coal and natural gas in the

fuel mix

Purchased power expense increased $18.0 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to 26% increase in

the
average price per MWh as result of higher natural gas prices Additionally an 8% increase in MWh

purchases due to the impact of plant outages in the first half of the year increased purchased power expense

These increases were partially offset by $6.5 million in recoveries from litigation settlement regarding 2005

transformer failure

Purchased power expense increased $74.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to 240% increase in

MWh purchases to support increased retail load the impact of planned and unplanned outages in the first half of

2007 and increased purchases for resale to satisfy firm wholesale MWh sales commitments when it was more

economical to purchase power rather than delivering MWhs generated at KCPLs plants This increase was

slightly offset by 10% decrease in the average price per
MWh

KCPL Other Operating Expenses including operating expenses maintenance general taxes and other

KCPLs other operating expenses
increased $27.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to the

following

increased plant operations and maintenance expenses of $12.2 million due to plant outages

increased employee-related costs of $5.5 million

increased property taxes of $3.0 million due to plant additions and increased mill levies and

increased gross receipts tax expense of $2.1 million due to the increase in revenues

KCPLs other operating expenses
increased $49.1 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to the

following

increased pension expenses
of $18.4 million due to the increased level of pension costs in KCPLs rates

effective January 2007

increased plant operations and maintenance expenses of $9.7 million primarily due to planned and

unplanned outages in the first half of 2007 and the addition of the Spearville Wind Energy Facility in the

third quarter of 2006

increased transmission expenses of $7.7 million primarily due to increased transmission usage charges as

result of the increased wholesale MWh sales and higher SPP fees

increased
gross receipts tax expense of $3.6 million due to the increase in revenues

increased labor expense of $2.8 million primarily due to filling open positions

increased equity compensation expense of $1.9 million and

increased property taxes of $1.6 million primarily due to increases in mill levies

Partially offsetting the increase in other operating expenses was decreased incentive compensation expense of

$5.7 million
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KCPL Skill Set Realignment

In 2005 and early 2006 management undertook process to assess improve and reposition the skill sets of

employees for implementation of KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan KCPL recorded $9.3 million in 2006

related to this workforce realignment process reflecting severance benefits and related payroll taxes provided by

KCPL to employees In 2007 KCPL received authorization from the MPSC and KCC to establish $8.9

million in regulatory assets for these costs and amortize them over five
years

for the Missouri jurisdictional

portion and ten years for the Kansas jurisdictional portion effective with new rates on January 2008

KCPL Depreciation and Amortization

KCPLs depreciation and amortization costs increased $28.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to

additional amortization pursuant to rate case orders of $21.7 million combined with normal depreciation activity

for capital additions KCPLs depreciation and amortization costs increased $22.9 million in 2007 compared to

2006 primarily due to additional amortization pursuant to 2006 rate case orders of $11.9 million and $4.5

million increase due to wind generation assets placed in service in the third quarter of 2006

KCPL Non-operating Income and Expenses

KCPLs non-operating income and
expenses

increased $14.9 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to

an increase in the equity component of AFUDC resulting from higher construction work in
progress

balance due

to KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan projects

KCPL Interest Charges

KCPLs interest charges increased $5.1 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to interest on $350.0

million of 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes issued in March 2008 partially offset by an increase in the debt

component of AFUDC resulting from higher construction work in
progress balance due to KCPLs

Comprehensive Energy Plan projects KCPLs interest charges increased $6.2 million in 2007 compared to

2006 due to an increase in short-term borrowings to support expenditures related to KCPL Comprehensive

Energy Plan

KCPL Income Tax Expense

KCPLs income tax expense increased $0.5 million in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to an increase of

$20.3 million as result of an increase in the composite tax rate reflecting the sale of Strategic Energy mostly

offset by decreased pre-tax income and increased wind credits See Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements for reconciliation of effective income tax rates for the periods

KCPLs income tax expense decreased $11.0 million in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to $4.1 million of

wind credits and $7.3 million increase in the allocation of tax benefits from holding company losses pursuant to

Great Plains Energys intercompany tax allocation agreement

53



ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the ordinary course of business Great Plains Energy and KCPL face risks that are either non-financial or

non-quantifiable Such risks principally include business legal operations and credit risks and are not

represented in the following analysis See Item 1A Risk Factors and Item MDA for further discussion of risk

factors

Great Plains Energy and KCPL are exposed to market risks associated with commodity price and supply

interest rates and equity prices Management has established risk management policies and strategies to reduce

the potentially adverse effects the volatility of the markets may have on its operating results During the ordinary

course of business under the direction and control of an internal risk management committee Great Plains

Energys and KCPLs hedging strategies are reviewed to determine the hedging approach deemed appropriate

based upon the circumstances of each situation Though management believes its risk management practices to

be effective it is not possible to identify and eliminate all risk Great Plains Energy and KCPL could

experience losses which could have material adverse effect on its results of operations or financial position due

to many factors including unexpectedly large or rapid movements or disruptions in the energy markets from

regulatory-driven market rule changes and/or bankruptcy or non-performance of customers or counterparties

and/or failure of underlying transactions that have been hedged to materialize

Derivative instruments are frequently utilized to execute risk management and hedging strategies Derivative

instruments such as futures forward contracts swaps or options derive their value from underlying assets

indices reference rates or combination of these factors These derivative instruments include negotiated

contracts which are referred to as over-the-counter derivatives and instruments listed and traded on an exchange

Interest Rate Risk

Great Plains Energy and KCPL manage interest expense and short and long-term liquidity through

combination of fixed and variable rate debt Generally the amount of each type of debt is managed through

market issuance but interest rate swap and cap agreements with highly rated financial institutions may also be

used to achieve the desired combination Using outstanding balances and annualized interest rates as of

December 31 2008 hypothetical 10% increase in the interest rates associated with long-term variable rate debt

would result in an increase of $0.3 million in interest expense for 2009 Additionally interest rates impact the fair

value of long-term debt change in interest rates would impact Great Plains Energy and KCPL to the extent

they redeemed any of their outstanding long-term debt Great Plains Energys and KCPLs book values of

long-term debt were above fair value by 15% and 18% respectively at December 31 2008

KCPL had $380.2 million of commercial paper outstanding at December 31 2008 The principal amount of the

commercial paper which will vary during the year will drive KCPLs commercial paper interest expense

Assuming that $380.2 million of commercial paper was outstanding for all of 2009 hypothetical 10% increase

in commercial paper rates would result in an increase of $2.0 million in interest expense for 2009

Commodity Risk

Great Plains Energy and KCPL engage in the wholesale and retail marketing of electricity and are exposed to

risk associated with the price of electricity

KCPLs wholesale operations include the physical delivery and marketing of power obtained through its

generation capacity and long intermediate and short-term capacity or power purchase agreements The

agreements contain penalties for non-performance to limit KCPLs energy price risk on the contracted energy

KCPL also enters into additional power purchase agreements with the objective of obtaining the most

economical energy to meet its physical delivery obligations to customers KCPL is required to maintain

capacity margin of at least 12% of its peak summer demand This net positive supply of capacity and
energy

is

maintained through its generation assets and capacity and power purchase agreements to protect it from the

potential operational failure of one of its power generating units KCPL continually evaluates the need for
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additional risk mitigation measures in order to minimize its financial exposure to among other things spikes in

wholesale power prices during periods of high demand

KCPLs sales include the sales of electricity to its retail customers and bulk power sales of electricity in the

wholesale market KCPL continually evaluates its system requirements the availability of generating units

availability and cost of fuel supply the availability and cost of purchased power and the requirements of other

electric systems therefore the impact of the hypothetical amounts that follow could be significantly reduced

depending on the system requirements and market prices at the time of the increases hypothetical 10%
increase in the market price of power could result in $3.1 million decrease in operating income for 2009 related

to purchased power In 2009 approximately 74% of KCPLs net MWhs generated are expected to be coal

fired KCPL currently has almost all of its coal requirements for 2009 under contract hypothetical 10%
increase in the market price of coal could result in less than $1.0 million increase in fuel expense for 2009

KCPL has also implemented price risk mitigation measures to reduce its exposure to high natural gas prices

hypothetical 10% increase in natural gas and oil market prices could result in an increase of $0.8 million in fuel

expense for 2009 At December 31 2008 KCPL had hedged approximately 31% and 3% of its 2009 and 2010

respectively projected natural gas usage for generation requirements to serve retail load and firm MWh sales At

December 31 2007 KCPL had hedged approximately 35% and 4% of its 2008 and 2009 respectively

projected natural gas usage for generation requirements to serve retail load and firm MWh sales KCPLs
Kansas ECA allows for the recovery of increased fuel and purchased power costs from Kansas retail customers

In the GMO regulated electric operations in 2008 approximately 55% of the power sold was generated and the

remaining 45% was purchased through long-term contracts or in the open market GMO has FAC that allows it

to adjust retail electric rates based on 95% of the difference between actual fuel and purchased power costs and

the amount of fuel and purchased power costs provided in base rates

Several measures have been taken to mitigate commodity price risk exposure in GMOs electric utility operations

One of these measures is contracting for diverse supply of coal to meet 82% and 60% of its 2009 and 2010

respectively native load fuel requirements of coal-fired generation The price risk associated with natural gas and

on-peak spot market purchased power requirements is also mitigated through hedging plan using New York

Mercantile Exchange NYMEX futures contracts and options This is multi-year hedging plan As of

December 31 2008 GMO had financial contracts in place to hedge approximately 65% and 4% of expected on-

peak natural gas and natural gas equivalent purchased power price exposure for 2009 and 2010 respectively The

mark-to-market value of these contracts at December 31 2008 was liability of $6.9 million

Additional factors that affect commodity price exposure are the quantity and availability of fuel used for

generation and the quantity of electricity customers consume Quantities of fossil fuel used for generation vary

from year to year based on the availability price and deliverability of given fuel type as well as planned and

scheduled outages at facilities that use fossil fuels Customers electricity usage could also vary from year to year

based on the weather or other factors

Market Risk MPS Merchant

MPS Merchant is exposed to market risk including changes in commodity prices To manage the volatility

relating to these exposures MPS Merchant enters into various derivative transactions in accordance with the risk

management policy The trading portfolios consist of natural
gas contracts that are settled by the delivery of the

commodity or cash These contracts take many forms including futures forwards swaps and options Although

MPS Merchant maintains number of transactions which are fully hedged via back-to-back deals the business

also retains two contractual obligations that are not fully hedged MPS Merchant is exposed to intra-month

natural
gas price volatility with contracts that have fixed price set at the beginning of each month at which

customers have an option to purchase gas from MPS Merchant within the month Customers typically exercise

this option when natural gas prices rise thereby creating an exposure
for MPS Merchant hypothetical 10%

increase in the daily price of natural gas versus the First of Month Index FOM could result in $13.7 million
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pre-tax decrease in MPS Merchant non-operating income in 2009 MPS Merchant manages this risk daily with

monthly and daily swaps These index-based transactions continue through the year 2017

Transactions carried out in connection with trading activities that are derivatives under SFAS No 133 are

accounted for under the mark-to-market method of accounting Under SFAS No 133 MPS Merchants energy

commodity trading contracts including physical transactions mainly gas and financial instruments are recorded

at fair value As part of the valuation of the portfolio Great Plains Energy values the credit risks associated with

the financial condition of counterparties and the time value of money Quoted market prices from published

sources or comparable transactions in liquid markets are used to value the contracts If actively quoted market

prices are not available brokers are contracted or other external sources or comparable transactions are used to

obtain current values of the contracts In addition the market prices or fair values used in determining the value

of the portfolio are best estimates utilizing information such as historical volatility time value counterparty credit

and the potential impact on market prices of liquidating the positions in an orderly manner over reasonable

period of time under current market conditions When market prices are not readily available or determinable

certain contracts are recorded at fair value using an alternative approach such as model pricing

MPS Merchant is also exposed to credit risk Credit risk is measured by the loss that would be recorded if

counterparties failed to perform pursuant to the terms of the contractual obligations less the value of any collateral

held The following table provides information on MPS Merchants credit exposure to customers at December

31 2008

Exposure

Before Credit Credit Net

Rating Collateral Collateral Exposure

External rating millions

Investment grade 2.4 2.4

Non-investment grade

Noextemalrating 41.6 2.0 39.6

Total 44.0 2.0 42.0

External ratings are determined by using publicly available credit ratings of the counterparty If counterparty

has provided guarantee by higher rated entity the determination has been based on the rating of its guarantor

Investment grade counterparties are those with minimum senior unsecured debt rating of BBB- from Standard

Poors or Baa3 from Moodys Investors Service

Investment Risk

KCPL maintains trust funds as required by the NRC to fund its share of decommissioning the Wolf Creek

nuclear power plant As of December 31 2008 these funds were invested primarily in domestic equity securities

and fixed income securities and are reflected at fair value on KCPLs balance sheets The mix of securities is

designed to provide returns to be used to fund decommissioning and to compensate for inflationary increases in

decommissioning costs however the equity securities in the trusts are exposed to price fluctuations in equity

markets and the value of fixed rate fixed income securities are exposed to changes in interest rates

hypothetical increase in interest rates resulting in hypothetical 10% decrease in the value of the fixed income

securities would have resulted in $6.0 million reduction in the value of the decommissioning trust funds at

December 31 2008 hypothetical 10% decrease in equity prices would have resulted in $3.5 million

reduction in the fair value of the equity securities at December 31 2008 KCPLs exposure to investment risk

associated with the decommissioning trust funds is in large part mitigated due to the fact that KCPL is currently

allowed to recover its decommissioning costs in its rates
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ITEM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006

Operating Revenues millions except per share amounts

Electric revenues 1670.1 1292.7 1140.4

Operating Expenses

Fuel 311.4 245.5 229.5

Purchased power 208.9 101.0 26.4

Utility operating expenses 377.2 295.8 260.3

Skill set realignment deferral costs Note 10 8.9 9.4

Maintenance 122.5 91.7 83.8

Depreciation and amortization 235.0 175.6 152.7

General taxes 128.1 114.4 108.9

Other 12.0 21.1 9.7

Total 1395.1 1036.2 880.7

Operating income 275.0 256.5 259.7

Non-operating income 31.9 8.8 15.9

Non-operating expenses 10.8 5.6 6.6

Interest charges 111.3 91.9 70.1

Income from continuing operations before income tax expense minority

interest in subsidiaries and loss from equity investments 184.8 167.8 198.9

Income tax expense 63.8 44.9 60.3

Minority interest in subsidiaries 0.2

Loss from equity investments net of income taxes 1.3 2.0 1.9

Income from continuing operations 119.5 120.9 136.7

Income loss from discontinued operations net of income taxes Note 24 35.0 38.3 9.1

Net income 154.5 159.2 127.6

Preferred stock dividend requirements 1.6 1.6 1.6

Earnings available for common shareholders 152.9 157.6 126.0

Average number of basic common shares outstanding 101.1 84.9 78.0

Average number of diluted common shares outstanding 101.2 85.2 78.2

Basic earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations 1.16 1.41 1.74

Discontinued operations 0.35 0.45 0.12

Basicearningspercommonshare 1.51 1.86 1.62

Diluted earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations 1.16 1.40 1.73

Discontinued operations 0.35 0.45 0.12

Diluted earnings percommon share 1.51 1.85 1.61

Cashdividendspercommonshare 1.66 1.66 1.66

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part
of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS millions except share amounts

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 61.1 24.0

Funds on deposit 10.8

Receivables net 242.3 166.0

Fuel inventories at average cost 87.0 35.9

Materials and supplies at average cost 99.3 64.0

Deferred refueling outage costs 12.4 6.5

Refundable income taxes 26.0 16.0

Deferred income taxes 28.6 3.6

Assets held for sale Note 16.3

Assets of discontinued operations 487.1

Derivative instruments 4.8 0.7

Prepaid expenses 15.2 11.0

Total 603.8 814.8

Nonutility Property and Investments

Affordable housing limited partnerships 13.9 17.3

Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 96.9 110.5

Other 41.1 7.5

Total 151.9 135.3

Utility Plant at Original Cost

Electric 7940.8 5450.6

Less-accumulated depreciation 3582.5 2596.9

Net utility plant in service 4358.3 2853.7

Construction work in progress 1659.1 530.2

Nuclear fuel net of amortization of $110.8 and $120.2 63.9 60.6

Total 6081.3 3444.5

Deferred Charges and Other Assets

Regulatory assets 824.8 400.1

Goodwill 156.0

Derivative instruments 13.0

Other 38.5 37.4

Total 1032.3 437.5

Total 7869.3 4832.1

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION

Current Liabilities

Notes payable

Commercial paper

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest

Accrued compensation and benefits

Pension and post-retirement liability

Liabilities of discontinued operations

Derivative instruments

Other

2008 2007

millions except share amounts

204.0

380.2

70.7

418.0

27.7

72.4

29.7

4.7

86.2

_______
43.8

1337.4

42.0

365.8

0.3

241.4

19.5

16.6

22.1

1.3

253.4

44.4

10.2

1017.0Total

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 387.1 608.0

Deferred tax credits 105.5 27.0

Asset retirement obligations 124.3 94.5

Pension and post-retirement liability
445.6 157.2

Regulatory liabilities 209.4 144.1

Other 113.8 74.5

Total 1385.7 1105.3

Capitalization

Common shareholders equity

Common stock- 150000000 shares authorized without par value

19375923 and 86325136 shares issued stated value 2118.4 1065.9

Retained earnings 489.3 506.9

Treasury stock-l20677 and 90929 shares at cost 3.6 2.8

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 53.5 2.1

Total 2550.6 1567.9

Cumulative preferred stock $100 par value

3.80% 100000 shares issued 10.0 10.0

4.50% 100000 shares issued 10.0 10.0

4.20% 70000 shares issued 7.0 7.0

4.35% 120000 shares issued 12.0 12.0

Total 39.0 39.0

Long-term debt Note 13 2556.6 1102.9

Total 5146.2 2709.8

Commitments and Contingencies Note 16

Total 4832.17869.3

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

59



GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December31

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of

Nuclear fuel

Other

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

2008 2007

millions

154.5 159.2

2006

127.6

238.3 183.8 160.5

14.5 16.8 14.4

1.9 7.4 9.4

Deferred income taxes net 44.1 23.8 11.0
Investment tax credit amortization 1.8 1.5 1.2
Loss from equity investments net of income taxes 1.3 2.0 1.9

Fair value impacts from energy contracts Strategic Energy 189.1 52.8 56.7

Fair value impacts from interest rate hedging 9.2 17.9

Loss on sale of
Strategic Energy 116.2

Other operating activities Note 52.6 24.4 49.4
Net cash from operating activities 437.9 332.2 308.9

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Utility capital expenditures 1023.7 511.5 475.9

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 31.7 14.4 5.7
Purchases of nonutility property 1.2 4.5 4.2
Proceeds from sale of Strategic Energy net of cash sold 218.8

GMO acquisition net cash received 271.9

Proceeds from sale of assets and investments 0.1 0.4

Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust investments 49.1 58.0 49.7

Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust investments 45.4 54.3 46.0

Purchase of additional indirect interest in Strategic Energy 0.7
Hawthom No partial litigation recoveries 15.8

Other investing activities 9.5 13.0 1.7
Net cash from investing activities 579.1 547.0 475.7

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Issuance of common stock 15.3 10.5 153.6

Issuance of long-term debt 363.4 495.6

Issuance fees 5.3 5.7 6.2

Repayment of long-term debt 169.9 372.5 1.7
Net change in short-term borrowings 118.4 251.4 118.5

Dividends paid 172.0 144.5 132.6

Credit
facility termination fees 12.5

Equity forward settlement 12.3
Other financing activities 2.2 2.4 6.1

Net cash from financing activities 135.2 220.1 125.5

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.0 5.3 41.3
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year includes $43.1 million

$45.8 million and $76.4 million of cash included in assets of discontinued

operations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively 67.1 61.8 103.1

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year includes $43.1 million and

$45.8 million of cash included in assets of discontinued operations in 2007

and 2006 respectively 61.1 67.1 61.8
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY

Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Common Stock millions except share amounts

Beginning balance 86325136 1065.9 80405035 896.8 74783824 744.5

Issuance of common stock 32962723 1042.0 5571574 174.1 5574385 153.6

Issuance of restricted common stock 88064 2.3 348527 46826 1.3

Common stock issuance fees 5.2

Equity compensation expense 5.9 2.1 2.6

Equity forward settlement 12.3

Unearned Compensation

Issuance of restricted common stock 2.3 1.1 1.4

Forfeiture of restricted common stock 0.2 0.1

Compensation expense recognized 5.6 4.8 1.3

Other 1.0 0.2

Ending balance 119375923 2118.4 86325136 1065.9 80405035 896.8

Retained Earnings

Beginning balance 506.9 493.4 498.6

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle Notes 10 and 22 0.1 0.9

Net income 154.5 159.2 127.6

Dividends

Common stock 170.4 142.9 131.0

Preferred stock at required rates 1.6 1.6 1.6

Performance shares 0.3 0.2

Ending balance 489.3 506.9 493.4

Treasury Stock

Beginning balance 90929 2.8 53499 1.6 43376 1.3

Treasury shares acquired 39856 1.1 37430 1.2 1338 0.3

Treasury shares reissued 10108 0.3 1215

Ending balance 120677 3.6 90929 2.8 53499 1.6

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Beginning balance 2.1 46.7 7.7

Derivative hedging activity net of tax 47.5 43.2 74.7

Change in unrecognized pension expense net of tax 3.9 1.4

Minimum pension obligation net of tax 15.9

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No 158 net of tax 170.2

Regulatory adjustment 190.0

Ending balance 53.5 2.1 46.7

Total Common Shareholders Equity 2550.6 1567.9 1341.9

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31 2008 2007 2006

millions

Net income 154.5 159.2 127.6

Other comprehensive income loss

Gain loss on derivative hedging instruments 27.0 8.4 181.5

Income taxes 12.5 2.4 75.0

Net gain loss on derivative hedging instruments 14.5 6.0 106.5

Reclassification to expenses net of tax Note 20 62.0 49.2 31.8

Derivative hedging activity net of tax 47.5 43.2 74.7

Defined benefit pension plans

Net gain loss arising during period 6.7 2.0

Less amortization of net gain included in net

periodic benefit costs 0.3 0.4

Prior service costs arising during the period 0.3

Less amortization of prior service costs included in net

periodic benefit costs 0.1 0.1

Income taxes 2.4 0.8

Net change in unrecognized pension expense 3.9 1.4

Change in minimum pension obligation 25.5

Income taxes 9.6

Net change in unrecognized pension expense 15.9

Comprehensive income 103.1 203.8 68.8

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements
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KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31 2008 2007 2006

Operating Revenues millions

Electric revenues 1343.0 1292.7 1140.4

Operating Expenses

Fuel 253.3 245.5 229.5

Purchased power 119.0 101.0 26.4

Operating expenses
310.0 295.8 260.3

Skill set realignment deferral cost Note 10 8.9 9.3

Maintenance 99.2 90.9 83.8

Depreciation and amortization 204.3 175.6 152.7

General taxes 118.9 113.7 108.0

Other 0.2 0.2 0.6

Total 1104.9 1013.8 869.4

Operating income 238.1 278.9 271.0

Non-operating income 25.9 8.0 15.0

Non-operating expenses 6.7 3.7 5.4

Interest charges 72.3 67.2 61.0

Income before income tax expense 185.0 216.0 219.6

Income tax expense 59.8 59.3 70.3

Net income 125.2 156.7 149.3

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements are an integral part
of these statements
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KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Balance Sheets

2008 2007

ASSETS millions except share amounts

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5.4 3.2

Receivables net 161.6 176.4

Fuel inventories at average Cost 51.7 35.9

Materials and supplies at average Cost 68.3 64.0

Deferred refueling outage Costs 12.4 6.5

Refundable income taxes 11.9 16.6

Deferred income taxes 4.9 3.4

Derivative instruments 0.6 0.7

Prepaid expenses 11.8 10.4

Total 328.6 317.1

Nonutility Property and Investments

Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 96.9 110.5

Other 3.7 6.2

Total 100.6 116.7

Utility Plant at Original Cost

Electric 5671.4 5450.6

Less-accumulated depreciation 2738.8 2596.9

Net
utility plant in service 2932.6 2853.7

Construction work in progress 1148.5 530.2

Nuclear fuel net of amortization of$ll0.8 and $120.2 63.9 60.6

Total 4145.0 3444.5

Deferred Charges and Other Assets

Regulatory assets 609.1 400.1

Other 45.5 13.6

Total 654.6 413.7

Total 5228.8 4292.0

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part
of these statements
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KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Balance Sheets

2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION millions except share amounts

Current Liabilities

Notes payable to Great Plains Energy 0.6

Commercial paper 380.2 365.8

Accounts payable 299.3 243.4

Accrued taxes 20.5 19.0

Accrued interest 18.1 9.6

Accrued compensation and benefits 29.7 21.6

Pension and post-retirement liability
1.6 1.1

Derivative instruments 80.3 28.0

Other 9.1 8.7

Total 838.8 697.8

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 596.2 642.2

Deferred tax credits 99.9 27.0

Asset retirement obligations 111.9 94.5

Pension and post-retirement liability 410.6 149.4

Regulatory liabilities 115.8 144.1

Other 56.8 54.2

Total 1391.2 1111.4

Capitalization

Common shareholders equity

Common stock-i 000 shares authorized without par value

share issued stated value 1315.6 1115.6

Retained earnings 353.2 371.3

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 46.9 7.5

Total 1621.9 1479.4

Long-term debt Note 13 1376.9 1003.4

Total 2998.8 2482.8

Commitments and Contingencies Note 16

Total 5228.8 4292.0

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are an integral part of these statements
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KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities millions

Net income 125.2 156.7 149.3

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 204.3 175.6 152.7

Amortization of

Nuclear fuel 14.5 16.8 14.4

Other 11.1 4.6 6.6

Deferred income taxes net 7.5 19.7 17.4

Investment tax credit amortization 1.4 1.5 1.2

Fair value impacts from interest rate hedging 1.4

Other operating activities Note 72.8 18.5 40.0

Net cash from operating activities 419.0 354.8 299.2

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Utility capital expenditures 810.5 511.5 475.9

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction 23.6 14.4 5.7

Purchases of nonutility property 0.1 0.1

Proceeds from sale of assets 0.1 0.4

Purchases of nuclear decommissioning trust investments 49.1 58.0 49.7

Proceeds from nuclear decommissioning trust investments 45.4 54.3 46.0

Hawthorn No partial litigation recoveries 15.8

Other investing activities 8.5 7.6 0.9

Net cash from investing activities 846.3 537.2 470.1

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Issuance of long-term debt 363.4 396.1

Repayment of long-term debt 372.0

Net change in short-term borrowings 14.4 209.4 124.6

Dividends paid to Great Plains Energy 144.0 140.0 89.0

Equity contribution from Great Plains Energy 200.0 94.0 134.6

Issuance fees 4.3 3.7 0.5

Net cash from financing activities 429.5 183.8 169.7

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.2 1.4 1.2

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 3.2 1.8 3.0

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 5.4 3.2 1.8

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are

an integral part
of these statements

66



KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity

Common Stock

Beginning balance

Equity contribution from Great Plains Energy

Ending balance

Retained Earnings

Beginning balance

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle Note 22

Net income

Transfer of HSS to KLT Inc

Dividends

Common stock held by Great Plains Energy

Ending balance

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Beginning balance

Derivative hedging activity net of tax

Minimum pension obligation net of tax

Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No 158 net of tax

Regulatory adjustment

Ending balance

Total Common Shareholders Equity

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these

statements

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

millions except share amounts

1115.6 1021.6 887.0

200.0 94.0 134.6

1315.6 1115.6 1021.6

371.3 354.8 294.5

0.2

125.2 156.7 149.3

0.7

144.0 140.0 89.0

353.2 371.3 354.8

7.5 6.7 29.9

39.4 14.2 0.7

15.9

168.6

190.0

46.9 7.5 6.7

1621.9 1479.4 1383.1
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KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December31 2008 2007 2006

millions

Net income 125.2 156.7 149.3

Other comprehensive income loss

Gain loss on derivative hedging instruments 65.0 22 0.8

Income taxes 25.4 8.3 0.3

Net gain loss on derivative hedging instruments 39.6 13.8 0.5

Reclassification to expenses net of tax Note 20 0.2 0.4 0.2

Derivative hedging activity net of tax 39.4 14.2 0.7

Change in minimum pension obligation 25.5

Income taxes 9.6

Net gain in minimum pension obligation 15.9

Comprehensive income 85.8 142.5 164.5

The disclosures regarding KCPL included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an

integral part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED
KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The notes to consolidated financial statements that follow are combined presentation for Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and Kansas City Power Light Company both registrants under this filing The terms Great

Plains Energy Company and KCPL are used throughout this report Great Plains Energy and the

Company refer to Great Plains Energy Incorporated and its consolidated subsidiaries unless otherwise

indicated KCPL refers to Kansas City Power Light Company and its consolidated subsidiaries

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Great Plains Energy Missouri corporation incorporated in 2001 is public utility holding company and does

not own or operate any significant assets other than the stock of its subsidiaries Great Plains Energys wholly

owned direct subsidiaries with operations or active subsidiaries are as follows

KCPL is an integrated regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers primarily in the

states of Missouri and Kansas KCPL has one wholly owned subsidiary Kansas City Power Light

Receivables Company Receivables Company

KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company GMO is an integrated regulated electric utility that

primarily provides electricity to customers in the state of Missouri GMO also provides regulated steam

service to certain customers in the St Joseph Missouri area GMO wholly owns MPS Merchant

Services Inc MPS Merchant which has certain long-term natural gas contracts remaining from its

former non-regulated trading operations Great Plains Energy acquired GMO on July 14 2008 See Note

to the consolidated financial statements for additional information

Great Plains Energy Services Incorporated Services provides services at cost to Great Plains Energy and

its subsidiaries Effective December 16 2008 Services employees were transferred to KCPL Services

continues to obtain certain goods and third-party services for its affiliated companies

KLT Inc is an intermediate holding company that primarily holds investments in affordable housing

limited partnerships KLT Inc also wholly owns KLT Gas Inc and Home Service Solutions Inc HSS
which have no active operations KLT Telecom Inc wholly owned subsidiary of KLT Inc was

dissolved in December 2008

On June 2008 Great Plains Energy completed the sale of Strategic Energy L.L.C Strategic Energy

Strategic Energy is accounted for as discontinued operations for all periods presented See Note 24 for additional

information Great Plains Energy indirectly owned 100% of Strategic Energy through its wholly owned

subsidiaries KLT Inc and Innovative Energy Consultants Inc IEC IEC did not own or operate any assets other

than its indirect interest in Strategic Energy IEC was merged into KLT Inc in July 2008

Great Plains Energys sole reportable business segment is electric utility Prior to 2008 Great Plains Energys

electric utility segment is the same as the previously reported KCPL segment See Note 23 for additional

information

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at

acquisition
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Funds on Deposit

Funds on deposit consist primarily of cash provided to counterparties in support of margin requirements related to

commodity purchases commodity swaps and futures contracts Pursuant to individual contract terms with

counterparties deposit amounts required vary
with changes in market prices credit provisions and various other

factors Interest is earned on most funds on deposit Great Plains Energy also holds funds on deposit from

counterparties in the same manner These funds are included in other current liabilities on the consolidated

balance sheets

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments

for which it is practicable to estimate that value

Nonutility property and investments KCPLs nonutility property and investments includes nuclear

decommissioning trust fund assets recorded at fair value Fair value is based on quoted market prices of the

investments held by the fund andlor valuation models In addition to KCPLs investments Great Plains

Energys nonutility property and investments includes KLT Investments Inc.s KLT Investments affordable

housing limited partnerships and GMOs rabbi trust assets The fair value of KLT Investments affordable

housing limited partnership total portfolio based on the discounted cash flows generated by tax credits tax

deductions and sale of properties approximates book value GMOs rabbi trusts related to its Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plans SERP are recorded at fair value which are based on quoted market prices of the

investments held by the trusts andlor valuation models The fair values of other various investments are not

readily determinable and the investments are therefore stated at cost

Long-term debt Fair value is based on quoted market prices with the incremental borrowing rate for similar

debt used to determine fair value if quoted market prices were not available At December 31 2008 the book

value and fair value of Great Plains Energys long-term debt was $2.6 billion and $2.2 billion respectively At

December 31 2008 the book value and fair value of KCPLs long-term debt was $1.4 billion and $1.1 billion

respectively Great Plains Energys and KCPLs book values of long-term debt approximated fair values at

December 31 2007

Derivative instruments The fair value of derivative instruments is estimated using market quotes over-the-

counter forward price and volatility curves and correlation among fuel prices net of estimated credit risk

Pension plans For financial reporting purposes the market value of plan assets is the fair value KCPL uses

five-year smoothing of assets to determine fair value for regulatory reporting purposes

Derivative Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as amended This

statement generally requires derivative instruments to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and

establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of hedging relationships Great Plains Energy and KCPL
enter into derivative contracts to manage exposure to commodity price fluctuations and interest rate risk

Derivative instruments designated as normal purchases and normal sales NPNS and cash flow hedges are used

solely for hedging purposes and are not issued or held for speculative reasons

The Company considers various qualitative factors such as contract and market place attributes in designating

derivative instruments at inception Great Plains Energy and KCPL may elect the NPNS exception which

requires the effects of the derivative to be recorded when the underlying contract settles Great Plains Energy and

KCPL account for derivative instruments that are not designated as NPNS as cash flow hedges or non-hedging

derivatives which are recorded as assets or liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value In addition

if derivative instrument is designated as cash flow hedge Great Plains Energy and KCPL document the
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method of determining hedge effectiveness and measuring ineffectiveness See Note 20 for additional

information regarding derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Great Plains Energy and KCPL offset fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments under master

netting arrangements which include rights to reclaim cash collateral receivable or the obligation to return

cash collateral payable pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board FASBInterpretation FIN No
39 Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts Great Plains Energy and KCPL classif cash flows

from derivative instruments in the same category as the cash flows from the items being hedged

Investments in Affordable Housing Limited Partnerships

At December 31 2008 KLT Investments had $13.9 million of investments in affordable housing limited

partnerships Approximately 87% of these investments were recorded at cost the equity method was used for the

remainder The investments generate future cash flows from tax credits and tax losses of the partnerships The

investments also generate cash flows from the sales of the properties For most investments tax credits are

received over ten years Tax expense is reduced in the year tax credits are generated change in accounting

principle relating to investments made after May 19 1995 requires the use of the equity method when company
owns more than 5% in limited partnership investment Of the investments recorded at cost $11.8 million

exceed this 5% level but were made before May 19 1995 Management does not anticipate making additional

investments in affordable housing limited partnerships at this time

On quarterly basis KLT Investments compares the cost of those properties accounted for by the cost method to

the total of projected residual value of the properties and remaining tax credits to be received Based on the latest

comparison KLT Investments reduced its investments in affordable housing limited partnerships by $0.4 million

$2.0 million and $1.2 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively These amounts are included in non-operating

expenses on Great Plains Energys consolidated statements of income The properties underlying the partnership

investments are subject to certain risks inherent in real estate ownership and management

Other Nonutility Property

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs other nonutility property includes land and buildings and improvements 43-

45 year life and is recorded at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation Great Plains Energys other non-

utility property also includes office furniture 24-year life

Utility Plant

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs utility plant is stated at historical cost These costs include taxes an

allowance for the cost of borrowed and equity funds used to finance construction and payroll-related costs

including pensions and other fringe benefits Replacements improvements and additions to units of property are

capitalized Repairs of property and replacements of items not considered to be units of property are expensed as

incurred except as discussed under Deferred Refueling Outage Costs and Accounting for Planned Major

Maintenance When property units are retired or otherwise disposed the original cost net of salvage is charged

to accumulated depreciation Substantially all of KCPLs utility plant is pledged as collateral for KCPLs
mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated December 1986 as

supplemented Substantially all of GMOs St Joseph Light Power division is pledged as collateral for GMOs
mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated April 1946 as supplemented

As prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC Allowance for Funds Used During

Construction AFUDC is charged to the cost of the plant AFUDC is included in the rates charged to customers

by KCPL and GMO over the service life of the property AFUDC equity funds are included as non-cash item

in non-operating income and AFUDC borrowed funds are reduction of interest charges The rates used to

compute gross AFUDC are compounded semi-annually and averaged 7.1% in 2008 6.3% in 2007 and 7.8% in

2006 for KCPL and 4.9% in 2008 for GMO since its acquisition on July 14 2008
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Great Plains Energys and KCPLs balances of utility plant at original cost with range
of estimated useful

lives are listed in the following table

Great Plains Energy

December31 2008 2007

Utility Plant at original cost millions

Production 23 -60 years 4171.2 3197.2

Transmission 27 76 years 655.8 382.8

Distribution -75 years 2588.1 1542.5

General 50 years 525.7 328.1

Total 7940.8 5450.6

Includes $78.4 million and $40.4 million at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively of land and other assets that are not

depreciated

KCPL
December 31 2008 2007

Utility Plant at original cost millions

Production 23-60years 3249.8 3197.2

Transmission 27 76 years 404.7 382.8

Distribution 75 years 1638.6 1542.5

General -50 years 378.3 328.1

Total 5671.4 5450.6

Includes $56.0 million and $40.4 million at December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively of land and other assets that are not

depreciated

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization of KCPLs and GMOs utility plant other than nuclear fuel is computed using the

straight-line method over the estimated lives of depreciable property based on rates approved by state regulatory

authorities Annual depreciation rates average approximately 3.0% for each of KCPL and GMO Nuclear fuel

is amortized to fuel expense based on the quantity of heat produced during the generation of electricity

Depreciation of nonutility property is computed using the straight-line method Great Plains Energy nonutility

property aimual depreciation rates for 2008 2007 and 2006 were 7.9% 12.0% and 11.7% respectively

KCPLs nonutility property annual depreciation rates for 2008 2007 and 2006 were 6.7% 11.6% and 11.5%

respectively

Great Plains Energys depreciation expense was $175.1 million $140.9 million and $130.7 million for 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively KCPLs depreciation expense was $145.4 million $140.9 million and $130.7 million

for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Great Plains Energys and KCPLs depreciation and amortization

expense includes $47.4 million $25.7 million and $13.8 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively of

additional amortizations to help maintain cash flow levels pursuant to the Public Service Commission of the State

of Missouri MPSC and The State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas KCC orders

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs

Nuclear plant decommissioning cost estimates are based on the immediate dismantlement method and include the

costs of decontamination dismantlement and site restoration Based on these cost estimates KCPL contributes

to tax-qualified trust fund to be used to decommission Wolf Creek Generating Station Wolf Creek Related

liabilities for decommissioning are included on KCPLs balance sheet in Asset Retirement Obligations AROs
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As result of the authorized regulatory treatment and related regulatory accounting differences between the

decommissioning trust fund asset and the related ARO are recorded as regulatory asset or liability See Note

for discussion of AROs including those associated with nuclear plant decommissioning costs

Deferred Refueling Outage Costs

KCPL uses the deferral method to account for operations and maintenance
expenses

incurred in support of Wolf

Creeks scheduled refueling outages and amortizes them evenly monthly over the units operating cycle of 18

months until the next scheduled outage Replacement power costs during an outage are expensed as incurred

Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance

The FASB issued FASB Staff Position FSP AUG AIR-i Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance

Activities in September 2006 FSP AUG AIR-i precludes the use of the previously acceptable accrue-in-

advance method which GMO currently follows as allowed by the MPSC GMO believes that it is probable that

the cost of planned major maintenance will be recovered through customer rates charged by the rate-regulated

utility operations in advance of such maintenance being performed Therefore regulatory liability was

recorded

Regulatory Matters

Great Plains Energy and KCPL are subject to the provisions of SFAS No 71 Accounting for the Effects of

Certain Types of Regulation Pursuant to SFAS No 71 KCPL and GMO defer items on the balance sheet

resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process which would not be recorded if KCPL and GMO were not

regulated See Note for additional information concerning regulatory matters

Revenue Recognition

Great Plains Energy and KCPL recognize revenues on sales of electricity when the service is provided

Revenues recorded include electric services provided but not yet billed by KCPL and GMO Unbilled revenues

are recorded for kWh usage in the period following the customers billing cycle to the end of the month

KCPLs and GMOs estimate is based on net system kWh usage less actual billed kWhs KCPLs and

GMOs estimated unbilled kWhs are allocated and priced by regulatory jurisdiction across the rate classes based

on actual billing rates

KCPL and GMO collect from customers gross receipts taxes levied by state and local governments These

taxes from KCPLs Missouri customers are recorded gross in operating revenues and general taxes on Great

Plains Energys and KCPLs statements of income KCPLs gross receipts taxes collected from Missouri

customers were $45.9 million $44.7 million and $34.1 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively These taxes

from KCPLs Kansas customers and GMOs customers are recorded net in operating revenues on Great Plains

Energys statement of income

Great Plains Energy and KCPL record sale and purchase activity on net basis in wholesale revenue or

purchased power when transacting with Regional Transmission Organization RTO/Independent System

Operator ISO markets

Great Plains Energy and KCPL collect sales taxes from customers and remit to state and local governments

These taxes are presented on net basis on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs statements of income

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

This reserve represents estimated uncollectible accounts receivable and is based on managements judgment

considering historical loss experience and the characteristics of existing accounts Provisions for losses on

receivables are charged to income to maintain the allowance at level considered adequate to cover losses

Receivables are charged off against the reserve when they are deemed uncollectible

73



Property Gains and Losses

Net gains and losses from the sales of assets businesses and asset impairments are recorded in operating

expenses

Asset Impairments

Long-lived assets and finite lived intangible assets subject to amortization are periodically reviewed for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable as prescribed under SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived

Assets SFAS No 144 requires that if the sum of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from an asset to

be held and used is less than the carrying value of the asset an asset impairment must be recognized in the

financial statements The amount of impairment recognized is the excess of the carrying value of the asset over

its fair value

Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are tested for impairment at least annually and more frequently when

indicators of impairment exist as prescribed under SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The

annual test must be performed at the same time each year SFAS No 142 requires that if the fair value of reporting

unit is less than its carrying value including goodwill an impairment charge for goodwill must be recognized in the

financial statements To measure the amount of the impairment loss to recognize the implied fair value of the

reporting unit goodwill is compared with its carrying value

Income Taxes

In accordance with SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes Great Plains Energy has recognized deferred

taxes for temporary book to tax differences using the liability method The liability method requires that deferred

tax balances be adjusted to reflect enacted tax rates that are anticipated to be in effect when the temporary

differences reverse Deferred tax assets are reduced by valuation allowance when in the opinion of

management it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized

In accordance with FIN No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of SFAS No

109 Accounting for Income Taxes Great Plains Energy and KCPL recognize tax benefits based on more-

likely-than-not recognition threshold In addition Great Plains Energy and KCPL recognize interest accrued

related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in non-operating expenses

Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries file consolidated federal and combined and separate state income tax

returns Income taxes for consolidated or combined subsidiaries are allocated to the subsidiaries based on

separate company computations of income or loss KCPLs income tax provision includes taxes allocated based

on its separate company income or loss

Great Plains Energy and KCPL have established net regulatory asset for the additional future revenues to be

collected from customers for deferred income taxes Tax credits are recognized in the year generated except for

certain KCPL and GMO investment tax credits that have been deferred and amortized over the remaining

service lives of the related properties

Environmental Matters

Environmental costs are accrued when it is probable liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability

can be reasonably estimated

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Common Share Calculation

To determine basic EPS preferred stock dividend requirements are deducted from income from continuing

operations and net income before dividing by the average number of common shares outstanding The earnings

loss per share impact of discontinued operations is determined by dividing income loss from discontinued

operations net of income taxes by the average number of common shares outstanding The effect of dilutive

securities calculated using the treasury stock method assumes the issuance of common shares applicable to stock

options performance shares restricted stock forward sale agreement and FELINE PRIDESSM
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The following table reconciles Great Plains Energys basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations

2008 2007 2006

Income millions except per share amounts

Income from continuing operations 119.5 120.9 136.7

Less preferred stock dividend requirements 1.6 1.6 1.6

Income available for common stockholders 117.9 119.3 135.1

Common Shares Outstanding

Average number of common shares outstanding 101.1 84.9 78.0

Add effect of dilutive securities 0.1 0.3 0.2

Diluted average number of common shares outstanding 101.2 85.2 78.2

Basic EPS from continuing operations 1.16 1.41 1.74

Diluted EPS from continuing operations 1.16 1.40 1.73

The computation of diluted EPS excludes anti-dilutive shares for 2008 of 364217 performance shares 530398
restricted stock shares and 455469 stock options

The computation of diluted EPS excludes anti-dilutive shares for 2007 of 128716 performance shares and

381451 restricted stock shares In 2007 there were no anti-dilutive shares applicable to FELINE PRIDES stock

options or forward sale agreement FELINE PRIDES settled in the first quarter of 2007 and the forward sale

agreement settled in the second quarter of 2007

The computation of diluted EPS excludes anti-dilutive shares for 2006 of 96601 performance shares and 116469

restricted stock shares Additionally for 2006 6.5 million of anti-dilutive FELINE PRIDES were excluded from

the computation of diluted EPS and there were no anti-dilutive shares applicable to stock options or forward sale

agreement

Dividends Declared

In February 2009 the Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.2075 per share on Great Plains

Energys common stock The common dividend is payable March 20 2009 to shareholders of record as of

February 27 2009 The Board of Directors also declared regular dividends on Great Plains Energys preferred

stock payable June 2009 to shareholders of record as of May 2009

GMO ACQUISITION

On July 14 2008 Great Plains Energy closed its acquisition of GMO On October 17 2008 GMO changed its

name from Aquila Inc to KCPL Greater Missouri Operations Company GMO Prior GMO shareholders

received $1.80 in cash plus 0.0856 of share of Great Plains Energy common stock for each share of GMO
common stock The total purchase price of the acquisition was approximately $1.7 billion Based on the market

price of Great Plains Energy common stock during the period including the two trading days before through the

two trading days after February 2007 the date that Great Plains Energy and Aquila announced the acquisition

the fair value of the 32.2 million shares of Great Plains Energy common stock issued was approximately $1.0

billion Great Plains Energy paid approximately $0.7 billion of cash consideration Immediately prior to Great

Plains Energys acquisition of GMO Black Hills Corporation Black Hills acquired Aquilas electric utility

assets in Colorado and its gas utility assets in Colorado Kansas Nebraska and Iowa Following the closing of the

acquisition Great Plains Energy wholly owns GMO including its Missouri-based utility operations consisting of

the Missouri Public Service and St Joseph Light Power divisions GMO is included in Great Plains Energys

consolidated financial statements beginning as of July 14 2008

The transaction received the final required regulatory approval order from the MPSC on July 2008 Certain

parties have filed appeals and motion to stay the order with the Cole County Missouri circuit court The order

remains in effect unless reversed by the courts
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The MPSC order provided for the deferral of transition costs to be amortized over five-year period beginning

with the first post-transaction rate cases to the extent that synergy savings exceed amortization The KCC order

approved the deferral of up to $10.0 million of transition cost to be amortized over five-year period beginning

with rates expected to be effective in 2010 At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy had $43.1 million of

regulatory assets related to transition costs which included $25.5 million at KCPL and $17.6 million at GMO

The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting As result the assets and liabilities

of GMO were recorded at their estimated fair values as of July 14 2008 The fair values are preliminary and are

subject to adjustment as additional information is obtained but will be finalized within one year from the

acquisition date The following table shows the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired

and liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition

July14

2008

Purchase Price Allocation millions

Cash 677.7

Common stock 32.2 million shares 1026.1

Stock options 0.5 million options 2.7

Transaction costs 35.5

Total purchase price 1742.0

Cash and cash equivalents 949.6

Receivables 154.1

Deferred income taxes 501.9

Other current assets 131.4

Utility plant net 1627.9

Nonutiity property and investments 131.4

Regulatory assets 176.8

Other long-term assets 77.4

Total assets acquired 3750.5

Current liabilities 321.5

Regulatory liabilities 115.9

Deferred income taxes 246.4

Long-term debt 1334.2

Other long-term liabilities 146.5

Net assets acquired 1586.0

Preliminary goodwill 156.0

The fair value is based on the average closing price of Great Plains Energy common stock

of $31.88 the average during the period beginning two trading days before and ending two

trading days after February 72007 the announcement of the acquisition net of issuing costs

The fair value is calculated by multiplying the stock options outstanding at July 14

2008 by the option exchange ratio of 0.1569 calculated as defmed in the merger agreement

Great Plains Energy recorded $156.0 million of preliminary goodwill all of which is included in the electric

utility segment None of the goodwill is tax deductible The factors that contributed to purchase price that

resulted in goodwill were strategic considerations and significant cost savings and synergies including expanded

regulated electric utility business adjacent regulated electric utility territories increased GMO financial strength

and flexibility improved reliability and customer service and disposition of non-strategic gas operations

Changes to the initial allocation of the purchase price consisted of additional fair value adjustments to certain real

estate properties primarily offset by net operating loss valuation allowance adjustments
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In connection with the acquisition of GMO Great Plains Energy recognized an intangible liability of

approximately $25.9 million associated with the remaining natural gas contracts of MPS Merchant GMOs non-

regulated former wholesale energy trading operations that do not qualify as derivatives under SFAS No 133

Great Plains Energy recognized $0.6 million of amortization in 2008 The net carrying amount of this intangible

liability was approximately $25.3 million at December 31 2008 and is reported as component of other

liabilities on Great Plains Energys consolidated balance sheet The balance will be amortized into expense

through March 31 2017 based on volumes of the underlying contracts Amortization is estimated at $4.4

million $4.4 million $5.4 million $2.8 million and $2.0 million for 2009 2010 2011 2012 and 2013

respectively

The following table provides unaudited
pro

forma results of operations for Great Plains Energy for December 31

2008 as if the acquisition had occurred January 2008 The table also provides unaudited pro forma results of

operations for Great Plains Energy for December 31 2007 as if the acquisition had occurred January 2007

Pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of the actual results that would have resulted had the acquisition

actually occurred on January 2008 or January 2007

December31

2008 2007

millions except per share amounts

Operating revenues 2013.6 1944.3

Income from continuing operations 121.1 119.2

Net income 156.1 157.5

Earnings available for common shareholders 154.5 155.9

Basic and diluted earnings per common share from

continuing operations 1.18 1.00

Basic and diluted earnings per common share 1.53 1.33
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SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Great Plains Energy Other Operating Activities

Cash flows affected by changes in

Receivables

Fuel inventories

Materials and supplies

Accounts payable

Accrued taxes

Accrued interest

Deferred refueling outage costs

Accrued plant maintenance costs

Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations

Allowance for equity funds used during construction

Deferred acquisition costs

Proceeds fromthe sale of S02 emission allowances

T-Lock settlement

Fuel adjustment clauses

Proceeds from forward starting swaps

Other

2008 2007 2006

millions

61.9 80.0 80.8

16.7 9.3 10.7

3.7 4.2 2.8

56.2 43.3 68.1

73.2 17.3 22.5

17.8 0.7 0.7

5.9 7.4 5.9
2.1

3.1 17.6 3.6

24.2 2.5 5.0

15.8 18.3 2.8

0.4 24.0 0.8

41.2 4.5

18.0

3.3

17.8

52.6 24.4

7.9

Total other operating activities 49.4

Cash paid during the period

Interest 95.0 91.8 67.7

hicome taxes 27.1 33.6 77.7

Non-cash investing activities

Liabilities assumed for capital expenditures 104.7 72.5 38.7

KCPL Other Operating Activities

2008 2007 2006

Cash flows affected by changes in millions

Receivables 50.9 60.0 44.7

Fuel inventories 16.0 9.3 10.7

Materials and supplies 4.3 4.2 2.8

Accounts payable 57.3 20.6 52.4

Accrued taxes 81.3 5.9 16.5

Accrued interest 8.5 2.9 0.9

Deferred refueling outage costs 5.9 7.4 5.9

Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations 5.1 15.4 0.7

Allowance for equity funds used during construction 22.5 2.5 5.0

Proceeds from the sale of SO2 emission allowances 0.4 24.0 0.8

T-Lock settlement 41.2

Kansas Energy Cost Adjustment 1.6

Proceeds from forward starting swaps 3.3

Other 29.0 16.2 9.2

Total other operating activities 72.8 18.5 40.0

Cash paid during the period

Interest 63.0 68.3 57.9

Income taxes 23.5 39.8 70.9

Non-cash investing activities

Liabilities assumed for capital expenditures 90.8 72.4 38.2
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Significant Non-Cash Items

On July 14 2008 Great Plains Energy closed its acquisition of GMO The total purchase price of the acquisition

was approximately $1.7 billion The fair value of the 32.2 million shares of Great Plains Energy common stock

issued was approximately $1.0 billion Great Plains Energy paid approximately $0.7 billion of cash

consideration See Note for additional information

In May 2008 KCPLs Series 2008 EIRR bonds totaling $23.4 million maturing in 2038 were issued The

proceeds were deposited with trustee At December 31 2008 KCPL had received $13.4 million in cash

proceeds and had $10.0 million short-term receivable for the proceeds that were deposited with the trustee

In 2008 KCPL recorded $12.6 million net increase in AROs consisting of $14.2 million increase as result

of changes in cost estimates and timing used to compute the present value of asbestos AROs for KCPLs
generating stations with corresponding increase in net utility plant and decrease of $1.6 million resulting from

an update to the cost estimates to decommission Wolf Creek with corresponding increase in regulatory

liabilities This activity had no impact on Great Plains Energys or KCPLs 2008 cash flows See Note for

additional information

In February 2007 Great Plains Energy issued 5.2 million shares of common stock in satisfaction of the FELINE
PRiDES stock purchase contracts and the redemption of the $163.6 million FELINE PRIDES Senior Notes

RECEIVABLES

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs receivables are detailed in the following table

December31

2008 2007

KCPL millions

Customer accounts receivable billed 15.5 7.6

Customer accounts receivable unbilled 41.7 37.7

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.2 1.2

Intercompany receivables 28.5 10.5

Otherreceivables 77.1 121.8

Total 161.6 176.4

Great Plains Energy

Customer accounts receivable billed 61.3 7.6

Customer accounts receivable unbilled 69.9 37.7

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3.5 1.2
Other receivables 143.1 132.4

Elimination of KCPL intercompany receivables 28.5 10.5

Total 242.3 166.0

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs other receivables at December 31 2008 and 2007 consisted primarily of

receivables from partners in jointly owned electric utility plants and wholesale sales receivables
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Sale of Accounts Receivable KCPL
KCPL sells all of its retail electric accounts receivable to its wholly owned subsidiary Receivables Company

which in turn sells an undivided percentage ownership interest in the accounts receivable to Victory Receivables

Corporation an independent outside investor In accordance with SFAS No 140 Accounting for Transfers and

Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities the sales under these agreements qualif as

sale under which the creditors of Receivables Company are entitled to be satisfied out of the assets of Receivables

Company prior to any value being returned to KCPL or its creditors Accounts receivable sold by Receivables

Company to the outside investor under this revolving agreement totaled $70.0 million at December 31 2008 and

2007 KCPL sells its receivables at fixed price based upon the expected cost of funds and charge-offs These

costs comprise KCPLs loss on the sale of accounts receivable KCPL services the receivables and receives

an annual servicing fee of 1.3% to 2.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the receivables sold to

Receivables Company KCPL does not recognize servicing asset or liability because management determined

the collection agent fee earned by KCPL approximates market value The agreement expires July 2009 and

KCPL intends to renew the agreement

Information regarding KCPLs sale of accounts receivable to Receivables Company is reflected in the following

tables

Receiabes Consolidated

2008 KCPL Company KCPL
millions

Receivables sold purchased 1147.3 1147.3

Gam loss on sale of accounts receivable 14.5 14.4 0.1

Servicing fees 1.7 1.7

Fees to outside investor 2.6 2.6

Cash flo during the period

Cash fromcustomers transferred to Receivables Company 1142.1 1142.1

Cash paid to KCPL for receivables purchased 1127.8 1127.8

Servicing fees 1.7 1.7
Interest on intercompany note 1.9 1.9

Recei%ables Consolidated

2007 KCPL Company KCPL
millions

Receivables sold purchased 1082.6 1082.6

Gain loss on sale of accounts receivable 13.3 13.0 0.3

Servicing fees 3.1 3.1
Fees to outside investor 4.1 4.1

Cash flovs during the period

Cash from customers transferred to Receivables Company 1078.8 1078.8

Cash paid to KCPL for receivables purchased 1065.9 1065.9

Servicing fees 3.1 3.1

Interest on intercompany note 3.1 3.1

Any net gain loss is the result of the timing difference inherent in collecting receivables and

over the life of the agreement will net to zero
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On July 14 2008 Great Plains Energy closed its acquisition of GMO GMO has several real estate properties that

will not be used As result these real estate properties are available for immediate sale in their present condition

and management is actively marketing these properties The carrying amounts for these assets are presented at

fair value less estimated selling cost and are included in assets held for sale on Great Plains Energys balance

sheet Of the $16.3 million of assets held for sale at December 31 2008 $11.9 million is included in the electric

utility segment and the remaining $4.4 million is included in the other category

NUCLEAR PLANT

KCPL owns 47% of Wolf Creek its only nuclear generating unit Wolf Creek is regulated by the Nuclear

Regulatory Commission NRC with respect to licensing operations and safety-related requirements

Spent Nuclear Fuel and High-Level Radioactive Waste
Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 the Department of Energy DOE is responsible for the permanent

disposal of spent nuclear fuel KCPL pays the DOE quarterly fee of one-tenth of cent for each kWh of net

nuclear generation delivered and sold for the future disposal of spent nuclear fuel These disposal costs are

charged to fuel expense On June 2008 the DOE filed with the NRC an application for authority to construct

national repository for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste at Yucca Mountain

Nevada On September 2008 the NRC found the application sufficiently complete to undergo technical

licensing review and therefore docketed the application The DOE has indicated that assuming the NRC
approves the application in the next three to four years the DOE could be ready to begin accepting spent nuclear

fuel by 2020 but only if Congress provides adequate funding for the project Management cannot predict when
this site may be available for Wolf Creek Under current DOE policy once permanent site is available the

DOE will accept spent nuclear fuel first from the owners with the older spent fuel Wolf Creek has completed an

on-site storage facility designed to hold all spent fuel generated at the plant through 2025 and believes it will be

able to expand on-site storage as needed past 2025 If the DOE meets its revised timetable for accepting spent

fuel for disposal by 2020 management expects that the DOE could begin accepting some of Wolf Creeks spent

fuel by 2028 Management can make no assurance that the DOE will meet its revised timetable and will continue

to monitor this activity See Note 17 for related legal proceeding

Low-Level Radioactive Waste

Wolf Creek disposes of most of its low-level radioactive waste Class waste at an existing third-party

repository in Utah Wolf Creek previously disposed of the remainder of its low-level radioactive waste Class
and Class waste which is higher in radioactivity but much lower in volume at disposal site in Barnwell

South Carolina However effective July 2008 the state of South Carolina no longer accepts low-level

radioactive waste at Bamwell except for waste from generators located in South Carolina Connecticut and New
Jersey Wolf Creek has storage capacity on site for about four

years generation of Class and Class waste

Management expects that the site located in Utah will remain available to Wolf Creek for disposal of its low-level

radioactive waste Should disposal capability become unavailable management believes Wolf Creek will be able

to store its low-level radioactive waste in an on-site facility and that temporary loss of low-level radioactive

waste disposal capability would not affect Wolf Creeks continued operation
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Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs

The MPSC and KCC require KCPL and the other owners of Wolf Creek to submit an updated decommissioning

cost study every
three years and to propose funding levels The most recent study was submitted to the MPSC

and KCC in August 2008 and is the basis for the current cost of decommissioning estimates in the following table

KCPL did not request an increase in funding levels and estimated that the current annual contribution will be

adequate to cover the decommissioning costs of Wolf Creek

Total KCPLs
Station 47% Share

millions

Current cost of decommissioning in 2008 dollars 594 279

Future cost of decommissioning in 2045-2053 dollars 1568

Annual escalation factor 4.40%

Annual return on trust assets 6.48%

Total future cost over an eight year decommissioning period

The 6.48% rate of return is through 2025 The rate then systentically decreases

through 2053 to 2.82% based on the assumption that the funds investnnt mix

will becon increasingly nre conservative as the decommissioning period

approaches

KCPL currently contributes approximately $3.7 million annually to tax-qualified trust fund to be used to

decommission Wolf Creek Amounts funded are charged to other operating expense and recovered in customers

rates The funding level assumes projected level of return on trust assets If the actual return on trust assets is

below the anticipated level KCPL could be responsible for the balance of funds required however while there

can be no assurances management believes rate increase would be allowed ensuring full
recovery

of

decommissioning costs over the remaining life of the unit

The following table sunimarizes the change in Great Plains Energys and KCPLs decommissioning trust fund

December31 2008 2007

Decommissioning Trust millions

Beginning balance 110.5 104.1

Contributions 3.7 3.7

Earned incon net of fees 3.3 1.6

Net realized gains/losses 8.2 3.3

Net unrealized losses 12.4 2.2

Ending balance 96.9 110.5
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The decommissioning trust is reported at fair value on the balance sheets and is invested in assets as detailed in

the following table

December31

2008 2007

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Gains/Losses Value Gains

millions

Equity securities 34.6 5.3 51.6 7.6

Debt securities 59.9 1.0 55.9 0.5

Other 2.4 3.0

Total 96.9 4.3 110.5 8.1

The weighted average maturity of debt securities held by the trust at December 31 2008 and 2007 was

approximately 7.0 years The costs of securities sold are determined on the basis of specific identification The

following table summarizes the gains and losses from the sale of securities by the nuclear decommissioning trust

fund

2008 2007 2006

millions

Realized Gains 2.7 6.1 5.0

Realized Losses 10.9 2.8 0.9

Nuclear Insurance

The owners of Wolf Creek Owners maintain nuclear insurance for Wolf Creek in three areas nuclear liability

nuclear property and accidental outage These policies contain certain industry standard exclusions including

but not limited to ordinary wear and tear and war The nuclear property insurance programs subscribed to by

members of the nuclear power generating industry include industry aggregate limits for acts of terrorism and

related losses including replacement power costs There is no industry aggregate limit for liability claims

regardless of the number of acts affecting Wolf Creek or any other nuclear energy liability policy or the number

of policies in place An industry aggregate limit of $3.2 billion plus any reinsurance recoverable by Nuclear

Electric Insurance Limited NEIL the Owners insurance provider exists for property claims including

accidental outage power costs for acts of terrorism affecting Wolf Creek or any other nuclear energy facility

property policy within twelve months from the date of the first act These limits plus any recoverable reinsurance

are the maximum amount to be paid to members who sustain losses or damages from these types of terrorist acts

In addition industry-wide retrospective assessment programs discussed below can apply once these insurance

programs have been exhausted

In the event of catastrophic loss at Wolf Creek the insurance
coverage may not be adequate to cover property

damage and extra
expenses incurred Uninsured losses to the extent not recovered through rates would be

assumed by KCPL and the other owners and could have material adverse effect on KCPLs results of

operations financial position and cash flows

Nuclear Liability Insurance

Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act which was reauthorized through December 31 2025 by the Energy Policy

Act of 2005 the Owners are required to insure against public liability claims resulting from nuclear incidents to

the full limit of public liability which is currently $12.5 billion This limit of liability consists of the maximum
available commercial insurance of $0.3 billion and the remaining $12.2 billion is provided through an industry

wide retrospective assessment program mandated by law known as the Secondary Financial Protection SFP
program Under the SFP program the Owners can be assessed up to $117.5 million $55.2 million KCPLs
47% share per incident at any commercial reactor in the country payable at no more than $17.5 million $8.2
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million KCPLs 47% share per incident per year This assessment is subject to an inflation adjustment based

on the Consumer Price Index and applicable premium taxes In addition the U.S Congress could impose

additional revenue-raising measures to pay claims

Nuclear Property Insurance

The Owners carry decontamination liability premature decommissioning liability and property damage insurance

for Wolf Creek totaling approximately $2.8 billion $1.3 billion KCPLs 47% share NEIL provides this

insurance

In the event of an accident insurance proceeds must first be used for reactor stabilization and site

decontamination in accordance with plan mandated by the NRC KCPLs share of any remaining proceeds

can be used for further decontamination property damage restoration and premature decommissioning costs

Premature decommissioning coverage applies only if an accident at Wolf Creek exceeds $500 million in property

damage and decontamination expenses and only after trust funds have been exhausted

Accidental Nuclear Outage Insurance

The Owners also carry additional insurance from NEIL to cover costs of replacement power and other extra

expenses incurred in the event of prolonged outage resulting from accidental property damage at Wolf Creek

Under all NEIL policies the Owners are subject to retrospective assessments if NEIL losses for each policy year

exceed the accumulated funds available to the insurer under that policy The estimated maximum amount of

retrospective assessments under the current policies could total approximately $23.3 million $11.0 million

KCPLs 47% share per policy year
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REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulatory Proceedings

On September 2008 KCPL filed requests for annual rate increases with the MPSC and KCC and GMO filed

requests for annual rate increases with the MPSC with new rates expected to be effective in the third quarter of

2009 The following table summarizes the
requests

Annual Revenue Increase

Additional Return Rate-making

Rate Jurisdiction File Date Traditional Amortization Total on Equity Equity Ratio

millions

GMO MPS 9/5/2008 66.0 66.0 10.75% 53.82%

GMO 9/5/2008 17.1 17.1 10.75% 53.82%

GMO Steam 9/5/2008 1.3 1.3 10.75% 53.82%

KCPLMO 9/5/2008 86.4 15.1 101.5 10.75% 53.82%

KCPLKS 9/5/2008 60.4 11.2 71.6 10.75% 55.39%

Total 231.2 26.3 257.5

Rate Jurisdiction Areas

liMO MPS Represents the area served by GMOs Missouri Public Service division

GMO LP Represents the area served by lIMOs St Joseph Light Power division

GMO Steam GMO steam customers in the St Joseph Missouri area

KCPL MO KCPL Missouri customers not in former Aquila service territory

KCPL KS KCPL Kansas customers

The amounts in this column reflect the revenue requirements calculated using the traditional rate case

methodologies which exclude additional amortization amounts to help maintain cash flow levels

Excludes amounts recovered through KCPLs Kansas ECA and most of GMOs FAC and QCA

In February 2009 the MPSC and KCC staffs filed their respective testimony regarding the requests for annual

rate increases filed by KCPL and GMO The following table details the rate increases recommended by the

MPSC and KCC staffs by KCPL and GMO jurisdiction

Annual Revenue Increase

Additional Return Rate-making

Rate Jurisdiction Traditional Amortization Total on Equity Equity Ratio

millions

GMO MPS 46.0 46.0 9.75% 1.03%

GMO LP 22.8 22.8 9.75% 1.03%

GMO Steam 1.0 1.0 9.75% 51.03%

KCPL MO 45.2 45.2 9.75% 50.65%

KCPLKS 42.6 11.2 53.8 11.40% 50.76%

Total 157.6 11.2 168.8

Annual revenue increase and return on equity based on the mid-point ofMPSC staffs return on

equity range

Amount not included in the MPSC staffs February 2009 testimony but will be included in the

second quarter 2009 true up
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KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan and Collaboration Agreement

Current estimates for KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan latan No and latan No projects are as follows

In the first quarter of 2009 KCPL completed construction of the latan No environmental project and

latan common facilities KCPLs share of the total projected cost excluding AFUDC is in the table

below and includes KCPLs 70% share of costs directly associated with latan No and KCPLs 61%

share of estimated costs of latan common facilities that will be used by both latan No and latan No

The vast majority of the common facilities costs were previously included in the latan No cost

estimates disclosed in the Companys quarterly reports on Form l0-Q during 2008 Great Plains

Energys total share of latan No is 88% which consists of KCPLs 70% share and GMOs 18%

share Great Plains Energys total share of latan common facilities is 79% which consists of KCPL
61% share and GMO 18% share Great Plains Energys share of the total projected cost excluding

AFUDC of the latan No environmental project and latan common facilities is in the table below

latan No has been off-line for scheduled outage since mid-October 2008 for unit overhaul and to tie

in the environmental equipment latan No was originally scheduled to be back on-line in February

2009 but during start-up high level of vibration was experienced Repairs to the turbine could delay

the in-service date of latan No by up to two months Management believes that delay of that

duration could still be accommodated in the current KCPL and GMO rate cases however there could

be corresponding delay in the effective date of the MPSC rate orders from the current August 2009

date Management is unable to predict the length of such delay if any

KCPLs approximate 55% share of the total projected cost of latan No excluding AFUDC is in the

table below The reduction in the
range

from the previously disclosed latan No cost estimates reflects

removal of costs for common facilities discussed above These costs were previously included in the

latan No cost estimates disclosed in the Companys quarterly reports on Form l0-Q during 2008

Great Plains Energys total share of latan No is 73% which consists of KCPLs 55% share and

GMO 18% share Great Plains Energys 73% share of the total projected cost excluding AFUDC of

latan No is in the table below The anticipated in-service date for latan No is the summer of 2010

KCPL
Current Estimate Previous Estimate

Range Range Change

millions

Iatan No 70% share 242 262 330 350 88 88
latan No 255% share 847 904 994 1051 147 147

latan Common 61% share 235 235 235 235

Total 1324 1401 1324 1401

Great Plains Energy

Current Estimate Previous Estimate

Range Range Change

millions

latan No 88% share 307 332 415 440 108 108

latan No 273% share 1125 1201 1321 1397 196 196

latan Common 79% share 304 304 304 304

Total 1736 1837 1736 1837
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In March 2007 KCPL the Sierra Club and the Concerned Citizens of Platte County entered into

Collaboration Agreement that resolved disputes among the parties KCPL agreed to pursue set of initiatives

including energy efficiency additional wind generation lower emission permit levels at its latan and LaCygne

generating stations and other initiatives designed to offset CO2 emissions KCPL will address these matters in

its future integrated energy resource plan in collaboration with stakeholders Full implementation of the terms of

the agreement will necessitate approval from the appropriate authorities as some of the initiatives in the

agreement require either enabling legislation or regulatory approval

In the Collaboration Agreement KCPL agreed to use its best efforts to install emission control technologies to

reduce certain emissions from the LaCygne Station prior to the required compliance date under the Environmental

Protection Agency EPA best available retrofit technology rule BART but in no event later than June 2015

KCPL further agreed to issue requests for proposal for the equipment required to comply with BART by

December 31 2008 requesting that construction commence by December 31 2010 and has done so KCPLs
Comprehensive Energy Plan includes project to install the required emission control technologies at LaCygne
No for completion in 2009 Demand for environmental equipment has increased substantially leading to

extremely long lead times for equipment As result the LaCygne No project will not be completed in 2009

Since KCPL must also install such emission control technologies at LaCygne No management continues to

evaluate the timing of the required environmental upgrades for both LaCygne Nos and Management has

selected an owners engineer for the LaCygne Station environmental project and will focus on the project design

in 2009

KCPL also agreed in the Collaboration Agreement to pursue increasing its wind generation capacity by 100MW

by the end of 2010 KCPL had entered into agreements to acquire 100MW of wind generation for

approximately $215 million In October 2008 KCPL provided notice to terminate this contract and began

discussions with the developer to explore alternatives Subsequently KCPL entered into new agreements with

the developer in February 2009 The developer has assigned to KCPL its contract with the wind turbine

manufacturer to purchase thirty-two turbines for purchase price of approximately $68 million plus

approximately $17 million to be paid by KCPL to the developer for various third party development and

assignment costs KCPL deposit of approximately $42 million under the original terminated agreement will

be applied to the purchase price KCPL and the developer also entered into an agreement for the construction of

thirty-five turbine project with May 31 2010 estimated project completion date for an approximate price of

$118 million This construction agreement contains an absolute and unconditional option for KCPL to

terminate the agreement on or before September 30 2009 for an upfront payment of $7.5 million which will be

applied to the price if the option is not exercised by KCPL Also in the Collaboration Agreement KCPL
agreed to pursue an additional 00MW of wind generation capacity by the end of 2012 subject to regulatory

approval

KCPL Missouri 2006 Rate Case Appeal

On December 21 2006 the MPSC issued an order approving an approximate $51 million increase in annual

revenues effective January 2007 Appeals of the MPSC order were filed in February 2007 with the Circuit

Court of Cole County Missouri by the Office of Public Counsel Praxair Inc and Trigen-Kansas City Energy

Corporation seeking to set aside or remand the order to the MPSC The court affirmed the MPSCs decision in

December 2007 and that decision was appealed by Trigen-Kansas City Energy Corporation Trigen-Kansas City

Energy Corporation withdrew its appeal on June 2008
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GMO Missouri 2007 Rate Case Appeal

Appeals of the MPSC order were filed in July and August of 2007 with the Circuit Court of Cole County

Missouri by the Office of Public Counsel AG Processing Sedalia Industrial Energy Users Association and

AARP seeking to set aside or remand the order of the MPSC In February 2009 the Circuit Court affirmed the

MPSC order This decision may be appealed The order remains in effect unless reversed by the courts

GMO RTO Application

GMOs application to transfer functional control of its transmission system to the Midwest Independent

Transmission System Operator Inc MISO RTO was denied by the MPSC in October 2008 In December 2008

GMO submitted request to FERC to withdraw from MISO based on this MPSC denial GMO and MISO are

negotiating an agreement regarding this exit under which GMO would pay an insignificant amount of exit fees to

MISO This agreement is awaiting FERC approval

In November 2008 GMO requested MPSC authorization to transfer functional control of its transmission system

to the Southwest Power Pool Inc SPP On February 2009 the MPSC approved Stipulation and Agreement

between GMO and several parties thereby granting GMO the authorized request

Great Plains Energys Acquisition of GMO
See Note for discussion of the pending appeals of the MPSC order authorizing the acquisition

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Great Plains Energy and KCPL are subject to the provisions of SFAS No 71 and have recorded assets and liabilities

on its balance sheet resulting from the effects of the ratemaking process which would not otherwise be recorded

under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles GAAP Regulatory assets represent incurred costs that are

probable of recovery from future revenues Regulatory liabilities represent amounts imposed by rate actions of

KCPLs or GMOs regulators that may require refunds to customers amounts provided in current rates that are

intended to recover costs that are expected to be incurred in the future for which KCPL and GMO remain

accountable or gain or other reduction of allowable costs to be given to customers over future periods Future

recovery of regulatory assets is not assured but is generally subject to review by regulators in rate proceedings for

matters such as prudence and reasonableness Future reductions in revenue or refunds for regulatory liabilities

generally are not mandated pending future rate proceedings or actions by the regulators Management regularly

assesses whether regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future recovery or refund by considering factors such

as decisions by the MPSC KCC or FERC on KCPLs and GMOs rate case filings decisions in other regulatory

proceedings including decisions related to other companies that establish precedent on matters applicable to KCPL
or GMO and changes in laws and regulations If recovery or refund of regulatory assets or liabilities is not approved

by regulators or is no longer deemed probable these regulatory assets or liabilities are recognized in the current period

results of operations KCPLs and GMOs continued ability to meet the criteria for application of SFAS No 71

may be affected in the future by restructuring and deregulation in the electric industry In the event that SFAS No 71

no longer applied to deregulated portion of KCPLs and GMOs operations the related regulatory assets and

liabilities would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory recovery mechanism is provided Additionally these

factors could result in an impairment of utility plant assets if the cost of the assets could not be expected to be

recovered in customer rates Whether an asset has been impaired is determined pursuant to the requirements of SFAS

No 144
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Great Plains Energys and KCPLs regulatory assets and liabilities are detailed in the following tables

Great

December 31 2008 KCPL GMO Plains Energy

Regulatory Assets millions

Taxes recoverable through future rates 71.6 46.8 118.4

Loss on reacquired debt 57 0.3 6.0

Cost of removal 9.6 9.6

Asset retirement obligations 21.1 12.0 33.1

SFAS No 158 pension and post-retirement costs 355.8 355.8

Other pension and post-retirement costs 79.8 63.0 142.8

Environmental remediation 2.0 2.0

Deferred customer programs 22.6 0.4 23.0

Rate case expenses 2.9 0.6

Skill set realignment costs 7.5 7.5

Under-recoveiy of energy costs 1.6 52.0 53.6

Acquisition transition costs 25.5 17.6 43.1

St Joseph Light Power acquisition 3.6 3.6

Storm damage 6.4 6.4

Other 5.4 11.0 16.4

Total 609.1 215.7 824.8

Regulatory Liabilities

Emission allowances 86.5 1.0 87.5

Asset retirement obligations 22.7 22.7

Pension 25.0 25.0

Cost ofremoval 58.1 58.1

Other 6.6 9.5 16.1

Total 115.8 93.6 209.4
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KCPL and

December 31 2007 Great Plains Energy

Regulatory Assets millions

Taxes recoverable through future rates 66.5

Loss on reacquired debt 5.9

Change in depreciable life of Wolf Creek 45.4

Cost of removal 8.4

Asset retirement obligations 18.5

SFAS No 158 pension and post-retirement costs 146.8

Other pension and post-retirement costs 76.1

Deferred customer programs 11.6

Rate case expenses 3.2

Skill set realignment costs 8.9

Other 8.8

Total 400.1

Regulatory Liabilities

Emission allowances 87.5

Asset retirement obligations 39.4

Additional Wolf Creek amortization Missouri 14.6

Other 2.6

Total 144.1

Amortized over the life of the related new debt issuances or the remaining lives of the old debt issuances

if no new debt was issued

KCPLs regulatory asset for SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and

Other Postretirement Plans pension and post-retirement costs at December 31 2008 is more than offset

by related liabilities not included in rate base

KCPLs regulatory asset for other pension and post-retirement costs at December 31 2008 includes

$56.3 million representing pension settlements and financial and regulatory accounting method

differences not included in rate base The pension settlements totaling $9.9 million are being amortized

over five-year period which began January 2008 The accounting method difference will be

eliminated over the life of the pension plans GMOs regulatory asset for other pension and post-

retirement costs at December 31 2008 includes $45.3 million representing financial and regulatory

accounting method differences not included in rate base that will be eliminated over the life of the

pension plans

$8.7 million not included in rate base

$2.2 million and $0.6 million at KCPL and GMO respectively not included in rate base and amortized

over various periods

$3.6 million not included in rate base and amortized through 2017

Not included in rate base

Certain insignificant items are not included in rate base and amortized over various periods

Estimated cumulative net provision for future removal costs

Consistent with current ratemaking treatment in Missouri and Kansas KCPL reclassified the regulatory

assets for change in depreciable life of Wolf Creek of $45.4 million Missouri and Kansas and the

regulatory liability for additional Wolf Creek amortization Missouri of$14.6 million at December 31

2007 to accumulated depreciation in the second quarter of 2008
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs intangible assets are detailed in the following table

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

Cross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

KCPL millions

Computer software 136.7 95.4 111.9 84.7

Great Plains Energy

Computer software 160.5 106.0 112.4 84.9

Transmission line upgrades 22.1 3.3

organization start-up costs 0.1

Included in electric utility plant on the consolidated balance sheets

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Asset retirement obligations associated with tangible long-lived assets are those for which legal obligation exists

under enacted laws statutes and written or oral contracts including obligations arising under the doctrine of

promissory estoppel These liabilities are recognized at estimated fair value as incurred and capitalized as part of

the cost of the related long-lived assets and depreciated over their useful lives Accretion of the liabilities due to

the
passage

of time is recorded as an operating expense Changes in the estimated fair values of the liabilities are

recognized when known

In 2008 KCPL recorded $1.6 million reduction to its ARO to decommission Wolf Creek which reflects

2008 update to the decommissioning study cost estimates

Asbestos abatement activity has occurred on certain generating units at KCPLs Hawthorn Station resulting in

revision in timing used in computing the original present value of the asbestos ARO Management was able to

perform an analysis to update prior cost estimates determining an increase in comparison to previous estimates

used in computing the original asbestos ARO As result of the increased costs experienced in the project at

KCPLs Hawthorn station management performed an analysis to update prior cost estimates for KCPLs
Montrose and LaCygne Stations determining an increase in comparison to previous estimates As result of

these changes KCPL recorded $14.2 million increase in the ARO for asbestos abatement with

corresponding increase in asset retirement costs in utility plant since December 31 2007

In addition management identified an additional asbestos ARO The wiring used in generating stations includes

asbestos insulation which would require special handling if disturbed Due to the inability to reasonably estimate

the quantities or the amount of disturbance that will be
necessary during dismantlement at the end of the life of

plant fair value of the obligation cannot be reasonably estimated at this time Management will continue to

monitor the obligation and will recognize liability in the period in which sufficient information becomes

available to reasonably estimate its fair value

KCPL also has AROs related to decommissioning and site remediation of its Spearville Wind Energy Facility

and for an ash pond and landfill GMO has AROs related to asbestos in certain plants and buildings an ash pond

and landfill removal of storage tanks and transformers containing PCBs as well as communication towers
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The following tables summarize the change in Great Plains Energys and KCPLs AROs

Great Plains Energy

December31 2008 2007

millions

Beginning balance 94.5 91.8

Additions 1.4

Revision in timing and/or estimates 12.6

GMO acquisition 11.7

Settlements 3.2 1.1

Accretion 7.3 3.8

Ending balance 124.3 94.5

KCPL
December31 2008 2007

millions

Beginning balance 94.5 91.8

Additions 1.4

Revis ion in timing and/or estimates 12.6

Settlements 3.2 1.1

Accretion 6.6 3.8

Ending balance 111.9 94.5

10 PENSION PLANS OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND SKILL SET REALIGNMENT COSTS

Pension Plans and Other Employee Benefits

The Company maintains defined benefit pension plans for substantially all active and inactive employees

including officers of KCPL GMO and WCNOC and incurs significant costs in providing the plans Pension

benefits under these plans reflect the employees compensation years of service and age at retirement

Effective January 2008 the Company amended the defined benefit pension plan for KCPL management

employees to allow cunent employees the option to remain in the existing program or to choose new retirement

program which will provide among other things an enhanced benefit under the employee savings plan and

lower benefit accrual rate under the defined pension benefit plan KCPL employees hired after September

2007 have been placed in the new retirement program

KCPL and GMO record pension expense in accordance with rate orders from the MPSC and KCC that allow

the difference between pension costs under SFAS No 87 Employers Accounting for Pensions and SFAS No

88 Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for

Termination Benefits and pension costs for ratemaking to be recognized as regulatory asset or liability This

difference between financial and regulatory accounting methods will be eliminated over the life of the pension

plans

In addition to providing pension benefits the Company provides certain post-retirement health care and life

insurance benefits for substantially all retired employees of KCPL GMO and WCNOC The post-retirement

plan reflects the Companys amended cost-sharing policy for the bargaining plan The change increased the

accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation $18.7 million The cost of post-retirement benefits charged to

KCPL and GMO are accrued during an employees years of service and recovered through rates
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As result of the GMO acquisition on July 14 2008 the Companys 2008 pension and post-retirement expenses

under SFAS No 87 and SFAS No 106 Employers Accounting for Post-retirement Benefits Other Than

Pensions increased $2.4 million and $1.1 million respectively The under funded status of the pension and

other benefit plans transferred at the date of acquisition was $48.9 million

Current and former employees of GMO electric and gas utility operations that were acquired by Black Hills

participated in GMO qualified pension plan non-qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP and

other post-retirement benefit plan Under the asset purchase agreements Black Hills assumed the accrued

pension obligations owed to the former current and former employees of the operations it acquired After the July

2008 closing approximately $107.5 million of qualified benefit plan assets were transferred by GMO to

comparable plan established by Black Hills in accordance with terms of the asset purchase agreements estimated

to be 95% of the amount required to be transferred under applicable Employee Retirement Income Security Act of

1974 as amended ERISA regulations The determination of the final amount of plan assets to be transferred is

expected to be completed by plan actuaries in the first quarter of 2009 The tables below are after reflecting the

Companys best estimate of the total transfer

The Company adopted the recognition requirements of SFAS No 158 on December 31 2006 The Company

adopted the measurement date provision of SFAS No 158 effective December 31 2008 The measurement date

provision requires plan assets and liabilities to be measured as of the date of the employers fiscal year-end In

prior years the plan measurement date for the majority of the Companys plans was September 30 In lieu of

remeasuring plan assets and obligations as of January 2008 the Company elected to calculate the net periodic

benefit cost for the fifteen-month period from September 30 2007 to December 31 2008 using the September

30 2007 measurement date The adoption of the measurement date provision resulted in KCPL recording an

adjustment of $14.1 million to regulatory asset in accordance with regulatory treatment In addition $0.1

million related to non-regulated entities was recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings

The following pension benefits tables provide information relating to the funded status of all defined benefit

pension plans on an aggregate basis as well as the components of net periodic benefit costs In 2007
contributions of $6.8 million and $7.2 million were made to the pension plan and post-retirement benefit plans

respectively after the measurement date For financial reporting purposes the market value of plan assets is the

fair value KCPL uses five-year smoothing of assets to determine fair value for regulatory reporting purposes

Net periodic benefit costs reflect total plan benefit costs prior to the effects of capitalization and sharing with

joint-owners of power plants
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Pension Benefits

2008 2007

Other Benefits

2008 2007

millionsChange in projected benefit obligation PRO
PBO at beginning of year 512.9 508.8 73.7 51.5

Service cost 20.8 18.4 1.7 1.2

Interest cost 37.6 29.8 5.7 3.9

Contribution by participants 3.0 2.0

Amendments 0.8 18.7 19.5

Actuarial loss gain 42.9 9.6 1.2 1.7

Benefits paid 37.1 35.9 7.0 3.6

Early measurement adjustment 1.0 0.3

GMO acquisition 194.4 38.1

Special termination benefits 2.2 0.9

PBO at end of plan year 772.5 512.9 135.4 73.7

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 400.1 364.5 14.0 13.4

Actual return on plan assets 145.6 44.1 3.8 3.2
Contributions by employer and participants 28.7 27.0 11.0 6.7

Benefits paid 36.6 35.5 5.7 2.9

Early measurement adjustment 4.0 7.9

GMO acquisition 168.1 15.5

Fair value ofplan assets at end of plan year 418.7 400.1 38.9 14.0

Fundedstatus atendofyear 353.8 112.8 96.5 59.7

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Current pension and otherpost-retirement liability 3.9 0.5 0.8 0.8
Noncurrent pension liability

and other post-retirement liability 349.9 112.3 95.7 58.9

Contributions and changes after measurement date 6.8 7.2

Net amount recognized before regulatoiy treatment 353.8 106.0 96.5 52.5

Accumulated OCI or regulatory asset 420.2 185.4 59.1 37.8

Net amount recognized at December31 66.4 79.4 37.4 14.7

Amounts in accumulated OCI or regulatory asset not

yet recognized as component of net periodic cost

Actuarial loss 273.3 86.1 19.1 13.8

Prior service cost 17.9 23.1 33.4 18.1

Transition obligation 0.2 0.2 4.4 5.8

Other 128.8 76.0 2.2 0.1

Net amount recognized at December31 420.2 185.4 59.1 37.8
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Great Plains Energy

Year to Date December 31

Components of net periodic benefit costs

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Prior service cost

Recognized net actuarial loss

Transition obligation

Special termination benefits

Settlement charges

Net periodic benefit costs before

regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment

Net periodic benefit costs

Other changes in plan assets and benefit

obligations recognized in OCI or

regulatory assets

Current year net loss gain
Amortization of loss

Prior service cost credit

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization oftransition obligation

Other regulatory activity

Total recognized in OCI or regulatory asset

Total recognized in net periodic benefit costs

and OCI or regulatory asset

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

millions

20.8 18.4 18.8 1.7 1.2 0.9

37.6 29.8 30.9 5.7 3.9 3.0

38.6 29.5 32.7 1.0 0.7 0.6
4.2 4.3 4.3 2.7 2.1 0.2

32.3 35.3 31.8 0.6 0.5 0.9

0.1 0.1 0.1 1.2 1.2 1.2

23.1

56.4 59.9 76.3 10.9 8.4 5.6

3.5 9.1 52.3 0.1
52.9 50.8 24.0 10.9 8.3 5.6

227.1 23.4 6.0 2.7

39.9 35.3 0.7 0.5

0.9 18.7 19.6

5.2 4.3 3.4 2.1

0.1 1.4 1.2

52.8 9.1 2.1 0.1

234.8 54.9 21.3 18.6

1.5 0.2

Includes the effect of SFAS No 158 remeasurement adjustment

$287.7 4.1 24.0 32.2 26.9 5.6
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KCPL
Pension Benefits Other Benefits

YeartoDateDecember3l 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Components of net periodic benefit costs millions

Service cost 19.7 18.0 18.6 1.7 1.1 0.9

Interest cost 35.6 29.2 30.5 5.6 3.8 2.9

Expected return on plan assets 36.5 28.9 32.2 1.0 0.6 0.6
Prior service cost 4.0 4.2 4.3 2.7 2.0 0.2

Recognized net actuarial loss 30.6 34.5 31.4 0.6 0.5 0.9

Transition obligation 0.1 0.1 0.1 1.2 1.2 1.1

Special termination benefits 1.5 0.1

Settlement charges 22.7

Net periodic benefit costs before

regulatory adjustment 53.5 58.6 75.4 10.8 8.1 5.4

Regulatory adjustment 4.5 9.1 52.3 0.1
Net periodic benefit costs 49.0 49.5 23.1 10.8 8.0 5.4

Other changes in plan assets and benefit

obligations recognized in OCI or

regulatory assets

Current year net loss gain 215.0 23.0 5.8 2.7

Amortization of loss 39.8 34.5 0.7 0.5
Prior service cost credit 0.8 18.7 19.2

Amortization of prior service cost 5.2 4.2 3.4 2.0
Amortization of transition obligation 0.1 0.1 1.4 1.2
Other regulatory activity 8.6 9.1 2.1 0.1

Total recognized in OClorregulatoty asset 178.5 53.5 21.1 18.3

Total recognized in net periodic benefit costs

and OCI orregulatoty asset $227.5 4.0 23.1 31.9 26.3 5.4

Includes the effect of SFAS No 158 remeasurement adjustment

The estimated prior service cost net loss and transition costs for the defined benefit plans that will be amortized

from accumulated OCI or regulatory asset into net periodic benefit cost in 2009 are $4.2 million $36.5 million

and $0.1 million respectively The estimated prior service cost net loss and transition costs for the other post

retirement benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated OCI or regulatory asset into net periodic

benefit cost in 2009 are $4.2 million $0.2 million and $1.2 million respectively For financial reporting

purposes net actuarial gains and losses are recognized on rolling five-year average basis For regulatory

reporting purposes net actuarial gains and losses are amortized over ten years
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The accumulated benefit obligation ABO for all defined benefit pension plans was $675.7 million and $423.8

million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The PBO ABO and the fair value of plan assets at plan

year-end are aggregated by funded and under funded plans in the following table

2008 2007

Pension plans vsith the ABO in excess of plan assets millions

Projected benefit obligation 772.5 327.5

Accumulated benefit obligation 675.7 266.4

Fairvalue ofplan assets 418.7 220.1

Pension plans with plan assets in excess of the ABO

Projected benefit obligation 185.4

Accumulated benefit obligation 157.4

Fair value ofplan assets 180.0

The GMO SERP is reflected as an unfunded ABO of $22.4 million The Company has segregated approximately

$26.2 million of assets for this plan as of December 31 2008 and expects to fund future benefit payments from

these assets

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets represents the Companys estimate of the long-term return on

plan assets and is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and planned asset classes in the

plans investment portfolios Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were selected after analyzing

historical experience and future expectations of the returns of various asset classes Based on the target asset

allocation for each asset class the overall expected rate of return for the portfolios was developed and adjusted for

the effect of projected benefits paid from plan assets and future plan contributions

The following tables provide the weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net

costs

Weighted average assumptions used to determine Pension Benefits Other Benefits

the benefit obligation at plan year-end 2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount rate 6.11% 6.23% 6.10% 6.23%

Rate ofconensation increase 4.27% 4.22% 4.25% 4.25%

Weighted average assumptions usedto determine Pension Benefits Other Benefits

net costs for years endedat December31 2008 2007 2008 2007

Discount rate 6.23% 5.87% 6.23% 5.89%

Expected long-term return on plan assets 8.25% 8.25% 4.00% 4.00%

Rate ofconensation increase 4.22% 3.81% 4.25% 3.90%

after tax

Pension plan assets are managed in accordance with prudent investor guidelines contained in the ERISA

requirements The investment strategy supports the objective of the fund which is to earn the highest possible

return on plan assets within reasonable and prudent level of risk Investments are diversified across classes and

within each class to minimize risks At December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively the fair value of plan assets

was $418.7 million and $400.1 million not including $6.8 million subsequent contribution in 2007
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The asset allocation for the Companys pension plans at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the target allocation

for 2009 are reported in the following table The portfolios are periodically rebalanced to generally meet target

allocation percentages

Plan Assets at

Target December31

Asset Category Allocation 2008 2007

Equity securities 60% 59% 57%

Debt securities 33% 32% 31%

Real estate 6% 9% 6%

Other 1% 0% 6%

Total 100% 100% 100%

Assumed health care cost trend rates have significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans
The cost trend assumed for 2008 and 2009 is 8% and 7.5% respectively with the rate declining through 2014 to

the ultimate cost trend rate of 5% The health care plan requires retirees to make monthly contributions on behalf

of themselves and their dependents in an amount determined by the Company

The effects of one-percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates holding all other

assumptions constant at December 31 2008 are detailed in the following table The results reflect the increase

in the Medicare Part employer subsidy which is assumed to increase with the medical trend and employer caps

on post-65 plans

Increase Decrease

millions

Effect on total service and interest component 0.3 0.3
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 1.4 1.5

The Company expects to contribute $45.2 million to the plans in 2009 to meet ERISA funding requirements and

regulatory orders the majority of which will be paid by KCPL The Companys funding policy is to contribute

amounts sufficient to meet the ERISA minimum funding requirements and MPSC and KCC rate orders plus

additional amounts as considered appropriate therefore actual contributions may differ from expected

contributions The Company also expects to contribute $15.4 million to other post-retirement benefit plans in

2009 the majority of which will be paid by KCPL The following benefit payments which reflect expected

future service as appropriate are expected to be paid through 2018

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits

millions

2009 58.7 13.0

2010 53.8 13.9

2011 54.8 14.8

2012 60.0 15.8

2013 60.5 16.6

2014-2018 331.3 97.7
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Employee Savings Plans

Great Plains Energy has defined contribution savings plans 401k that cover substantially all employees Great

Plains Energy matches employee contributions subject to limits The annual cost of the plans was approximately

$6.9 million $5.0 million and $4.8 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively KCPLs annual cost of the

plans was approximately $5.8 million $4.3 million and $4.1 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Skill Set Realignment Deferral Cost

In 2005 and early 2006 management undertook process to assess improve and reposition the skill sets of

employees for implementation of the Comprehensive Energy Plan In 2006 Great Plains Energy and KCPL
recorded $9.4 million and $9.3 million respectively related to this process reflecting severance benefits and

related payroll taxes provided to employees In 2007 KCPL received authorization from the MPSC and KCC

to defer $8.9 million in regulatory assets for these costs and amortize them over five years for the Missouri

jurisdictional portion and ten years for the Kansas jurisdictional portion effective with new rates on January

2008

11 EQUITY COMPENSATION

Great Plains Energys Long-Term Incentive Plan is an equity compensation plan approved by Great Plains

Energys shareholders The Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the grant of restricted stock stock options limited

stock appreciation rights director shares director deferred share units and performance shares to directors

officers and other employees of Great Plains Energy and KCPL The maximum number of shares of Great

Plains Energy common stock that can be issued under the plan is 5.0 million Common stock shares delivered by

Great Plains Energy under the Long-Term Incentive Plan may be authorized but unissued held in the treasury or

purchased on the open market including private purchases in accordance with applicable securities laws Great

Plains Energy has policy of delivering newly issued shares or shares surrendered by Long-Term Incentive Plan

participants on account of withholding taxes and held in treasury or both and does not expect to repurchase

common shares during 2009 to satisfi performance share payments stock option exercises and director deferred

share unit conversion

Forfeiture rates are based on historical forfeitures and future expectations and are reevaluated annually The

following table summarizes Great Plains Energys and KCPLs equity compensation expense and associated

income tax benefits

2008 2007 2006

Great Plains Energy millions

Compensation expense 9.0 6.4 3.9

Income tax benefits 2.7 2.1 1.2

KCPL
Compensation expense 5.5 4.3 2.4

Income taxbenefits 2.0 1.4 0.8

Performance Shares

The payment of performance shares is contingent upon achievement of specific performance goals over stated

period of time as approved by the Compensation and Development Committee of Great Plains Energys Board of

Directors The number of performance shares ultimately paid can vary from the number of shares initially granted

depending on Great Plains Energys performance based on external measures over stated performance periods

Performance shares have value equal to the market value of the shares on the grant date with accruing dividends

Compensation expense calculated by multiplying shares by the related grant-date fair value related to

performance shares is recognized over the stated period
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Performance share activity for 2008 is summarized in the following table Performance adjustment represents the

number of shares of common stock related to performance shares ultimately issued that can vary from the number

of performance shares initially granted depending on Great Plains Energys performance based on external

measures over stated performance periods

Beginning balance

Perfonnance adjustment

Granted 129296 26.22

Issued 49709 31.28

Forfeited 3149 32.87

Ending balance 314511 28.47

weighted-average

At December 31 2008 the remaining weighted-average contractual term was 1.1 years The weighted-average

grant-date fair value of shares granted was $26.22 $32.00 and $28.20 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively At

December 31 2008 there was $3.2 million of total unrecognized compensation expense net of forfeiture rates

related to performance shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan which will be recognized over the

remaining weighted-average contractual term The total fair value of shares of common stock related to

performance shares issued was $1.6 million $1.3 million and $0.3 million during 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock cannot be sold or otherwise transferred by the recipient prior to vesting and has value equal to

the fair market value of the shares on the issue date Restricted stock shares vest over stated period of time with

accruing reinvested dividends Compensation expense calculated by multiplying shares by the related grant-date

fair value related to restricted stock is recognized over the stated vesting period Restricted stock activity for

2008 is summarized in the following table

Nonws ted Crant Date

Restricted stock Fair Value

Beginning balance 146882 31.38

Granted and issued 88064 26.09

Vested 71602 30.15

Forfeited 4548 32.87

Ending balance 458796 30.54

weighted-average

At December 31 2008 the remaining weighted-average contractual term was 0.9 years The weighted-average

grant-date fair value of shares granted was $26.09 $31.93 and $28.22 during 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

At December 31 2008 there was $5.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense net of forfeiture rates

related to nonvested restricted stock granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan which will be recognized over

the remaining weighted-average contractual term The total fair value of shares vested was $2.2 million $1.1

million and $0.8 million in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Performance

Shares

309689

71616

Grant Date

Fair Value

30.34
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Stock Options

Granted Under Long-Term Incentive Plan

Stock options were granted under the plan during 2001-2003 at market value of the shares on the grant date The

options vested three years after the grant date and expire in ten years if not exercised The fair value for the stock

options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Compensation expense

and accrued dividends related to stock options were recognized over the stated vesting period

GMO Acquisition

Prior GMO stock options were converted to Great Plains Energy stock options upon acquisition

Stock option activity under all plans for 2008 is summarized in the following table All stock options are fully

vested at December 31 2008

Exercise

Stock Options Shares Price

Beginning balance 109472 25.52

GMO acquisition 465901 96.04

Exercised 10249 20.61

Forfeited or expired 44295 173.72

Outstanding and exercisable at December31 520829 76.10

weighted-average

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options exercised for 2008 was $20.61 per share The aggregate

intrinsic value and cash received for options exercised in 2008 was insignificant The following table summarizes

all outstanding and exercisable stock options as of December 31 2008

Outstanding and Exercisable Options

Weighted Aurage

Remaining Weighted

Exercise Number of Contractual Life Awrage

Price Range Shares in Years Exercise Price

$9.21-$1l.64 65360 1.0 11.54

$23.91 $27.73 255739 3.0 24.60

$121.90-$181.11 161560 0.8 149.26

$221.82-$251.86 38170 2.3 221.97

Total 520829 2.0

At December 31 2008 the aggregate intrinsic value of in the money outstanding and exercisable options was

$0.5 million

Director Deferred Share Units

Non-employee directors receive shares of Great Plains Energys common stock as part of their annual retainer

Each director may elect to defer receipt of their shares until the end of January in the
year

after they leave Great

Plains Energys Board of Directors Prior to 2008 there were no shares of Great Plains Energy common stock

issued to non-employee directors under Great Plains Energys Long-Term Incentive Plan At December 31 2008

there were 7588 shares of director deferred share units outstanding at weighted-average grant-date fair value of

$27.94 per share The total fair value of shares of director deferred share units issued was $0.2 million for 2008
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12 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND SHORT-TERM BANK LINES OF CREDIT

Great Plains Energys $400 Million Revolving Credit Facility

Great Plains Energys $400 million revolving credit facility with group of banks expires in May 2011

default by Great Plains Energy or any of its significant subsidiaries on other indebtedness totaling more than

$25.0 million is default under the facility Under the terms of this agreement Great Plains Energy is required to

maintain consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio as defined in the agreement not greater

than 0.65 to 1.00 at all times At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy was in compliance with this covenant

At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy had $30.0 million of outstanding cash borrowings with weighted-

average interest rate of 1.22% and had issued letters of credit totaling $34.9 million under the credit facility At

December 31 2007 Great Plains Energy had $42.0 million of outstanding cash borrowings with weighted-

average interest rate of 5.44% and had issued letters of credit totaling $98.6 million under the credit facility

KCPLs $600 Million Revolving Credit Facility

KCPLs $600 million revolving credit facility with group of banks to provide support for its issuance of

commercial
paper and other general corporate purposes expires in May 2011 default by KCPL on other

indebtedness totaling more than $25.0 million is default under the facility Under the terms of the agreement

KCPL is required to maintain consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio as defined in the

agreement not greater than 0.65 to 1.00 at all times At December 31 2008 KCPL was in compliance with this

covenant At December 31 2008 KCPL had $380.2 million of commercial paper outstanding at weighted-

average interest rate of 5.34% $11.9 million of letters of credit outstanding and no outstanding cash borrowings

under the facility At December 31 2007 KCPL had $365.8 million of commercial paper outstanding at

weighted-average interest rate of 5.92% $11.9 million of letters of credit outstanding and no outstanding cash

borrowings under the facility

GMOs $400 Million Revolving Credit Facility

In September 2008 GMO entered into new $400 million revolving credit facility with group of banks that

expires in September 2011 default by GMO or any of its significant subsidiaries on other indebtedness totaling

more than $25.0 million is default under the facility Under the terms of this agreement GMO is required to

maintain consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio as defined in the agreement not greater

than 0.65 to 1.00 at all times At December 31 2008 GMO was in compliance with this covenant At December

31 2008 GMO had $110.0 million of outstanding cash borrowings with weighted-average interest rate of

1.22% and had issued letters of credit totaling $1.2 million under the credit facility

GMOs $65 Million Revolving Credit Facility

GMOs $65 million revolving credit facility expires in April 2009 Borrowings under this facility are secured by

the accounts receivable generated by GMOs regulated utility operations default by GMO on other

indebtedness totaling more than $40.0 million is default under the facility Under the terms of this agreement
GMO is required to maintain consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio as defined in the

agreement not greater than 70% from October 2008 until the termination of the agreement GMO is required

to maintain ratio of EBITDA to interest expense for the period October 2008 to the termination of the

agreement greater than 1.6 to 1.0 At December 31 2008 GMO was in compliance with these covenants At

December 31 2008 GMO had $64.0 million of outstanding cash borrowings with weighted-average interest

rate of 2.16%
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13 LONG-TERM DEBT

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs long-term debt is detailed in the following table

December31

Year Due 2008 2007

KCPL millions

General Mortgage Bonds

490% EIRR bonds 2012-2035 158.8 158.8

Senior Notes

6.50% 2011 150.0 150.0

5.85% 2017 250.0 250.0

6.375% 2018 350.0

6.05% 2035 250.0 250.0

Unamortized discount 1.8 1.9
EIRR bonds

4.65% Series 2005 2035 50.0 50.0

5.125% Series 2007A-1 2035 63.3

5.00% Series 2007A-2 2035 10.0

4.75% Series 2007A 73.3

5.375% Series 2007B 2035 73.2 73.2

4.90% Series 2008 2038 23.4

Total KCPL 1376.9 1003.4

GMO
First Mortgage Bonds

9.44% Series 2009-2021 14.6

Pollution Control Bonds

5.85% SJLP Pollution Control 2013 5.6

0.924% Wamego Series 1996 2026 7.3

2.721% State Environmental 1993 2028 5.0

Senior Notes

7.625% Series 2009 68.5

7.95% Series 2011 137.3

7.75% Series 2011 197.0

11.875% Series 2012 500.0

8.27% Series 2021 80.9

Fair Value Adjustment 117.5

Medium Term Notes

7.16% Series 2013 6.0

7.33% Series 2023 3.0

7.17% Series 2023 7.0

Other 2009 1.1

Current maturities 70.7

TotalGrvlO 1080.1

Other Great Plains Energy

6.875% Senior Notes 2017 100.0

Unamortized discount 0.4
7.74% Affordable Housing Notes

100.0

0.5
0.3

1.1029

Current maturities

Total Great Plains Energy excluding current maturities 2556.6

Weighted-average interest rates at December 2008
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Amortization of Debt Expense

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs amortization of debt expense is detailed in the following table

2008 2007 2006

millions

KCPL 1.6 1.6 1.9

Other Great Plains Energy 1.0 1.0 0.7

Total Great Plains Energy 2.6 2.6 2.6

KCPL General Mortgage Bonds

KCPL has issued mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated

December 1986 as supplemented The Indenture creates mortgage lien on substantially all of KCPLs
utility plant Mortgage bonds totaling $158.8 million securing Environmental Improvement Revenue Refunding

EIRR bonds were outstanding at December 31 2008 and 2007

In 2008 KCPL remarketed the following series of EIRR bonds that were auction rate securities i.e the interest

rates were periodically reset through an auction process

secured Series 1992 EIRR bonds maturing in 2017 totaling $31.0 million at fixed rate of 5.25% through

March 31 2013

secured Series 993A EIRR bonds maturing in 2023 totaling $40.0 million at fixed rate of 5.25%

through March 31 2013 and

secured Series 1993B EIRR bonds maturing in 2023 totaling $39.5 million at fixed rate of 5.00%

through March 31 2011

KCPL Senior Notes

KCPL had $1.0 billion and $650.0 million respectively of outstanding unsecured senior notes at December 31
2008 and 2007 As result of amortizing the gain recognized in other comprehensive income OCI on KCPLs
2005 Treasury Locks T-Locks the effective interest rate on KCPLs $250.0 million of 6.05% Senior Notes is

5.78% During 2007 KCPL issued $250.0 million of 5.85% unsecured Senior Notes maturing in 2017 As

result of amortizing the gain recognized in OCT on KCPLs 2006 Forward Starting Swaps FSS the effective

interest rate on KCPLs 5.85% Senior Notes is 5.72%

In March 2008 KCPL issued $350.0 million of 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes maturing in 2018 As result

of amortizing the loss recognized in OCI on KCPLs 2007 1-Locks the effective interest rate on KCPLs
$350.0 million of 6.375% Senior Notes is 7.49%

KCPL EIRR Bonds

KCPL had $219.9 million and $196.5 million of unsecured EIRR bonds outstanding at December 31 2008 and

2007 respectively
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In 2008 KCPL remarketed the following auction rate EIRR bonds

unsecured Series 2007B EIRR bonds maturing in 2035 totaling $73.2 million at fixed rate of 5.375%

through March 31 2013 and

unsecured Series 2007A EIRR bonds maturing in 2035 into two series Series 2007A-1 totaling $63.3

million at fixed rate of 5.125% through March 31 2011 and Series 2007A-2 totaling $10.0 million at

fixed rate of 5.00% through March 31 2010

After these remarketing activities and those described under KCPL General Mortgage Bonds none of KCPLs
EIRR bonds remain in auction rate mode

In May 2008 KCPLs Series 2008 EIRR bonds totaling $23.4 million maturing in 2038 were issued Proceeds

of the bonds will be used to pay for portion of the costs at the latan Nos and projects included in KCPLs
Comprehensive Energy Plan The proceeds were deposited with trustee and will be used to reimburse KCPL
for qualifying expenditures At December 31 2008 KCPL had received $13.4 million in cash proceeds and had

$10.0 million short-term receivable for the proceeds that were deposited with the trustee The bonds have an

initial long-term interest rate of 4.90% until June 30 2013 At the end of the initial long-term interest rate period

the bonds are subject to mandatory tender however KCPL is not obligated to pay the purchase price of the

bonds on the mandatory tender date If the bonds are not successfully remarketed the bonds will bear interest at

daily rate equal to 10% per annum until all the bonds are successfully remarketed

KCPL Municipal Bond Insurance Policies

KCPLs EIRR Bonds Series 2007A-l 2007A-2 and 2007B totaling $146.5 million are covered by municipal

bond insurance policy issued by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company FGIC The insurance agreement

between KCPL and FGIC provides for reimbursement by KCPL for any amounts that FGIC pays under the

municipal bond insurance policy The insurance policy is in effect for the term of the bonds The policy also

restricts the amount of secured debt KCPL may issue In the event KCPL issues debt secured by liens not

permitted by the agreement or resulting in the aggregate amount of outstanding general mortgage bonds

exceeding 10% of total capitalization KCPL is required to issue and deliver collateral to FGIC in the form of

first mortgage bonds or similar securities equal in principal amount to the principal amount of the EIRR Bonds

Series 2007A-1 2007A-2 and 2007B then outstanding

KCPLs secured 1992 Series EIRR bonds totaling $31.0 million secured Series 1993A and 1993B EIRR bonds

totaling $79.5 million and secured and unsecured EIRR Bonds Series 2005 totaling $35.9 million and $50.0

million respectively are covered by municipal bond insurance policy between KCPL and Syncora Guarantee

Inc formerly XL Capital Assurance Inc Syncora The insurance agreements between KCPL and Syncora

provide for reimbursement by KCPL for any amounts that Syncora pays under the municipal bond insurance

policies The insurance policies are in effect for the term of the bonds The insurance agreements contain

covenant that the indebtedness to total capitalization ratio of KCPL and its consolidated subsidiaries will not be

greater than 0.68 to 1.00 At December 31 2008 KCPL was in compliance with this covenant KCPL is also

restricted from issuing additional bonds under its General Mortgage Indenture if after giving effect to such

additional bonds the proportion of secured debt to total indebtedness would be more than 75% or more than 50%

if the long term rating for such bonds by Standard Poors or Moodys Investors Service would be at or below

A- or A3 respectively The insurance agreement covering the unsecured EIRR Bond Series 2005 also requires

KCPL to provide collateral to Syncora in the form of $50.0 million of general mortgage bonds for KCPLs
obligations under the insurance agreement in the event KCPL issues general mortgage bonds other than

refunding of outstanding general mortgage bonds resulting in the aggregate amount of outstanding general

mortgage bonds exceeding 10% of total capitalization In the event of default under the insurance agreements

Syncora may take any available legal or equitable action against KCPL including seeking specific performance

of the covenants
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GMO First Mortgage Bonds

GMO has issued mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated April 1946

as supplemented The Indenture creates mortgage lien on substantially all of GMOs St Joseph Light Power

division utility plant Mortgage bonds totaling $14.6 million were outstanding at December 31 2008

GMO Senior Notes

The fair value adjustment for GMO represents the $133.3 million adjustment net of current period amortization

of $15.8 million to record GMOs debt related to the 11.875% series and 7.75% series Senior Notes that are not

reflected in electric retail rates as of the acquisition date at estimated fair value The increase in the fair value of

the debt will be amortized as reduction to interest expense over the remaining life of the individual debt issues

Amortization for 2009 2010 2011 and 2012 is estimated at $32.8 million $34.6 million $33.8 million and $16.3

million respectively

Other Great Plains Energy Long-Term Debt

During 2007 Great Plains Energy issued $100.0 million of 6.875% unsecured Senior Notes maturing in 2017

As result of amortizing the loss recognized in OCT on Great Plains Energys 2007 T-Locks the effective interest

rate on Great Plains Energys 6.875% Senior Notes is 7.33%

Scheduled Maturities

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs long-term debt maturities for the next five years are detailed in the following

table

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

millions

KCPL 150.0 12.4

Great Plains Energy 70.7 1.1 485.4 513.5 12.7

14 COMMON SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Great Plains Energy has an effective shelf registration statement for the sale of unspecified amounts of securities

with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC that was filed and became effective in May 2006

On August 14 2008 Great Plains Energy entered into Sales Agency Financing Agreement with BNY Mellon

Capital Markets LLC BNYMCM Under the terms of the agreement Great Plains Energy may offer and sell up
to 8000000 shares of its common stock from time to time through BNYMCM as agent for period of no more

than three years The Company will pay BNYMCM commission equal to 1% of the sales price of all shares

sold under the agreement As of December 31 2008 189300 shares had been sold for $3.5 million in net

proceeds through BNYMCM

Treasury shares are held for future distribution upon issuance of shares in conjunction with the Companys Long-

Term Incentive Plan

Great Plains Energy has 4.0 million shares of common stock registered with the SEC for its Dividend

Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan The plan allows for the purchase of common shares by reinvesting

dividends or making optional cash payments Great Plains Energy can issue new shares or purchase shares on the

open market for the Plan At December 31 2008 0.3 million shares remained available for future issuances

Great Plains Energy has 12.3 million shares of common stock registered with the SEC for defined contribution

savings plan Shares issued under the plans may be either newly issued shares or shares purchased in the open

market At December 31 2008 2.6 million shares remained available for future issuances

Great Plains Energys Articles of Incorporation contain restriction related to the payment of dividends in the

event common equity falls to 25% of total capitalization If preferred stock dividends are not declared and paid
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when scheduled Great Plains Energy could not declare or pay common stock dividends or purchase any common

shares If the unpaid preferred stock dividends equal four or more full quarterly dividends the preferred

shareholders voting as single class could elect the smallest number of Directors necessary to constitute

majority of the full Board of Directors Under the Federal Power Act KCPL can only pay dividends out of

retained or current earnings Under stipulations with the MPSC and KCC Great Plains Energy and KCPL have

committed to maintain consolidated common equity of not less than 30% and 35% respectively of total

capitalization

Great Plains Energy made capital contributions to KCPL of $200.0 million and $94.0 million in 2008 and 2007

respectively These contributions were made to fund Comprehensive Energy Plan projects At December 31

2008 KCPLs capital contributions from Great Plains Energy totaled $828.6 million and are reflected in

common stock on the KCPL balance sheet

15 PREFERRED STOCK

At December 31 2008 1.6 million shares of Cumulative No Par Preferred Stock 390000 shares of Cumulative

Preferred Stock $100 par value and 11.0 million shares of no par Preference Stock were authorized under Great

Plains Energys Articles of Incorporation All of the 390000 authorized shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock are

issued and outstanding Great Plains Energy has the option to redeem the $39.0 million of issued Cumulative

Preferred Stock at prices ranging from 101% to 103.7% of par value If Great Plains Energy voluntarily files for

dissolution or liquidation the Cumulative Preferred Stock holders are entitled to receive the redemption prices If

proceeding for dissolution or liquidation is filed against Great Plains Energy the Cumulative Preferred Stock

holders are entitled to receive the $100 par value per
share plus accrued and unpaid dividends

16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to regulation by federal state and local authorities with regard to air quality and other

environmental matters primarily through KCPLs and GMOs operations The generation transmission and

distribution of electricity produces and requires proper management and disposal of certain hazardous products

and wastes that are subject to these laws and regulations In addition to imposing extensive and continuing

compliance obligations these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for

noncompliance including fines injunctive relief and other sanctions Failure to comply with these laws and

regulations could have material adverse effect on KCPL and Great Plains Energy KCPL and GMO seek to

use current environmental technology

It is possible that federal or relevant state or local legislation could be enacted to address global climate change

Such legislation could mandate measures to measure control or reduce the emission of greenhouse gases such as

C02 which are created in the combustion of fossil fuels In addition there could be national and/or additional

state or local mandates to produce minimum percentage of electricity from renewable forms of energy such as

wind While the Company believes future legislation and/or regulation addressing these matters is likely the

timing requirements and impact of such potential legislation including the cost to obtain and install new

equipment to achieve compliance cannot be reasonably estimated at this time but such legislation could have the

potential for significant financial and operational impact on KCPL and GMO KCPL and GMO would seek

recovery of capital costs and expenses for such compliance through rate increases however there can be no

assurance that such rate increases would be granted
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The following tables contain current estimates of Great Plains Energys and KCPLs capital expenditures

exclusive of AFUDC and
property taxes to comply with the current version of the Clean Air Interstate Rule

CAIR and BART including accelerated environmental upgrade expenditures outlined in KCPLs
Comprehensive Energy Plan As discussed below CAIR has been remanded to the EPA but remains in effect

until the EPA issues rules consistent with the courts order or until the court takes further action It is not possible

to project what rules the EPA may issue as result of this remand when the rules may be issued or the costs

associated with such rules The actual cost of compliance with any future rules and with BART may be

significantly different from the cost estimates provided in the following tables The allocation between states is

based on location of the facilities and has no bearing as to recovery
in jurisdictional rates

Great Plains Energy

Clean Air Estimated Fnvironmental Expenditures Missouri Kansas Total

millions

CAIR $417 443 $417 443

Incremental BART 245 424 654 797 899 1221

Less expenditures through December 31 2008 412 412
Estimated remaining required environmental expenditures $250 455 $654 797 $904 1252

KCPL

Clean Air Estimated Environmental Expenditures Missouri Kansas Total

millions

CAIR

Incremental BART
Less expenditures through December 31 2008

Estimated remaining required environmental expenditures

The amounts include KCPLs and GMOs portion of the cost of projects atjomtly-owned units

The amounts include KCPLs portion of the cost of projects at jointly-owned units

$330 350 $330 350

148 311 625 764 773 1075

257 257
$221 404 $625 764 $846 1168

The potential capital costs of the Collaboration Agreement provisions relating to NOR sulfuric acid mist SO2 and

particulate emission limits at latan and LaCygne generating stations are within the overall estimated capital cost

ranges
disclosed above However the tables do not reflect potential costs relating to other laws including

potential laws regarding the control of mercury emissions discussed below and also do not reflect costs relating

to additional wind generation energy efficiency and other CO2 emission offsets contemplated by the

Collaboration Agreement Costs relating to the additional wind generation and energy efficiency investments that

are subject to regulatory approval cannot be reasonably estimated at this time The tables do not reflect the non-

capital costs KCPL and GMO incur on an ongoing basis to comply with environmental laws which may in the

future increase due to the implementation of the Comprehensive Energy Plan and KCPLs and GMO ongoing

compliance with current or future environmental laws For instance the potential costs relating to the additional

offset of approximately 711000 tons of CO2 emissions by the end of 2012 under the Collaboration Agreement
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time KCPL continues to evaluate the available operational and capital

resource alternatives and will select the most cost-effective mix of actions to achieve this additional offset

KCPL expects to seek recovery of the costs associated with the Collaboration Agreement through rate increases

however there can be no assurance that such rate increases would be granted

Clean Air Interstate Rule

The CAIR requires reductions in SO2 and NO emissions in 28 states including Missouri The reduction in both

SO2 and NO emissions is set to be accomplished through establishment of permanent statewide
caps

for NO
effective January 2009 and SO2 effective January 2010 More restrictive caps are scheduled to become

effective January 2015 KCPLs and GMOs fossil fuel-fired plants located in Missouri are subject to CAIR
while their fossil fuel-fired plants in Kansas are not
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On July 11 2008 the D.C Circuit Court of Appeals vacated CAIR in its entirety and remanded the matter to the

EPA to promulgate new rule consistent with its opinion The EPA and others sought rehearing of the Courts

decision On December 23 2008 the Court denied all petitions for rehearing and issued an order remanding

CAIR to the EPA to revise the rule consistent with its July 2008 order The CAIR thus remains in effect pending

future EPA or court action

EPAs future revisions to CAIR could result in rule that requires greater emission reductions imposes an earlier

compliance deadline changes or eliminates the NO fuel factor adjustment includes additional states including

Kansas does not allow for emissions reductions to be obtained through interstate allowance trading or the use of

the Acid Rain Program SO2 allowances or imposes other requirements not yet known any of which could

significantly increase compliance costs including the capital expenditures noted in the preceding tables Great

Plains Energy and KCPL cannot predict the outcome of the EPAs revisions to CAIR but such revisions could

have significant effect on Great Plains Energys results of operations financial position and cash flows

KCPL and GMO expect to meet the emissions reductions required by CAIR at their Missouri plants through

combination of pollution control capital projects and the purchase of emission allowances as needed Some of the

control technology for SO2 and NO could also aid in the control of mercury CAIR currently establishes

market-based cap-and-trade program with an emission allowance allocation Facilities demonstrate compliance

with CAIR by holding sufficient allowances for each ton of SO2 and NO emitted in any given year KCPL and

GMO are currently allowed to utilize unused SO2 emission allowances that they have either accumulated during

previous years of the Acid Rain Program or purchased to meet the more stringent CAIR requirements At

December 31 2008 KCPL had accumulated unused SO2 emission allowances sufficient to support over 94000

tons of SO2 emissions enough to support expected requirements under the current CAIR for the foreseeable

future under the provisions of the Acid Rain program which are recorded in inventory at zero cost KCPL is

permitted to sell excess 502 emission allowances in accordance with KCPLs Comprehensive Energy Plan as

approved by the MPSC and KCC At December 31 2008 GMO had accumulated unused SO2 emission

allowances sufficient to support just over 32000 tons of SO2 emissions enough to support expected requirements

under the current CAIR through 2011 which it has received under the Acid Rain Program or purchased which

are recorded in inventory at average cost

Analysis of the current CAIR rule indicates that NO and SO2 control may be required for KCPLs Montrose

Station and GMOs Sibley and Lake Road Stations in Missouri in addition to the environmental upgrades at Jatan

No included in the Comprehensive Energy Plan NO and SO2 control for KCPLs Montrose Station and

GMOs Sibley and Lake Road Stations may be achieved under CAIR through combination of pollution control

equipment and the use or purchase of emission allowances as needed As required by the Collaboration

Agreement an interim status report was completed in 2008 to update progress on underlying studies An

assessment of the potential future use of Montrose Station including without limitation retiring re-powering and

upgrading the units will be completed in 2009

Best Available Retrofit Technology Rule

The EPA BART rule directs state air quality agencies to identif whether visibility-reducing emissions from

sources subject to BART are below limits set by the state or whether retrofit measures are needed to reduce

emissions BART applies to specific eligible facilities including KCPLs LaCygne Nos and in Kansas

KCPLs latan No in which GMO has an interest and KCPLs Montrose No in Missouri GMOs Sibley

Unit No and Lake Road Unit No in Missouri and Westars Jeffrey Unit Nos and in Kansas in which

GMO has an 8% interest Initially in Missouri compliance with CAIR will be compliance with BART for

individual sources Depending on how and when the EPA revises CAIR in
response to the courts order the

timing of installation of environmental control equipment and the availability of SO2 emission allowances the

estimated required environmental expenditures presented in the table above could shift from CAIR to incremental

BART for Missouri Neither Missouri nor Kansas has received EPA approval for their BART plans In the

Collaboration Agreement KCPL agreed to seek consent agreement which it has done with the Kansas

Department of Health and Environment KDHE incorporating limits for stack particulate matter emissions as
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well as limits for NO and SO2 emissions at its LaCygne Station that will be below the presumptive limits under

BART KCPL further agreed to use its best efforts to install emission control technologies to reduce those

emissions from the LaCygne Station prior to the required compliance date under BART but in no event later than

June 2015 KCPL further agreed to issue requests for proposal for equipment required to comply with BART

by December 31 2008 requesting that construction commence by December 31 2010 and has done so

New Source Review

The Clean Air Act requires companies to obtain permits and if necessary install control equipment to reduce

emissions when making major modification or change in operation if either is expected to cause significant

net increase in regulated emissions In May 2008 KCPL received subpoena from federal grand jury seeking

documents relating to capital projects at latan No KCPL expects to complete the delivery of responsive

documents by early March 2009 KCPL believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with all

relevant laws and regulations however the ultimate outcome of these grand jury activities or possible civil or

administrative proceedings regarding capital projects at latan No and other coal units cannot presently be

determined nor can the liability that could potentially result from negative outcome presently be reasonably

estimated There is no assurance these costs if any could be recovered in rates

In January 2004 Westar Energy Inc Westar received notification from the EPA alleging that it had violated

new source review requirements and Kansas environmental regulations by making modifications to the Jeffrey

Energy Center without obtaining the proper permits The Jeffrey Energy Center is coal-fired plant located in

Kansas that is 92% owned by Westar and operated exclusively by Westar GMO has an 8% interest in the Jeffrey

Energy Center and is generally responsible for its 8% share of the facilitys operating costs and capital

expenditures On February 2009 the Attorney General of the United States filed complaint against Westar

alleging that it violated the Clean Air Act and related federal and state regulations by making major modifications

to the Jeffrey Energy Center beginning in 1994 without first obtaining appropriate permits authorizing this

construction and without installing and operating best available control technology to control emissions At this

time although no settlement has been reached it is possible that Westar could be required to make significant

capital and other expenditures to install and operate new emission control systems at the Jeffrey Energy Center

surrender emission allowances interrupt or shut-down operations at the Jeffrey Energy Center apply for new or

modified permits audit Jeffrey Energy Center operations otherwise mitigate any harm to public health and the

environment resulting from the alleged violations and pay civil penalty of up to $37500 per day for each

violation

The ultimate outcome of any of the above matters cannot presently be determined nor can the costs and other

liabilities that could potentially result from negative outcome presently be reasonably estimated There is no

assurance these costs if any could be recovered in rates and failure to recover such costs could have significant

adverse effect on Great Plains Energys or KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

Mercuy Emissions

The EPA Clean Air Mercury Rule CAMR regulated mercury emissions from coal-fired power plants located in

48 states including Kansas and Missouri under the Clean Air Act In February 2008 court vacated and

remanded CAMR back to the EPA and the rule is effectively void In May 2008 petitions for rehearing of the

matter by the full court were denied Petitions for review by the Supreme Court were filed by the EPA and an

industry group In February 2009 the Supreme Court denied the industry groups petition for review and the

EPA withdrew is petition for review It is likely that the EPA will develop maximum achievable control

technology MACT standards for mercury emissions These MACT standards if adopted could impact both

KCPLs and GMOs new and existing facilities In January 2009 the EPA issued memorandum stating that

new electric steam generating units EGUs that began construction while the CAMR was effective are subject to

new source MACT determination on case-by-case basis This is an outcome of the D.C Court of Appeals

vacatur of both the CAMR and contemporaneously promulgated rule removing EGUs from MACT requirements

Iatan No is an affected EGU It is currently not known how this memorandum will impact the permitting

requirements for latan Station but it is possible MACT determination may be required and may ultimately
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impose additional emission control equipment and permit limits The estimated required environmental

expenditures presented in the tables above do not reflect any amounts for compliance with the vacated CAMR or

possible MACI standards because management cannot predict the outcome of further judicial administrative or

regulatory actions or their financial or operational effects on Great Plains Energy and KCPL However such

actions could have significant effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial

position and cash flows

Greenhouse Gases

Many bills concerning the reduction of emissions of greenhouse gases including CU2 are being debated at the

federal and state levels and some initial steps toward definitive regulation have been taken all with various

compliance dates and reduction strategies At the federal level it is anticipated that due to the outcome of the

2008 election additional greenhouse gas bills will be introduced in Congress and legislation ultimately enacted

but when and to what extent such legislation will regulate CO2 cannot be determined at this time Even if there

are no new Congressional mandates the EPA is considering several issues which may lead to increased regulation

of greenhouse gases under the existing Clean Air Act First the U.S Supreme Court has determined that the EPA

has statutory authority to regulate CO2 from new motor vehicles if the EPA forms judgment that such emissions

contribute to climate change If the EPA forms such judgment as currently anticipated it may ultimately

regulate other sources of CU2 which may include KCPL and GMO facilities In July 2008 the EPA issued an

advance notice of proposed rulemaking seeking public comment on the ramifications of regulating greenhouse

gas emissions under the Clean Air Act In December 2008 the EPA issued an interpretive memo declaring that

CO2 is not currently subject to regulation under the Federal Prevention of Significant Deterioration PSD permit

program although this will not prevent PSD regulation of CO2 if the EPA promulgates regulations establishing

Clear Air Act emission limitations or standards for CO2 In addition the EPA announced in February 2009 that it

plans to reconsider the interpretive memo and publish related notice of rulemaking in the near future The

EPAs reconsideration of the memo may result in differing interpretation of the Clean Air Act and PSD

requirements At the state level the governor of Kansas supports mandatory renewable energy portfolio

standards and bills that would establish such standards have been introduced in the 2009 Kansas Legislature The

KDHE has indicated that it intends to engage industries and stakeholders to establish goals for reducing CO2

emissions and strategies to achieve those goals In the November 2008 Missouri general election voters passed

an initiative requiring at least 2% of the electricity generated by Missouri investor-owned utilities including

KCPL and GMO to come from renewable resources such as wind solar biomass and hydropower by 2011

and that 15% come from such sources by 2021 Additionally in November 2007 governors
from six Midwestern

states including Kansas and Missouri signed the Midwestern Greenhouse Gas Reduction Accord which has

established the goal of reducing member states greenhouse gas emissions to 15% to 20% below 2005 levels by

2020 and 60% to 80% below 2005 levels by 2050 Approximately 2% of KCPLs 2009 generation is expected

to come from wind generation

Greenhouse gas regulation has the potential for significant financial and operational impact on KCPL and

GMO in connection with achieving compliance with limits that may be established However the financial and

operational consequences to Great Plains Energy and KCPL cannot be determined until final legislation is

passed or regulations enacted Management will continue to monitor the progress of relevant bills and

regulations As previously discussed KCPL has entered into Collaboration Agreement that includes various

provisions regarding wind generation energy efficiency and other CO2 offsets

Ozone

In June 2007 monitor data indicated that the Kansas City area violated the primary eight-hour ozone national

ambient air quality standard NAAQS Missouri and Kansas have implemented the
responses

established in the

maintenance plans for control of ozone The
responses

in both states do not require additional controls at

KCPLs and GMOs generation facilities beyond the currently proposed controls for CAIR and BART The

EPA has various options over and above the implementation of the maintenance plans for control of ozone to

address confirmed violation These options include but are not limited to designating the area non
attainment and requiring new regulatory plan to reduce emissions or leaving the designation unchanged but
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still requiring new regulatory plan At this time management is unable to predict how the EPA will respond or

how that response will impact KCPLs and GMOs operations However the EPAs response could have

significant effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs results of operations financial position and cash flows

On March 12 2008 the EPA significantly strengthened its NAAQS for ground-level ozone The EPA is revising

the primary eight-hour ozone standard designed to protect public health to level of 0.075 parts per million

ppm The EPA is also strengthening the secondary eight-hour ozone standard to the level of 0.07 ppm making

it identical to the revised primary standard The previous primary and secondary standards set in 1997 were

effectively 0.084 ppm

By March 2009 states are required to make recommendations for areas to be designated attainment and

nonattainment The Missouri Department of Natural Resources MDNR and KDHE have issued draft

determinations that the Kansas City area is nonattainment area By March 2010 the EPA will make final

designations of attainment and nonattainment areas By 2013 states must submit state implementation plans

outlining how states will reduce ozone to meet the standards in nonattainment areas Although the impact on

KCPLs and GMOs operations will not be known until after the final nonattainment designations and the state

implementation plans are submitted it could have significant effect on Great Plains Energys and KCPLs
results of operations financial position and cash flows

Sufuric Acid Mist BACTAnalysis latan Station

As requirement of the latan Station air permit and the Collaboration Agreement KCPL submitted best

available control technology BACT analysis for sulfuric acid mist to MDNR in June 2007 MDNR conducted

its own BACT analysis and determined the final emission limit in October 2008 Management believes the final

emission limit is achievable based on emission guarantees associated with the currently proposed emission control

equipment for latan Nos and

Waler Use Regulations

The Clean Water Act Act establishes standards for cooling water intake structures The EPA had previously

issued regulations pursuant to Section 316b of the Act regarding cooling water intake structures Subsequent to

an appellate court ruling the EPA suspended the regulations and is engaged in further rulemaking on this matter

In April 2008 the Supreme Court agreed to hear an appeal on the issue of whether the Act authorized the EPA to

compare costs with benefits in determining the best technology available for minimizing adverse environmental

impact at cooling water intake structures At this time management is unable to predict the outcome of this

proceeding how the EPA will respond or how that response will impact KCPLs and GMOs operations

KCPL holds permit from the MDNR covering water discharge from its Hawthorn Station The permit

authorizes KCPL among other things to withdraw water from the Missouri river for cooling purposes and

return the heated water to the Missouri river KCPL has applied for renewal of this permit and the EPA has

submitted an interim objection letter regarding the allowable amount of heat that can be contained in the returned

water Until this matter is resolved KCPL continues to operate under its current permit KCPL cannot

predict the outcome of this matter however while less significant outcomes are possible this matter may require

KCPL to reduce its generation at Hawthorn Station install cooling towers or both any of which could have

significant impact on KCPL The outcome could also affect the terms of water permit renewals at KCPLs
latan and Montrose Stations and at GMOs Sibley and Lake Road Stations
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Environmental Remediation

Some federal and state laws hold current and previous owners or operators of real property and any person who

arranges for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances at property liable for the costs of cleaning up

contamination at or migrating from such real property even if they did not know of and were not responsible for

such contamination Certain such laws also authorize the EPA and other agencies to issue orders compelling

potentially responsible parties to clean up sites that are determined to present an actual or potential threat to

human health or the environment GMO is named as potentially responsible party at two disposal sites for

polychlorinated biphenyls PCBs and retains some environmental liability for several operations and

investments it no longer owns In addition GMO also owns or has acquired liabilities from companies that once

owned or operated former manufactured gas plant MGP sites which are subject to the supervision of the EPA
and various state environmental agencies

At December 31 2008 and 2007 KCPL had $0.3 million accrued for environmental remediation expenses The

accrual covers ground water monitoring at former MGP site At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy had

$0.5 million accrued for environmental remediation expenses which includes the $0.3 million at KCPL and

additional potential remediation and ground water monitoring costs relating to two GMO sites The amounts

accrued were established on an undiscounted basis and Great Plains Energy and KCPL do not currently have an

estimated time frame over which the accrued amounts may be paid

In addition to the $0.5 million accrual above at December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy had $2.0 million

accrued for the future investigation and remediation of certain additional GMO identified MGP sites PCB sites

and retained liabilities This estimate was based upon review of the potential costs associated with conducting

investigative and remedial actions at identified sites as well as the likelihood of whether such actions will be

necessary There are also additional costs that are considered to be less likely but still reasonably possible to be

incurred at these sites Based upon the results of studies at these sites and knowledge and review of potential

remedial actions it is reasonably possible that these additional costs could exceed the estimate by approximately

$1.3 million This estimate could change materially after further investigation and could also be affected by the

actions of environmental agencies and the financial viability of other potentially responsible parties

GMO has pursued recovery
from insurance carriers and other potentially responsible parties As result of

settlement with an insurance carrier approximately $2.1 million in insurance proceeds less an annual deductible is

available to GMO to recover qualified MGP remediation expenses GMO would seek recovery of additional

remediation costs and expenses through rate increases however there can be no assurance that such rate increases

would be granted

Contractual Commitments

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs
expenses

related to lease commitments are detailed in the following table

2008 2007 2006

millions

KCPL 18.1 17.3 17.6

Great Plains Energy 20.7 18.6 18.9

Includes insignificant amounts related to discontinued operations
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Great Plains Energys and KCPL contractual commitments at December 31 2008 excluding pensions and

long-term debt are detailed in the following tables

Great Plains Energy

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 After 2013 Total

Lease commitments millions

Operating lease 18.3 16.7 15.9 15.6 14.2 167.3 248.0

Capital lease 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 5.4 6.8

Purchase commitments

Fuel 186.2 170.8 90.6 74.6 84.9 147.7 754.8

Purchased capacity 33.5 29.6 19.9 14.1 13.1 11.7 121.9

Comprehensive Energy Plan 376.2 74.3 450.5

Non-regulated natural gas

transportation 5.5 5.5 5.0 2.6 2.6 8.2 29.4

Other 70.3 27.4 13.4 7.5 7.3 37.1 163.0

Totalcontractualcommitments 690.2 324.6 145.1 114.7 122.4 377.4 1774.4

KCPL
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 After 2013 Total

Lease commitments millions

Operating lease 14.0 13.1 12.3 12.0 12.0 155.8 219.2

Capital lease 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 3.4 4.4

Purchase commitments

Fuel 126.7 127.8 72.0 57.4 67.7 147.7 599.3

Purchased capacity 8.6 6.3 4.7 4.7 3.7 7.2 35.2

Comprehensive Energy Plan 376.2 74.3 450.5

Other 64.1 24.4 10.4 4.5 4.3 21.8 129.5

Total contractual commitments 589.8 246.1 99.6 78.8 87.9 335.9 1438.1

Great Plains Energy has sublease income of $4.9 million for the
years

2009-2013 and $0.5 million in total

thereafter Lease commitments end in 2032 Operating lease commitments include rail cars to serve jointly-

owned generating units where KCPL is the managing partner KCPL will be reimbursed by the other owners

for approximately $2.0 million per year $18.2 million total of the amounts included in the table above

Fuel commitments consist of commitments for nuclear fuel coal coal transportation and natural gas KCPL
and GMO purchase capacity from other utilities and nonutility suppliers Purchasing capacity provides the option

to purchase energy if needed or when market prices are favorable KCPL has capacity sales agreements not

included above that total $11.2 million per year for 2009 through 2011 $6.9 million in 2012 and $1.6 million in

2013 Comprehensive Energy Plan represents contractual commitments for projects included in KCPL
Comprehensive Energy Plan including jointly owned units KCPL expects to be reimbursed by other owners

including GMO for their respective share of Jatan No and environmental retrofit costs included in the

Comprehensive Energy Plan contractual commitments Non-regulated natural gas transportation consists of MPS

Merchants commitments Other represents individual commitments entered into in the ordinary course of

business
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17 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Kansas City Power Light Company Union Pacific Railroad Company
In October 2005 KCPL filed rate complaint case with the Surface Transportation Board STB charging that

Union Pacific Railroad Companys Union Pacific rates for transporting coal from the Powder River Basin

PRB in Wyoming to KCPLs Montrose Station are unreasonably high Prior to the end of 2005 the rates were

established under contract with Union Pacific Efforts to extend the term of the contract were unsuccessful and

Union Pacific is the only service for coal transportation from the PRB to Montrose Station KCPL charged that

Union Pacific possesses market dominance over the traffic and requested the STB prescribe maximum reasonable

rates

On May 16 2008 the STB found that the rates Union Pacific charged on coal movement from the PRB to

KCPLs Montrose Station exceeded the maximum reasonable rate of 180% of variable costs Consequently the

STB prescribed maximum reasonable rate of 180% of variable costs until the end of2015 Additionally the

STB ordered reparations to be paid with interest for coal deliveries made from January 2006 through the date

new rate is established In the third quarter of 2008 KCPL received approximately $3 million for reparations

and interest for 2006 coal deliveries which was recorded as regulatory liability to be refunded to retail

customers Reparations for subsequent periods cannot be calculated at this time because actual costs for the

period have not been finalized Union Pacific did not appeal the decision

KCPL Hawthorn No Litigation

KCPL received reimbursement for the 1999 Hawthorn No boiler explosion under property damage

insurance policy with Travelers Property Casualty Company of America Travelers Travelers filed suit in the

U.S District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri in November 2005 against National Union Fire Insurance

Company of Pittsburgh Pennsylvania National Union and KCPL was added as defendant in June 2006

The case was subsequently transferred to the U.S District Court for the Western District of Missouri Travelers

sought recovery of $10 million that KCPL recovered through subrogation litigation On July 24 2008 the

Court held that Travelers is not entitled to any recovery from KCPL Travelers has the right to appeal this

decision although no appeal has been filed at this time

KCPL Spent Nuclear Fuel and Radioactive Waste

In 2004 KCPL and the other two Wolf Creek owners filed suit against the United States in the U.S Court of

Federal Claims seeking an unspecified amount of monetary damages resulting from the governments failure to

begin accepting spent nuclear fuel for disposal in January 1998 as the government was required to do by the

Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 Approximately sixty-five other similar cases were filed with that court few

of which have settled To date the court has rendered final decisions in several of the cases most of which are on

appeal now The Wolf Creek case is on court-ordered stay until further order of the court to allow for some of

the earlier cases to be decided first by an appellate court Another Federal appellate court has already determined

that the government breached its obligation to begin accepting spent fuel for disposal The questions now before

the court in the pending cases are whether and to what extent the utilities are entitled to monetary damages for that

breach

Weinstein KLT Telecom

Richard Weinstein Weinstein filed suit against KLT Telecom Inc KLT Telecom in September 2003 in the

Circuit Court of St Louis County Missouri KLT Telecom acquired controlling interest in DTI Holdings Inc

Holdings in February 2001 through the purchase of approximately two-thirds of the Holdings stock held by

Weinstein In connection with that purchase KLT Telecom entered into put option in favor of Weinstein which

granted Weinstein an option to sell to KLT Telecom his remaining shares of Holdings stock The put option

provided for an aggregate exercise price for the remaining shares equal to their fair market value with an

aggregate floor amount of $15 million and was exercisable between September 2003 and August 31 2005 In

June 2003 the stock of Holdings was cancelled and extinguished pursuant to the joint Chapter 11 plan confirmed

by the Bankruptcy Court In September 2003 Weinstein delivered notice of exercise of his claimed rights under

the put option KLT Telecom rejected the notice of exercise and Weinstein filed suit alleging breach of

115



contract Weinstein sought damages of at least $15 million plus statutory interest In March 2008 the parties

settled this matter for an amount less than the $15 million reserve recorded in 2001 and Great Plains Energy

released the remaining reserve resulting in $3.4 million of after-tax income

GMO Price Reporting Litigation

In response to complaints of manipulation of the California energy market in 2002 FERC issued an order

requiring net sellers of power in the California markets from October 2000 through June 20 2001 at prices

above FERC determined competitive market clearing price to make refunds to net purchasers of power in the

California market during that time period Because MPS Merchant was net purchaser of power during the

refund period it has received approximately $8.1 million in refunds MPS Merchant estimates that it is entitled to

an additional $14 million in refunds under the standards FERC has used in this case However various parties

appealed the FERC order to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit seeking review of number

of issues including changing the refund period to include periods prior to October 2000 MPS Merchant was

net seller of power during the period prior to October 2000 If FERC ultimately includes that period MPS

Merchant could be found to owe refunds On August 2006 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

issued an order finding among other things that FERC did not provide sufficient justification for refusing to

exercise its remedial authority under the Federal Power Act to determine whether market participants violated

FERC-approved tariffs during the period prior to October 2000 and imposing remedy for any such violations

The court remanded the matter to FERC to determine whether tariff violations occurred and if so the appropriate

remedy In March 2008 FERC issued an order declining to order refunds for the period prior to October 2000

That order has been appealed to the U.S Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit In addition FERC initiated

docket generally referred to as the Pacific Northwest refund proceeding to determine if any refunds were

warranted related to the potential impact of the California market issues on buyers in the Pacific Northwest

between December 25 2000 and June 20 2001 The City of Seattle has claimed that MPS Merchant owes the

city $4.1 million refund The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot be predicted

On October 2006 the MPSC filed suit in the Circuit Court of Jackson County Missouri against 18 companies

including GMO and MPS Merchant alleging that the companies manipulated natural
gas prices through the

misreporting of natural
gas

trade data and therefore violated Missouri antitrust laws The suit does not specify

alleged damages and was filed on behalf of all local distribution
gas companies in Missouri who bought and sold

natural gas from June 2000 to October 2002 The defendants motions to dismiss the case were granted in

January 2009 The MPSC has appealed the dismissal to the Missouri Court of Appeals for the Western District of

Missouri

GMO South Harper Peaking Facility

GMO constructed 315 MW natural gas power plant and related substation in an unincorporated area of Cass

County Missouri Cass County and local residents filed suit claiming that county approval was required to

construct the project In April 2008 GMO entered into an agreement with Cass County pursuant to which it filed

and Cass County approved land use application for the South Harper facilities GMO entered into final

settlement agreement with the members of StopAquila.org an unincorporated association of approximately 100

individuals who opposed the facilities and has settled all seven of the original private lawsuits filed by Cass

County residents alleging that the facilities constitute public and private nuisance In August 2008 law took

effect that grants the MPSC the authority to retroactively approve the development and construction of the South

Harper facilities GMO has filed an application with the MPSC and reached stipulation and agreement with the

parties The stipulation and agreement is pending MPSC decision

GMO Coal Supply Litigation

In the spring of 2005 one of GMOs coal suppliers C.W Mining terminated long-term fixed price coal supply

agreement allegedly because of force majeure event GMO incurred significant costs procuring replacement

coal and disputed that the supplier was entitled to terminate the contract GMO filed lawsuit against the supplier

in federal court in Salt Lake City and the trial was held in February 2007 On October 29 2007 the United States

District Court for the District of Utah Central Division held that C.W Minings performance under the coal
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contract was not excused by force majeure event and awarded GMO $24.8 million in damages In order to

preserve and recover on its claim on January 2008 GMO participated in the filing of an involuntary Chapter

11 bankruptcy petition against C.W Mining in the United States Bankruptcy Court in Salt Lake City Utah In

September 2008 the Bankruptcy Court granted GMOs motions for partial summary judgment effectively putting

C.W Mining into bankruptcy In July 2008 parties affiliated with C.W Mining filed suit against GMO alleging

that GMOs efforts to collect on its judgment constituted conversion abuse of process intentional interference

with economic relations and civil conspiracy asserting $217 million in damages and requesting punitive damages
In October 2008 the plaintiffs dismissed this suit without prejudice The underlying judgment was affirmed by

the 10th Circuit Court of Appeals on November 2008 On November 11 2008 GMOs Motion to Appoint

Trustee was granted

Everest Minority Shareholder Litigation

Minority shareholders of former subsidiary of GMO brought suit against GMO in Circuit Court in St Charles

County Missouri asserting that they are entitled to put their shares to GMO for approximately $5 million because

the subsidiary failed to obtain 30000 customers by the end of 2004 Under the put agreement if there was

dispute regarding the customer count it was to be resolved by an audit firm GMO has paid $2.3 million to the

minority shareholders under related market-based put provisions The audit firm issued report stating that the

customer count was met Discovery in this case is continuing

18 GUARANTEES

In the ordinary course of business Great Plains Energy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various

agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries Such

agreements include for example guarantees and indemnification of letters of credit These agreements are

entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to subsidiary on stand

alone basis thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries intended business

purposes The majority of these agreements guarantee the Companys own future performance so liability for

the fair value of the obligation is not recorded At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy has provided

$1144.6 million of credit support for certain subsidiaries as follows

Great Plains Energy letters of credit totaling $4.0 million to KCPL counterparties which expire in

2009

Great Plains Energy direct guarantees to GMO counterparties totaling $88.9 million which expire in

2009

Great Plains Energy letters of credit totaling $30.9 million to GMO counterparties which expire in 2009
and

Great Plains Energy guarantee of GMO long-term debt totaling $1020.8 million which includes debt

with maturity dates ranging from 2009-2023

At December 31 2008 KCPL had guaranteed with maximum potential of $1.9 million energy savings under

an agreement with customer that expires over the next two years subcontractor would indemnify KCPL for

any payments made by KCPL under this guarantee This guarantee was entered into before December 31 2002

therefore liability was not recorded in accordance with FTh No 45 Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure

Requirements for Guarantees Including Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others
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19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS

KCPL and GMO receive various support and administrative services from Services These services are billed at

cost based on payroll and other expenses incurred by Services for the benefit of KCPL and GMO These costs

totaled $13.0 million $14.9 million and $18.5 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively for KCPL and

$2.4 million in 2008 for GMO These costs consisted primarily of employee compensation benefits and fees

associated with various professional services In December 2008 employees and assets of Services were

transferred to KCPL KCPL employees manage GMOs business and operate its facilities at cost These

costs totaled $41.0 million since the July 14 2008 acquisition of GMO Additionally KCPL and GMO engage

in wholesale electricity transactions with each other At December 31 2007 KCPLs balance sheet reflects

note payable from HSS to Great Plains Energy of $0.6 million The following table summarizes KCPLs
related party receivables and payables

December 31

2008 2007

millions

Receivable from GMO 23.7

Receivable payable from/to Great Plains Energy 1.2 10.5

Payable to MPS Merchant 3.4

Receivable payable from/to Services 4.8 1.8

Deferred credits other payable to Services 1.5

20 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to variety of market risks including interest rates and commodity prices Management

has established risk management policies and strategies to reduce the potentially adverse effects that the volatility

of the markets may have on the Companys operating results The risk management activities including the use

of derivative instruments are subject to the management direction and control of an internal risk management

committee Managements interest rate risk management strategy uses derivative instruments to adjust the

Companys liability portfolio to optimize the mix of fixed and floating rate debt within an established range In

addition the Company uses derivative instruments to hedge against future interest rate fluctuations on anticipated

debt issuances Management maintains commodity price risk management strategies that use derivative

instruments to reduce the effects of fluctuations in fuel expense caused by commodity price volatility

Counterparties to commodity derivatives and interest rate swap agreements expose the Company to credit loss in

the event of nonperformance This credit loss is limited to the cost of replacing these contracts at current market

rates Derivative instruments excluding those instruments that qualify for the NPNS election which are

accounted for by accrual accounting are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value as an asset or liability

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recognized currently in net income unless specific hedge

accounting criteria are met except GMO utility operations hedges that are recorded to regulatory asset or

liability consistent with MPSC regulatory orders as discussed below

Interest Rate Risk Management
Forward Starling Swaps
In July 2007 Great Plains Energy entered into three FSS with total notional amount of $250.0 million to hedge

against interest rate fluctuations on future issuances of long-term debt The FSS were designed to effectively

remove most of the interest rate uncertainty and to the extent that swap spreads correlate with credit spreads

some degree of credit spread uncertainty with respect to the debt to be issued thereby enabling Great Plains

Energy to predict with greater assurance its future interest costs on that debt The FSS were originally for

anticipated financing related to the GMO acquisition and treated as an economic hedge Due to change in

financing plans during the second quarter of 2008 Great Plains Energy redesignated the FSS from an economic

hedge non-hedging derivative to cash flow hedge Prior to the redesignation the change in the fair value of

the FSS increased interest expense by $9.2 million year to date June 30 2008 Subsequent to the redesignation
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the FSS are accounted for as cash flow hedges and the fair value is recorded as current asset or liability with an

offsetting entry to OCI to the extent the hedges are effective until the forecasted transaction occurs No
ineffectiveness has been recorded on the FSS since June 30 2008 Due to another change in financing plans
Great Plains Energy assigned the FSS to KCPL The pre-tax gain or loss on the FSS recorded to OCT will be

reclassified to interest expense over the life of the future debt issuance

Treasury Locks

In 2007 Great Plains Energy entered into three T-Locks wh notional amount of $350.0 million to hedge

against interest rate fluctuations on the U.S Treasury rate component on future issuances of long-term debt

Following change in financing plans Great Plains Energy assigned the T-Locks to KCPL In the first quarter

of 2008 KCPL issued $350.0 million 10-year long-term debt and the T-Locks settled simultaneously with the

issuance of this long-term fixed rate debt The T-Locks were accounted for as cash flow hedges and KCPLs
interest expense for 2008 includes loss of $0.7 million due to ineffectiveness of the cash flow hedge pre-tax

loss of $39.1 million was recorded to OCI and is being reclassified to interest expense over the life of the 10-year

debt In 2008 $3.3 million of the loss has been reclassified from OCT to interest expense At December 31 2008
KCPL had $35.8 million recorded in accumulated OCI for the T-Locks

In 2006 Great Plains Energy entered into T-Lock to hedge against interest rate fluctuations on an anticipated

$100.0 million 10-year long-term debt issuance In the first quarter of 2007 Great Plains Energy allowed the

Lock to expire while the terms of the debt offering were re-evaluated and the resulting $0.1 million loss was

recorded to interest expense as cash flow ineffectiveness

Commodity Risk Management
KCPLs risk management policy is to use derivative instruments to mitigate its exposure to market price

fluctuations on portion of its projected natural gas purchases to meet generation requirements for retail and firm

wholesale sales At December 31 2008 KCPL has hedged 31% and 3% respectively of its 2009 and 2010

projected natural gas usage for retail load and firm MWh sales primarily by utilizing futures contracts and

financial instruments The fair values of these instruments are recorded as current assets or current liabilities with

an offsetting entry to OCI for the effective portion of the hedge To the extent the hedges are not effective the

ineffective portion of the change in fair market value is recorded currently in fuel expense

KCPL uses derivative instruments to mitigate its exposure to market price fluctuations on portion of the

projected fuel oil purchases to meet the startup requirements for latan No At December 31 2008 KCPL has

hedged 15% of the projected fuel oil purchases for the startup of latan No utilizing futures contracts The fair

values of these instruments are recorded as current assets or current liabilities with an offsetting entry to OCI for

the effective portion of the hedge

GMOs price risk policy is to use derivative instruments to mitigate price exposure to natural gas price volatility

in the market This program extends multiple years and the mark-to-market value of the portfolio relates to

financial contracts that will settle against actual purchases of natural gas and purchased power in 2008 through

2010 At December 31 2008 GMO had financial contracts in place to hedge approximately 65% and 4% of the

expected on-peak natural gas and natural
gas equivalent purchased power price exposure for 2009 and 2010

respectively In connection with GMOs 2005 Missouri electric rate case it was agreed that these contracts would

be recognized into the cost of sales when they settle The settlement cost is component of the energy cost

included in GMOs Missouri fuel adjustment clause regulatory asset has been recorded to reflect the change in

the timing of recognition authorized by the MPSC To the extent that recovery of actual costs incurred is allowed

amounts will not impact earnings but will impact cash flows due to the timing of the recovery mechanism

MPS Merchant manages the daily delivery of its remaining contractual commitments to reduce its
exposure to

changes in market prices Within the trading portfolio MPS Merchant takes certain positions to hedge physical

sale or purchase contracts MPS Merchant records trading energy contracts both physical and financial at fair
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value in accordance with SFAS No 133 Changes in fair value are recorded in the consolidated statements of

income in non-operating income and on the consolidated balance sheets in derivative assets or liabilities

The notional and recorded fair values of the companies open positions for derivative instruments are summarized

in the following table The fair values of these derivatives are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets

December31

2008 2007

Notional Notional

Contract Fair Contract Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Great Plains Fnergy millions

Swap contracts

Cash flow hedges 0.7 0.2 5.5 0.7

Non-hedging derivatives 46.2 7.4

Forward contracts

Cash flow hedges 4.5 0.6 1.4

Non-hedging derivatives 317.3 7.8

Option contracts

Non-hedging derivatives 28.2 0.2

Anticipated debt issuance

Forward starting swap 250.0 80.1

Treasury lock 350.0 28.0

Non-hedging derivatives 250.0 16.4

KCPL
Swap contracts

Cash flow hedges 0.7 0.2 5.5 0.7

Forward contracts

Cash flow hedges 4.5 0.6 1.4

Anticipated debt issuance

Forward starting swap 250.0 80.1

Treasury lock 350.0 28.0
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The amounts recorded in accumulated OCI related to the cash flow hedges are summarized in the following table

Great Plains Energy KCPL
December31 December31

2008 2007 2008 2007

millions

Current assets 13.7 14.6 13.7 14.6

Current liabilities 94.6 31.0 90.5 26.6

Deferred income taxes 31.5 6.2 29.9 4.5

Assets of dis continued operations 31.0

Liabilities of discontinued operations 16.9
Deferred income taxes included in assets

and liabilities ofdiscontinued operations 5.8
Total 49.4 1.9 46.9 7.5

Great Plains Energys accumulated OCI in the table above at December 31 2008 includes $3.9 million that is

expected to be reclassified to expenses over the next twelve months KCPLs accumulated OCT includes $3.2

million that is expected to be reclassified to expense over the next twelve months

The amounts reclassified to expenses are summarized in the following table

2008 2007 2006

Great Plains Energy millions

Fuel expense 2.3

Interest expense 2.8 0.4 0.4

Income taxes 0.2 0.1 0.2

Income loss from discontinued operations

Purchased power expense 106.1 83.7 54.6

Income taxes 43.8 34.2 22.6

OCI 62.0 49.2 31.8

KCPL
Fuel expense 2.3

Interest expense 2.5 0.6 0.4

Income taxes 0.2 0.2

OCI 0.2 0.4 0.2
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21 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Great Plains Energy and KCPL adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements effective January 2008

This statement defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands

disclosures about fair value measurements The statement does not require any new fair value measurements but

provides guidance on how to measure fair value when required SFAS No 157 also emphasizes that fair value is

market-based measurement not an entity-specific measurement and sets out fair value hierarchy with the

highest priority being quoted prices in active markets

SFAS No 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date SFAS No 157 establishes fair

value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad

categories giving the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and

lowest priority to unobservable inputs definition of the various levels as well as discussion of the various

Company measurements within the levels is as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company has access

to at the measurement date Assets categorized within this level consist of Great Plains Energys various

exchange traded derivative instruments and equity and certain U.S Treasury securities that are actively traded

within KCPLs decommissioning trust fund and GMOs SERP rabbi trust fund

Level Market-based inputs for assets or liabilities that are observable either directly or indirectly or inputs

that are not observable but are corroborated by market data Assets and liabilities categorized within this level

consist of KCPLs and Great Plains Energys various non-exchange traded derivative instruments traded in

over-the-counter markets and debt securities and certain U.S Agency securities within KCPLs
decommissioning trust fund GMOs SERP rabbi trust fund

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting the Companys own assumptions about the assumptions market

participants would use in pricing the asset or liability Assets categorized within this level consist of Great Plains

Energys various non-exchange traded derivative instruments traded in over-the-counter markets and mortgage

backed securities within KCPLs decommissioning trust fund for which sufficiently observable market data is

not available to corroborate the valuation inputs
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The following table includes Great Plains Energys and KCPLs balances of financial assets and liabilities

measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 31 2008

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted

Prices in

Active

Markets Significant

for Other Significant

Identical Ohs enable Unobseriable

December31 F1NNo.39
Assets Inputs Inputs

Description 2008 Netting Level Level LevelKCPL
millions

Ass ets

Derivative instruments 0.6 0.6

Nuclear
decommissioning trust 95.2 52.9 35.5 6.8

Total 95.8 52.9 36.1 6.8

Liabilities

Derivative instruments 80.3 80.3

Total 80.3 80.3

Other Great Plains Energy

Assets

Derivative instruments 17.2 0.7 3.2 10.9 3.8

SERPrabbitrust 6.7 0.2 6.5

Total 23.9 0.7 3.4 17.4 3.8

Liabilities

Derivative instruments 5.9 11.4 10.1 7.2

Total 5.9 11.4 10.1 7.2

Great Plains Energy

Assets

Derivative instruments 17.8 0.7 3.2 11.5 3.8

Nuclear decommissioning trust 95.2 52.9 35.5 6.8

SERPrabbitrust 6.7 0.2 6.5

Total 119.7 0.7 56.3 53.5 10.6

Liabilities

Derivative instruments 86.2 11.4 10.1 87.5

Total 86.2 11.4 10.1 87.5

The fair value of derivative instruments is estimated using market quotes net of estimated credit risk Upon adoption of
SFAS No 157 the Companys own credit risk has been incorporated into the valuation of derivative liabilities

This had no impact to Great Plains Ener or KCPL
Fair value is based on quoted market prices of the investments held by the fund and/or valuation models The total does not include cash

and cash equivalents which are not subject to the fair value requirements of SFAS No 157

Represents the difference between derivative contracts in an asset or liability position presented on net basis by counterparty

on the consolidated balance sheet where master netting agreement exists between the Company and the counterparty
At December 31 2008 Great Plains Ener netted $10.7 million of cash collateral posted with counterp arties
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The following tables reconcile the beginning and ending balances for all level assets and liabilities net

measured at fair value on recurring basis for 2008

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobserable Inputs Lewl
Other

Great Great

Plains Plains

KCPL Energy Energy

Nuclear

Decommissioning Deristiw

Description
Trust Instruments Total

millions

Balance January 2008
6.5 22.4 28.9

GMO acquisition July 14 2008
6.6 6.6

Total realized/unrealized gains or losses

Included in regulatory liability
1.0 1.0

Included in non-operating income 1.8 1.8

Purchase issuances and settlements 2.5 1.0 3.5

Transfers in and/or out of Level 3.8 16.4 12.6

Discontinued operations
6.0 6.0

Balance December 312008
6.8 3.8 10.6

Total unrealized gains and losses included in non-operating

income relating to assets and liabilities still on the

consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2008 2.3 2.3

KCPL level activity consists of mortgage-backed securities held by KCPLs decommissioning trust fund

Other Great Plains Energys level activity consists almost entirely of forward physical derivative instruments

held by MPS Merchant

SFAS No 157 is not yet effective for the Companys nonfinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

nonrecurring basis such as AROs reporting
units and long-lived asset groups measured at fair value for

impairment testing nonfinancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in business combination and not

measured at fair value in subsequent periods The effective date for these measurements has been delayed by FSP

SFAS No 157-2 Effective Date of FASB Statement No 157 to January 2009 and interim periods within

that fiscal year Management has evaluated the impact of adoption to those nonfinancial assets and liabilities

delayed by FSP SFAS No 157-2 and has determined there is no significant impact on Great Plains Energys and

KCPLs fair value measurement processes

In January 2008 the FASB proposed FSP SFAS No 157-c Measuring Liabilities under FASB Statement No

157 to amend the standard to clarif the principles on fair value measurement of liabilities Management is

currently evaluating the impact of the proposed FSP with final FSP expected in the first quarter of 2009

In October 2008 the FASB issued FSP SFAS No 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset When

the Market for That Asset is Not Active to clarify the application of fair value measurement in an inactive

market and was effective upon issuance Management has evaluated the FSP and determined there is no

significant impact to the Companys fair value measurement processes
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22 TAXES

Components of income tax expense benefit are detailed in the following tables

Great Plains Energy 2008 2007 2006

Current income taxes millions

Federal 21.0 44.3 59.2

State 1.1 6.5 0.9

Total 19.9 50.8 60.1

Deferred income taxes

Federal 3.3 22.5 7.2
State 40.8 1.3 3.8

Total 44.1 23.8 11.0

Noncurrent income taxes

Federal 0.6 0.7
State 1.0 0.9

Total 1.6 1.6
Investment tax credit

Deferral 74.2

Amortization 1.8 1.5 1.2
Total 72.4 1.5 1.2
Total income tax expense 95.0 71.5 47.9

I.ess taxes on discontinued operations

Current tax expense 25.8 5.4 16.3

Deferred taxexpense benefit 4.5 21.4 28.7
Noncurrent income tax expense benefit 0.9 0.2

Income tax expense on continuing operations 63.8 44.9 60.3

KCPL 2008 2007 2006
Current income taxes millions

Federal 8.0 38.7 49.3

State 4.5 4.4 4.8

Total 3.5 43.1 54.1

Deferred income taxes

Federal 38.4 17.7 15.6

State 30.9 2.0 1.8

Total 7.5 19.7 17.4

Noncurrent income taxes

Federal 1.7 1.7
State 0.3 0.3

Total 2.0 2.0
Investment tax credit

Deferral 74.2

Amortization 1.4 1.5 1.2
Total 72.8 1.5 1.2
Total 59.8 59.3 70.3

For 2008 and 2007 this includes amounts recognized under FIN No 48 Tax

contingency reserves for 2006 are included in current income tax expense

125



Income Tax Expense Benefit and Effective Income Tax Rates

Income tax expense and the effective income tax rates reflected in continuing operations in the financial

statements and the reasons for their differences from the statutory federal rates are detailed in the following tables

Income Tax Expense
Income Tax Rate

Great Plains Energy 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

millions

Federal statutory income tax 64.2 58.0 68.9 35.0 35.0 35.0

Differences between book and tax

depreciation not normalized 5.4 2.0 0.3 2.9 1.2 0.2

Amortization of investment taxcredits 1.8 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.6

Federal income tax credits 10.2 7.9 9.3 5.6 4.8 4.7

State income taxes 3.2 0.1 2.3 1.8 0.1 1.2

Rate change on deferred taxes 19.3 10.5

Changes in uncertain tax pos itions net 0.1 0.6 0.8 0.1 0.3 0.4

GMOtransaction costs 1.9 3.7 1.0 2.2

Other 3.7 2.5 0.9 2.1 1.5 0.5

Total 63.8 44.9 60.3 34.8 27.0 30.6

Income Tax Expense
Income Tax Rate

KCPL 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

millions

Federal statutory income tax 64.7 75.6 76.9 35.0 35.0 35.0

Differences between book and tax

depreciation not normalized 5.2 2.0 0.3 2.8 0.9 0.2

Amortization of investment taxcredits 1.4 1.5 1.2 0.8 0.7 0.6

Federal income tax credits 9.8 6.4 4.6 5.3 2.9 2.1

State income taxes 3.8 4.7 5.5 2.1 2.2 2.5

changes in uncertain taxpositions net 0.6 0.3 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.3

Parent company taxbenefits 6.7 12.0 4.7 3.6 5.6 2.1

Rate change on deferred taxes 20.3 11.0

Other 5.3 2.8 1.9 3.0 1.4 0.8

Total 59.8 59.3 70.3 32.3 27.4 32.0

For 2008 and 2007 this includes amounts recognized under FIN No 48

The tax sharing between Great Plains Energy and its subsidiaries was modified on July 14 2008 As part of the new

agreement parent company tax benefits are no longer allocated to KCPL or other subsidiaries

SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes requires companies to adjust deferred tax assets and liabilities to

reflect tax rates that are anticipated to be in effect when timing differences reverse Due to the sale of Strategic

Energy during the second quarter of 2008 the composite tax rate for the companies is expected to increase as

result of the change in composition of states that Great Plains Energy conducts business Therefore deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been adjusted to reflect the expected increase in the composite tax rate The impact of

the increase in the composite tax rate on deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted in tax expense for Great Plains

Energy and KCPL of $19.3 million and $20.3 million respectively at December 31 2008
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Deferred Income Taxes

The tax effects of major temporary differences resulting in deferred income tax assets liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheets are in the following tables

Great Plains Energy KCPL
December31 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current deferred income taxes

millions
Net operating loss carryforward 26.2

Other 5.9 3.6 4.9 3.4

Net current deferred income tax asset before

valuation allowance 32.1 3.6 4.9 3.4

Valuation allowance 3.5
Net current deferred income tax asset 28.6 3.6 4.9 3.4

Noncurrent deferred income taxes

Plant related 775.2 573.7 599.3 573.7
Income taxes on future regulatory recoveries 122.5 66.5 71.6 66.5
Derivative instruments 44.1 12.3 40.0 4.5

Pension and postretirement benefits 6.9 23.3 9.9 25.8
SO2 emission allowance sales 32.4 33.4 34.6 33.4

Fuel clause adjustments 20.4 0.6
Transition costs 18.2 11.4
Tax credit canyforwards 140.3 19.2 36.4

Long-termdebt fair value adjustment 45.3

Capital loss canyforwards 49.7

Net operating loss canyforward 315.2 0.4

Other 1.4 9.4 14.4 14.1
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability before

valuation allowance 314.8 607.6 596.2 642.2
Valuation allowance 72.3 0.4

Net noncurrent deferred tax liability 387.1 608.0 596.2 642.2
Net deferred income tax liability 358.5 604.4 591.3 638.8

Great Plains Energy KCPL
December31 2008 2007 2008 2007

millions

Gross deferred income tax assets 955.9 222.3 460.3 183.0

Gross deferred income taxliabilities 1314.4 826.7 1051.6 821.8
Net deferred income tax liability 358.5 604.4 591.3 638.8

Tax Credit Carryforwards

At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy and KCPL had $37.3 million and $36.4 million respectively of
federal general business income tax credit carryforwards These credits relate primarily to Advanced Coal
Investment Tax Credits and expire in years 2021 to 2028 Approximately $0.5 million of these credits are related
to Low Income Housing credits that were acquired from GMO Due to federal limitations on the utilization of
income tax attributes acquired in the GMO acquisition management expects these credits to expire unutilized and
has provided valuation allowance against $0.5 million of the federal income tax benefit as discussed below

At December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy had $87.4 million of federal alternative minimum tax credit

carryforwards that were acquired from GMO These credits do not expire and can be used to reduce taxes paid in

the future
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At December 31 2008 and 2007 Great Plains Energy had $15.9 million and $19.2 million respectively of state

income tax credit canyforwards The state income tax credits relate primarily to the affordable housing

investment portfolio and the carryforwards expire in years 2010 to 2013 Management expects
these credits will

be fully utilized within the canyforward period

Capital Loss Carryforwards

At December 31 2008 after implementation of FIN No 48 Great Plains Energy had approximately $49.7 million

of tax benefits related to capital loss carryforwards that were acquired from GMO The benefits from the capital

loss carryforwards expire in 2009 These capital losses were treated as ordinary losses on filed income tax

returns The tax benefits from the ordinary losses on the returns as filed are included in unrecognized tax benefits

for net operating loss carryforwards discussed below If the unrecognized tax benefits from the net operating loss

carryforwards are recognized then the entire amount of recognized tax benefits from capital loss carryforwards

will be reduced to zero Management has provided full valuation allowance for the $49.7 million of tax benefits

related to capital loss carryforwards Thus any changes to unrecognized tax benefits impacting capital loss

carryforwards will have an offsetting impact on the related valuation allowance

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

At December 31 2008 after implementation of FIN No 48 Great Plains Energy had $295.2 million of tax

benefits related to federal net operating loss NOL carryforwards that were acquired from GMO The tax

benefits for NOLs originating in 1999 are $0.4 million $86.1 million originating in 2003 $104.7 million

originating in 2004 $74.1 million originating in 2005 and $82.3 originating in 2006 Great Plains Energy

estimates that $52.4 million of federal tax liability related to 2008 will offset tax benefits from the 2003 NOL

The federal NOL carryforwards expire in years 2019 to 2026 Management expects to utilize all of these NOL

carryforwards before they expire

In addition after implementation of FiN No 48 Great Plains Energy also had deferred tax benefits of $46.2

million related to state NOLs as of December 31 2008 $44.8 million of which were acquired from GMO

Management does not expect to utilize $25.6 million of NOLs in tax jurisdictions
where the Company does not

expect to operate in the future Therefore valuation allowance has been provided against $25.6 million of state

tax benefits as discussed below

If unrecognized tax benefits from federal and state NOLs are recognized management expects that valuation

allowance will be needed for portion of the tax benefits due to federal and state limitations on the utilization of

income tax attributes acquired from GMO It is reasonably possible that this valuation allowance will be recorded

in 2009 and is expected to be recorded to the statement of operations in accordance with guidance in SFAS No

14lrevised 2007 Business Combinations The estimated valuation allowance adjustment is $56.0 million

Valuation Allowances

Great Plains Energy is required to assess the ultimate realization of deferred tax assets using more likely than

not assessment threshold This assessment takes into consideration tax planning strategies within Great Plains

Energys control As result of this assessment Great Plains Energy has established full valuation allowance

against tax benefits from capital loss carryforwards partial valuation allowance for state tax NOL

carryforwards and partial valuation allowance for tax credit carryforwards

During 2008 $0.9 million of tax expense was recorded in continuing operations primarily related to portion of

the valuation allowance against state NOL carryforwards The remaining valuation allowances against capital

loss canyforwards state NOL canyforwards and general business credits were acquired
from GMO and were

recorded as part of the purchase accounting entries impacting goodwill
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Uncertain Tax Positions

Great Plains Energy and KCPL recognize tax benefits in accordance with FIN No 48 FIN No 48 establishes

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold that must be met before tax benefits can be recognized in the

financial statements Upon adoption of FIN No 48 on January 2007 Great Plains Energy recognized $18.8
million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits This increase was offset by $0.9 million decrease
to the January 2007 balance of retained earnings $17.9 million decrease in deferred taxes $4.0 million

decrease in accrued taxes and $4.0 million increase in accrued interest KCPL recognized $19.8 million

increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits that was offset by $0.2 million decrease to the January
2007 balance of retained earnings $15.7 million decrease in deferred taxes and $3.9 million decrease in

accrued taxes

At December 31 2008 and 2007 Great Plains Energy had $97.3 million and $21.9 million respectively of
liabilities related to unrecognized tax benefits Of this amount $80.2 million at December 31 2008 and $3.6
million at December 31 2007 is expected to impact the effective tax rate if recognized The $75.4 million
increase in unrecognized tax benefits is primarily due to an increase of $77.0 million for unrecognized tax benefits

acquired in the acquisition of GMO offset by decrease of $8.5 million for unrecognized tax benefits due to the
Joint Committee on Taxation approval on July 31 2008 of the audit for the 2000-2003 tax years

At December 31 2008 and 2007 KCPL had $17.6 million and $19.6 million respectively of liabilities related
to unrecognized tax benefits Of this amount $1.2 million at December 31 2008 and $1.3 million at December
31 2007 is expected to impact the effective tax rate if recognized The $2.0 million decrease in unrecognized tax
benefits is primarily due to decrease of $7.5 million of unrecognized tax benefits due to the Joint Committee on
Taxation approval of the audit for the 2000-2003 tax years

The following table reflects activity for Great Plains Energy and KCPL related to the liability for unrecognized
tax benefits

Great Plains Fnergy KCPL
2008 2007 2008 2007

millions

Balance at January 21.9 23.5 19.6 21.6

Additions for current year taxpositions 5.3 4.1 3.8 2.9

Additions forprioryeartaxpositions 2.6 0.1 2.6 0.1

Additions for GIVIO prioryeartaxpositjons 77.0

Reductions for prior year tax positions 0.8 5.0 0.7 4.9
Settlements 8.5 7.5
Statute expirations 0.2 0.8 0.2 0.1
Balance at December31 97.3 21.9 17.6 19.6

With the adoption of FIN No 48 Great Plains Energy and KCPL elected to recognize interest accrued related to

unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in
non-operating expenses In 2008 Great Plains

Energy and KCPL recognized reduction of $6.6 million and $1.7 million respectively of interest expense
related to unrecognized tax benefits The reduction in interest expense for both Great Plains Energy and KCPL
is related to the Joint Committee on Taxation approval of the audit for the 2000-2003 tax years In 2007 Great
Plains Energy and KCPL recognized an increase of interest expense of $2.0 million and $1.0 million

respectively At December 31 2008 and 2007 accrued interest related to unrecognized tax benefits for Great

Plains Energy was $2.6 million and $8.4 million respectively KCPL had accrued interest related to

unrecognized tax benefits of$l.7 million and $3.4 million at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
Amounts accrued for penalties with respect to unrecognized tax benefits are insignificant

129



In January 2009 the Company agreed to IRS audit adjustments for the Great Plains Energy and subsidiaries 2004

tax year and the GMO and subsidiaries 2003 and 2004 tax years As result of the Great Plains Energy

agreement the amount of unrecognized tax benefits that will be recognized in the first quarter of 2009 is $2.1

million for Great Plains Energy and KCPL The IRS audit adjustments and agreement for GMO 2003 and 2004

tax years must be approved by the Joint Committee on Taxation The Joint Committee on Taxation is expected to

make decision on its approval before the statute of limitations for 2003 to 2004 is scheduled to expire on

December 31 2009 If the agreement is approved Great Plains Energy expects to recognize $74.5 million of

unrecognized tax benefits offset by $56.0 million increase in the valuation allowance for NOLs and $2.5

million decrease in deferred income tax assets which is estimated to result in $16.0 million increase in net

income The Company also estimates that it is reasonably possible that $5.2 million for Great Plains Energy and

$3.8 million for KCPL of unrecognized tax benefits will reverse in the next twelve months due statute

expirations or settlement agreements with tax authorities

Great Plains Energy files consolidated federal income tax return as well as unitary and combined income tax

returns in several state jurisdictions with Kansas and Missouri being the most significant The Company also files

separate company returns in Canada and certain other states The IRS audit agreement for GMO for the 2003 and

2004 tax year remains subject to Joint Committee on Taxation approval and the IRS has commenced an audit of

Great Plains Energy in its subsidiaries for the 2006 tax year This audit is expected to be completed by the end of

2009

Advanced Coal Credit

On April 28 2008 KCPL was notified that its application filed in 2007 for $125.0 million in advanced coal

investment tax credits ITC was approved by the IRS The credit is based on the amount of expenses incurred on

the construction of latan No Additionally in order to meet the advanced clean coal standards and avoid

forfeiture andlor the recapture of tax credits in the future KCPL must meet or exceed certain environmental

performance standards for at least five years once the plant is placed in service As result Great Plains Energy

and KCPL recognized federal tax benefits related to costs incurred to date on the plant of $74.2 million at

December 31 2008 However tax laws require the companies to reduce income tax expense for ratemaking and

financial statement purposes ratably over the life of the plant Therefore Great Plains Energy and KCPL

concurrently recognized deferred ITC expense of $74.2 million for 2008 Great Plains Energy and KCPL will

recognize the tax benefits of the ITC over the life of the plant once it is placed in service

23 SEGMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION

Great Plains Energy

Great Plains Energy has one reportable segment based on its method of internal reporting which generally

segregates reportable segments based on products and services management responsibility and regulation The

one reportable business segment is electric utility consisting of KCPL and GMOs regulated utility operations

For periods prior to 2008 the electric utility segment is the same as the previously reported KCPL segment

Other includes GMO activity other than its regulated utility operations HSS Services KLT Inc including

Strategic Energy discontinued operations unallocated corporate charges consolidating entries and intercompany

eliminations Intercompany eliminations include insignificant amounts of intercompany financing-related

activities The summary of significant accounting policies applies to the reportable segment For segment

reporting
the segments income taxes include the effects of allocating holding company tax benefits prior to July

14 2008 GMO is only included from the date of acquisition July 14 2008 through December 31 2008

Segment performance is evaluated based on net income
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The following tables reflect summarized financial information concerning Great Plains Energys reportable
segment

I1ectric Great Plains
2008

Utility Other Energy

millions

Operating revenues 1670.1 1670.1

Depreciation and amortization 235.0 235.0
Interest charges 96.9 14.4 111.3
Income taxes 70.9 7.1 63.8
Loss from equity investments 1.3 1.3
Discontinued operations 35.0 35.0

Net income 143.1 11.4 154.5

Eectric Great Plains

2007
Utility Other Energy

millions

Operating revenues 1292.7 1292.7

Depreciation and amortization 175.6 175.6
Interest charges 67.2 24.7 91.9
Income taxes 59.3 14.4 44.9
Loss from equity investments 2.0 2.0
Discontinued operations 38.3 38.3

Net income
156.8 2.4 159.2

I1ecfric Great Plains
2006

Utility Other Energy

millions

Operating revenues 1140.4 1140.4

Depreciation and amortization 152.7 152.7
Interest charges 60.9 9.2 70.1
Income taxes 71.6 11.3 60.3
Loss from equity investments 1.9 1.9
Discontinued operations 9.1 9.1
Net income loss 149.6 22.0 127.6
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Electric Great Plains

Utility Other Eliminations Energy

2008 millions

Assets 8161.9 141.7 434.3 7869.3

Capital expenditures 1023.7 1.2 1024.9

2007

Assets 4290.7 551.2 9.8 4832.1

Capita1expenditures 511.5 4.4 515.9

2006

Assets
3858.0 501.5 0.6 4358.9

Capital expenditures 476.0 4.1 480.1

Includes capital expenditures from discontinued operations of $0.8 million $3.7 million and

$3.9 million for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Other includes assets of discontinued operations

KCPL
For 2008 KCPL has one reportable segment KCPL which is the same as the KCPL registrant financial

statements for 2008 The following tables reflect summarized financial information concerning KCPLs

reportable segment for 2007 and 2006 For the periods prior to the January 2008 transfer of HSS to KLT Inc

other included HSS and intercompany eliminations Intercompany eliminations include insignificant amounts of

intercompany financing-related
activities

Consolidated

2007 KCPL Other KCPL
millions

Operating revenues 1292.7 1292.7

Depreciation and amortization 175.6 175.6

Interest charges 67.2 67.2

Income taxes 59.3 59.3

Net income loss 156.8 0.1 156.7

Consolidated

2006 KCPL Other KCPL
millions

Operating revenues 1140.4 1140.4

Depreciation and amortization 152.7 152.7

Interest charges 60.9 0.1 61.0

Income taxes 71.6 1.3 70.3

Net income loss 149.6 0.3 149.3
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Consolidated

KCPL Other KCPL
2007

millions

Assets 4290.7 1.3 4292.0

Capitalexpenditures 511.5 511.5

2006

Assets
3858.0 1.5 3859.5

Capital expenditures 476.0 476.0

24 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Strategic Energy

In 2007 Great Plains Energy retained Merrill Lynch Co as financial advisor to assist in review of strategic
and structural alternatives for its Strategic Energy subsidiary In April 2008 the Board of Directors approved
managements recommendation to sell Strategic Energy and Great Plains Energy entered into an agreement with
Direct Energy Services LLC Direct Energy subsidiary of Centrica plc under which Direct Energy acquired
all of Great Plains Energys interest in Strategic Energy On June 2008 Great Plains Energy completed the
sale of Strategic Energy Great Plains Energy received gross cash proceeds of $307.7 million including the base

purchase price of $300.0 million plus working capital adjustment of $7.7 million In accordance with SFAS No
144 Strategic Energy is reported as discontinued operations for the periods presented

Under the terms of the purchase agreement with Direct Energy Great Plains Energy indemnifies Direct Energy
for various matters including breaches of representations warranties and covenants funds advanced by Strategic
Energy to certain of its chaimel

partners if such funds become uncollectible before December 2009
approximately $8 million excluding commission offsets and losses associated with litigation and other certain
claims to the extent such losses exceed $7.5 million in the aggregate Great Plains Energy has reserved $2.0
million with respect to the indemnification obligations

The following table summarizes the income loss from Strategic Energys discontinued operations

2008 2007 2006

millions

Revenues 667.4 1974.4 1534.9

Income loss from operations before income taxes 182.4 64.9 21.5
Income loss on disposal before income taxes 116.2
Total income loss on discontinued operations

before income taxes 66.2 64.9 21.5
Income taxes 31.2 26.6 12.4

Income loss from discontinued operations

net of income taxes 35.0 38.3 9.1
For 2008 amount includes $189.1 million of unrealized net gains related to derivative contracts
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The following table provides additional information regarding the net cash proceeds
and loss on sale of Strategic

Energy

Sale of Strategic Energy
millions

Net cash proceeds
273.1

Income taxes on sale
34.6

Gross cash proceeds
307.7

Net assets of discontinued operations at December 31 2007 233.7

Intercompany liabilities not in discontinued operations 3.0

Income taxes on parent included in discontinued operations
6.2

Bookvalue of investment in Strategic Energy at December31 2007 236.9

Increase decrease to book value

Net income
187.8

Change in OCI 14.2

Equity contribution from parent
14.4

Distributions to parent
3.0

Book value of investment in Strategic Energy at June 22008 421.9

Reserve for indemnification obligations
2.0

Loss on disposal before income taxes
116.2

Amount includes $189.1 million of unrealized net gains related to derivatives contracts

Strategic Energys assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are summarized in the following table

December 31

2007

Assets
millions

Cash 43.1

Restricted cash 0.7

Receivables net 261.4

Deferred income taxes 16.2

Derivative instruments 52.7

Nonutiity property
6.8

Goodwill
88.1

Other 18.1

Total assets of discontinued operations 487.1

Liabilities

Accounts payable
165.1

Accrued taxes 10.8

Derivative instruments 38.2

Deferred income taxes 16.8

Other 22.5

Total liabilities of discontinued operations
253.4

Net assets of discontinued operations 233.7
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25 JOINTLY OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANTS

Great Plains Energys and KCPLs share ofjointly owned electric utility plants at December 31 2008 is

detailed in the following table

Great Plains Energy

Wolf Creek LaCygne latan No latan No tatan Jeffrey

Unit Units Unit Unit Common Energy Center

millions except MW amounts

Great Plains Energys share 47% 50% 88% 73% 79% 8%

Utility plant in service 1405.1 397.1 348.5 110.8

Accumulated depreciation 732.9 273.8 253.1 72.6

Nuclear fuel net 63.9

Construction work in progress 25.9 11.5 294.3 738.2 217.5 38.5

2009 accredited capacity-MWs 545 709 621 NA NA 174

KCPL
Wolf Creek LaCygne latan No latan No.2 latan

Unit Units Unit Unit Common

millions except MW amounts

KCPLs share 47% 50% 70% 55% 61%

Utility plant in service 1405.1 397.1 279.3

Accumulated depreciation 732.9 273.8 203.2

Nuclear fuel net 63.9

Construction workm progress 25.9 11.5 225.4 567.3 175.5

2009 accredited capacity-MWs 545 709 494 NA NA

Each owner must fund its own portion of the plants operating expenses and capital expenditures KCPLs and

GMOs share of direct
expenses is included in the appropriate operating expense classifications in Great Plains

Energys and KCPLs financial statements

26 NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

SFAS No 141R
In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 14 1R This statement significantly changes how business

combinations are accounted for in current practice Changes to current practice include among other things

requiring all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combination to be measured at fair value in

accordance with SFAS No 157 as of the acquisition date an acquirer to expense transaction costs and equity

securities issued as consideration in business combination be recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date

The provisions of this statement are effective for Great Plains Energy and KCPL prospectively for business

combinations occurring on or after January 2009 except it requires the prospective application of the

provisions related to income taxes to business combinations occurring in 2008 Among the SFAS No 141R
provisions related to income taxes that are effective for the GMO acquisition any adjustments to GMOs deferred

tax assets and uncertain tax position balances that occur after the measurement period which is limited to

maximum of one year from the acquisition date will be recorded as component of income tax expense as

required by the standard Management does not expect any other significant impacts on the acquisition of GMO
as result of this standard
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27 QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS UNAUDITED

Quarter

Great Plains Energy 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

2008 millions except per
share amounts

Operating revenue 297.6 335.0 593.6 443.9

Operating income 19.1 51.6 169.6 34.7

Income loss from continuing operations 5.4 13.2 104.7 7.0

Net income loss 47.5 5.0 105.0 7.0

Basic and diluted earnings loss per common share from

continuing operations 0.07 0.15 0.92 0.06

Basic and diluted earnings loss per common share 0.55 0.06 0.92 0.06

2007

Operating revenue 255.7 319.1 416.0 301.9

Operating income 9.7 65.1 121.7 60.0

Income loss from continuing operations 3.7 32.4 66.0 26.2

Net income 23.4 25.6 62.1 48.1

Basic and diluted earnings loss per common share from

continuing operations 0.05 0.37 0.77 0.30

Basic and diluted earnings per common share 0.28 0.29 0.72 0.56

Quarter

KCPL 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

2008 millions

Operating revenue 297.6 335.0 423.7 286.7

Operating income 29.4 52.5 127.9 28.3

Net income 17.0 7.9 83.9 16.4

2007

Operating revenue 255.7 319.1 416.0 301.9

Operating income 13.1 70.1 127.0 68.7

Net income 2.0 36.5 76.6 41.6

Quarterly data is subject to seasonal fluctuations with peak periods occurring in the summer months

Due to the June 2008 sale of Strategic Energy discussed in Note 24 Strategic Energy is reported as discontinued

operations in accordance with SFAS No 144 The following table provides information to reconcile Great Plains

Energys 1st quarter 2008 operating results above to the amount originally reported

PreMously As

1st Quarter 2008 Reported Adjustment Adjusted

millions except per share amounts

Operating revenue 825.4 527.8 297.6

Operating income 108.4 89.3 19.1

Income loss from continuing operations 47.5 52.9 5.4

Net income 47.5 47.5

Basic and diluted earnings loss per common share from

continuing operations
0.55 0.62 0.07

Basic and diluted earnings per conuion share 0.55 0.55
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Kansas City Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Great Plains Energy Incorporated and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

income comprehensive income common shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2008 Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at

Item 15 These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Companys
management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement

schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position

of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such financial statement schedules when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other

Postretirement Plans an amendment of FA SB Statements No 8788106 and 132R on December 31 2006
As discussed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation FiN No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of
FASB Statement No 109 on January 12007

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting which report did not include an assessment on
the internal control over financial reporting at KCPL Greater Missouri Operations

/s/DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City Missouri

February 27 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of

Kansas City Power Light Company

Kansas City Missouri

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kansas City Power Light Company and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

income comprehensive income common shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2008 Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at

Item 15 These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement

schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position

of the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of

the three years
in the period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion such financial statement schedules when

considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Statement of Financial

Accounting Standard SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other

Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No 8788106 and 132R on December 31 2006

As discussed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements the Company adopted Financial Accounting

Standards Board Interpretation FIN No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of

FASB Statement No 109 on January 2007

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

/s/DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City Missouri

February 27 2009
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ITEM CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Great Plains Energy carried out evaluations of its disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a-

15e or Sd- 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended These evaluations were conducted
under the supervision and with the participation of Great Plains Energys management including the chief

executive officer and chief financial officer and Great Plains Energys disclosure committee Based upon these

evaluations the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Great Plains Energy have concluded as of the

end of the period covered by this report that the disclosure controls and procedures of Great Plains Energy were
effective at reasonable assurance level

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There has been no change in Great Plains Energys internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the quarterly period ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect its internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of
collusion or improper override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or

detected on timely basis Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation Also projections of any evaluation of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rule 3a- 5f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended for Great Plains Energy
Under the supervision and with the participation of Great Plains Energys chief executive officer and chief

financial officer management evaluated the effectiveness of Great Plains Energys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 Management used for this evaluation the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO of the Treadway
Commission Great Plains Energy excluded from its evaluation GMOs internal control over financial reporting
which was acquired on July 14 2008 GMOs total assets revenues and net income constituted 33% 20% and

8% respectively of Great Plains Energys consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the
year ended

December 31 2008 Great Plains Energy will include GMO in its evaluation of the design and effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009

Management has concluded that as of December 31 2008 Great Plains Energys internal control over financial

reporting is effective based on the criteria set forth in the COSO framework Deloitte Touche LLP the

independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements included in this annual report

on Form 10-K has issued its report on Great Plains Energys internal control over financial reporting which is

included below
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Kansas City Missouri

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Great Plains Energy Incorporated and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

As described in Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting management excluded from

its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at KCPL Greater Missouri Operations GMO which

was acquired on July 14 2008 GMOs total assets revenues and net income constituted 33% 20% and 8%

respectively of the Great Plains Energy consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended

December 31 2008 Accordingly our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at GMO

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on timely basis

Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future

periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
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We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedules and included an explanatory paragraph

regarding the Companys adoption of new accounting standards

/s/DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City Missouri

February 27 2009

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

KCPL carried out evaluations of its disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e or 15d-

15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended These evaluations were conducted under the

supervision and with the participation of KCPLs management including the chief executive officer and chief

financial officer and KCPLs disclosure committee Based upon these evaluations the chief executive officer

and chief financial officer of KCPL have concluded as of the end of the period covered by this report that the

disclosure controls and procedures of KCPL were effective at reasonable assurance level

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in KCPLs internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarterly

period ended December 31 2008 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect its

internal control over financial reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or

detected on timely basis Therefore even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable

assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation Also projections of any evaluation of

the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rule Sd- 15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended for KCPL Under the

supervision and with the participation of KCPLs chief executive officer and chief financial officer

management evaluated the effectiveness of KCPLs internal control over financial reporting as of December 31
2008 Management used for this evaluation the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by
the COSO of the Treadway Commission Management has concluded that as of December 31 2008 KCPLs
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on the criteria set forth in the COSO framework

Deloitte Touche LLP the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the financial statements

included in this annual report on Form 10-K has issued its report on KCPLs internal control over financial

reporting which is included below
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of

Kansas City Power Light Company

Kansas City Missouri

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Kansas City Power Light Company and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The

Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for

its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be

prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year

ended December 31 2008 of the Company and our report dated February 27 2009 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an explanatory paragraph

regarding the Companys adoption of new accounting standards
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/s/DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City Missouri

February 27 2009

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Great Plains Energy Directors

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Great Plains Energy 2009 Proxy

Statement Proxy Statement which will be filed with the SEC no later than April 30 2009

Information regarding the directors of Great Plains Energy required by this item is contained in the Proxy

Statement sections titled Election of Directors

Information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 required by
this item is contained in the Proxy Statement section titled Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners Directors and Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information regarding the Code of Ethics and the Audit Committee of Great Plains Energy required by

this item is contained in the Proxy Statement section titled Corporate Governance

Great Plains Energy and KCPL Executive Officers

Information required by this item regarding the executive officers of Great Plains Energy and KCPL is contained

in this report in the Part Item sections titled Officers of Great Plains Energy and Officers of KCPL

Great Plains Energy and KCPL Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted Code of Ethical Business Conduct Code which applies to all directors officers and

employees of Great Plains Energy KCPL and their subsidiaries The Code is posted on the investor relations page
of our Internet websites at www.greatplainsenergy.com and www.kcpl.com copy of the Code is available

without charge upon written request to Corporate Secretary Great Plains Energy Incorporated 1201 Walnut

Kansas City Missouri 64106 Great Plains Energy and KCPL intend to satisf the disclosure requirements under

Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to or waiver from provision of the Code that applies to the

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller of those companies

by posting such information on the investor relations page of their Internet websites

Other KCPL Information

The other information required by this item regarding KCPL has been omitted in reliance on General Instruction
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ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Great Plains Energy

The information required by this item contained in the sections titled Executive Compensation Director

Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Committee Report and Director

Independence Compensation Committee Interlocks and insider Participation of the Proxy Statement is

incorporated by reference

KCPL
The information required by this item regarding KCPL has been omitted in reliance on General Instruction

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Great Plains Energy

The information required by this item regarding security ownership of the directors and executive officers of

Great Plains Energy contained in the section titled Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners Directors

and Officers of the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference

KCPL
The information required by this item regarding KCPL has been omitted in reliance on General Instruction

Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item regarding Great Plains Energys equity compensation plans is in Item

Market for the Registrants Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters of this report and is incorporated

by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Great Plains Energy

The information required by this item contained in the section titled Director Independence and Related Party

Transactions of the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference

KCPL
The information required by this item regarding KCPL has been omitted in reliance on General Instruction

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

GREAT PLA1NS ENERGY
The information required by this item regarding the independent auditors of Great Plains Energy and its

subsidiaries contained in the section titled Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditors of the Proxy

Statement is incorporated by reference
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KCPL
The Audit Committee of the Great Plains Energy Board functions as the Audit Committee of KCPL The

following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by Deloitte Touche LLP for audit services rendered in

connection with the consolidated financial statements and reports for 2008 and 2007 and for other services

rendered during 2008 and 2007 on behalf of KCPL and its subsidiaries as well as all out-of-pocket costs

incurred in connection with these services

Fee Category 2008 2007

Audit Fees 1086087 1020636
Audit-Related Fees 97372 59000
Tax Fees 32561 36689
All Other Fees

Total Fees 1216020 1116325

Audit Fees Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audits of the annual consolidated

financial statements of KCPL and its subsidiaries and reviews of the interim condensed consolidated financial

statements included in quarterly reports Audit fees also include services provided by Deloitte Touche LLP in

connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements audit reports on audits of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting and on managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting and other attest services except those not required by statute or regulation services

related to filings with the SEC including comfort letters consents and assistance with and review of documents

filed with the SEC and accounting research in support of the audit

Audit-Related Fees Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the

performance of the audit or review of consolidated financial statements of KCPL and its subsidiaries and are not

reported under Audit Fees These services include consultation concerning financial accounting and reporting

standards

Tax Fees Consists of fees billed for tax compliance and related support of tax returns and other tax services

including assistance with tax audits and tax research and planning

All Other Fees Consists of fees for all other services other than those reported above

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the independent

registered public accounting firm to KCPL and its subsidiaries These services may include audit services

audit-related services tax services and other services The Audit Committee has adopted for KCPL and its

subsidiaries policies and procedures for the pre-approval of services provided by the independent registered public

accounting firm Under these policies and procedures the Audit Committee may pre-approve certain types of

services up to aggregate fee levels established by the Audit Committee Any proposed service within pre
approved type of service that would cause the applicable fee level to be exceeded cannot be provided unless the

Audit Committee either amends the applicable fee level or specifically approves the proposed service Pre

approval is generally provided for up to one year unless the Audit Committee specifically provides for different

period The Audit Committee receives reports at each regular meeting regarding the pre-approved services

performed by the independent auditor The Chairman of the Audit Committee may between meetings pre
approve audit and non-audit services provided by the independent auditor and report such pre-approval at the

next Audit Committee meeting
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

Great Plains Energy Pa2e No

Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 57

2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2008 and 2007 58

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 60

and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity for the years ended 61

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years
ended December 31 62

2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 69

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 137

KCPL
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 63

2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2008 and 2007 64

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 66

and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity for the years ended 67

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31 68

2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 69

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 138

Financial Statement Schedules

Great Plains Energy

Schedule Parent Company Financial Statements 157

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 161

KCPL
Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 162
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Exhibits

Great Plains Energy Documents

Exhibit Description of Document
Number

2.1.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger among Aquila Inc Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Gregory Acquisition Corp and Black Hills Corporation dated as of February 2007

Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K dated February 2007

2.1.2 Mutual Notice of Extension among Aquila Inc Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Gregory Acquisition Corp and Black Hills Corporation dated as of January 31 2008

Exhibit 2.1.2 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

2.1.3 Mutual Notice of Extension among Aquila Inc Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Gregory Acquisition Corp and Black Hills Corporation dated as of April 29 2008

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated April 2008

3.1.1 Articles of Incorporation of Great Plains Energy Incorporated dated as of February 26
2001 and corrected as of October 13 2006 Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2006

3.1.2 By-laws of Great Plains Energy Incorporated as amended December 2008 Exhibit 3.1

to Form 8-K dated December 2008

4.1.1 Indenture dated June 2004 between Great Plains Energy Incorporated and BNY
Midwest Trust Company as Trustee Exhibit 4.5 to Form 8-A/A dated June 14 2004

4.1.2 First Supplemental Indenture dated June 14 2004 between Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and BNY Midwest Trust Company as Trustee Exhibit 4.5 to Form 8-A/A
dated June 14 2004

4.1.3 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 25 2007 between Great Plains

Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A as trustee Exhibit

4.1 to Form 8-K dated September 25 2007

4.1.4 Indenture dated as of August 24 2001 between Aquila Inc and BankOne Trust

Company N.A as Trustee Exhibit 4d to Registration Statement on Form S-3 File

No 33-68400 filed by Aquila Inc on August 27 2001

4.1.5 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 2002 between Aquila Inc and

BankOne Trust Company N.A as Trustee related to 11.875% Senior Notes due July

2012 Exhibit 4c to Form S-4 File No 333-100204 filed by Aquila Inc on September

30 2002

10.1.1 Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan effective as of May 2002 Exhibit 10.l.a to Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2002

10.1.2 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended May 2007

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed May 2007

10.1.3 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards Standards and

Administration effective as of February 2006 Exhibit 10.1 .b to Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2005

10.1.4 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards Standards and

Performance Criteria Effective as of May 2008 Exhibit 10.1.25 to Form l0-Q for the

quarter ended June 30 2008
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10.1.5 Form of 2005 three-year Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K

dated February 2005

10.1.6 Form of 2006 Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 Exhibit 10.1 .e to Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31 2005

10.1.7 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-

Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 Exhibit 10.1.6 to Form 10-K for the year
ended

December 31 2006

10.1.8 Form of 2008 Restricted Stock Agreement Exhibit 10.1.20 to Form l0-Q forthe quarter

ended June 30 2008

10.1.9 Form of 2005 three-year Performance Share Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 Exhibit 10.1 .a to Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31 2005

10.1.10 Form of 2006 three-year Performance Share Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 Exhibit 10.1 .h to Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2005

10.1.11 Form of 2007 three-year Performance Share Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 for Great Plains Energy and

KCPL officers Exhibit 10.1.10 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006

10.1.12 Form of 2007 three-year Performance Share Agreement Pursuant to the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Effective May 2002 for Strategic Energy officers

Exhibit 10.1.11 to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2006

10.1.13 Form of 2008 three-year Performance Share Agreement Exhibit 10.1.21 to Form 0-Q for the

quarter ended June 30 2008

10.1.14 Form of Amendment to 2003 Stock Option Grants Exhibit 10.1.9 to Form l0-Q for the

quarter ended September 30 2007

10.1.15 Strategic Energy L.L.C Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan 2006 Exhibit 10.1
.j

to Form

10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2005

10.1.16 Strategic Energy L.L.C Executive Committee Long-Term Incentive Plan dated as of

January 2007 Exhibit 10.1.6 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2007

10.1.17 Aquila Inc 2002 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan Exhibit 10.3 to Form l0-Q for

the quarter ended September 30 2002 filed by Aquila Inc.

10.1.18 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Kansas City Power Light Company Annual Incentive

Plan amended effective as of January 2007 and 2008 objectives adopted as of May
2008 Exhibit 10.1.22 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.1.19 Strategic Energy L.L.C Executive Committee Annual Incentive Plan dated as of January

2007 Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed May 2007

10.1.20 Form of Indemnification Agreement with each officer and director Exhibit 10-f to Form

10-K for year ended December 31 1995

10.1.21 Form of Conforming Amendment to Indemnification Agreement with each officer and

director Exhibit 10.1 .a to Form 0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2003
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10.1.22 Form of Indemnification Agreement with each director and officer Exhibit 10.1 to Form
8-K dated December 2008

10.1.23 Form of Indemnification Agreement with officers and directors Exhibit 10.1 .p to Form
10-K for the

year ended December 31 2005

10.1.24 Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement with Michael Chesser Exhibit 10.1 .a to

Form l0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.1.25 Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement with William Downey Exhibit l0.1.b to

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.1.26 Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement with John Marshall Exhibit 10.1 .c to

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.1.27 Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement with Shahid Malik Exhibit 10.1 .d to Form

10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.1.28 Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement with other executive officers of Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Kansas City Power Light Company Exhibit 10.1 .e to Form

l0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.1.29 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan As Amended

and Restated for I.R.C 409A as amended February 10 2009

10 1.30 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan As Amended

and Restated for I.R.C 409A Exhibit 10.1.10 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2007

10.1.31 Description of Compensation Arrangements with Directors and Certain Executive Officers

10.1.32 Employment Agreement among Strategic Energy L.L.C Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and Shahid Malik dated as of November 10 2004 Exhibit 10.1 .p to Form
10-K for the

year
ended December 31 2004

10.1.33 Severance Agreement among Strategic Energy L.L.C Great Plains Energy Incorporated

and Shahid Malik dated as of November 10 2004 Exhibit 10.1.q to Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2004

10.1.34 Letter regarding ethanced supplemental retirement and severance benefit for William

Downey dated August 2008 Exhibit 10.1.23 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30

2008

10.1.35 Employment offer letters to Michael Chesser dated September 10 and September 16
2003

10.1.36 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp dated February 2007

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated February 2007

10.1.37 Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Aquila Colorado

LLC Black Hills Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition

Corp dated February 2007 Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K dated February 2007

10.1.38 Letter Agreement dated as of June 29 2007 to Asset Purchase Agreement and Partnership

Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp dated February 2007

Exhibit 10.1.1 to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2007
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10.1.39 Letter Agreement dated as of August 31 2007 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.4 to Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30 2007

10.1.40 Letter Agreement dated as of September 28 2007 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2007

10.1.41 Letter Agreement dated as of October 2007 to Agreement and Plan of Merger Asset

Purchase Agreement and Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila

Inc Black Hills Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition

Corp Exhibit 10.1.6 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2007

10.1.42 Letter Agreement dated as of November 30 2007 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.40 to Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2007

10.1.43 Letter Agreement dated as of January 30 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.41 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

10.1.44 Letter Agreement dated as of February 28 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.3 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008

10.1.45 Letter Agreement dated as of March 28 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and

Partnership Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills

Corporation Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit

10.1.4 to Form lO-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008

10.1.46 Letter Agreement dated as of April 28 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and Partnership

Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit 10.1.5 to Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended March 31 2008

10.1.47 Letter Agreement dated as of May 29 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and Partnership

Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit 10.1.5 to Form l0-Q

for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.1.48 Letter Agreement dated as of June 19 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and Partnership

Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit 10.1.6 to Form lO-Q

for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.1.49 Letter Agreement dated as of June 27 2008 to Asset Purchase Agreement and Partnership

Interests Purchase Agreement by and among Aquila Inc Black Hills Corporation Great

Plains Energy Incorporated and Gregory Acquisition Corp Exhibit 10.1.7 to Form 10-Q

for the quarter ended June 30 2008
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10.1.50 Joint Motion and Settlement Agreement dated as of February 26 2008 among Great Plains

Energy Incorporated Kansas City Power Light Company the Kansas Corporation

Commission Staff the Citizens Utility Ratepayers Board Aquila Inc d/b/a Aquila

Networks Black Hills Corporation and Black Hills/Kansas Gas Utility Company LLC

Exhibit 10.1.7 to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008

10.1.51 Purchase Agreement dated as of April 2008 by and among Custom Energy Holdings

L.L.C Direct Energy Services LLC and Great Plains Energy Incorporated Exhibit 10.1

to Form 8-K filed April 2008

10.1.52 Credit Agreement dated as of May 11 2006 among Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Bank of America NA JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A BNP Paribas The Bank of Tokyo-

Mitsubishi UFJ Limited Chicago Branch Wachovia Bank N.A The Bank of New York

Keybank National Association The Bank of Nova Scotia UMB Bank N.A and

Commerce Bank N.A Exhibit lO.l.a to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2006

10.1.53 Notice of Election to Transfer Unused Commitment between the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and Kansas City Power Light Company Credit Agreements dated as of

May 11 2006 with Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent JPMorgan Chase

Bank N.A as Syndication Agent BNP Paribas The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Limited Chicago Branch and Wachovia Bank N.A as Co-Documentation Agents The

Bank of New York KeyBank National Association The Bank of Nova Scotia UMB Bank

N.A and Commerce Bank NA Exhibit 10.1.2 to Form lO-Q for the quarter ended June

30 2007

10.1.54 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 16 2008 among Great Plains

Energy Incorporated the Lenders party thereto and Bank of America N.A as

Administrative Agent Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 22 2008

10.1.55 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 16 2008 among Great Plains

Energy Incorporated the Lenders party thereto and Bank of America N.A as

Administrative Agent Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on May 22 2008

10.1.56 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of June 13 2008 among Great Plains

Energy Incorporated the Lenders party thereto and Bank of America N.A as

Administrative Agent Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on June 19 2008

10.1.57 Financing Agreement dated as of April 22 2005 among Aquila Inc the lenders from

time to time party thereto and Union Bank of California N.A as agent Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 8-K filed by Aquila Inc on April 26 2005

10.1.58 Amendment No to Financing Agreement dated December 92006 by and between

Aquila Inc the lenders from time to time party thereto and Union Bank of

California N.A as agent Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed by Aquila Inc on December 11

2006

10.1.59 Amendment to Financing Agreement dated June 10 2008 by and among Aquila Inc the

lenders from time to time party thereto and Union Bank of California N.A as agent

Exhibit 10.1.3 to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2008

10.1.60 Amendment to Financing Agreement dated October 28 2008 by and among KCPL
Greater Missouri Operations Company the lenders from time to time party thereto and

Union Bank of California N.A as agent
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10.1.61 Guaranty dated as of July 14 2008 between Great Plains Energy Incorporated and Union

Bank of California N.A related to Financing Agreement dated as of April 22 2005 as

amended among Aquila Inc the lenders from time to time party thereto and Union Bank

of CaliforniaN.A as Agent Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed July 18 2008

10.1.62 Guaranty dated as of July 15 2008 issued by Great Plains Energy Incorporated in favor of

Union Bank of California N.A as successor trustee and the holders of the Aquila Inc

11.875% Senior Notes due July 12012 Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed July 18 2008

10.1.63 Guaranty dated as of July 15 2008 issued by Great Plains Energy Incorporated in favor of

Union Bank of California N.A as successor trustee and the holders of the Aquila Inc

7.75% Senior Notes due June 15 2011 Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K filed July 18 2008

10.1.64 Guaranty dated as of July 15 2008 issued by Great Plains Energy Incorporated in favor of

Union Bank of California N.A as successor trustee and the holders of the Aquila Inc

7.95% Senior Notes due February 2011 Exhibit 10.5 to Form 8-K filed July 18 2008

10.1.65 Guaranty dated as of July 15 2008 issued by Great Plains Energy Incorporated in favor of

Union Bank of California N.A as successor trustee and the holders of the Aquila Inc

8.27% Senior Notes due November 15 2021 Exhibit 10.6 to Form 8-K filed July 18

2008

10.1.66 Guaranty dated as of July 15 2008 issued by Great Plains Energy Incorporated in favor of

Union Bank of California N.A as successor trustee and the holders of the Aquila Inc

7.625% Senior Notes due November 15 2009 Exhibit 10.7 to Form 8-K filed July 18

2008

10.1.67 Credit Agreement dated as of September 23 2008 among Aquila Inc as the Borrower

Great Plains Energy Incorporated as the Guarantor certain lenders Bank of America

N.A as Administrative Agent Union Bank of California N.A as Syndication Agent and

BNP Paribas JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc as Co
Documentation Agents Banc of America Securities LLC and Union Bank of California

N.A as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed

on September 23 2008

10.1.68 Sales Agency Financing Agreement dated August 14 2008 between Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and BNY Mellon Capital Markets LLC Exhibit 1.1 to Form 8-K filed

August 14 2008

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy Incorporated

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 Powers of Attorney

31.1 .a Rule 3a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certifications of Michael Chesser

31.l.b Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a Certifications of Terry Bassham

32.1 Section 1350 Certifications

Filed with the SEC as exhibits to prior SEC filings and are incorporated herein by reference and made part

hereof The SEC filing and the exhibit number of the documents so filed and incorporated herein by reference

are stated in parenthesis in the description of such exhibit

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Copies of any of the exhibits filed with the SEC in connection with this document may be obtained from Great

Plains Energy upon written request

Great Plains Energy agrees to furnish to the SEC upon request any instrument with respect to long-term debt as to

which the total amount of securities authorized does not exceed 10% of total assets of Great Plains Energy and its

subsidiaries on consolidated basis

KCPL Documents

Exhibit Description of Document

Number

3.2.1 Restated Articles of Consolidation of Kansas City Power Light Company as amended

October 2001 Exhibit 3-i to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2001

3.2.2 By-laws of Kansas City Power Light Company as amended April 2008 Exhibit 3.2 to

Form 8-K dated April 2008

4.2.1 General Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of December 1986 between Kansas City

Power Light Company and UMB Bank n.a formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City

N.A Trustee Exhibit 4-bb to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1986

4.2.2 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 15 1992 to Indenture dated as of

December 1986 Exhibit 4-y to Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 1991

4.2.3 Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15 1992 to Indenture dated as of

December 1986 Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 1992

4.2.4 Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1993 to Indenture dated as of

December 1986 Exhibit 4-a to quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 1993

4.2.5 Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1993 to Indenture dated as of

December 1986 Exhibit to Registration Statement Registration No 33-5 1799

4.2.6 Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 15 2005 to the General Mortgage and

Deed of Trust dated as of December 1986 between Kansas City Power Light Company
and UMB Bank n.a formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City N.A Trustee Exhibit

4.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2005

4.2.7 Indenture for Medium-Term Note Program dated as of February 15 1992 between Kansas City

Power Light Company and The Bank of New York Exhibit 4-bb to Registration Statement

Registration No 33-45736

4.2.8 Indenture for $150 million aggregate principal amount of 6.50% Senior Notes due November

15 2011 and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior Notes due December

15 2005 dated as of December 2000 between Kansas City Power Light Company and

The Bank of New York Exhibit 4-a to Report on Form 8-K dated December 18 2000

4.2.9 Indenture dated March 2002 between The Bank of New York and Kansas City Power

Light Company Exhibit 4.1.b to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2002

4.2.10 Supplemental Indenture No dated as of November 15 2005 to Indenture dated March

2002 between The Bank of New York and Kansas City Power Light Company Exhibit 4.2.j

to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005
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4.2.11 Indenture dated as of May 2007 between Kansas City Power Light Company and The

Bank of New York Trust Company N.A as trustee Exhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K dated June

2007

4.2.12 Supplemental Indenture No dated as of June 2007 between Kansas City Power Light

Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A as trustee Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-

dated June 2007

4.2.13 Supplemental Indenture No dated as of March 11 2008 between Kansas City Power Light

Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company N.A as trustee Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-

dated March 11 2008

10.2.1 Insurance agreement between Kansas City Power Light Company and XL Capital Assurance

Inc dated December 2002 Exhibit l0.2.f to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2002

10.2.2 Insurance Agreement dated as of August 2004 between Kansas City Power Light

Company and XL Capital Assurance Inc Exhibit 10.2 to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended

September 30 2004

10.2.3 Insurance Agreement dated as of September 12005 between Kansas City Power Light

Company and XL Capital Assurance Inc Exhibit 10.2.e to Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2005

10.2.4 Insurance Agreement dated as of September 2005 between Kansas City Power Light

Company and XL Capital Assurance Inc Exhibit l0.2.e to Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2005

10.2.5 Insurance Agreement dated as of September 19 2007 by and between Financial Guaranty

Insurance Company and Kansas City Power Light Company Exhibit 10.2.2 ito Form 1OQ

for the quarter ended September 30 2007

10.2.6 latan Unit and Common Facilities Ownership Agreement dated as of May 19 2006 among

Kansas City Power Light Company Aquila Inc The Empire District Electric Company

Kansas Electric Power Cooperative Inc and Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility

Commission Exhibit 10.2.a to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2006

10.2.7 Contract between Kansas City Power Light Company and ALSTOM Power Inc for

Engineering Procurement and Constructions Services for Air Quality Control Systems and

Selective Catalytic Reduction Systems at latan Generating Station Units and and the

Pulverized Coal-Fired Boiler at latan Generating Station Unit dated as of August 10 2006

Exhibit 10.2.a to Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006

10.2.8 Credit Agreement dated as of May 11 2006 among Kansas City Power Light Company

Bank of America N.A JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A BNP Paribas The Bank of Tokyo

Mitsubishi UFJ Limited Chicago Branch Wachovia Bank N.A The Bank of New York

Keybank National Association The Bank of Nova Scotia UMB Bank N.A and Commerce

Bank N.A Exhibit lO.2.b to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2006
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10.2.9 Notice of Election to Transfer Unused Commitment between the Great Plains Energy

Incorporated and Kansas City Power Light Company Credit Agreements dated as of May 11

2006 with Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as

Syndication Agent BNP Paribas The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Limited Chicago

Branch and Wachovia Bank N.A as Co-Documentation Agents The Bank of New York

KeyBank National Association The Bank of Nova Scotia UMB Bank N.A and Commerce

Bank N.A Exhibit 10.1.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30

2007

10.2.10 Stipulation and Agreement dated March 28 2005 among Kansas City Power Light

Company Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission Office of the Public Counsel

Missouri Department of Natural Resources Praxair Inc Missouri Independent Energy

Consumers Ford Motor Company Aquila Inc The Empire District Electric Company and

Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended March 31 2005

10.2.11 Stipulation and Agreement filed April 27 2005 among Kansas City Power Light Company
the Staff of the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas Sprint Inc and the

Kansas Hospital Association Exhibit 10.2.a to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2005

10.2.12 Joint Motion and Settlement Agreement dated as of February 26 2008 among Great Plains

Energy Incorporated Kansas City Power Light Company the Kansas Corporation

Commission Staff the Citizens Utility Ratepayers Board Aquila Inc dlb/a Aquila Networks

Black Hills Corporation and Black Hills/Kansas Gas Utility Company LLC Exhibit 10.1.7 to

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2008

10.2.13 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of July 2005 between Kansas City Power Light

Company as Originator and Kansas City Power Light Receivables Company as Buyer

Exhibit 10.2.b to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2005

10.2.14 Receivables Sale Agreement dated as of July 2005 among Kansas City Power Light

Receivables Company as the Seller Kansas City Power Light Company as the Initial

Collection Agent The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd New York Branch as the Agent and

Victory Receivables Corporation Exhibit l0.2.c to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30
2005

10.2.15 Amendment No dated as of April 2007 among Kansas City Power Light Receivables

Company Kansas City Power Light Company The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd
New York Branch and Victory Receivables Corporation to the Receivables Sale Agreement

dated as of July 12005 Exhibit 10.2.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2007

10.2.16 Amendment No dated as of July 11 2008 among Kansas City Power Light Receivables

Company Kansas City Power Light Company The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd
New York Branch and Victory Receivables Corporation to the Receivables Sale Agreement

dated as of July 2005 Exhibit 10.2.2 to For l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.2.17 Collaboration Agreement dated as of March 19 2007 among Kansas City Power Light

Company Sierra Club and Concerned Citizens of Platte County Inc Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K

filed on March 20 2007

10.2.18 Joint Operating Agreement between Kansas City Power Light Company and Aquila Inc
dated as of October 10 2008 Exhibit 10.2.1 to Form l0-Q for the quarter ended September 30

2008
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10.2.19 Great Plains Energy Incorporated Kansas City Power Light Company Annual Incentive Plan

amended effective as of January 2007 and 2008 objectives adopted as of May 2008

Exhibit 10.1.22 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008

10.2.20 Agreement between Kansas City Power Light Company and Stephen Easley dated

December 2008

10.2.2 Employment offer letter to John Marshall dated April 2005

12.2 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.2 Powers of Attorney

31.2.a Rule 13a-14a/15d-l4a Certifications of William Downey

31 .2.b Rule 3a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certifications of Terry Bassham

32.2 Section 1350 Certifications

Filed with the SEC as exhibits to prior SEC filings and are incorporated herein by reference and made part

hereof The SEC filings and the exhibit number of the documents so filed and incorporated herein by reference

are stated in parenthesis in the description of such exhibit

Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Copies of any of the exhibits filed with the SEC in connection with this document may be obtained from KCPL

upon written request

KCPL agrees to furnish to the SEC upon request any instrument with respect to long-term debt as to which the

total amount of securities authorized does not exceed 10% of total assets of KCPL and its subsidiaries on

consolidated basis
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Schedule Parent Company Financial Statements

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED

Income Statements of Parent Company

Year Ended December 31 2008 2007 2006

Operating Expenses millions except per share amounts

Selling general and administrative 9.3 18.5 7.1

Maintenance 1.0 0.8

General taxes 0.8 0.3 0.3

Total 11.1 19.6 7.4

Operating loss 11.1 19.6 7.4

Equity in earnings from subsidiaries 144.8 156.8 152.1

Non-operating income 0.6 4.2 1.1

Interest charges 19.2 26.8 8.9
Income fromcontinuing operations before income taxes 115.1 114.6 136.9

Income taxes 4.4 6.3 0.2

Income fromcontinuing operations 119.5 120.9 136.7

Equity in earnings from discontinued subsidiary 35.0 38.3 9.1
Net income 154.5 159.2 127.6

Preferred stock dividend requirements 1.6 1.6 1.6

Earnings available for common shareholders 152.9 157.6 126.0

Average number ofbasic common shares outstanding 101.1 84.9 78.0

Average number of diluted common shares outstanding 101.2 85.2 78.2

Basic earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations 1.16 1.41 1.74

Discontinued operations 0.35 0.45 0.12

Basic earnings per common share 1.51 1.86 1.62

Diluted earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations 1.16 1.40 1.73

Discontinued operations 0.35 0.45 0.12

Diluted earnings per common share 1.51 1.85 1.61

Cash dividends per common share 1.66 1.66 1.66

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an integral part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED

Balance Sheets of Parent Company

December31 2008 2007

ASSEFS millions except share amounts

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
12.0 6.6

Accounts receivable from subsidiaries 4.8 1.0

Notes receivable from subsidiaries 0.6 0.6

Taxes receivable 12.0 3.7

Deferred income taxes 0.2

Other 0.4 0.4

Total 30.0 12.3

Nonutility Property and tnwstments

Investment in KCPL 1621.9 1479.4

Investment in discontinued operations
233.7

Investments in other subsidiaries 1094.8 23.1

Other 1.0 0.7

Total 2717.7 1736.9

Deferred Charges and Other Assets

Deferred income taxes 1.2 8.0

Other 5.0 23.7

Total 6.2 31.7

Total 2753.9 1780.9

The accompanyingNotes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an inteal part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATE
Balance Sheets of Parent Company

December31 2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION millions except share amounts

Current Liabilities

Notes payable 30.0 42.0

Accounts payable to subsidiaries 28.7 10.8

Accounts payable 1.3 0.1

Accrued interest 2.0 2.0

Other 0.8 1.3

Derivative instruments 16.4

Total 62.8 72.6

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Payable to subsidiaries 0.2

Other
1.9 1.7

Total 1.9 1.9

Capitalization

Common shareholders equity

Common stock-150000000 shares authorized without par value

119375923 and 86325136 shares issued stated value 2118.4 1065.9

Retained earnings 4893 506.9

Treasury stock-120677 and 90929 shares at cost 3.6 2.8

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 53.5 2.1
Total 2550.6 1567.9

Cumulative preferred stock $100 par value

3.80% 100000 shares issued 10.0 10.0

4.50% 100000 shares issued 10.0 10.0

4.20% 70000 shares issued 7.0 7.0

4.35% 120000 shares issued 12.0 12.0

Total 39.0 39.0

Long-term debt 99.6 99.5

Total 2689.2 1706.4

Commitments and Contingencies

Total 2753.9 1780.9

The accompanyingNotes to Fmancial Statements of Parent Company are an integral part of these statements
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GREAT PLAINS FNERGY INCORPORATED

Statements of Cash flovs of Parent Company

0.9

3.3

144.8

35.0

26.3

8.7
17.7

0.2

416.7

2.7

381.2

1.0

6.2

156.8

38.3

0.6

1.8

4.8

0.1

1.1

159.7

1.8

115.6

2006

127.6

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an integral part of these statements

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED
Statements of Common Shareholders Equity of Parent Company

Statements of Comprehensive Income of Parent Company

0.6

152.1

9.1

0.6

0.1

15.1

0.1

0.1
118.0

1.7

119.1

Incorporated by reference is Great Plains Energy Consolidated Statements of Common Shareholders Equity and

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

2008 2007

millions

154.5 159.2

Year Ended December31

Cash flovs from Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash from operating activities

Amortization

Deferred income taxes net

Equity in earnings from subsidiaries

Equity in earnings from discontinued operations

Cash flows affected by changes in

Accounts receivable from subsidiaries

Taxes receivable

Accounts payable to subsidiaries

Other accounts payable

Accrued interest

Cash dividends from subsidiaries

Other

Net cash from operating activities

Cash F1o from Inwsting Activities

Equity contributions to subsidiaries 200.0 94.0 134.6

Net change in notes receivable from subsidiaries 1.7 3.1

GMO acquisition 5.0

Purchases of nonutility property 0.3 0.7

Net cash from investing activities 205.3 93.0 131.5

Cash Ho from Financing Activities

Issuance of common stock 15.3 10.5 153.6

Issuance of long-term debt 99.5

Issuance fees 1.0 1.4 5.7

Net change in notes payable to subsidiaries 13.2 13.2

Net change in short-term borrowings 12.0 42.0 6.0

Equity forward settlement 12.3

Dividends paid 172.0 144.5 132.7

Other financing activities 0.8 2.4 6.2

Net cash from financing activities 170.5 21.8 16.2

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
5.4 0.8 3.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 6.6 5.8 2.0

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 12.0 6.6 5.8
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GREAT PLAINS ENERGY INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

The Great Plains Energy Incorporated Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II Item should be

read in conjunction with the Great Plains Energy Incorporated Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Creat Plains Fnergy

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Years Ended December 3120082007 and 2006

Additions

Charged

Balance At To Costs Charged Balance

Beginning And To Other At End

Description Of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Of Period

Year Ended December31 2008 millions

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 4.3 7.6 6.8 11.9 6.8

Legal reserves 2.2 8.3 9.8
ci

10.2

Environnental reserves 0.3 0.2 0.5

Uncertain taxpositions 7.9 1.8 74.9 5.9 78.7

Tax valuation allowance 0.9 74.9 75.8

Year Ended December 31 2007

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 4.2 5.4 2.9 8.2 4.3

Legal reserves 3.9 1.9 3.6 2.2

Environnental reserves 0.3 0.3

Uncertain tax positions 4.2 2.5 1.9 0.7 7.9

Year Ended December 31 2006

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 2.6 4.5 4.2

Legal reserves 4.5 2.8 3.4 3.9

Environnental reserves 0.3 0.3

Uncertain taxpositions 3.4 1.0 0.2 4.2

Recoveries Charged to other accounts for the year ended December31 2008 includes the establishment of an allowance

of $1.1 million and $1.4 million increase due to the acquisition ofGMO Charged to other accounts for the year ended

December 31 2006 includes the establishment of an allowance of $1.5 million

Uncollectible accounts charged off

Acquisition of GMO
Payment of claims

Represents the total amount of tax expense that would impact the effective tax rate if recognized and amounts

accrued for mterest expense related to uncertain tax positions net of tax

Reversal of uncertain tax positions and related interest

Upon adoption of FIN No 48 on Januaiy 2007 $1.7 million was charged to retained earnings

ci
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Kansas City Poiwr Light Company

Valuation and Qua1i1iing Accounts

Years Ended December 312008 2007 and 2006

Additions

Charged

Balance At To Costs Charged Balance

Beginning And To Other At End

Description Of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Of Period

Year Ended December31 2008 millions

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 4.3 5.9 3.3 12.3 1.2

Legal reserves 2.2 3.2 3.0 2.4

Environmental reserves 0.3 0.3

Uncertain taxpositions
3.0 1.2 1.8

Year Ended December 312007

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 4.2 5.4 2.9 8.2 4.3

Legal reserves 3.9 1.9 3.6 2.2

Environmental reserves 0.3 0.3

Uncertain taxpositions 1.8 0.7 0.8 0.3 3.0

Year Ended December 31 2006

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 2.6 4.5 4.2

Legal reserves 4.5 2.8 3.9

Environmental reserves 0.3 0.3

Uncertain taxpositions 1.2 0.8 0.2 1.8

includes the establishment of an allowanceRecoveries Charged to other accounts for the year ended December 31 2006

of$l.5 million

Uncollectible accounts charged off

Payment of claims

Represents the total amount of tax expense that would impact the effective tax rate if recognized and amounts

accrued for interest expense related to uncertain tax positions net of tax

Reversal of uncertain tax positions and related interest

Upon adoption of FIN No 48 on January 2007 $0.8 million was charged to retained earnings
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

GREAT PLAiNS ENERGY iNCORPORATED
Date February 27 2009 By Is/Michael Chesser

Michael Chesser

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

Is/Michael Chesser Chairman of the Board and Chief

Michael Chesser Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President Finance and

Is/Terry Bassham Strategic Development and

Terry Bassham Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

/s/Lori Wright Vice President and Controller

Lori Wright Principal Accounting Officer

David Bodde Director February 27 2009

/s/William Downey Director

William Downey

Randall Ferguson Jr Director

Gary Forsee Director

Luis Jimenez Director

James Mitchell Director

William Nelson Director

Linda Talbott Director

Robert West Director

By Is/Michael Chesser

Michael Chesser

AttorneyinFact
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

KANSAS CITY POWER LIGHT COMPANY

Date February 27 2009 By Is/Michael Chesser

Michael Chesser

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Iltie

Is/Michael Chesser Chairman of the Board and Chief

Michael Chesser Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Is/Terry Bassham Executive Vice President Finance and

Terry Bassham Strategic Development and

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Is/Lori Wright Vice President and Controller

Lori Wright Principal Accounting Officer

David Bodde Director February 27 2009

/sI William Downey Director

William Downey

Randall Ferguson Jr Director

Luis Jimenez Director

James Mitchell Director

William Nelson Director

Linda Talbott Director

By Is/Michael Chesser

Michael Chesser

AttorneyinFact
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Exhibit 31.l.a

CERTIFICATIONS

Michael Chesser certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control

over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in

the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 27 2009 Is Michael Chesser

Michael Chesser

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.1.b

CERTIFICATIONS

Terry Bassham certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Great Plains Energy Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 27 2009 Is Terry Bassham

Teny Bassham

Executive Vice President Finance and Strategic

Development and Chief Financial Officer
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Shareholder Information

GREAT PLAINS ENERGY FORM 10-K

Great Plains Energys 2008 annual report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission can be found at wvvwgreatp/amsenergy.com The

required Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 certifications were filed as exhibits to

the 10-K The 10-K is available at no charge upon written request to

Corporate Secretary

Great Plains Energy Incorporated

P.O Box 418679

Kansas City MO 64141-9679

MARKET INFORMATION

Great Plains Energy common stock is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the ticker symbol GXP We had 30142 shareholders of

record as of February 24 2009

INTERNET SITE

We have Web site on the Internet at wwwgreatp/ainsenergy.corn Information

available includes our SEC filings Company news releases stock quotes

customer account information community and environmental efforts and

information of general interest to investors and customers

Also located on our Web site are our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of the Audit Committee

Governance Committee and Compensation and Development Committee of

the Board of Directors which are available at no charge upon written
request

to the Corporate Secretary

COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDS PAID

Quarter

First

Second

Third

Fourth

CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Ouafferly dividends on preferred stock were declared in each quarter of

2008 and 2007 as follows

Series Amount Series

3.80% $0.95 4.35%

4.20% 1.05 4.50%

TWO-YEAR COMMON STOCK HISTORY

2008 2007

Quarter High Low High Low

First $28.85 $24.35 $32.67 $30.42

Second 26.76 24.67 33.18 28.82

Third 26.20 21.92 29.94 26.99

Fourth 22.43 7.09 30.45 28.32

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Great Plains Energys annual meeting of shareholders will be held at

10a.m May 2009 at Kansas City Public Library Plaza Branch

Truman Forum Auditorium 4801 Main Street Kansas City Mo 64112

REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER INOUIRIES

For account information or assistance including change of address

stock transfers dividend payments duplicate accounts or to report

lost certificate please contact Investor Relations at 800-245-5275

FINANCIAL COMMUNITY INQUIRIES

Securities analysts and investment professionals seeking information about

Great Plains Energy may contact Investor Relations at 816-556-2312

TRANSFER AGENT AND STOCK REGISTRANT

Computershare Trust Company N.A

Investor Services

P.O Box 43078

Providence RI 02940-3078

Tel 800-884-4225

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE LISTING STANDARDS CERTIFICATION

On May 2008 the Company submitted its Annual CEO Certification to

the New York Stock Exchange NYSE Mike Chesser Chairman of the

Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company certified that as of

May 2008 he was not aware of any violation by the Company of

NYSE Corporate Governance listing standards

2008

$0415

0.415

0.415

0.415

2007

$0 .41

0.41

0.41

0.41

Amount

$1 08 75

1125



PfflTPLfiIflV

NYSE GXP For more nformation on Great Plains Energy or KCPL visit us online at

wwwgreatplainsenergy corn or www KCPL corn


